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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

a TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 814-00735

KCAP Financial, Inc.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its chaet)

Delaware 20-5951150
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

295 Madison Avenue, & Floor
New York, New York 10017

(Address of principal executive offices)
(212) 455-8300

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of each class Name of exchange on which registered
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share The NASDAQ Global Select Market
7.375% Senior Notes due 2019 New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act. YeEl
No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord}%f the Act. Yedd No



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdid months (or for such shorter period that thgiReant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject tb filing requirements for the past 90 days: ¥ds No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§&B2of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqmteiod that the registrant was required to sulamit post such files). Ydd
No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (828% of this chapter) is
not contained herein, and will not be containedhtobest of registrant’s knowledge, in definitprexy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part Ithizf Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 1E&K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, noa-accelerated filer. See
definition of “accelerated filer” and “large accedted filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. €€k one):

Large accelerated fildzl Accelerated fileiX]  Non-accelerated fileE&d Smaller Reporting Compaiiyt

(Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A¢8s0 No
The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmg@ommon stock held by non-affiliates of theisérgnt as of June 29,
2012 was approximately $158 million based uporpaing price of $7.26 reported for such date by NASDAQ Global
Select Market. Common shares held by each execofiieer and director and by each person who owisos more of the

outstanding common shares have been excludedtisubh persons may be deemed to be affiliates. ddtermination of
affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusiviedrination for other purposes.

The number of outstanding shares of common stotheofegistrant as of March 1, 2013 was 31,926,480.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive proxy statnt for the 2013 annual meeting of stockholdelzetéiled with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 dalfewing the end of the registrant’s fiscal yeardeare incorporated by
reference into Part Il of this report.
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NOTE ABOUT REFERENCES TO KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual ftet”), the “Company”, "KCAP”, “we”, “us” and “ourtefer to KCAP
Financial, Inc. and it's wholly owned subsidiari&&GAP Funding and Kohlberg Capital Funding LLC hless the context
otherwise requires.

NOTE ABOUT TRADEMARKS

KCAP Financial, Inc., our logo and other trademarkKCAP Financial, Inc. are the property of KCAR&ncial, Inc. All
other trademarks or trade names referred to in&hirual Report are the property of their respectiwmers.

NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report includes forward-looking statese The matters discussed in this Annual Repsriyell as in future
oral and written statements by management of KCiRri€ial, Inc., that are forward-looking statemears based on current
management expectations that involve substansie$ ind uncertainties which could cause actualtsasudiffer materially
from the results expressed in, or implied by, tHeseard-looking statements. Forward-looking stateis relate to future
events or our future financial performance. We galheidentify forward-looking statements by termiagy such as “may,”
“will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,“could,” “intends,” “target,” “projects,” “conterplates,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continuedr the negative of these terms or other similardspalthough not all forward-
looking statements include these words. Importastiaptions include our ability to originate newestments, achieve certain
margins and levels of profitability, the availabyjilof additional capital, and the ability to maiimt@ertain debt to asset ratios. In
light of these and other uncertainties, the incnf a projection or forward-looking statementhis Annual Report should not
be regarded as a representation by us that ous plambjectives will be achieved. The forward-loukistatements contained in
this Annual Report include statements as to:

e our future operating results;

* our business prospects and the prospects ofxating and prospective portfolio companies;

« the return or impact of current and future inuests;

e our contractual arrangements and other relatipashith third parties;

« the dependence of our future success on the @es@nomy and its impact on the industries in Whie invest;
« the financial condition and ability of our exisgi and prospective portfolio companies to achibed tobjectives;
* our expected financings and investments;

« our regulatory structure and tax treatment;

« our ability to operate as a business developmampany and a regulated investment company, inoutiie impact of
changes in laws or regulations governing our opEator the operations of our portfolio companiasluding Katonah
Debt Advisors, L.L.C. and Trimaran Advisors, L.L;C.

« the adequacy of our cash resources and workipiteta

« the timing of cash flows, if any, from the opéwat of our portfolio companies, including Katoriaébt Advisors,
L.L.C. and Trimaran Advisors, L.L.C.;

« the impact of a protracted decline in the ligtyidif credit markets on our business;
* the impact of fluctuations in interest rates om business;
< the valuation of our investments in portfolio quanies, particularly those having no liquid tradingrket;

e our ability to recover unrealized losses;
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« market conditions and our ability to access adidi capital; and
e the timing, form and amount of any dividend ditions.

For a discussion of factors that could cause owrahcesults to differ from forward-looking statemt® contained in this
Annual Report, please see the discussion undek‘fRistors” in Item 1A. You should not place undakance on these
forward-looking statements. The forward-lookingtetaents made in this Annual Report relate onlynts as of the date on
which the statements are made. We undertake ngatiolh to update any forward-looking statemeneftect events or
circumstances occurring after the date of this AxhiReport unless required by law.
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PART |

Item 1.Business
GENERAL

We originate, structure, and invest in senior seduerm loans, mezzanine debt and selected eagtyises primarily in
privately-held middle market companies. We defimemiddle market as comprising companies with egsbefore interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization, which werrefas “EBITDA,” of $10 million to $50 million aridr total debt of $25
million to $150 million.

In addition to our middle market investment busié&tonah Debt Advisors, L.L.C. and its asset rganaffiliates
(collectively, “Katonah Debt Advisors”) and Trimar@dvisors, L.L.C. (“Trimaran Advisors”, togetheiittv Katonah Debt
Advisors, our “Asset Manager Affiliates”) each mgaacollateralized loan obligation funds (“CLO Fufjdbat invest in
broadly syndicated loans, high-yield bonds androtioeporate credit instruments. Each of Katonaht@elvisors and Trimaran
Advisors are our wholly-owned portfolio companiasd each are registered investment advisers uheénvestment Advisers
Act of 1940 (the “Adviser Act”).

Our investment objective is to generate currendiime and capital appreciation from the investmeradarby our middle
market business in senior secured term loans, megzdebt and selected equity investments in plyaield middle market
companies. We also expect to receive distributadnecurring fee income and to generate capitatepation from our
investments in the asset management businesses Aset Manager Affiliates. We intend to grow partfolio of assets by
raising additional capital, including through theigent use of leverage available to us. While aimary investment focus is
on making loans to, and selected equity investmianfwivately-held middle market companies, we raip invest in other
investments such as loans to larger, publicly-tactempanies, high-yield bonds and distressed asirgies. We may also
receive warrants or options to purchase commork stoconnection with our debt investments. In aidditwe may also invest
in debt and equity securities issued by the CLOdSunanaged by our Asset Manager Affiliates or thepasset managers.

We seek to manage risk through a rigorous creditiavestment underwriting process and an activéf@ar monitoring
program. We employ a disciplined approach in thecsien and monitoring of our investments. Gengraile target
investments that will generate a current returnubh interest income to provide for stability i et income and place less
reliance on realized capital gains from our invesita. Our investment philosophy is focused on pvasg capital with an
appropriate return profile relative to risk. Ouv@stment due diligence and selection generallyseswn an underlying issuer’s
net cash flow after capital expenditures to seritkeebt rather than on multiples of net inconauations or other broad
benchmarks which frequently miss the nuances @arer’s business and prospective financial perdmece. We also generally
avoid concentrations in any one industry or issuer.

We were formed in August 2006. In December 2006¢c@rapleted our initial public offering (“IPQO”), wblh raised net
proceeds of approximately $200 million after thereise of the underwriters’ over-allotment optibmconnection with our
IPO, we issued an additional 3,484,333 shares o€@mmon stock in exchange for the ownership istsref Katonah Debt
Advisors and in securities issued by the CLO Fundsaged by Katonah Debt Advisors and two othertasaeagers. On
February 29, 2012, we purchased Trimaran Advisof3l. O manager similar to Katonah Debt Advisors. t€mporaneously
with the acquisition of Trimaran Advisors, we aagdi from Trimaran Advisors equity interests in aartCLO Funds managed
by Trimaran Advisors. As of December 31, 2012, Kato Debt Advisors and Trimaran Advisors are the gamy’s only
wholly-owned portfolio companies and have approxetya$3.6 billion of par value assets under managgnKatonah Debt
Advisors and Trimaran Advisors are each managegpeddently from us by separate management teanmsastment
committees.

Including employees of our Asset Manager Affiliate® employ an experienced team of 16 investmefepsionals and 25
total staff members. Dayl W. Pearson, our PresidedtChief Executive Officer, and one of our dicgst has been in the
financial services industry for over 33 years. Dgrihe past 20 years, Mr. Pearson has focused aémdsisively in the middle
market and has originated, structured and undeenrdver $7 billion of debt and equity securiti@sJon Corless, our Chief
Investment Officer has
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managed investment portfolios in excess of $4drilit several institutions and has been respongibl@anaging portfolios of
leveraged loans, high-yield bonds, mezzanine siesiand middle market loans. Edward U. Gilpin, Ghief Financial
Officer, Secretary and Treasurer, has significapeeence in overseeing the financial reportingadsset management
businesses, including the fair value accountin@lo® securities owned by them.

We are an internally managed, non-diversified aesed investment company that is regulated as imdssdevelopment
company (“BDC") under the Investment Company Acfi8fi0. Because we are internally managed by owutive officers
under the supervision of our Board of Directors dadot depend on a third party investment adviserdo not pay investment
advisory fees and all of our income is availablpay our operating costs and to make distributioresur stockholders. As a
BDC, we are required to comply with regulatory reements, including limitations on our use of débfe are permitted to, and
expect to continue to, finance our investmentsughoborrowings. However, as a BDC, we are only gaheallowed to
borrow amounts such that our asset coverage, asedeh the 1940 Act, equals at least 200% afteh$orrowing. The 1940
Act also generally prohibits us from declaring &agh dividend or distribution on any class of apital stock if our asset
coverage is below 200% at the time of the declamatif the dividend or distribution.

In addition, under the investment company rulesragdlations pursuant to Article 6 of RegulatioX &nd the “Audit and
Accounting Guide for Investment Companies” issugdhe AICPA Guide, we are precluded from consolitaportfolio
company investments, including those in which weeha controlling interest, unless the portfolio gamy is another
investment company. An exception to this generialggrle in the AICPA Guide occurs if we own a cantied operating
company that provides all or substantially alltefdervices directly to us, or to an investment gany of ours. None of the
investments made by us qualify for this exceptiimerefore, our portfolio investments, including auwestments in the Asset
Manager Affiliates, are carried on the balance shefair value with any adjustments to fair vateeognized as “Net Change in
Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation)” in our staient of operations until the investment is exitedulting in any gain or
loss on exit being recognized as a “Net Realizeih @aoss) from Investments.”

We have also elected to be treated for U.S. fedleraime tax purposes as a regulated investmentaayn@RIC”) under
the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and intend terafe in a manner to maintain our RIC tax treatm&oatordingly, we
generally will not pay corporate-level U.S. fedaralome taxes on any net ordinary income or cagaats that we timely
distribute to our shareholders as dividends. Taaa our RIC tax treatment, we must meet specsmuatce-of-income and
asset diversification requirements and distributeually at least 90% of our net ordinary income ezalized net short-term
capital gains in excess of realized net long-teapital losses, if any, for each year.

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol “KCAP.” The net assdug per
share of our common stock at December 31, 2012p%#5. On December 31, 2012, the last reportedmsae of a share of
our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Select Markas $9.19.

Our Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at ®2dison Avenue, 8 Floor, New York, New York 10017, and our
telephone number is (212) 455-8300. We maintairebsite on the Internet hattp://www.kcapfinancial.comThe information
contained in our website is not incorporated bemefice into this Annual Report. We make availabl®mothrough our website
certain reports and amendments to those repottsvthéile with or furnish to the SEC in accordanei¢h the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). Thesdude our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quartexports on Form 10-
Q and our current reports on Form 8-K. We makeittit@mation available on our website free of cleaag soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file the infation with, or furnish it to, the SEC.
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Competitive Advantages

We believe that we can successfully compete wiieroproviders of capital in the markets in which eeenpete for the
following reasons:

* Internally managed structure and significant manageent resource. We are internally managed by our executive
officers under the supervision of our Board of Dioes and do not depend on a third party investraduisor. As a
result, we do not pay investment advisory feesahdf our income is available to pay our operatiiogts, which
include employing investment and portfolio managenpeofessionals, and to make distributions tostackholders.
We believe that our internally managed structucevigles us with a beneficial operating expense giraonvhen
compared to other publicly traded and privatelydrielvestment firms which are externally managed, eur internally
managed structure allows us the opportunity torksye our non-interest operating expenses as we guomvestment
portfolio.

*  Multiple sourcing capabilities for asse. We have multiple sources of loans, mezzaninestments and equity
investments through our industry relationships.

< Disciplined investment proce.. We employ a rigorous credit review and due ditige process which our senior
management has developed over more than 20 yebmsding. For each analyzed company, we developwaur
underwriting case and multiple stress case scenand an event-specific financial model reflectogpany, industry
and market variables.

« Investments in a wide variety of portfolio compagia a number of different industries with no expa® to
mortgage-backed securitiesOur investment portfolio (excluding our invesmmt®in our Asset Manager Affiliates and
CLO Fund securities) is spread across 24 differghtstries and 50 different entities with an averbglance per
investment of approximately $2.4 million.

< Significant equity ownership and alignment of incémes. Our senior management team and the senior mareate
team of our Asset Manager Affiliates together hawsgnificant equity interest in the Company, eimguthat their
incentives are strongly aligned with those of dockholders.

Investment Securities

Through our middle market investment business,nwest in senior secured loans, mezzanine debtarmdesser extent,
equity of middle market companies in a varietyrafuistries. We target middle market companies the¢ Istrong historical
cash flows, experienced management teams andfidblgiand defendable market positions in industwéh positive
dynamics. We generally target companies that gemewsitive cash flows because we look to cashdlas/ithe primary source
for servicing debt.

We employ a disciplined approach in the selectiwhmonitoring of our investments. Generally, wetdrinvestments that
will generate a current return through interesbme to provide for stability in our net income aidce less reliance on
realized capital gains from our investments. Ouesiment philosophy is focused on preserving chyita an appropriate
return profile relative to risk. Our investment dilikgence and selection generally focuses on atertiying issuer’s net cash
flow after capital expenditures to service its delther than on multiples of net income, valuationsther broad benchmarks
which frequently miss the nuances of an issuerSrass and prospective financial performance. \&@ génerally avoid
concentrations in any one industry or issuer. Waaga risk through a rigorous credit and investnu@dlerwriting process and
an active portfolio monitoring program.

We also may invest up to 30% of our investmentfpbotin opportunistic investments in high-yieldruts, debt and equity
securities of the CLO Funds and distressed debtjoity securities of public companies. In this regave typically make a
minority investment in the subordinated securitiepreferred stock of the CLO Funds raised and igeaidy our Asset
Manager Affiliates and may selectively invest icwgties issued by the CLO Funds managed by otbegtananagement
companies. The CLO Funds managed by our Asset Ma#tliates invest primarily in broadly syndicat@on-investment
grade loans, high-yield bonds and other creditumsénts of corporate issuers. The underlying assetach of the CLO Funds
in which we have an investment are generally difiecssecured or unsecured corporate debt.
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Subject to market conditions, we expect to contitaumake investments in the CLO Funds managed byAsset Manager
Affiliates, which we believe will provide us with@urrent cash investment return. We believe thedehinvestments will
provide our Asset Manager Affiliates with great@portunities to access new sources of capital wivilhultimately increase
our Asset Manager Affiliates’ assets under managemed resulting management fee income. We alseatxp receive
distributions of recurring fee income and to geteecapital appreciation from our investment indlsset management business
of our Asset Manager Affiliates.

As a manager of the CLO Funds, our Asset Managfliadés receive contractual and recurring managerfees from the
CLO Funds for their management and advisory sesviceaddition, our Asset Manager Affiliates magaakarn income related
to net interest on assets accumulated for futur® @Blsuances on which they have provided a firs ¢pgaranty in connection
with loan warehouse arrangements for their CLO Bufir Asset Manager Affiliates generate annuatatpey income equal
to the amount by which their fee income exceeds tperating expenses.

The annual management fees which our Asset Marf{jiates receive are generally based on a fixedcpntage of the
par value of assets under management and areirgciurmature for the term of the CLO Fund so lasghe Asset Manager
Affiliates manage the fund. As a result, the anmmahagement fees earned by our Asset Manageraiéfiliare not subject to
market value fluctuations in the underlying coltateThe annual management fees our Asset Manaffitai&s receive have
two components: a senior management fee and adinbt®d management fee. Currently, all CLO Fundsaged by Asset
Manager Affiliates are paying both their senior antdordinated management fees on a current basis.

Our Asset Manager Affiliates may receive incenfiges from CLO Funds they manage provided such Cuai§ have
achieved a minimum investment return to holdertheifr subordinated securities or preferred sh@abject to market
conditions, we expect to continue to make invests1i@nCLO Funds managed by our Asset Manager Afék, which we
believe, will provide us with a current cash inwvesht return. We believe that these investmentsprdlVide our Asset Manager
Affiliates with greater opportunities to access rewrces of capital which will ultimately increamgr Asset Manager
Affiliates’ assets under management and resultingagement fee income. Currently, two funds haveeset the threshold
and are receiving incentive fees.

The revenue that our Asset Manager Affiliates gataethrough the fees they receive for managing €Eu@ds and after
paying the expenses pursuant to an overhead atlacagreement with the Company associated with thygrations, including
compensation of their employees, may be distribtaags. Cash distributions of our Asset Manageiliatés’ net income are
recorded as “dividends from affiliate asset mansigierour financial statements when declared.

Because we also recognize the need to have fursdslabe for operating our business and to makestments, we seek to
have adequate liquidity at all times to cover ndrayalical swings in funding availability and tol@lv us to meet abnormal and
unexpected funding requirements. As a result, we Inaéd varying amounts of cash and other short-terastments for
liquidity purposes.

The majority of our investment portfolio is compds# debt and equity securities with unique corittaans and conditions
and/or complexity that requires a valuation of emclividual investment that considers multiple lsvef market and asset
specific inputs, including historical and forecastmancial and operational performance of thevidlial investment, projected
cash flows, market multiples, comparable marketsaations, the priority of the security comparethwhose of other securities
for such issuers, credit risk, interest rates awépendent valuations and reviews.

Investment Portfolios

Our investment portfolio generates net investmeadine, which is generally used to pay principal imerest on our
borrowings and to fund our dividends. Our investtpmrtfolio consists of three primary componenebtdsecurities, CLO fund
securities and our investment in our wholly ownessét Manager Affiliates. As of December 31, 2012 a0 had investments
in equity securities of approximately 3% of ouréstment portfolio.
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Below are summary attributes for each of our primavestment portfolio components as of and forytear ended
December 31, 2012:

Debt Securities

represent approximately 35% of total investmentfplio;

represent credit instruments issued by corpdrateowers;

primarily senior secured and junior secured lo@486 and 30% of debt securities, respectively);
spread across 24 different industries and 5@dfft entities;

average balance per investment of approximat2l #illion;

all but five issuers (representing less than I%tal investments at fair value) are current logirt debt service
obligations;

weighted average interest rate of 7.5% on incproducing debt investments.

CLO Fund Securitieas of the last monthly trustee report prior to €aber 31, 2012 unless otherwise specified)

represent approximately 27% of total assets aebber 31, 2012;

84% of CLO Fund Securities represent investmienssibordinated securities or equity securitiesasisby CLO Funds
and 16% of CLO Fund Securities are rated notes;

all CLO Funds invest primarily in credit instrunte issued by corporate borrowers;
Fifteen different CLO Fund securities; twelvesoich CLO Fund securities are managed by asset miaatiijates; and

two CLO Fund securities, not managed by the ABketager Affiliates, representing a fair value 60%,000, are not
currently providing a dividend payment to us.

Asset Manager Affiliates

represent approximately 25% of total investmenntfplio;
have approximately $3.6 billion of assets undanagement;
receive contractual and recurring asset managei@es based on par value of managed investments;

may receive an incentive fee of a CLO Fund predithat the CLO Fund achieves a minimum designatean on
investment. Currently, two such funds are collegiircentive fees.

dividends paid by our Asset Manager Affiliates eecognized as dividend income from affiliate fas@nager on our
statement of operations and are an additional saafrincome to pay our dividend and service outt déligations;

for the year ended December 31, 2012, our Assetdder Affiliates had EBITDA of approximately $%tfllion; and

for the year ended December 31, 2012, our AssetlylemAffiliates made distributions of approximaté&.7 million to
us in the form of a dividend which is recognizeccagent earnings to us.

Investment Structure and Process

Structure

We originate, structure, and invest in senior seduerm loans, mezzanine debt and selected eaqdtyites primarily in
privately-held middle market companies. In additiorour middle market investment business, our lyhmlvned portfolio
companies manage the CLO Funds, in which we alsomake an investment, that invest in broadly syaiid loans, high-
yield bonds and other corporate credit instruments.
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Our investments generally average between $1 mitha$20 million, although particular investmentaynbe larger or
smaller. The size of individual investments wilkyaccording to their priority in a company’s capistructure, with larger
investments in more secure positions in an efforhaximize capital preservation. We expect thassthe of our investments
and maturity dates may vary as follows:

e senior secured term loans from $2 to $20 millicetturing in five to seven years;
» second lien term loans from $5 to $15 million uratg in six to eight years;

» senior unsecured loans $5 to $10 million matuiingix to eight years;

* mezzanine loans from $5 to $15 million maturingéven to ten years; and

*  equity investments from $1 to $5 million.

When we extend senior secured term loans, we wilbgally take a security interest in the availassets of the portfolio
company, including the equity interests of thetvsdiaries, which we expect to help mitigate tls& that we will not be repaid.
Nonetheless, there is a possibility that our lieald be subordinated to claims of other creditStsucturally, mezzanine debt
ranks subordinate in priority of payment to semé@m loans and is often unsecured. Relative totgguiezzanine debt ranks
senior to common and preferred equity in a borrésveapital structure. Typically, mezzanine debt bkesnents of both debt
and equity instruments, offering the fixed retuimhe form of interest payments associated wittaa, while providing an
opportunity to participate in the capital appreaciatof a borrower, if any, through an equity intrthat is typically in the form
of equity purchased at the time the mezzanine iDa@paid or warrants to purchase equity at a éutlate at a fixed cost.
Mezzanine debt generally earns a higher return ¢$kaior secured debt due to its higher risk prafild usually less restrictive
covenants. The warrants associated with mezzaribeatte typically detachable, which allows lendereceive repayment of
their principal on an agreed amortization schedtige retaining their equity interest in the borewMezzanine debt also may
include a “put” feature, which permits the holdestll its equity interest back to the borrowea atrice determined through an
agreed formula.

Process

We employ the same due diligence intensive investrsigategy that our senior management team hakayes the past 30
years. Due to our ability to source transactiomsugh multiple channels, we expect to continue &ntain a substantial
pipeline of opportunities to allow comparative rigiturn analysis and selectivity. By focusing oa thivers of revenue and
cash flow, we develop our own underwriting cases, multiple stress and event specific case scenfsiceach company
analyzed.

We focus on lending and investing opportunities in:

« companies with EBITDA of $10 to $50 million;

« companies with financing needs of $25 to $150iomj

e companies purchased by top tier equity sponsors;

e non-sponsored companies with successful manageandrsystems;

* high-yield bonds and broadly syndicated loanisutger companies on a selective basis; and
e equity co-investment in companies where we sbstaatial opportunity for capital appreciation.
We expect to continue to source investment oppii#sfrom:

e private equity sponsors;

« regional investment banks for non-sponsored caorega

e other middle market lenders with whom we can Btlloans; and

« our Asset Manager Affiliates with regard to higleld bonds and syndicated loans.
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In our experience, good credit judgment is based throrough understanding of both the qualitativé quantitative factors
which determine a company’s performance. Our arsahegins with an understanding of the fundamemitbe industry in
which a company operates, including the currenhendc environment and the outlook for the indusiie also focus on the
company’s relative position within the industry atedhistorical ability to weather economic cycl€her key qualitative
factors include the experience and depth of theagament team and the financial sponsor, if any.

Only after we have a comprehensive understandirigeofualitative factors do we focus on quantitivetrics. We believe
that with the context provided by the qualitativealysis, we can gain a better understanding ofapamy’s financial
performance. We analyze a potential portfolio conyfgmsales growth and margins in the context ofd@sipetition as well as
its ability to manage its working capital requirarteeand its ability to generate consistent cash.f®ased upon this historical
analysis, we develop a set of projections whichieggnts a reasonable underwriting case of mody ldkecomes for the
company over the period of our investment. We kls& at a variety of potential downside cases tieiheine a company’s
ability to service its debt in a stressed creditiremment.

Elements of theualitative analysisve use in evaluating investment opportunities idelthe following:
e industry fundamentals;

e competitive position and market share;

e past ability to work through historical down-cgs|

e quality of financial and technology infrastruaur

e sourcing risks and opportunities;

* labor and union strategy;

* technology risk;

« diversity of customer base and product lines;

e quality and experience of management;

« quality of financial sponsor (if applicable); and

e acquisition and integration history.

Elements of thguantitative analysisve use in evaluating investment opportunities idelthe following:
e income statement analysis of growth and margnds;

* balance sheet analysis of working capital efficig

« cash flow analysis of capital expenditures aee ftash flow;

« financial ratio and market share standing amangparable companies;
» financial projections: underwriting versus strease;

« event specific credit modeling;

« future capital expenditure needs and asset $abs;p

< downside protection to limit losses in an everdefault;

« risk adjusted returns and relative value analysisl

e enterprise and asset valuations.

The origination, structuring and credit approvalgasses are fully integrated. Our credit teamrisctly involved in all due
diligence and analysis prior to the formal cregip@val process.
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Investment Committee

Each new investment opportunity is unanimously apgd by our investment committee. Follow-on investts in existing
portfolio companies require the investment comrai@pproval beyond that obtained when the initiaéstment in the
company was made. In addition, temporary investmenich as those in cash equivalents, U.S. govertrseeurities and other
high quality debt investments that mature in orer y® less, may require approval by the investraenimittee. The purpose
our investment committee is to evaluate and appativef our investments, subject at all times te @versight and oversight of
our Board of Directors. The investment committegcpss is intended to bring the diverse experiendgparspectives of the
committee’s members to the analysis and considerafi each investment. The investment committesistsiof the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Investment Officer, andmizers of the Board of Directors (Messrs Pearsonlg€s, Lacovara,
Bloom, and Kehler). The investment committee setugmovide investment consistency and adherenoertcore investment
philosophy and policies.

The investment committee also determines apprepin@estment sizing and suggests ongoing monitagnggirements. In
addition to reviewing investments, investment cotteri meetings serve as a forum to discuss creslitsvand outlooks.
Potential transactions and deal flow are reviewed cegular basis. Members of the investment te@nercouraged to share
information and views on credits with the investinemmmittee early in their analysis. We believes fhiocess improves the
quality of the analysis and assists the deal te@mioers to work more efficiently.

Each transaction is presented to the investmennhttiee in a formal written report for its approvhid.certain instances, our
Board of Directors may also determine that its apakis required prior to the making of an investine

Monitoring

Our management team has significant experiencetororg portfolios of middle market investments d@his is enhanced
by the credit monitoring procedures of our Assehitger Affiliates. Along with origination and credibalysis, portfolio
management is one of the key elements of our bssimdost of our investments will not be liquid atiterefore, we must
prepare to act quickly if potential issues arisétst we can work closely with management and thafe equity sponsor, if
applicable, of the portfolio company to take angessary remedial action quickly. In addition, mafsbur senior management
team, including the credit team at Asset Managéitidtes, have substantial workout and restrucyiesperience.

In order to assist us in detecting issues withfpliotcompanies as early as possible, we performarftial analysis at least
quarterly of each portfolio company. This analygically includes:

« reviewing financial statements with comparisamgtior year financial statements, as well as tiveent budget
including key financial ratios such as debt/EBITDWargins and fixed charge coverage;

« independently computing and verifying compliamdth financial covenants;

e reviewing and analyzing borrowing base, if any;

« discussion of MD&A with management and the prvatuity sponsor, if applicable;

< determining if current performance could caugarifinancial covenant default;

« discussing prospects with the private equity sponif applicable;

e determining if a portfolio company should be aditie our “watch list” (companies to be reviewedriore depth);

< if a company is not meeting expectations, revgporiginal underwriting assumptions and deterngrifreither
enterprise value or asset value has deteriorataigénto warrant further action; and

e updates to be reviewed by both our Chief Exeeutficer and Chief Investment Officer.
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DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

We determine the net asset value per share ofamomon stock quarterly. The net asset value peeshaqual to the value
of our total assets minus liabilities and any pmefé stock outstanding divided by the total numifeshares of common stock
outstanding.

Our net asset value per share was $7.85 and $3.85ecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,cteply. As we
must report our assets at fair value for each teympperiod, net asset value also represents tloeianof stockholders’ equity
per share for the reporting period. Our net asalketevis comprised mostly of investment assetsdebs and other liabilities:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Fair Value () per Share® Fair Value per Share(@)

Investments at fair value:

Time deposits $ 1,94283 $ 0.01 $ 229,15. $ 0.01

Money market account 30,543,822 1.1% 31,622,13 1.3¢

Debt securities 111,037,88 4.2C 114,673,50 4.9¢

CLO Fund securities 83,257,50 3.1t 48,438,31 2.11

Equity securities 8,020,711 0.31 6,040,89! 0.2¢

Asset manager affiliates 77,242,00 2.9z 40,814,00 1.7¢
Cash 738,75t 0.0z 2,555,25! 0.11
Other assets 6,476,95: 0.24 3,760,39 0.1¢
Total Assets $ 319,260,47 $ 12.0¢ $248,133,66 $ 10.7¢
Senior Convertible Notes 60,000,00 2.2 60,000,00 2.61
Senior Notes 41,400,00 1.5¢ — —
Other liabilities 9,984,81. 0.3¢ 7,607,71 0.3
Total Liabilities $111,384,81 $ 421 $ 67,607,71 $ 2.94
NET ASSET VALUE $ 207,875,65 $ 7.858  $180,525,94 $ 7.8t

(1) Our balance sheet at fair value and resultahaisset value are calculated on a basis consisiitnaccounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of AmgtiGRAAP”). Our per share presentation of such amsfother than net
asset value per share) is an internally derived®AAP performance measure calculated by dividirgahplicable balance
sheet amount by outstanding shares. We believéhtbater share amounts for such balance sheet @gariselpful in
analyzing our balance sheet both quantitatively gualitatively.

Please refer to “— Investment Portfolio” below #ofurther description of our investment portfolicdathe fair value
thereof.

As a BDC, we invest primarily in illiquid securifigincluding loans to and warrants of private conigsand interests in
other illiquid securities, such as interests in@& Funds. These portfolio investments may beestilip restrictions on resale
and will generally have no established trading reairks a result, we determine in good faith the ¥alue of our portfolio
investments pursuant to a valuation policy in adaace with the Financial Accounting Standards B@ercbunting Standards
Codification 820Fair Value Measurementmnd Disclosures and a valuation process approvedibfoard of Directors and in
accordance with the 1940 Act. We review externaihgs, including private mergers, sales and acipunsitinvolving
comparable companies, and include these evente imaluation process. Our valuation policy is ideshto provide a
consistent basis for determining the fair valuéhef portfolio.

Our Board of Directors is ultimately and solelypessible for making a good faith determinationhd# fair value of
portfolio investments on a quarterly basis. Delat aquity securities for which market quotationsraadily available are
generally valued at such market quotations. Debteguity securities that are not publicly tradedvbpse market price is not
readily available are valued by the Board of Dioestbased on detailed analyses prepared by manageheeValuation



Committee of the Board of Directors, and, in certrcumstances, third parties with valuation exiper
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Beginning with the period ending June 30, 2011,Gbepany has engaged an independent valuatiortdipmnovide third
party valuation consulting services to the Comparoard of Directors. Each quarter, the independaluiation firm will
perform third party valuations on the Company’seisivnents on illiquid securities such that theyravéewed at least once
during a trailing 12 month period. The Board ofd@itors intends to continue to engage an indepenadurtion firm in the
future to provide certain valuation services, inihg the review of certain portfolio assets, ag pathe quarterly and annual
year-end valuation process. Due to the inhereng¢mtainity of determining the fair value of investrtgethat do not have a
readily available market value, the fair value of mvestments may differ materially from the valubat would have existed
had a ready market existed for such investmentshé&y such investments may be generally subjeleigal and other
restrictions on resale or otherwise less liquidhthablicly traded securities. In addition, changethe market environment and
other events may occur over the life of the investta that may cause the value realized on suclstimeats to be different
from the currently assigned valuations.

We derive fair value for our illiquid investmentsat do not have indicative fair values based umivetrades primarily by
using a present value technique that discountegtimated contractual cash flows for the underlyagets with discount rates
imputed by broad market indices, bond spreads @idsyfor comparable issuers relative to the sulgesets (the “Market
Yield Approach”) and also consider recent loan atneents or other activity specific to the subjecedsDiscount rates applied
to estimated contractual cash flows for an undeghasset vary by specific investment, industryonitsi and nature of the debt
security (such as the seniority or security inteofshe debt security) and are assessed relatite@d indices, a leveraged loan
index and a high-yield bond index, at the valuatiate. We have identified these two indices as lmacks for broad market
information related to our loan and debt investraeBecause we have not identified any market itdadirectly correlates to
the loan and debt investments held by us and therefse the two benchmark indices, these marketaadanay require
significant adjustment to better correlate suchketdata for the calculation of fair value of theestment under the Market
Yield Approach. Such adjustments require judgmextrmay be material to the calculation of fair valderther adjustments to
the discount rate may be applied to reflect otharket conditions or the perceived credit risk @& Borrower. When broad
market indices are used as part of the valuatiathog®logy, their use is subject to adjustment fangnfactors, including
priority, collateral used as security, structurerfprmance and other quantitative and qualitatitriibaites of the asset being
valued. The resulting present value determinasdhén weighted along with any quotes from obsdevitnsactions and
broker/pricing quotes. If such quotes are indi@t¥ actual transactions with reasonable tradidgmie at or near the valuation
date that are not liquidation or distressed sadgatively more reliance will be put on such qudtesletermine fair value. If
such quotes are not indicative of market transastar are insufficient as to volume, reliabilitpnsistency or other relevant
factors, such quotes will be compared with othenfalue indications and given relatively less wdijased on their relevancy.
The appropriateness of specific valuation methadstachniques may change as market conditions aithble data change.

The majority of our investment portfolio is compds# debt and equity securities with unique corittaans and conditions
and/or complexity that requires a valuation of emclividual investment that considers multiple lsvef market and asset
specific inputs, including historical and forecastmancial and operational performance of thevidlial investment, projected
cash flows, market multiples, comparable marketsaations, the priority of the security comparethwhose of other securities
for such issuers, credit risk, interest rates awépendent valuations and reviews.

Loans and Debt Securities.

To the extent that our investments are exchangedrand are priced or have sufficient price indicest from normal course
trading at or around the valuation date (finanmglorting date), such pricing will determine fawe. Pricing service marks
from third party pricing services may be used amditation of fair value, depending on the voluamal reliability of the
marks, sufficient and reasonable correlation ofard ask quotes, and, most importantly, the lezattual trading activity.
However, most of our investments are illiquid inwesnts with little or no trading activity. Furtheve have been unable to
identify directly comparable market indices or athwrket guidance that correlate directly to theetyof investments we own.
As a result, for most of our assets, we determairevhlue using alternative methodologies and nedel

10




TABLE OF CONTENTS

using available market data, as adjusted, to rethectypes of assets we own, their structure,ili?e and credit attributes and
other asset specific characteristics.

We derive fair value for our illiquid investmentsat do not have indicative fair values based umivetrades primarily by
using the Market Yield Approach and also consiéeent loan amendments or other activity specifihiésubject asset.
Discount rates applied to estimated contractudi fiasis for an underlying asset vary by specifieastment, industry, priority
and nature of the debt security (such as the sgnarsecurity interest of the debt security) and assessed relative to two
indices, a leveraged loan index and a high-yielddbiadex, at the valuation date. We have identiffexte two indices as
benchmarks for broad market information relatedunloan and debt investments. Because we havidemtfied any market
index that directly correlates to the loan and debtstments held by us and therefore use the emgtimark indices, these
market indices may require significant adjustmertiétter correlate such market data for the caiiculaf fair value of the
investment under the Market Yield Approach. Sudustchents require judgment and may be materidiecctlculation of fair
value. Further adjustments to the discount rate Ingagpplied to reflect other market conditionshar perceived credit risk of
the borrower. When broad market indices are usgadf the valuation methodology, their use isjsct to adjustment for
many factors, including priority, collateral useslsecurity, structure, performance and other gtaivié and qualitative
attributes of the asset being valued. The resufiregent value determination is then weighted aieitigy any quotes from
observable transactions and broker/pricing qudtssich quotes are indicative of actual transactioith reasonable trading
volume at or near the valuation date that areigotdation or distressed sales, relatively morangle will be put on such
quotes to determine fair value. If such quotesnatandicative of market transactions or are insight as to volume,
reliability, consistency or other relevant fact@sch quotes will be compared with other fair vahdications and given
relatively less weight based on their relevancy.

Equity and Equity-Related Securities.

Our equity and equity-related securities in portf@ompanies for which there is no liquid publicrket are carried at fair
value based on the enterprise value of the pastfmimpany, which is determined using various fagtimcluding EBITDA,
cash flows from operations less capital expendstared other pertinent factors, such as recentsoffepurchase a portfolio
company’s securities or other liquidation eventse Tetermined fair values are generally discoutdetcount for restrictions
on resale and minority ownership positions. Theiealof our equity and equity-related securitieguhlic companies for which
market quotations are readily available are baget the closing public market price on the balestoeet date. Securities that
carry certain restrictions on sale are typicalljued at a discount from the public market valu¢hefsecurity.

The significant inputs used to determine the falue of equity and equity-related securities inelpdices, earnings,
EBITDA and cash flows after capital expendituresdimilar peer comparables and the investmentyeitsiélf. Equity and
equity-related securities are classified as LeNeald described in — “Critical Accounting Policies Valuation of Portfolio
Investments” below), when there is limited activityless transparency around inputs to the valoaieen the lack of
information related to such equity investments hieldonpublic companies. Significant assumptionseobed for comparable
companies as applied to relevant financial datéhferspecific investment. Such assumptions, suchaael discount rates or
price/earnings multiples, vary by the specific istveent, equity position and industry and incorpmeatjustments for risk
premiums, liquidity and company specific attribut8ach adjustments require judgment and may beriaktie the calculation
of fair value.

CLO Fund Securities

Our investments in CLO Fund securities are camtefdir value, which is based either on (i) thespre value of the net
expected cash inflows for interest income and jpadaepayments from underlying assets and cadtoous for interest
expense, debt paydown and other fund costs foCt® Funds that are approaching or past the enldedf teinvestment period
and therefore are selling assets and/or usingipahepayments to pay down CLO Fund debt (or éiyjin to do so shortly),
and for which there continue to be net cash distidins to the class of securities owned by usiipa discounted cash flow
model that utilizes prepayment and loss assumpbased on historical experience and projected pagnce, economic
factors,
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the characteristics of the underlying cash flow aeochparable yields for similar securities or preddrshares to those in which
we have invested or (iii) indicative prices provddey the underwriters or brokers who arrange CL@dsuWe recognize
unrealized appreciation or depreciation on our stwents in CLO Fund securities as comparable yialtlee market change
and/or based on changes in net asset values wra¢sti cash flows resulting from changes in prepaymeloss assumptions in
the underlying collateral pool. As each investmar€LO Fund securities ages, the expected amoultseés and the expected
timing of recognition of such losses in the undiedycollateral pool are updated and the revisetl fias/s are used in
determining the fair value of the CLO Fund investiise We determine the fair value of our investmémiSLO Fund securities
on a security-by-security basis.

Due to the individual attributes of each CLO Fuedwsity, they are classified as a Level Il (asadigged in — “Critical
Accounting Policies — Valuation of Portfolio Investnts” below) investment unless specific tradingyvég can be identified
at or near the valuation date. When available, Li\{as described in “— Critical Accounting Pokes — Valuation of Portfolio
Investments” below) market information will be idiéied, evaluated and weighted accordingly in thelaation of such data to
the present value models and fair value deterntinagignificant assumptions to the present valleutations include default
rates, recovery rates, prepayment rates, investragivestment rates and spreads and the discawnibyavhich to value the
resulting underlying cash flows. Such assumpti@ms\ary significantly, depending on market datarsesi which often vary in
depth and level of analysis, understanding of th® @harket, detailed or broad characterizationhefGLO market and the
application of such data to an appropriate framé&var analysis. The application of data pointslaased on the specific
attributes of each individual CLO Fund securitytslarlying assets, historic, current and prospeg@erformance, vintage, and
other quantitative and qualitative factors that lddwe evaluated by market participants. We evaltiaesource of market data
for reliability as an indicative market input, castency amongst other inputs and results and hksadntext in which such data
is presented.

For rated note tranches of CLO Fund securitiess@tabove the junior class) without transactiorsufuport a fair value for
the specific CLO Fund and tranche, fair value isdobon discounting estimated bond payments atrdumarket yields, which
may reflect the adjusted yield on the leveraged iadex for similarly rated tranches, as well a@sgs for similar tranches for
other CLO Funds, and also considers other factarks as indicative prices provided by underwriterbrokers who arrange
CLO Funds, and the default and recovery rates dérying assets in the CLO Fund, as may be appéc&uch model
assumptions may vary and incorporate adjustmentsstopremiums and CLO Fund specific attributescisadjustments
require judgment and may be material to the caficuiaof fair value.

Asset Manager Affiliates

As with all other investments, the fair value foetAsset Manager Affiliates is determined quarte@iyr investment in our
Asset Manager Affiliates is carried at fair valudhich is determined after taking into consideratopercentage of assets under
management and a discounted cash flow model incatipg different levels of discount rates dependinghe hierarchy of
fees earned (including the likelihood of realizataf senior, subordinate and incentive fees) andgective modeled
performance. Such valuation includes an analystoofparable asset management companies. The Assetgdr Affiliates are
classified as a Level lll investment as descrilvedH “Critical Accounting Policies — Valuation of Rfplio Investments”
below). Any change in value from period to perisdécognized as net change in unrealized appreciatidepreciation.

Competition

Our primary competitors provide financing to prospee portfolio companies and include commercialksa specialty
finance companies, hedge funds, structured invedtfnads and investment banks. Many of these eathiave greater financial
and managerial resources than we have, and theA&4Mposes certain regulatory restrictions orass BDC to which many
of our competitors are not subject. For additianfdrmation concerning the competitive risks weefasee “Item 1A.Risk
Factors — Risks Related to Our Business and StreiettWe operate in a highly competitive marketifatestment
opportunities.”

We believe that we provide a unique combinatioaroéxperienced middle market origination and crediin and an
existing credit platform at both Katonah Debt Advisand Trimaran Advisors that includes
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experienced lenders with broad industry expertiée.believe that this combination of resources mtesius with a thorough
credit process and multiple sources of investmppbadunities to enhance our asset selection process

Exchange Act Reports

We maintain a website awww.kcapfinancial.conhe information on our website is not incorpordbgdeference in this
Annual Report.

We make available on or through our website cergiorts and amendments to those reports thatevevith or furnish to
the SEC in accordance with the Securities Exch&mg®f 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). These include annual reports on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q andaurrent reports on Form 8-K. We make this infation available on our
website free of charge as soon as reasonably pabtdi after we electronically file the informatiaith, or furnish it to, the
SEC.

We are not currently a party to any material lggakeedings, other than routine litigation arisimghe ordinary course of
business. Such litigation is not expected to haneterial adverse effect on the business, finamaiatlition, or results of the
Company'’s operations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2012, we and our Asset Manadfdiafes had 25 employees, including an experienesam of 16
investment professionals.

REGULATION

The following discussion is a general summary ohs®f the material prohibitions and restrictionsgming BDCs
generally. It does not purport to be a completedeson of all the laws and regulations affectiBDCs.

A BDC is a unique kind of Investment Company thétnarily focuses on investing in or lending to @i& or relatively
small publicly traded companies and making managassistance available to them. A BDC providesldiolders with the
ability to retain the liquidity of a publicly tradestock, while sharing in the possible benefitsegsting in emerging-growth or
expansion-stage privately-owned companies. The B@4@ontains prohibitions and restrictions relgtto transactions
between BDCs and their directors and officers aimttjpal underwriters and certain other relatedspas and requires that a
majority of the directors be persons other thatefiested persons,” as that term is defined in 82 Act. We have
implemented certain procedures, both written anglritien, to ensure that we do not engage in anpipited transactions with
any persons affiliated with us. If such affiliat®are found to exist, we seek Board and/or comeniggiew and approval or
exemptive relief from the SEC for such transacti@ssappropriate.

In addition, the 1940 Act provides that we may cluinge the nature of our business so as to cease to to withdraw our
election as, a BDC unless approved by a majorityunfoutstanding voting securities. A majority bé&toutstanding voting
securities of a company is defined under the 19¢t0aA the lesser of (i) 67% or more of such comsastyares present at a
meeting or represented by proxy if more than 50%hefoutstanding shares of such company are preseapresented by
proxy or (ii) more than 50% of the outstanding sisasf such company.

Qualifying Assets

Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any astetr than assets of the type listed in Sectida)saf the 1940 Act, or
“qualifying assets,” unless, at the time the adtjois is made, “qualifying assets” represent aste#% of the company’s total
assets. The principal categories of “qualifyingeéssrelevant to our business are the following:

«  Securities of an “eligible portfolio company” mirased in transactions not involving any publi@dffg. An “eligible
portfolio company” is defined in the 1940 Act ay assuer which:

(a) is organized under the laws of, and has itscjpal place of business in, the United States;

(b) is not an investment company (other than aldmainess investment company wholly-owned by tBCBor a
company that would be an investment company butddiain exclusions under the 1940 Act; and
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(c) satisfies any of the following:

(i) does not have outstanding any class of seesnitiith respect to which a broker or dealer magrekimargin
credit;

(ii) is controlled by a BDC or a group of companiesluding a BDC and the BDC has an affiliated paraho is a
director of the eligible portfolio company;

(i) is a small and solvent company having total agsfatet more than $4 million and capital and surptiaot less
than $2 million; or

(iv)does not have any class of securities listed aatiamal securities exchange (or, if it has a ctidssecurities liste
on a national securities exchange, has an aggregatet value of outstanding voting and non-votiogimon
equity of less than $250 million).

e Securities of any eligible portfolio company that control;

e Securities purchased in a private transactiomfaoU.S. issuer that is not an investment compandyisin bankruptcy
and subject to reorganization;

e Securities received in exchange for or distriduda or with respect to securities described abovpursuant to the
conversion of warrants or rights relating to suetusities;

e Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. government seaudtikigh-quality debt securities maturing in oearyor less from the
time of investment; and

* Under certain limited circumstances, securitiesaanpanies that were eligible portfolio comparaeghe time of the
initial investment but that are not eligible politfocompanies at the time of the follow-on investre

Significant Managerial Assistance

A BDC must be organized and have its principal @latbusiness in the United States and must beatgzkfor the purpose
of making investments in the types of securitiescdbed above. However, to count portfolio secesitas “qualifying assets”
for the purpose of the 70% test discussed aboeeBENC must either control the issuer of the seiasrior must offer to make
available to the issuer of the securities (othantesmall and solvent companies described aboveifisent managerial
assistance; except that, where the BDC purchasbsssgurities in conjunction with one or more otbersons acting together,
one of the other persons in the group may makdadblaisuch managerial assistance. Making avaikiglaficant managerial
assistance means, among other things, any arramg@rhereby the BDC, through its directors, officeremployees, offers to
provide, and, if accepted, does so provide, sigaifi guidance and counsel concerning the manageopmarations or business
objectives and policies of a portfolio company tigb monitoring of portfolio company operations.estive participation in
board and management meetings, consulting withadrising a portfolio company’s officers or otheganizational or
financial guidance.

Temporary Investments

Pending investment in other types of “qualifyingets,” as described above, our investments maystafcash, cash
equivalents, U.S. government securities or higHityudebt securities maturing in one year or lessf the time of investment,
which we refer to, collectively, as temporary inwesnts, so that at least 70% of our assets ardifgjng assets.” Typically,
we invest in U.S. treasury bills or in repurchageeaments, provided that such agreements aredulligteralized by cash or
securities issued by the U.S. government or itscigs. A repurchase agreement involves the purdhase investor, such as
us, of a specified security and the simultaneouseagent by the seller to repurchase it at an agrped future date and at a
price which is greater than the purchase pricerbgraount that reflects an agreed-upon interest Taiere is no percentage
restriction on the proportion of our assets thay imainvested in such repurchase agreements. Howieuwre than 25% of
our total assets constitute repurchase agreentettare treated, under applicable tax rules, aghssued by a single
counterparty, we would not meet the diversificatiests imposed on us by the Code to qualify fotteatment as a RIC for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. Thus, we doniend to enter into repurchase agreements treatsdw@ed, under applicable
tax rules, by a
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single counterparty in excess of this limit. We rnib@nthe creditworthiness of the counterpartieshwitich we enter into
repurchase agreement transactions.

Senior Securities; Coverage Ratio

We are permitted, under specified conditions, saésmultiple classes of indebtedness and one afatsck senior to our
common stock if our asset coverage, as definelderi 940 Act, is at least equal to 200% immediaaéiigr each such issuance.
In addition, with respect to certain types of semsiecurities, we must make provisions to prohibit dividend distribution to
our stockholders or the repurchase of certain ofeuaurities, unless we meet the applicable assefrage ratios at the time of
the dividend distribution or repurchase. We mayp &lsrrow amounts up to 5% of the value of our tatsets for temporary
purposes. For a discussion of the risks associgithdhe resulting leverage, see “ltem 1A. Risktbex — Risks Related to Our
Business — We borrow money, which magnifies theptl for gain or loss on amounts invested and mergase the risk of
investing in us.” As of December 31, 2012 our ass&trage ratio was 305%, above the minimum reduisset coverage level
of 200%.

Common Stock

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumsomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiége may, however,
sell our common stock, warrants, options or rightacquire our common stock, at a price below tireent net asset value of
the common stock if our Board of Directors detemsithat such sale is in our best interests andfhair stockholders, and
our stockholders approve such sale. In any suah tlas price at which our securities are to begidsand sold may not be less
than a price which, in the determination of our Bloaf Directors, closely approximates the markdti@af such securities (less
any distributing commission or discount). We magoahake rights offerings to our stockholders atgwiper share less than the
net asset value per share, subject to applicagléreaments of the 1940 Act. See “ltem 1A. Risk Bext— Risks Relating to
Our Business and Structure — Regulations goveraungoperation as a BDC affect our ability to, aine way in which we,
raise additional capital.”

Code of Ethics

We adopted and maintain a code of ethics pursoaRtte 17j-1 under the 1940 Act that establishesgutures for personal
investments and restricts certain personal seesritansactions. Personnel subject to the codemaagt in securities for their
personal investment accounts, including securitiesmay be purchased or held by us, so long dsisuestments are made in
accordance with the code’s requirements. A cophefcode of ethics is available on the Corporates®wance section of the
Company’s website dittp://www.kcapfinancial.comOur code of ethics may also be reviewed and dogig¢he Public
Reference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, N.Eshikigton, D.C. 20549. You may obtain informationtio@ operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-8B@-$330. Copies of the code of ethics may be obthiafter paying a
duplicating fee, by electronic request at the follty e-mail addresgublicinfo@sec.goyor by writing the SEC’s Public
Reference Section, Washington, D.C. 20549-0102adtition, our code of ethics is available on th&€3Evebsite at
http://www.sec.gov

Privacy Principles

We are committed to maintaining the privacy of stackholders and safeguarding their non-publicqueakinformation.
The following information is provided to help yoaderstand what personal information we collect, aprotect that
information and why, in certain cases, we may sirdoemation with select other parties.

Generally, we do not receive any non-public perkoriarmation relating to our stockholders, althbugpme non-public
personal information of our stockholders may becawsilable to us. We do not disclose any non-pytsicsonal information
about our stockholders or former stockholders tmag, except as is necessary to service stockhat@unts, such as to a
transfer agent, or as otherwise permitted by law.

We restrict access to non-public personal inforamagibout our stockholders to our employees wiggéimate business
need for the information. We maintain physicalc#ienic and procedural safeguards designed to girtite non-public
personal information of our stockholders.
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Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures

Although most of the securities we hold are notngsecurities, some of our investments may eniiléo vote proxies. We
vote proxies relating to our portfolio securitiesthe best interest of our stockholders. We redaeve case-by-case basis each
proposal submitted to a stockholder vote to deteents impact on the portfolio securities held Isy Although we generally
vote against proposals that we believe may hawgative impact on our portfolio securities, we mraye for such a proposal if
we believe there exists a compelling long-termeaas do so.

Our proxy voting decisions are made by our Investn@mmittee, which is responsible for monitoriragle of our
investments. To ensure that our vote is not thdymbof a conflict of interest, we require that &hlyone involved in the
decision making process disclose to our Chief Caanpk Officer any potential conflict that he or shaware of and any
contact that he or she has had with any intergstety regarding a proxy vote; and (2) employeeslived in the decision
making process or vote administration are prohibitem revealing how we intend to vote on a proptsaeduce any
attempted influence from interested parties.

Other
We will be periodically examined by the SEC for q@imnce with the 1940 Act.

We are required to provide and maintain a boncegdiy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdqurous against
larceny and embezzlement. Furthermore, as a BD@raverohibited from indemnifying any director dficer against any
liability to our stockholders arising from willfuhisfeasance, bad faith, gross negligence or resklissegard of the duties
involved in the conduct of such person’s office.

We are required to adopt and implement writtenqiedi and procedures reasonably designed to preigtation of the
federal securities laws and to review these pdalieied procedures annually for their adequacy ameéffectiveness of their
implementation. We have a designated CCO who jmoresble for administering these policies and pdoces.

TAXATION AS A REGULATED INVESTMENT COMPANY

We have elected to be treated for U.S. federalnmetax purposes as a regulated investment compah®”j under
subchapter M of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended (the “Code”), and intend to operateni@ner to maintain our
RIC tax treatment. As a RIC, we generally will haive to pay corporate-level U.S. federal incomedan any ordinary
income or capital gains that we timely distribudeur stockholders as dividends. To qualify as @,Rte must, among other
things, meet certain source-of-income and assetsiiication requirements (as described belowaddition, we must
distribute to our stockholders, for each taxablaryat least 90% of our “investment company taxameme,” which is
generally our net ordinary taxable income plusakeess of our realized net short-term capital gaues our realized net long-
term capital losses (the “Annual Distribution Requient”).

Taxation as a RIC

For any taxable year in which we qualify as a Rih@ aatisfy the Annual Distribution Requirementsgeaerally will not be
subject to U.S. federal income tax on the portibaw investment company taxable income and netalagain, defined as net
long-term capital gains in excess of net short-teapital losses, we distribute to stockholders.Wilebe subject to U.S.
federal income tax at the regular corporate rateany net ordinary income or net capital gain nstridhuted (or deemed
distributed) to our stockholders.

We will be subject to a 4% nondeductible U.S. fatlekcise tax on our undistributed income unlesslistibute in a
timely manner an amount at least equal to the suf@)®8% of our net ordinary income for each cdbaryear, (b) 98.2% of
our capital gain net income for the one-year peeinding October 31 in that calendar year and (g)ircome or gains realized,
but not distributed, in the preceding year and aictvwe paid no U.S. federal income tax (the “E&cisix Avoidance
Requirement”). For this purpose, however, any néinary income or capital gain net income retaibgdis that is subject to
corporate-level U.S. federal income tax for theytaar ending in that calendar year will be congddo have been distributed
by year end (or earlier if estimated taxes are)p&ite currently intend to make sufficient distriloums each taxable year to
satisfy the Excise Tax Avoidance Requirement.
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To qualify as a RIC for U.S. federal income taxpmses, we must, among other things:
e qualify to be regulated as a business developemnpany under the 1940 Act at all times duringheéagable year;

« derive in each taxable year at least 90% of sasgincome from dividends, interest, payments vatpect to certain
securities loans, gains from the sale of stocktieerosecurities, or other income derived with respe our business of
investing in such stock or securities, and netimealerived from interests in “qualified publiclated
partnerships” (which generally are partnerships éin@ traded on an established securities markeadable on a
secondary market, other than partnerships thatel®0% of their income from interest, dividends aftter permitted
RIC income) (the “90% Income Test"); and

- diversify our holdings so that at the end of equhbrter of the taxable year:

° atleast 50% of the value of our assets consistash, cash equivalents, U.S. government seesiriecurities of
other RICs, and other securities if such other sges of any one issuer do not represent more Héarof the value
of our assets or more than 10% of the outstandirtigy securities of the issuer; and

° no more than 25% of the value of our assetsvissited in the securities, other than U.S. govermrsecurities or
securities of other RICs, of one issuer or of twonore issuers that are controlled, as determimeléiuapplicable te
rules, by us and that are engaged in the samendasir related trades or businesses or in thergexs of one or
more qualified publicly traded partnerships (theévésification Tests”).

If we do not satisfy the requirements of the DiVfaration Tests as of the end of any quarter, wiénat lose our status as
RIC provided that (i) we satisfied the requirementa prior quarter and (ii) our failure to satishe requirements in the current
quarter is not due in whole or in part to an adtjois of any security or other property.

We may invest in partnerships, including qualifedlicly traded partnerships, which may resultim being subject to
state, local or foreign income, franchise or witldiay liabilities.

Any underwriting fees paid by us are not deductildle may be required to recognize taxable inconm@rgumstances in
which we do not receive cash. For example, if wie kiebt obligations that are treated under applectdx rules as having
original issue discount (such as debt instrumeiiits payment-in-kind (“PI1K”) interest or, in certagases, with increasing
interest rates or issued with warrants), we mugdude in income each year a portion of the origissilie discount that accrues
over the life of the obligation, regardless of wiegtcash representing such income is received Iy the same taxable year.
Because any original issue discount accrued wilhblided in our investment company taxable incéonghe year of accrual,
we may be required to make a distribution to oaclgholders in order to satisfy the Annual DistribatRequirement, even
though we will not have received any correspondiagsh amount. If we are not able to obtain sufficeash from other sources
to satisfy the Annual Distribution Requirement, may fail to qualify as a RIC and become subjeddiporate-level U.S.
federal income taxes on all of our taxable inconitbaut the benefit of the dividends-paid deduction.

Although we do not presently expect to do so, veeaauthorized to borrow funds and to sell assetsder (i) to satisfy the
Annual Distribution Requirement and to otherwiseneiate our liability for U.S. federal income anxcese taxes and (ii) to
satisfy the Diversification Tests. However, under 1940 Act, we are not permitted to borrow adddidunds or to make
distributions to our stockholders while our debligditions and other senior securities are outstandiless certain “asset
coverage” tests are met. See “Regulation — Sergoudties; Coverage Ratio.” Moreover, our abiliydispose of assets to
meet the Annual Distribution Requirement, the Exxdisx Avoidance Requirement or the Diversificafi@sts may be limited
by (a) the illiquid nature of our portfolio and/r) other requirements relating to our qualificatas a RIC. If we dispose of
assets in order to meet the Annual DistributionRegnent, the Excise Tax Avoidance RequirementheDiversification
Tests, we may make such dispositions at times fileett, an investment standpoint, are not advantageou
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Certain of our investment practices may be sulifespecial and complex U.S. federal income tax igions that may,
among other things, (a) treat dividends that wakterwise constitute qualified dividend income as-qualified dividend
income, (b) treat dividends that would otherwiseelgible for the corporate dividends received dgitun as ineligible for such
treatment, (c) disallow, suspend or otherwise lilmét allowance of certain losses or deductionsgddyert lower-taxed long-
term capital gain into higher-taxed short-term tamain or ordinary income, (e) convert an ordynlass or a deduction into a
capital loss (the deductibility of which is mormlted), (f) cause us to recognize income or gathait a corresponding receipt
of cash, (g) adversely affect the time as to whparahase or sale of stock or securities is degmedcur, (h) adversely alter
the characterization of certain complex finanaiahsactions and (i) produce income that will notbelifying income for
purposes of the 90% Income Test. We intend to ropoifir transactions and may make certain tax elestio mitigate the
effect of these provisions and prevent our disdjaation as a RIC.

Gain or loss realized by us from warrants acquingds as well as any loss attributable to the lapseich warrants
generally will be treated as capital gain or I&sch capital gain or loss generally will be long¥teor short-term, depending on
how long we held a particular warrant.

Some of the income and fees that we may recognizeat satisfy the 90% Income Test. In order te@r that such
income and fees do not disqualify us as a RIC failare to satisfy the 90% Income Test, we maydtedsets that generate
such income and provide services that generatefseshindirectly through one or more entities ®dads corporations for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. Such corporationsheillequired to pay corporate-level U.S. federabime taxes on their
earnings, which ultimately will reduce our retumm such income and fees.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

We have adopted a dividend reinvestment plan tiatiges for reinvestment of our distributions ormalé of our
stockholders, unless a stockholder elects to reamgh as provided below. As a result, if our BadrDirectors authorizes, and
we declare, a cash dividend, then our stockholdbishave not “opted out” of our dividend reinvestiglan will have their
cash dividends automatically reinvested in add#i@hares of our common stock, rather than recgithie cash.

No action is required on the part of a registetedkolder to have such shareholder’'s cash dividemyested in shares of
our common stock. A registered stockholder mayteteoeceive an entire dividend in cash by notifykmerican Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, the plan administratat aor transfer agent and registrar, in writing st such notice is received
by the plan administrator no later than the recatd for dividends to stockholders. The plan adstiiator will set up an
account for shares acquired through the plan folh stockholder who has not elected to receive divil$ in cash and hold such
shares in non-certificated form. Upon request Byoakholder participating in the plan, receivedvititing not less than ten days
prior to the record date, the plan administratd iistead of crediting shares to the participamtcount, issue a certificate
registered in the participant’s name for the numdferhole shares of our common stock and a checkrg fractional share.

Those stockholders whose shares are held by arookher financial intermediary may receive dandls in cash by
notifying their broker or other financial intermady of their election.

We intend to use primarily newly issued sharesrplément the plan, whether our shares are tradiagpeemium or at a
discount to net asset value. However, we reseev@dght to purchase shares in the open marketninextion with our
implementation of the plan. The number of shardsetssued to a stockholder is determined by digdhe total dollar amount
of the dividend payable to such stockholder byntiaeket price per share of our common stock at lisecof regular trading on
The NASDAQ Global Select Market on the dividend ayt date. Market price per share on that datebsithe closing price
for such shares on The NASDAQ Global Select Madkeif no sale is reported for such day, at theage of their reported bid
and asked prices. Shares purchased in open meakstittions by the plan administrator of the din@lesinvestment plan will
be allocated to a stockholder based upon the azgraighase price, excluding any brokerage changether charges, of all
shares of common stock purchased with respecetdithidend.
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There are no brokerage charges or other chargaedkholders who participate in the plan. The @dministrator’s fees
under the plan are paid by us. If a participanttsley written notice to the plan administratohtve the plan administrator sell
part or all of the shares held by the plan admiatist in the participant’s account and remit thegeeds to the participant, the
plan administrator is authorized to deduct a $1&&asaction fee plus a $0.10 per share brokeragenission from the
proceeds.

If your dividends are reinvested, you will be regdito pay tax on the distributions in the samemeaas if the distributions
were received in cash. The taxation of dividendsnait be affected by the form in which you recetfiem. See “Certain United
States Federal Income Tax Considerations.”

Participants may terminate their accounts undepléwe by notifying the plan administrator via itebsite at
www.amstock.comby filling out the transaction request form laatt bottom of their statement and sending ihéoptian
administrator at the address set forth below ocddlng the plan administrator at 1-866-668-8564.

The plan may be terminated by us upon notice itingrimailed to each participant at least 30 dayar ppo any record date
for the payment of any dividend by us. All corresgence concerning the plan should be directedchtb additional information
about the plan may be obtained from, the plan adtnétor by mail at American Stock Transfer & Tr@simpany, Attn.
Dividend Reinvestment Department, P.O. Box 922,I\&aket Station, New York, NY 10269-0560 or byefghone at 1-866-
668-8564.
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Item Risk Factors
1A.

Investing in our securities involves a high degoéesk. In addition to the other information coirtad in this annual report
on Form 10-K, the following information should keefully considered before making an investmertuinsecurities. The risks
set out below are not the only risks we face. Aaltit risks and uncertainties not presently knowmi$ or not presently deemed
material by us might also impair our operations gratformance. If any of the following events oceur, business, financial
condition and results of operations could be matériand adversely affected. In such case, ourasset value and the trading
price of our securities could decline, and you rusg part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business and Structure

The downgrade of the U.S. credit rating and the aomic crisis in Europe could negatively impact oliquidity, financial
condition and earnings.

Recent U.S. debt ceiling and budget deficit conséogether with signs of deteriorating sovereigbta@enditions in
Europe, have increased the possibility of addifienadit-rating downgrades and economic slowdowns, recession in the
U.S. Although U.S. lawmakers passed legislatioraiee the federal debt ceiling, Standard & PoogsifiRys Services lowered
its long-term sovereign credit rating on the Unigtdtes from “AAA” to “AA+" in August 2011. The ingzt of this or any
further downgrades to the U.S. government’s sogareiedit rating or its perceived creditworthinessld adversely affect the
U.S. and global financial markets and economic @@mts. Further, Moody’s Investor Service has wartteat it may
downgrade the U.S. government’s rating if the fatldebt is not stabilized. Absent further quanitiatasing by the Federal
Reserve, these developments, along with the Eunop@zereign debt crisis, could cause interest matdsborrowing costs to
rise, which may negatively impact our ability tacass the debt markets on favorable terms. Contiadedrse economic
conditions could have a material adverse effeadrbusiness, financial condition and results adrations.

We are dependent upon our senior management for future success, and if we are unable to hire aretain qualified
personnel or if we lose any member of our seniormagement team, our ability to achieve our investrhebjective could be
significantly harmed.

We depend on the members of our senior managemmewntlhas other key personnel for the identificatifinal selection,
structuring, closing and monitoring of our investitee These employees have critical industry expegend relationships that
we rely on to implement our business plan. OurriiBuccess depends on the continued service @eoimr management team.
The departure of any of the members of our senamragement or a significant number of our seniosqrarel could have a
material adverse effect on our ability to achieueiavestment objective. As a result, we may noable to operate our
business as we expect, and our ability to compmitide harmed, which could cause our operatingitet suffer.

We operate in a highly competitive market for inte®nt opportunities.

A large number of entities compete with us to mkletypes of investments that we plan to make aspective portfolio
companies. We compete with other BDCs, as welllasge number of investment funds, investment bamkisother sources of
financing, including traditional financial servicesmpanies, such as commercial banks and finarmopamies. Many of our
competitors are substantially larger and have cemably greater financial, technical, marketing attter resources than we do.
For example, some competitors may have a lowerafdsinds and access to funding sources that aravailable to us. This
may enable some of our competitors to make comuldozns with interest rates that are comparabte tower than the rates
we typically offer. We may lose prospective potitidhvestments if we do not match our competitgrsting, terms and
structure. If we do match our competitors’ pricitgrms or structure, we may experience decreadddteeest income. In
addition, some of our competitors may have higtsirtolerances or different risk assessments, wbiehd allow them to
consider a wider variety of investments, estahbiigite relationships and build their market sharesthérmore, many of our
potential competitors have greater experience ¢ipgrander, or are not subject to, the regulatestrictions that the 1940 Act
imposes on us as a BDC. As a result of this cortipetithere can be no assurance that we will be &bl
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identify and take advantage of attractive investnogportunities or that we will be able to fullwiest our available capital. If
we are not able to compete effectively, our busirsasl financial condition and results of operatimatisbe adversely affected.

If we are unable to source investments effectivelyy may be unable to achieve our investment objecti

Our ability to achieve our investment objective eegs on our senior management team’s ability totifye evaluate and
invest in suitable companies that meet our investrogteria. Accomplishing this result on a codeefive basis is largely a
function of our marketing capabilities, our managebof the investment process, our ability to pdevefficient services and
our access to financing sources on acceptable ténmasldition to monitoring the performance of ewisting investments,
members of our management team and our investmefatsgionals may also be called upon to provideagarial assistance to
our portfolio companies. These demands on thek timy distract them or slow the rate of investm&atgrow, we need to
continue to hire, train, supervise and manage mapl@y/ees and to implement computer and other systapable of
effectively accommodating our growth. However, vaamot provide assurance that any such employeksamiiribute to the
success of our business or that we will implemanhsystems effectively. Failure to manage ourrtugrowth effectively
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfigmncial condition and results of operations.

Our business model depends to a significant extepon strong referral relationships, and our inabili to maintain or
develop these relationships, as well as the failoféhese relationships to generate investment appaities, could adversely
affect our business.

We expect that members of our senior managememt @tk maintain their relationships with intermedes, financial
institutions, investment bankers, commercial basikigmancial advisors, attorneys, accountants, ultenrsts and other
individuals within their networks, and we will refg a significant extent upon these relationshipgrovide us with potential
investment opportunities. If our senior managentean fails to maintain its existing relationshipsievelop new relationships
with sources of investment opportunities, we wit be able to grow our investment portfolio. In iidd, individuals with
whom members of our senior management team haatoredhips are not obligated to provide us wittestment
opportunities, and, therefore, there is no asser#mat such relationships will generate investno@piortunities for us.

We may have difficulty paying distributions requiidéo maintain our RIC status if we recognize incorbefore or without
receiving cash equal to such income.

In accordance with the Code, we include in incoerain amounts that we have not yet received ih,caisch as contracted
non-cash PIK interest, which represents contradti@test added to the loan balance and due @riti®f the loan term. The
increases in loan balances as a result of conttaxir-cash PIK arrangements are included in inciemthe period in which
such non-cash PIK interest was received, whiclitendn advance of receiving cash payment, andgeaparately identified on
our statements of cash flows. We also may be requo include in income certain other amounts wetvill not receive in
cash. Any warrants that we receive in connectiah wiur debt investments generally are valued asobdne negotiation
process with the particular portfolio company. A®sult, a portion of the aggregate purchase foicthe debt investments and
warrants is allocated to the warrants that we wecdihis generally results in the associated del#stment having “original
issue discount” for tax purposes, which we musbgeze as ordinary income as it accrues. This as&e the amounts we are
required to distribute to maintain our qualificatifor tax treatment as a RIC. Because such origésak discount income might
exceed the amount of cash received in a givenwehrespect to such investment, we might needdtain cash from other
sources to satisfy such distribution requireme@thler features of the debt instruments that we hadgt also cause such
instruments to generate original issue discount.

Since in certain cases we may recognize incoma®efowithout receiving cash representing suchrimgove may have
difficulty meeting the requirement to annually distite at least 90% of our net ordinary income eradized net short-term
capital gains in excess of realized net long-teapital losses, if any. If we are unable to meeséhgistribution requirements,
we will not maintain our qualification for tax trmaent as a RIC. Accordingly, we may have to sethe®f our assets, raise
additional debt or equity securities or reduce mesestment originations to meet these distributegquirements.
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We may incur losses as a result of “first loss” agyments into which we or our Asset Manager Affikstmay in the future
enter into in connection with warehousing credit @ngements which we may put in place prior to raigia CLO Fund and
pursuant to which we would typically agree to reinmse credit providers for a portion of losses (ifi)) on warehouse
investments.

We and our Asset Manager Affiliates have in the pasered, and may in the future enter, into “fiosis” agreements in
connection with warehouse credit lines to be eisthabdtl by our Asset Manager Affiliates to fund thitial accumulation of loan
investments for future CLO Funds that our Asset ddpam Affiliates will manage. Such agreements (refto as “first loss
agreements” or “first loss obligations”) frequentdfate to (i) losses as a result of individuahld@vestments being ineligible
for purchase by the CLO Fund (typically due to gmant default on such loan) when such fund fornrmaisacompleted or (ii) if
the CLO Fund has not been completed before theatign of the warehouse credit line, the lossifif,zand net of any
accumulated interest income) on the resale of kaos funded by the warehouse credit line. As altiese may incur losses if
loans and debt obligations that had been purchiagheé warehouse facility become ineligible forlirgion in the CLO Fund or
if a planned CLO Fund does not close.

Any unrealized losses we experience on our loantfmio may be an indication of future realized loss, which could reduce
our income available to make distributions.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our investmahimarket value or, if no market value is ascedili@, at the fair value
as determined in good faith by our Board of Diregfoursuant to a valuation methodology approvedunBoard of Directors.
Decreases in the market values or fair values pfraiestments will be recorded as unrealized lassasunrealized loss in our
loan portfolio could be an indication of a porttbiompany’s inability to meet its repayment obligas with respect to the
affected loans. This could result in realized Isssethe future and ultimately in reductions of awome available to pay
dividends or interest and principal on our secesitind could cause you to lose all or part of ymegstment.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly amginual operating results and credit spreads.

We could experience fluctuations in our quarterig annual operating results due to a number obfacsome of which are
beyond our control, including our ability to makeéstments in companies that meet our investméatier the interest rate
payable on the debt securities we acquire, theuttetete on such securities, our level of expengasations in and timing of
the recognition of realized and unrealized gainesses, the degree to which we encounter compeiiti our markets and
general economic conditions. As a result of thestofs, results for any period should not be ralipdn as being indicative of
performance in future periods.

We are exposed to risks associated with changesterest rates and spreads.

Changes in interest rates may have a substantjiatime impact on our investments, the value ofsmaurities and our rate
of return on invested capital. A reduction in thierest spreads on new investments could alsodraa€lverse impact on our
net interest income. An increase in interest ratesd decrease the value of any investments wewbicdh earn fixed interest
rates, including mezzanine securities and highdyiieinds, and also could increase our interest esgyé¢hnereby decreasing our
net income. An increase in interest rates due tm@mease in credit spreads, regardless of gemgegiest rate fluctuations,
could also negatively impact the value of any itwents we hold in our portfolio.

We borrow money, which magnifies the potential fgain or loss on amounts invested and may incredse fisk of investing
in us.

Borrowings, also known as leverage, magnify theptdl for gain or loss on amounts invested angrefore, increase the
risks associated with investing in the common std¢k have issued senior securities, and in thedunay borrow from, or
issue additional senior securities (such as prefleor convertible securities or debt securitiesptmks and other lenders and
investors. Subject to prevailing market conditioms,intend to grow our portfolio of assets by magsadditional capital,
including through the prudent use of leverage abddl to us. Lenders and holders of such seniorisiesuvould have fixed
dollar claims on our
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assets that are superior to the claims of our comstmckholders. Leverage is generally considerggkaulative investment
technique. Any increase in our income in excesatefest payable on our outstanding indebtednessdag@ause our net income
to increase more than it would have had we notrieclieverage, while any decrease in our incomedvoause net income to
decline more sharply than it would have had weimairred leverage. Such a decline could negatiaffgct our ability to make
distributions. In addition, our common stockholdeit bear the burden of any increase in our expsras a result of leverage.
There can be no assurance that our leveraginggiratill be successful.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $101.4 milliomafiebtedness outstanding which had a weighted awénterest cost of
8.19%. We may incur additional indebtedness irftiigre, although there can be no assurance thatilviee successful in
doing so.

lllustration. The following table illustrates the effect of &gmge on returns from an investment in our comnacks
assuming various annual returns, net of expensescalculations in the table below are hypothetical actual returns may be
higher or lower than those appearing below.

Assumed Return on Our Portfolio®
(net of expenses)

(10.0)% (5.0)% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0%

Corresponding net return to common
stockholder (19.9% (11.9% (4.0% 3.7% 11.4%

(1) Assumes $319 million in total assets, $101iarilin debt outstanding, $208 million in net assatwl an average cost of
funds of 8.2%. Actual interest payments may becdffit.

(2) In order for us to cover our annual interestrpants on indebtedness, we must achieve annuahsatin our December 31,
2012 net assets of at least 4%.

Our outstanding indebtedness imposes, and additi@tes we may incur in the future will likely impesfinancial and
operating covenants that restrict our businessitiesi, including limitations that could hinder aaipility to finance additional
loans and investments or to make the distributieqsiired to maintain our status as a RIC. A failoradd new debt facilities
or issue additional debt securities or other ewidsrof indebtedness in lieu of or in addition testmng indebtedness could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finooiadition or results of operations.

All of the investments originated with funds drawmder our $30 million credit facility will be subje to security interests
under the our $30 million financing facility with @edit Suisse AG (the “Facility”) and if we defaulin our obligations there
under, we may suffer adverse consequences, inclgdhme lender foreclosing on those investments. bdéion, we have
pledged and granted a security interest to the lendnder the facility in our right, title and integst in, to and under the
senior management fees and subordinated manageniesd paid to us by certain CLO Funds managed bynaran
Advisors.

All of the investments originated with funds drawmder our $30 million financing facility with Cradsuisse AG (the
"Facility”) will be subject to security interestsider the Facility. If we default on our obligatiomsder the Facility, the lender
may have the right to foreclose upon and sell themvise transfer, the collateral subject to itsusity interests. In such event,
we may be forced to sell our investments to raisel$ to repay our outstanding borrowings undefFtelity in order to avoid
foreclosure and these forced sales may be at timeést prices we would not consider advantageausorinection with any
such foreclosure and our subsequent liquidatian|ehder would receive proceeds there from befarédblders of our
securities and, as a result, the holders of ourrgtets may not receive any proceeds upon thedafion of these investments. If
the lender exercises its right to sell the asdetdged under the Facility, such sales may be caeyblat distressed sale prices,
thereby diminishing or potentially eliminating taeount of cash available to us after repaymerfi@fimounts outstanding
under the Facility.

In addition, we have pledged and granted a secimtigyest to the lender under the Facility in aght, title and interest in,
to and under the senior management fees and snbtedimanagement fees paid to us by certain CL@d-mranaged by
Trimaran Advisors. If we default on our obligatiamsder the Facility, the
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lender (and not us) would be entitled to receivehdees from Trimaran Advisors, which could impair financial condition
and operating results.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our finagddiealth and our ability to respond to changesanr business.

With certain limited exceptions, we are only all@ite borrow amounts or issue senior securities sughour asset
coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is at le@8%@2immediately after such borrowing or issuance oADecember 31, 2012,
our asset coverage ratio was 305%. The amounverfdge that we employ in the future will dependan management’s and
our Board of Directors’ assessment of market ahérdiactors at the time of any proposed borrowirtere is no assurance that
a leveraging strategy will be successful. As altesfithe level of our leverage:

* our exposure to risk of loss is greater if we indebt or issue senior securities to finance investsibecause a decre
in the value of our investments has a greater negahpact on our returns and, therefore, the valusur business if
we did not use leverage;

« the decrease in our asset coverage ratio regdithm increased leverage and the covenants caatd@indocuments
governing our indebtedness (which may impose ass&rage or investment portfolio composition reguoients that a
more stringent than those imposed by the 1940 l&et) our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our
business and industry, as a result of which weccbalrequired to liquidate investments at an inoppe time;

e we are required to dedicate a portion of our dkst to interest payments, limiting the availatyilof cash for dividends
and other purposes; and

< our ability to obtain additional financing in thigture may be impaired.

We cannot be sure that our leverage will not hareaterial adverse effect on us. In addition, wencame sure that
additional financing will be available when requirer, if available, will be on terms satisfactooyus. Further, even if we are
able to obtain additional financing, we may be iegflito use some or all of the proceeds therecépay our outstanding
indebtedness.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a BDC under the 1940 Act, we are generally mobmitted to incur indebtedness unless immediatidy auch borrowing
we have an asset coverage for total borrowings leflaat 200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not ead#% of the value of our
assets). Recent legislation introduced in the H&ise of Representatives, if passed, would modifygection of the 1940 Act
and increase the amount of debt that businessafaweint companies may incur by modifying the pe@gatfrom 200% to
150%. As a result, we may be able to incur addifiomdebtedness in the future and therefore yalraf an investment in our
securities may increase.

Deterioration in the economy and financial markeiscreases the likelihood of adverse effects on dinancial position and
results of operations. Such economic adversity @bimpair our portfolio companies' financial posities and operating
results and affect the industries in which we intewhich could, in turn, harm our operating results

The broader economic fundamentals of the UniteteStaconomy remain uncertain. Unemployment le\estsain elevated
and other economic fundamentals remain depresséke levent that the United States economic pedoom contracts, it is
likely that the financial results of middle mark&tmpanies, like those in which we invest, couldezignce deterioration or
limited growth, which could ultimately lead to dd@ilty in meeting their debt service requirememntd an increase in defaults.
Consequently, we can provide no assurance thaietfiermance of certain of our portfolio companial mot be negatively
impacted by economic or other conditions, whichld@lso have a negative impact on our future result

Although we have been able to secure access ttd@uiliquidity, the potential for volatility inhte debt and equity capital
markets provides no assurance that debt or eqajtiyat will be available to us in the future on daable terms, or at all.
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Because we intend to continue to distribute subdtalty all of our income and net realized capitabgns to our stockholders,
we will need additional capital to finance our grdiu

In order to continue to qualify as a RIC, to avpayment of excise taxes and to minimize or avoighpant of income taxes,
we intend to continue to distribute to our stockleos substantially all of our net ordinary incomne aealized net capital gains
except for certain net long-term capital gains @hhive may retain, pay applicable income taxes veifipect thereto, and elect
to treat as deemed distributions to our stockhsldéys a BDC, in order to incur new debt, we aneagally required to meet a
coverage ratio of total assets to total senior ges, which includes all of our borrowings and/ameferred stock we may
issue in the future, of at least 200%, as meadunetkdiately after issuance of such security. Taguirement limits the amount
that we may borrow. Because we will continue todnegpital to grow our loan and investment portfalios limitation may
prevent us from incurring debt and require us $odésadditional equity at a time when it may bediisatageous to do so. We
cannot assure you that debt and equity financitigo@iavailable to us on favorable terms, or atarld debt financings may be
restricted by the terms of such borrowings. If #iddal funds are not available to us, we coulddredd to curtail or cease new
lending and investment activities.

We may from time to time expand our business thrbowequisitions, which could disrupt our business dharm our
financial condition.

We may pursue potential acquisitions of, and inwesits in, businesses complementary to our busaresfrom time to
time engage in discussions regarding such posadgjeisitions. For example, in February 2012, wemetad the acquisition of
Trimaran Advisors. Such acquisition and any otleepusitions we may undertake involve a number sKgj including:

« failure of the acquired businesses to achievedhelts we expect;

« substantial cash expenditures;

« diversion of capital and management attentiomfaperational matters;

e our inability to retain key personnel of the aicgd businesses;

* incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities ais#ts associated with unanticipated events oiliiss; and

» the potential disruption and strain on our ergtbusiness and resources that could result franplanned growth and
continuing integration of our acquisitions.

If we fail to properly evaluate acquisitions or @stments, we may not achieve the anticipated bsredfsuch acquisitions,
we may incur costs in excess of what we anticipatd, management resources and attention may beedivieom other
necessary or valuable activities. Any acquisitiooluding the Trimaran Advisors acquisition, may result in short-term or
long-term benefits to us. If we are unable to irdég or successfully manage any business that quérac we may not realize
anticipated cost savings, improved efficienciesemenue growth, which may result in reduced prbfiiy or operating losses.

Our Board of Directors may change our investmentjettive, operating policies and strategies withquior notice or
stockholder approval.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to modifywaive certain of our operating policies andtsiyées without prior
notice (except as required by the 1940 Act) antlauit stockholder approval. However, absent stoddrahpproval, we may
not change the nature of our business so as te ted®, or withdraw our election as, a BDC. Wencapredict the effect any
changes to our current operating policies andesifes would have on our business and operatindiseblevertheless, the
effects may adversely affect our business and ¢bejd negatively impact our ability to pay you dighds and could cause you
to lose all or part of your investment or interasstl principal on our securities.

Our businesses may be adversely affected by liligaand regulatory proceedings.

From time to time, we may be subject to legal axtias well as various regulatory, governmentallawdenforcement
inquiries, investigations and subpoenas. In anh slaims or actions, demands for
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substantial monetary damages may be asserted tgaiasd may result in financial liability or anvadse effect on our
reputation among investors. We may be unable torataly estimate our exposure to litigation riskewtwe record balance
sheet reserves for probable loss contingencies. r&sult, any reserves we establish to cover atigreents or judgments may
not be sufficient to cover our actual financial espre, which may have a material impact on ourlt®sfioperations or
financial condition. In regulatory enforcement readt claims for disgorgement, the imposition ofgdées and the imposition
of other remedial sanctions are possible.

A failure on our part to maintain our status as alBC would significantly reduce our operating flexility.

If we do not continue to qualify as a BDC, we mifbtregulated as a registered closed-end invesitoempany under the
1940 Act; our failure to qualify as a BDC would neaks subject to additional regulatory requirementdch may significantly
decrease our operating flexibility by limiting caipility to employ leverage and issue common stock.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affemir ability to, and the way in which we, raise atdnal capital.

Our business requires a substantial amount ofiadditcapital. We may acquire additional capitahfrthe issuance of
senior securities or other indebtedness, the issuahadditional shares of our common stock or feamuritization transactions.
However, we may not be able to raise additionaitabim the future on favorable terms or at all. ¥day issue debt securities or
preferred securities, which we refer to collectvas “senior securities,” and we may borrow morreynfbanks or other
financial institutions, up to the maximum amountmpitted by the 1940 Act. The 1940 Act permits ussgue senior securities
or incur indebtedness only in amounts such thabeset coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, equiédsist 200% immediately
after such issuance or incurrence. With respecettain types of senior securities, we must makeigions to prohibit any
dividend distribution to our stockholders or thpuechase of certain of our securities, unless wetrie applicable asset
coverage ratios at the time of the dividend distidn or repurchase. If the value of our asset$ikes; we may be unable to
satisfy the asset coverage test. Furthermore, moyats that we use to service our indebtednessdamilbe available for
distributions to our common stockholders.

If in the future we issue debt or preferred stadkof the costs of offering and servicing suchtdatpreferred stock,
including interest or preferential dividend paynsetitereon, will be borne by our common stockhold&he interests of the
holders of any debt or preferred stock we may isgllanot necessarily be aligned with the interest®ur common
stockholders. In particular, the rights of holdef®ur debt or preferred stock to receive interéisidends or principal
repayment will be senior to those of our commoulgtolders. Also, in the event we issue preferredistthe holders of such
preferred stock will have the ability to elect tim@mbers of our board of directors. In addition,magy grant a lender a security
interest in a significant portion or all of our ats even if the total amount we may borrow frohsiender is less than the
amount of such lender’s security interest in ogets In no event, however, will any lender to agehany veto power over, or
any vote with respect to, any change in our, oreya of any new, investment objective or investtrslicies or strategies.

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumesomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however,
sell our common stock, or warrants, options ortggb acquire our common stock, at a price belathien-current net asset
value of our common stock if our board of directdetermines that such sale is in the best intecd¢CAP Financial and its
stockholders, and our stockholders approve sueh bahny such case, the price at which our séesitdtre to be issued and sold
may not be less than a price which, in the deteation of our board of directors, closely approxiezathe market value of such
securities (less any distributing commission ocdimt). We are also generally prohibited underli®40 Act from issuing
securities convertible into voting securities wihobtaining the approval of our existing stocklesd In addition to issuing
securities to raise capital as described abovenasesecuritize a portion of the loans generate &@stunding new
investments. If we are unable to successfully sezeirour loan portfolio our ability to grow our bmess and fully execute our
business strategy and our earnings (if any) magdversely affected. Moreover, even successful gemation of our loan
portfolio might expose us to losses, as the residaas in which we do not sell interests tend eaHfose that are riskier and
more apt to generate losses.

26




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Changes in the laws or regulations governing ourdiness and the business of our Asset Manager Adfiis, or changes in
the interpretations thereof, and any failure by as our Asset Manager Affiliates to comply with the¢aws or regulations,
could negatively affect the profitability of our @pations.

Changes in the laws or regulations or the integpiats of the laws and regulations that govern BD€gistered investment
advisers (such as our Asset Manager Affiliatesf;R0r non-depository commercial lenders could §icamtly affect our
operations and our cost of doing business. Weubjeet to federal, state and local laws and regratand are subject to
judicial and administrative decisions that affegt operations, including our loan originations, mnaxm interest rates, fees and
other charges, disclosures to portfolio companfesterms of secured transactions, collection anecfosure procedures and
other trade practices. In addition, as registemgdstment advisers, the Asset Manager Affiliatessabject to new and existing
regulations, regulatory risks, costs and expenssscéated with operating as registered investmgvisars that may limit their
ability to operate, structure or expand their besges in the future. If these laws, regulationdeaisions change, or if we
expand our business into jurisdictions that hawepseti more stringent requirements than those ichwvie currently conduct
business, we may have to incur significant expeimsesder to comply or we might have to restrict operations. In addition,
if we do not comply with applicable laws, regulaisoand decisions, we may lose licenses needetdaranduct of our
business and be subject to civil fines and crimpeadalties, any of which could have a material aslveffect upon our
business, results of operations or financial caomalit

If we do not invest a sufficient portion of our asts in “qualifying assets,” we could be preclude investing according to
our current business strategy.

As a BDC, we may not acquire any assets other‘tpaalifying assets” for purposes of the 1940 Aclass, at the time of
and after giving effect to such acquisition, asted0% of our total assets are “qualifying assedeé “Regulation”.

We believe that most of the senior loans and mézeanvestments that we acquire constitute “qualyassets.” However,
investments in the securities of CLO Funds genedidinot constitute “qualifying assets,” and we nrasest in other assets that
are not “qualifying assets.” If we do not invesdficient portion of our assets in “qualifying ats” we may be precluded
from investing in what we believe are attractiveastments, which would have a material adversetedfe our business,
financial condition and results of operations. hesstrictions could also prevent us from makinggtments in the equity
securities of CLO Funds, which could limit our Asbanager Affiliates’ ability to organize new CLQuRds. Similarly, these
rules could prevent us from making follow-on invesnts in existing portfolio companies (which cotggult in the dilution of
our position).

In addition, we have received certain exemptiviefétom the SEC relating to our status as a BD@ aur ability to own
securities issued by or any other interest in tngness of a person who is a registered investawbnser. The conditions of
such exemptive relief may limit our ability or thbility of our Asset Manager Affiliates, each aistgred investment adviser,
to operate, structure or expand their businesseifuture.

We will be subject to corporate-level U.S. federaiome taxes if we are unable to qualify as a RI@der Subchapter M of
the Code.

To maintain RIC tax treatment under the Code, wetrmeet the following annual distribution, inconoeise and asset
diversification requirements:

* The annual distribution requirement for a RICIWw# satisfied if we distribute to our stockholdersan annual basis at
least 90% of our net ordinary income and realizetdshort-term capital gains in excess of realizetdang-term capital
losses, if any. Because we use debt financing,revsubject to certain asset coverage ratio reqengsrunder the 1940
Act and are (and may in the future become) sultgecertain financial covenants under loan and trEglieements that
could, under certain circumstances, restrict usifneaking distributions necessary to satisfy thérithstion
requirement. If we are unable to obtain cash franeiosources, we could fail to qualify for RIC tagatment and thus
become subject to corporate-level U.S. federalrmetaxes.
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e The source income requirement will be satisffasla obtain at least 90% of our income for each yean dividends,
interest, gains from the sale of stock or secwritiesimilar sources.

e The asset diversification requirement will besfad if we meet certain asset diversificationuiegments at the end of
each quarter of our taxable year. To satisfy thigpirement, at least 50% of the value of our asaeats consist of cash,
cash equivalents, U.S. Government securities, gmsuof other RICs, and other acceptable secsriied no more than
25% of the value of our assets can be investeldersécurities, other than U.S. government secsidtiesecurities of
other RICs, of one issuer, of two or more issuleas are controlled, as determined under applicablge rules, by us
and that are engaged in the same or similar olectlaades or businesses or of certain “qualifiglliply traded
partnerships.” If we do not satisfy the diversifioa requirements as of the end of any quartenwllenot lose our
status as RIC provided that (i) we satisfied thuiements in a prior quarter and (ii) our failtwesatisfy the
requirements in the current quarter is not duehole or in part to an acquisition of any securityther property.

Failure to meet these requirements may result irhaving to dispose of certain investments quidklgrder to prevent the
loss of RIC status. Because most of our investmeititbe in private companies, and therefore wélibiquid, any such
dispositions could be made at disadvantageousspaice could result in substantial losses. Moreaf/ame fail to maintain RIC
tax treatment for any reason and are subject foocate-level U.S. federal income taxes, the ramyliaxes could substantially
reduce our net assets, the amount of income alailabdistribution and the amount of our distriloms. Such a failure would
have a material adverse effect on us and on ookistiders.

Risks Related to Our Investments

Our investments may be risky, and you could losleoalpart of your investment.

We invest primarily in senior secured term loanezranine debt and selected equity investmentsddsueniddle market
companies.

Secured Loans When we extend secured term loans, we gendeddéya security interest (either as a first liesifion or as
a second lien position) in the available asseth@se portfolio companies, including the equitgiasts of their subsidiaries,
which we expect to assist in mitigating the risitttve will not be repaid. However, there is a tiskt the collateral securing our
loans may decrease in value over time, may becdiffto sell in a timely manner, may be difficuidtappraise and may fluctuate
in value based upon the success of the businessark@t conditions, including as a result of thegiifity of the portfolio
company to raise additional capital, and, in som@umstances, our lien could be subordinated tionslaf other creditors. In
addition, deterioration in a portfolio company’sdncial condition and prospects, including its ilighto raise additional
capital, may be accompanied by deterioration invédae of the collateral for the loan. Consequeritig fact that a loan is
secured does not guarantee that we will receivejpal and interest payments according to the b&arms, or at all, or that we
will be able to collect on the loan should we beeéal to exercise our remedies.

Mezzanine Deht Our mezzanine debt investments generally arerdirtated to senior loans and generally are unséecur
This may result in an above average amount ofaiekvolatility or loss of principal.

These investments may entail additional risks toatd adversely affect our investment returns. Aeextent interest
payments associated with such debt are deferred,drbt is subject to greater fluctuations in vddased on changes in interest
rates and such debt could subject us to phantoamiacSince we generally do not receive any cash fwimaturity of the debt,
the investment is of greater risk.

Equity Investments We have made and expect to make selected dguégtments. In addition, when we invest in senior
secured loans or mezzanine debt, we may acquinamtarin the equity of the portfolio company. Ooabis ultimately to
dispose of such equity interests and realize ggias our disposition of such interests. Howeves,gfuity interests we receive
may not appreciate in value and, in fact, may dedin value. Accordingly, we may not be able tdizeagains from our equity
interests, and any gains that we do realize onligposition of any equity interests may not beisight to offset any other
losses we experience.
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Risks Associated with Middle Market Companigsvestments in middle market companies alsolireva number of
significant risks, including:

« limited financial resources and inability to méw®ir obligations, which may be accompanied bgtdoration in the
value of any collateral and a reduction in thellhk@od of our realizing the value of any guaranteesmay have
obtained in connection with our investment;

« shorter operating histories, narrower product lied smaller market shares than larger businesbésh tend to rende
them more vulnerable to competitors’ actions andketaconditions, as well as general economic domstu

« dependence on management talents and effortsréth group of persons; therefore, the death, digghiesignation o
termination of one or more of these persons coaletla material adverse impact on our portfolio camypand, in turn,
on us;

« less predictable operating results, being pattidsigation from time to time, engaging in ralyi¢hanging businesses
with products subject to a substantial risk of deéscence and requiring substantial additional ehpipenditures to
support their operations, finance expansion or taairtheir competitive position;

- difficulty accessing the capital markets to mfeittire capital needs; and

< generally less publicly available information abtheir businesses, operations and financial ¢wmdi

Our portfolio investments for which there is no rddy available market, including our investment iour Asset Manager
Affiliates and our investments in CLO Funds, areaerded at fair value as determined in good faith byr Board of
Directors. As a result, there is uncertainty asttte value of these investments.

Our investments consist primarily of securitiesiexs by privately-held companies, the fair valuevbfch is not readily
determinable. In addition, we are not permittechintain a general reserve for anticipated loasdssinstead, we are required
by the 1940 Act to specifically value each invegttrend record an unrealized gain or loss for asgtahat we believe has
increased or decreased in value. We value theseitseg at fair value as determined in good faigholir Board of Directors
pursuant to a valuation methodology approved byBmard of Directors. These valuations are initighgpared by our
management and reviewed by our Valuation Committééch uses its best judgment in arriving at thevalue of these
securities. However, the Board of Directors retailtisnate authority to determine the appropriatiiaion for each investment.
From time to time, our Board of Directors has ugedservices of an independent valuation firm tbitin determining fair
value, including in the case of our investment€i© Funds and in our Asset Manager Affiliates.

Beginning with the period ending June 30, 2011,Gbenpany has engaged an independent valuatiortdipmovide third
party valuation consulting services to the Comparoard of Directors. Each quarter, the independaluiation firm will
perform third party valuations on the Company’seisivnents on illiquid securities such that theyravéewed at least once
during a trailing 12 month period. These third parluation estimates were considered as one aklbgant data inputs in the
Company’s determination of fair value. The Boarddfectors intends to continue to engage an indégernvaluation firm in
the future to provide certain valuation services|uding the review of certain portfolio assetspag of the quarterly and
annual year-end valuation process. In additionutdhghird-party input, the types of factors thatyrba considered in valuing
our investments include the nature and realizableevof any collateral, the portfolio company’slépito make payments and
its earnings, the markets in which the portfoliongany does business, comparison to publicly-tragedpanies, discounted
cash flow and other relevant factors. Our investmrenur Asset Manager Affiliates is carried atrfaalue, which is determined
after taking into consideration a percentage oftassnder management and a discounted cash flowlrmadrporating
different levels of discount rates depending onhtieearchy of fees earned (including the likelihaddealization of senior,
subordinate and incentive fees) and prospectivestaddberformance. Such valuation includes an aisabfcomparable asset
management companies. Because such valuationpaaticlularly valuations of private investments gndiate companies, are
inherently uncertain and may be based on estimategieterminations of fair value may differ maadlyi from the values that
would be assessed if a
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ready market for these securities existed. Ouagg¢t value could be adversely affected if ourrdetations regarding the fair
value of our illiquid investments were materialigher than the values that we ultimately realizerufhe disposal of such
securities.

We are a non-diversified investment company witliie meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we maydst a significant
portion of our assets in a relatively small numbefissuers, which subjects us to a risk of signditt loss if any of these
issuers defaults on its obligations under any of debt instruments or as a result of a downturnthre particular industry.

We are classified as a non-diversified investmentgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, andefeme we may invest
a significant portion of our assets in a relativetyall number of issuers in a limited number oflisties. As of December 31,
2012, our largest investment, our 100% equity egein our Asset Manager Affiliates, equaled appnaxely 24.8% of the fair
value of our total investments. Beyond the assadrdification requirements associated with our ifjeation as a RIC, we do
not have fixed guidelines for diversification, amtlile we are not targeting any specific industrietatively few industries may
become significantly represented among our investsnd o the extent that we assume large positiotise securities of a
small number of issuers, our net asset value mayuhte to a greater extent than that of a divietsihvestment company as a
result of changes in the financial condition or tharket's assessment of the issuer, changes indhie over time or a
downturn in any particular industry. We may alsat@re susceptible to any single economic or regafadccurrence than a
diversified investment company.

Economic recessions or downturns could negativehpact our portfolio companies and harm our operagimesults.

Many of our portfolio companies may be susceptibleconomic slowdowns or recessions and may bel@tabepay our
loans during these periods. Therefore, our noneperihg assets are likely to increase and the vafweir portfolio is likely to
decrease during these periods. Adverse economditams may also decrease the value of collateralisng some of our loans
and the value of our equity investments. Econoteiwdowns or recessions could lead to financialdgga our portfolio and a
decrease in revenues, net income and assets. Ualfde@conomic conditions also could increase oudihg costs, limit our
access to the capital markets or result in a d&cisy lenders not to extend credit to us. Thesatsweuld prevent us from
increasing investments and harm our operating tsesul

Defaults by our portfolio companies could harm ooperating results.

A portfolio company’s failure to satisfy financiat operating covenants imposed by us or other ldeloers could lead to
defaults and, potentially, acceleration of the tinteen the loans are due and foreclosure on itysd@ssets. Such events could
trigger cross-defaults under other agreementseophjdize a portfolio company’s ability to meetdldigations under the debt
that we hold and the value of any equity securitiesown. We may incur expenses to the extent napess seek recovery
upon default or to negotiate new terms with a défegiportfolio company.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor irpartfolio company, which generally is the case, may not be in a
position to control the entity, and its managemeanay make decisions that could decrease the valuewfinvestment.

Most of our investments are either debt or minceifity investments in our portfolio companies. rEfiere, we are subject
to the risk that a portfolio company may make besindecisions with which we disagree, and the btdkrs and management
of such company may take risks or otherwise awetags that do not serve our interests. As a resydgrtfolio company may
make decisions that could decrease the value gbaufolio holdings. In addition, we generally aret in a position to control
any portfolio company by investing in its debt seties.

Prepayments of our debt investments by our portialibompanies could negatively impact our operatirggults.

We are subject to the risk that the investmentsnake in our portfolio companies may be repaid pigamaturity. When
this occurs, we generally reinvest these procagetEmporary investments, pending their future itmest in new portfolio
companies. These temporary investments typicali Isabstantially lower
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yields than the debt being prepaid and we coul@ge&pce significant delays in reinvesting these am& Any future
investment in a new portfolio company may also tleaer yields than the debt that was repaid. Cqusatly, our results of
operations could be materially adversely affectexhe or more of our portfolio companies electpitepay amounts owed to us.
Additionally, prepayments could negatively impaat ceturn on equity, which could result in a deelin the market price of
our common stock.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt that rankg@al with, or senior to, our investments in suchropanies.

We invest primarily in debt securities issued by partfolio companies. In some cases portfolio cames are permitted to
have other debt that ranks equal with, or seniothi® debt securities in which we invest. By theims, such debt instruments
may provide that the holders thereof are entitteceteive payment of interest or principal on dobethe dates on which we
are entitled to receive payments in respect ofi#f# securities in which we invest. Also, in thertvof insolvency, liquidation,
dissolution, reorganization or bankruptcy of a faid company, holders of debt instruments ranlgegior to our investment in
that portfolio company would typically be entitlemreceive payment in full before we receive arstrdbution in respect of our
investment. After repaying such senior creditougshsportfolio company may not have any remainirggtssto use for repaying
its obligation to us. In the case of debt rankiggad with debt securities in which we invest, wewdohave to share on an equal
basis any distributions with other creditors hodguch debt in the event of an insolvency, liquatgtdissolution,
reorganization or bankruptcy of a portfolio company

Second priority liens on collateral securing loatisat we make to our portfolio companies may be s&dbjto control by senior
creditors with first priority liens. If there is alefault, the value of the collateral may not be Safent to repay in full both the
first priority creditors and us.

Certain loans that we make are secured by a squaority security interest in the same collaterigdged by a portfolio
company to secure senior debt owed by the portémimpany to commercial banks or other traditioaaters. Often the senior
lender has procured covenants from the portfolimgany prohibiting the incurrence of additional secudebt without the
senior lender's consent. Prior to and as a comditigoermitting the portfolio company to borrow negrfrom us secured by the
same collateral pledged to the senior lender, ¢éhés lender will require assurances that it walhtrol the disposition of any
collateral in the event of bankruptcy or other ddtfan many such cases, the senior lender willinegqus to enter into an
“intercreditor agreement” prior to permitting thertiolio company to borrow from us. Typically thetércreditor agreements
we are requested to execute expressly subordinatgedt instruments to those held by the seniatdeand further provide
that the senior lender shall control: (1) the comosenent of foreclosure or other proceedings tddiape and collect on the
collateral; (2) the nature, timing and conducta&tlosure or other collection proceedings; (3)ahmendment of any collateral
document; (4) the release of the security inteliestsspect of any collateral; and (5) the waiviedefaults under any security
agreement. Because of the control we may cedentordenders under intercreditor agreements we emigr, we may be
unable to realize the proceeds of any collateralrsieg some of our loans.

There may be circumstances where our debt investteeould be subordinated to claims of other cred#t@r we could be
subject to lender liability claims.

Even though we may have structured certain of mugstments as senior loans, if one of our portfotimpanies were to go
bankrupt, depending on the facts and circumstaresding the size of our investment and the extenwvhich we actually
provided managerial assistance to that portfolimgany, a bankruptcy court might recharacterizedaint investment and
subordinate all or a portion of our claim to thabther creditors. In addition, lenders can be satjo lender liability claims for
actions taken by them where they become too indbifvéhe borrower’s business or exercise contrerdlie borrower. It is
possible that we could become subject to a lendiaBgity claim, including as a result of actioteken in rendering significant
managerial assistance.

Our investments in equity securities involve a stargial degree of risk.

We may purchase common stock and other equity isiesyincluding warrants. Although equity secudtihave historically
generated higher average total returns than firedme securities over the long
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term, equity securities have also experienced fogmtly more volatility in those returns. The efyusecurities we acquire may
fail to appreciate and may decline in value or Ibeeavorthless, and our ability to recover our inestt depends on our
portfolio company’s success. Investments in egsetyurities involve a number of significant risks;luding the risk of further
dilution as a result of additional issuances, iligttio access additional capital and failure tg parrent distributions.
Investments in preferred securities involve spatsids, such as the risk of deferred distributiamedit risk, illiquidity and
limited voting rights.

The lack of liquidity in our investments may advety affect our business.

We invest in securities issued by private compariiBese securities may be subject to legal and o#is#rictions on resale
or otherwise be less liquid than publicly-tradedwséies. The illiquidity of these investments nragke it difficult for us to sell
these investments when desired. In addition, iweerequired to liquidate all or a portion of owortfolio quickly, we may
realize significantly less than the value at whighhad previously recorded these investments. @u@stments are usually
subject to contractual or legal restrictions oralesr are otherwise illiquid because there is iisna established trading
market for such investments. The illiquidity of mho$ our investments may make it difficult for wsdispose of them at a
favorable price, and, as a result, we may suffesde.

We may not receive all or a portion of the income wxpect to continue to receive from our Asset MgarAffiliates.

We expect to receive distributions of recurring ife@ome, after the payment of their expenses, filerasset management
activities of our Asset Manager Affiliates. Howeytire existing asset management agreements puttsuahtch our Asset
Manager Affiliates receive such fee income from @i Funds for which they serve as managers magrb@nated for
“cause” by the holders of a majority of the mostieeclass of securities issued by such CLO Fumdsthe holders of a
majority of the subordinated securities issuedunhsCLO Funds. “Cause” is defined in the asset mament agreements to
include a material breach by our Asset ManageliAfés of the indenture governing the applicabléddtund, breaches by our
Asset Manager Affiliates of certain specified pgions of the indenture, material breaches of remtasions or warranties
made by our Asset Manager Affiliates, bankruptcyngolvency of our Asset Manager Affiliates, framdcriminal activity on
the part of our Asset Manager Affiliates or an evardefault under the indenture governing the Gtithds. We expect that
future asset management agreements will contairpacable provisions. Further, a significant portidrihe asset management
fees payable to our Asset Manager Affiliates urtlerasset management agreements are subordinatedgror payments of
interest on the senior securities issued by the Eu@ds. If the asset management agreements ar@atechor the CLO Funds
do not generate enough income or otherwise hawdficient residual cash flow due to diversion obas a result of the
failure by the CLO Funds to satisfy certain resivee covenants contained in their indenture agredsn® pay the subordinated
management fees, we will not receive the fee inctiraewe expect to continue to receive from oureAddanager Affiliates,
which will reduce income available to make disttibos to our stockholders. At December 31, 2012 Agset Manager
Affiliates were receiving all (senior and subordajamanagement fees payable by the CLO Funds mdrmgeaem.

We may not receive any return on our investmentlire CLO Funds in which we have invested and we rbayunable to
raise additional CLO Funds.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $83 million at ¥aiue invested in the subordinated securitiedepred shares, or other
securities issued by the CLO Funds managed by esetAMianager Affiliates and certain other thirdypasset managers.
Subject to market conditions and legal requiremapfsicable to us under the 1940 Act, we expecbitinue to acquire
subordinated securities in the future in CLO Fumdsaged by our Asset Manager Affiliates and/odtpiarty managers.
Subordinated securities are the most junior clasgcurities issued by the CLO Funds and are sirtoateetl in priority of
payment to every other class of securities issyeitiése CLO Funds. Therefore, they only receivé ciistributions if the CLO
Funds have made all cash interest payments tahedt debt securities issued by the CLO Fund. Thermslinated securities are
also unsecured and rank behind all of the secuestitors, known or unknown, of the CLO Fund, inéhgdthe holders of the
senior securities issued by the CLO Fund. Consdlyy¢n the extent that the value of a CLO Fundar investments has been
reduced as a result of conditions in the
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credit markets, or as a result of default loanmdividual fund assets, the value of the subordidatecurities at their
redemption could be reduced. Additionally, we mayIme able to continue to complete new CLO Fundstdprevailing CLO
market conditions or other factors.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

There is a risk that we may not make distributions.

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly $asiour stockholders out of assets legally avhlédr distribution. We
may not be able to achieve investment resultswiiballow us to make a specified level of cashtidgitions or year-to-year
increases in cash distributions. In addition, duthe asset coverage test applicable to us as adid@ covenant that we
agreed to in connection with the issuance of tB&5% Senior Notes due 2019 (the "Senior Notes”)aveelimited in our
ability to make distributions in certain circumstas. In this regard, we agreed in connection withigsuance of the Senior
Notes that for the period of time during which Senior Notes are outstanding, we will not violatgérdless of whether we
are subject to) Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modifiedBegtion 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act. These provisigeserally prohibit us from
declaring any cash dividend or distribution upon @mmon stock, or purchasing any such common stank asset coverage,
as defined in the 1940 Act, is below 200% at theetof the declaration of the dividend or distribator the purchase and after
deducting the amount of such dividend, distributtopurchase. Further, if we invest a greater arhofiassets in equity
securities that do not pay current dividends, ttldoeduce the amount available for distribution.

Investing in shares of our common stock may involwe above average degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance with oursiimrent objective may result in a higher amounisi, volatility or
loss of principal than alternative investment opgioOur investments in portfolio companies may igélii speculative, and
therefore, an investment in our common stock maybeauitable for investors with lower risk tolecan

Shares of closed-end investment companies, inclgdBDCs, frequently trade at a discount to their retset value, and we
cannot assure you that the market price of our commstock will not decline following any offering afur common stock.

We cannot predict the price at which our commouglstaeill trade. Shares of closed-end investment camgs frequently
trade at a discount to their net asset value andtoak may also be discounted in the market. hésacteristic of closed-end
investment companies is separate and distinct fremisk that our net asset value per share mdinde®Ve cannot predict
whether shares of our common stock will trade apater below our net asset value. The risk of &sociated with this
characteristic of closed-end investment companiag Ipe greater for investors expecting to sell shafeommon stock soon
after the purchase of such shares of common sho@ddition, if our common stock trades below k4 asset value, we will
generally not be able to issue additional sharesiofommon stock at its market price without fobtaining the approval of
our stockholders and our independent directors.

Our share price may be volatile and may fluctuatgbstantially.

The market price and liquidity of the market foasds of our common stock may be significantly affddy numerous
factors, some of which are beyond our control aag nmot be directly related to our operating perfange. These factors
include:

e price and volume fluctuations in the overall &totarket from time to time;

< significant volatility in the market price andtling volume of securities of BDCs or other compatiin our sector,
which are not necessarily related to the opergiarformance of these companies;

e our inability to deploy or invest our capital;
e fluctuations in interest rates;

* any shortfall in revenue or net income or anyéase in losses from levels expected by investosgaurities analysts;
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e operating performance of companies comparables;to

< changes in regulatory policies or tax rules,ipatarly with respect to RICs or BDCs;
< inability to maintain our qualification as a Rf@ U.S. federal income tax purposes;
e changes in earnings or variations in operatisglts;

e changes in the value of our portfolio;

e general economic conditions and trends; and

e departure of key personnel.

If we sell common stock at a discount to our nesasvalue per share, stockholders who do not pgptte in such sale will
experience immediate dilution in an amount that mag material.

At our 2012 annual meeting of stockholders heldwme 22, 2012, our stockholders approved our aldisell an unlimited
number of shares of our common stock at any lefvdiszount from net asset value per share durieglthmonth period
following the June 22, 2012 approval in accordanith the exception described above in “Risk FacterRisks Related to Our
Business and Structure — Regulations governingoparation as a BDC affect our ability to, and theywn which we, raise
additional capital.” The issuance or sale by ushafres of our common stock at a discount to net astue poses a risk of
dilution to our stockholders. In particular, stookders who do not purchase additional shares batlow the discounted price in
proportion to their current ownership will expergeran immediate decrease in net asset value per @sawell as in the
aggregate net asset value of their shares if thayotl participate at all). These stockholders aldlo experience a
disproportionately greater decrease in their padieon in our earnings and assets and their vgimger than the increase we
experience in our assets, potential earning powgivating interests from such issuance or saladbition, such sales may
adversely affect the price at which our commonistoades.

Certain provisions of the Delaware General Corpdaat Law and our certificate of incorporation and lgws could deter
takeover attempts and have an adverse impact ompitige of our common stock.

The Delaware General Corporation Law, our certiiaaf incorporation and our bylaws contain provisithat may have
the effect of discouraging a third party from makan acquisition proposal for us. These anti-takegvovisions may inhibit a
change in control in circumstances that could ¢iveholders of our common stock the opportunitietize a premium over
the market price of our common stock.

Our stockholders may experience dilution upon thenwersion of our Convertible Senior Notes.

Our 8.75% convertible senior notes due 2016 (thent@rtible Senior Notes”) are convertible into &saof our common
stock at any time prior to the end of businessherbiusiness day preceding the maturity date. Uparearsion, we will satisfy
our conversion obligation by issuing shares of@mmon stock to the converting holder and, undeatelimited
circumstances, may elect to deliver cash in lieshafres otherwise deliverable upon conversion naptp with certain listing
standards of The NASDAQ Global Select Market. Theversion price as of December 31, 2012 of the editle senior is
approximately 122.5638 shares of our common steckfh,000 principal amount of the Convertible Sehlotes, equivalent to
a conversion price of approximately $8.159 peralodiour common stock. Our stockholders will expece dilution in their
ownership percentage of common stock upon our meguaf common stock on any conversion of the CdiblerSenior Notes
and any dividends paid on our common stock wilbdle paid on shares issued on any conversion.
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Risks Related to Our Senior Notes and Our Convertile Senior Notes

The Senior Notes are unsecured and therefore areetively subordinated to any secured indebtednesshave currently
incurred or may incur in the future.

The Senior Notes are not secured by any of outsaesany of the assets of our subsidiaries oAgset Manager Affiliates.
As a result, the Senior Notes are effectively sdimatted to any secured indebtedness we or theydwavently incurred and
may incur in the future (or any indebtedness thatitially unsecured to which we subsequently gsseurity) to the extent of
the value of the assets securing such indebtedinetisling indebtedness under the Facility. In Agyidation, dissolution,
bankruptcy or other similar proceeding, the holagrany of our existing or future secured indebtsinand the secured
indebtedness of our subsidiaries and the Asset tarisffiliates may assert rights against the agsletdged to secure that
indebtedness in order to receive full payment eirttndebtedness before the assets may be usey tutiper creditors,
including the holders of the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are structurally subordinated twetindebtedness and other liabilities of our sulisides and portfolio
companies with respect to which we hold equity istreents, including the Asset Manager Affiliates.

The Senior Notes are obligations exclusively of KCRinancial, Inc., and not of any of our subsidiarr the Asset
Manager Affiliates. None of our subsidiaries or feset Manager Affiliates are guarantors of thei@eKotes, and the Senior
Notes will not be required to be guaranteed bysarsidiary or asset management firm we may acquiceeate in the future.
Any assets of our subsidiaries and the Asset Manafiiéiates will not be directly available to safiy the claims of our
creditors, including holders of the Senior Notescdpt to the extent we are a creditor with recoghizlaims against our
subsidiaries, all claims of creditors of our sulzgies will have priority over our equity interesssuch entities (and therefore
the claims of our creditors, including holdersloé Senior Notes) with respect to the assets of entities. Even if we are
recognized as a creditor of one or more of thetide=) our claims would still be effectively suldamated to any security
interests in the assets of any such entity andydralebtedness or other liabilities of any suctitgsenior to our claims.
Consequently, the Senior Notes are structurallpsiibated to all indebtedness and other liabiliGéany of our subsidiaries
and portfolio companies with respect to which wedhemuity investments, including the Asset Manag#itiates and any
subsidiaries of the Asset Manager Affiliates thatway in the future acquire or establish. Thesiienmay incur substantial
indebtedness in the future, all of which would trecurally senior to the Senior Notes.

The indenture under which the Senior Notes are issucontains limited protection for holders of the&or Notes.

The indenture under which the Senior Notes aresbsiffers limited protection to holders of the Semlotes. The terms of
the indenture and the Senior Notes do not resiticor any of our subsidiaries or the Asset Man@dBliates’ ability to
engage in, or otherwise be a party to, a variegooporate transactions, circumstances or eveatstuld have a material
adverse impact on your investment in the Senioesldn particular, the terms of the indenture d®dSenior Notes do not
place any restrictions on our or our subsidiariethe Asset Manager Affiliates’ ability to:

* issue securities or otherwise incur additiondkistedness or other obligations, including (1) imadgbtedness or other
obligations that would be equal in right of paymenthe Senior Notes, (2) any indebtedness or atbiigations that
would be secured and therefore rank effectivelyasen right of payment to the Senior Notes to éxéent of the values
of the assets securing such debt, (3) indebtedriess's that is guaranteed by one or more of obsigiiaries or the
Asset Manager Affiliates and which therefore isisturally senior to the Senior Notes and (4) séiesiiindebtedness
obligations issued or incurred by our subsidiaoethe Asset Manager Affiliates that would be seidoour equity
interests in those entities and therefore ranlcgirally senior to the Senior Notes with respedh®assets of our
subsidiaries and the Asset Manager Affiliates,dolecase other than an incurrence of indebtedmesber obligation
that would cause a violation of Section 18(a)(1)é&)modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Acay successor
provisions.
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These provisions generally prohibit us from malaaglitional borrowings, including through the issceof additional
debt or the sale of additional debt securitiesesmbur asset coverage, as defined in the 194@&d4uals at least 200%
after such borrowings;

e pay dividends on, or purchase or redeem or makgayments in respect of, capital stock or otleeusties ranking
junior in right of payment to the Senior Notes,liting subordinated indebtedness, in each case ththe dividends
purchases, redemptions or payments that would Gaussation of Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified ®gction 61(a)(1)
of the 1940 Act or any successor provisions. Tipeseisions generally prohibit us from declaring aagh dividend or
distribution upon any class of our capital stoakporchasing any such capital stock if our asse¢i@ge, as defined in
the 1940 Act, is below 200% at the time of the detion of the dividend or distribution or the phase and after
deducting the amount of such dividend, distributiopurchase;

« sell assets (other than certain limited restyiitdion our ability to consolidate, merge or sélbakubstantially all of our
assets);

e enter into transactions with affiliates;

e create liens (including liens on the shares afsulbsidiaries) or enter into sale and leasebaaiséctions;
* make investments; or

e create restrictions on the payment of dividendstber amounts to us from our subsidiaries.

In addition, the indenture does not require usfferdo purchase the Senior Notes in connectioh withange of control or
any other event.

Furthermore, the terms of the indenture and théoB&totes do not protect holders of the Senior Natethe event that we
experience changes (including significant advehseges) in our financial condition, results of @iens or credit ratings, if
any, as they do not require that we adhere to imayéial tests or ratios or specified levels ofwetth, revenues, income, cash
flow, or liquidity other than as described abovayAhanges to the 200% asset coverage ratio ih3#e Act could affect the
Senior Notes. See “— Risk Factors — Risks Relade@ur Business and Structure — Pending legislatiag allow us to incur
additional leverage.”

Our ability to recapitalize, incur additional deitd take a number of other actions that are ndtdahby the terms of the
Senior Notes may have important consequences foag@ holder of the Senior Notes, including makimgore difficult for us
to satisfy our obligations with respect to the $eotes or negatively affecting the trading vaddi¢he Senior Notes.

Other debt we issue or incur in the future couldtam more protections for its holders than theeimidre and the Senior
Notes, including additional covenants and eventeddult. The issuance or incurrence of any suth @éh incremental
protections could affect the market for and tradegels and prices of the Senior Notes.

Even though the Senior Notes are listed on the NY@R active trading market for the Senior Notes miagt develop, or if it
does develop, it will be sustained, which coulditiyour ability to sell the Senior Notes or the niaat price of the Senior
Notes.

We cannot provide any assurances that an actigmtranarket will develop for the Senior Notes aatthf it does develop,
it will be sustained or that you will be able tdl @ur Senior Notes. The Senior Notes may trade discount from the price
paid for the notes depending on prevailing interatds, the market for similar securities, our iretings, if any, general
economic conditions, our financial condition, perfiance and prospects and other factors.

Accordingly, we cannot assure you that a liquidliing market will develop for the Senior Notes, lvaitt if an active trading
market for the Senior Notes does develop, it vélisbistained, that you will be able to sell youri®&eNotes at a particular time
or that the price you receive when you sell willfagorable. To the
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extent an active trading market does not develegitfuidity and trading price for the Senior Noteay be harmed.
Accordingly, you may be required to bear the finahgsk of an investment in the Senior Notes foriradefinite period of time.

If we default on our obligations to pay our othendebtedness, we may not be able to make paymentse@onvertible
Senior Notes.

Any default under the agreements governing ourlitetiness, including a default under the Conver@arior Notes due
2016 and the Facility or other indebtedness to whie may be a party that is not waived by the meglienders, and the
remedies sought by the holders of such indebtedreedd make us unable to pay principal, premiurany, and interest on the
Convertible Senior Notes and substantially decrédasenarket value of the Convertible Senior Nolleaie are unable to
generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwisdlentn obtain funds necessary to meet required pajsrof principal,
premium, if any, and interest on our indebtednes#,we otherwise fail to comply with the varioagvenants, including
financial and operating covenants, in the instruisigoverning our indebtedness, we could be in diefizuder the terms of the
agreements governing such indebtedness. In the ef/sach default, the holders of such indebtedeestd elect to declare all
the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and paytalgjether with accrued and unpaid interest, thdde under the Facility or
other debt we may incur in the future could elederminate its commitment, cease making furthansoand institute
foreclosure proceedings against our assets, armbwld be forced into bankruptcy or liquidationolir operating performance
declines, we may in the future need to seek toilmbtaivers from the lender under the Facility dnetdebt that we may incur
in the future to avoid being in default. If we behaour covenants under the Facility or other debtseek a waiver, we may not
be able to obtain a waiver from the required lesdérthis occurs, we would be in default under Hagility or other debt, the
lender could exercise its rights as described aleve we could be forced into bankruptcy or ligtiola If we are unable to
repay debt, lenders having secured obligationsdcprdceed against the collateral securing the digatause the Convertible
Senior Notes have, and any future debt we issudikégly have, customary cross-default provisioifishe indebtedness under
the Convertible Senior Notes or any other debt vag issue is accelerated, we may be unable to r@pfiyance the amounts
due.

Item Unresolved Staff Comments
1B.

None.
Item 2.Properties

We do not own any real estate or other real prgp&utir wholly-owned portfolio company, Katonah Délatvisors, is the

lessee for our principal headquarters at 295 Madiseenue, 6" Floor, New York, New York 10017. We have entereio ian
Overhead Allocation Agreement with Katonah Debt &dvs which provides for the sharing of the expsns®der the lease
agreement.

Item 3.Legal Proceeding:

The Company is not currently a party to any makée@al proceedings, other than routine litigataoising in the ordinary
course of business. Such litigation is not expetddthve a material adverse effect on the busifiesscial condition, or
results of the Company’s operations.

In November 2012, we reached a final settlemertt thie SEC to resolve the previously disclosed SB@€stigation into the
2008 and 2009 valuations of certain of our invesitsiand the valuation methodology and procedured hg us to value our
investments prior to 2010. The SEC determinedKI@AP violated certain reporting, books and recoett] internal controls
provisions of the federal securities laws. Undertdrms of the settlement, KCAP will not pay annglty or other monetary
amounts. The SEC also reached settlements witlttnwent and one former executive officer of KCARoneach agreed to pay
certain civil monetary penalties.

Item 4.Mine Safety Disclosure

Not applicable.
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Item 5.Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters ars$slier Purchases of Equity Securities

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is quoted on The NASDAQ Globae8eMarket under the symbol “KCAP.” We completed imitial
public offering on December 11, 2006 at an injpiablic offering (“IPO”) price of $15.00 per shakrior to such date there was
no public market for our common stock.

The following table sets forth the range of higld émw closing sales prices per share of our comatock as reported on
The NASDAQ Global Select Market in respect of tieeipds indicated. The stock quotations are intdedepiotations and do
not include markups, markdowns or commissions aagl not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Quarterly Stock Prices for 2012 and 2011

High Low Close NAV )

2012:
Fourth quarter $ 967 $ 7.4C $ 9.1¢ $ 7.8
Third quarter $ 93¢ $ 727 $ 92 $ 7.8
Second quarter $ 72¢ $ 558 $ 726 $ 7.6¢
First quarter $ 73/ $ 63 $ 691 $ 7.7¢

2011:
Fourth quarter $ 68 $ 565 $ 631 $ 7.8t
Third quarter $ 82 $ 53: $ 58 $ 8.2¢
Second quarter $ 81l $ 7.1z $ 79t $ 852
First quarter $ 856 $ 6.7 $ 826 $ 8.6¢

(1) Net Asset Value*NAV”) per share is determined as of the last dayhie relevant quarter and therefore may not refltec
NAV per share on the date of the high and low cigsiales price:

We began paying quarterly dividends in our firdk fuarter of operations following our IPO. See “Magement’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations” and Note 7 — “Distributalbkex Income” from our
Notes to the Financial Statements included hefidip.table below provides information relating teidends we paid in respect
of the periods indicated.

Dividend Declarations

Declaration
Dividend Date Record Date Pay Date
2012:
Fourth quarter $ 0.2¢ 12/17/201; 12/28/201. 1/28/201.
Third quarter 0.2¢ 9/17/201: 10/10/201; 10/29/201.
Second quarter 0.2¢ 6/18/201. 716/201: 7127/201.
First quarter 0.1¢ 3/16/201. 4/6/201: 4/27/201:
Total declared for 2012 $ 0.9¢
2011:
Fourth quarter $ 0.1¢ 12/12/201.  12/23/201 1/27/201:
Third quarter 0.1¢ 9/15/201. 10/10/201. 10/28/201.
Second quarter 0.17 6/13/201. 718/201: 7/29/201.

First quarter 0.17 3/21/201. 4/8/201: 4/29/201.:
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the return on our camistock with that of the Russell 2000 Index arelNfasdaq Financial
100 Index (IXF), for the period December 11, 20t (date of our initial public offering) to Deceni®d, 2012. The graph
assumes that, on December 11, 2006, a person&avg$00 in each of our common stock, the Russéld 20dex, and the IFX.
The graph measures total shareholder return, whlas into account both changes in stock pricedaridends. It assumes that
dividends are reinvested.

Shareholder Return Performance Graph

Cumulative Total Return Since Initial Public Offering @
(Through December 31, 2012)
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(1) Total return includes reinvestment of dividetitough December 31, 2012. The IXF is an indedieérsified financial
sector stocks and, as such, the Company belieaed ik representative of our industry. The RUs2@00 is a broad based
equity market index that tracks companies with aketacapitalization that the Company believes ammarable to it.

HOLDERS

As of December 31, 2012, there were 20 sharehotifeecord of our common stock and approximatelyl 78 beneficial
shareholders of the Company.

SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

As disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, waés 3,600,000 shares of our common stock as @rasioh in
connection with our acquisition of Trimaran Advisan February 2012. These shares of common stook isgued pursuant to
an exemption from registration under Section 4{a){2he Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities’A@s a transaction not
involving any public offering. In addition, we isstl 76,208 shares of common stock pursuant to dedidi reinvestment plan.
This issuance was not subject to the registratigmirements of the Securities Act. See Note 9 ‘8toltlers’ Equity,” of our
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsided herein.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

In November 2008, the Board of Directors approvéd anillion share repurchase plan. Any share rdmges are subject to
timing restrictions and other applicable regulasiowe did not repurchase any shares of our commeak during the year
ended December 31, 2012.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We intend to continue to distribute quarterly dends to our stockholders. Our quarterly dividetfdsecause any, will be
determined by our Board of Directors. To maintain RIC status, we must timely distribute an amamital to at least 90% of
our ordinary income and realized net short-termtabgains in excess of realized net long-term dposses, if any, reduced
by deductible expenses, out of the assets legedljadle for distribution, for each year. To aveigitain excise taxes imposed
on RICs, we are generally required to distributgrdpeach calendar year an amount at least equlaétsum of (1) 98% of our
ordinary income for the calendar year, (2) 98.2%wfcapital gains in excess of capital lossesHerone-year period ending
on October 31 of the calendar year and (3) anynargiiincome and net capital gains for precedings/daat were not
distributed during such years. If this requiremisntot met, we will be required to pay a nondedietexcise tax equal to 4% of
the amount by which the required distribution antaxcteeds the actual distribution for the year. Exable income on which
an excise tax is paid is generally carried forweand distributed to stockholders in the next taxyBapending on the level of
taxable income earned in a tax year, we may chimosarry forward taxable income in excess of curyear distributions into
the next tax year and pay a 4% excise tax on swdnie, to the extent required.

We cannot assure you that we will achieve reshliswill permit the payment of any cash distribo#and, because we
issued public senior securities (i.e. the Senioteklp we are prohibited from making distributiohdding so causes us to fail to
maintain the asset coverage ratio stipulated byl 84® Act. Similarly, we may be prohibited from makdistributions by the
terms of any of our other borrowings.

We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment pfanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend,
then stockholders’ cash dividends will be autonadiycreinvested in additional shares of our comratwtk, unless they
specifically “opt out” of the dividend reinvestmesian so as to receive cash dividends.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table summarizes certain informatiegarding the Amended and Restated 2006 EquityntiveePlan and
the Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director &avf December 31, 2012:

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

for Future
Number of Securities Issuance Under Equity
to Be Issued Upon Weighted Average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options,  Reflected in Column
Plan Category Warrants and Rights ~ Warrants and Rights (a))

@) (b) ©

Equity Compensation Plans Approv
by Security Holder§ 60,000 $ 7.2¢ 1,624,55(2) ()

Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Security Holders — — —

Total 60,00( 7.24 1,624,55

(1) The Company’s Amended and Restated 2006 Etuintive Plan and Amended and Restated Non-EmelByector
Plan.

(2) Subject to the following additional limitationEhe aggregate number of shares of restricted $hat may be issued under
the Amended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive iiay not exceed 10% of the outstanding shares e I8, 2008, the
effective date of the Amended and Restated 200@\Ebncentive Plan, plus 10% of the number of skassued or deliver
by the Company (other than pursuant to compensatas) during the term of the Amended and Rest208é Equity
Incentive Plan. No one person may be granted name 25% of the shares of restricted stock resefareidsuance under tl
Amended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive Plaadtition, the amount of voting securities that ldaesult from the
exercise of all of the Company’s outstanding wasaoptions and rights, together with any restdcttock issued by the
Company, at the time of issuance may not exceed@3¥e outstanding voting securities of the Conmypa&xcept that if the
amount of voting securities that would result frira exercise of all the Company’s outstanding wes;eoptions and rights
issued
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to the Company’s directors, officers and employésgether with any restricted stock issued by then@any, would exceed
15% of the outstanding voting securities of the @any, the total amount of voting securities thatldaesult from the
exercise of all outstanding warrants, options aglts, together with any restricted stock issuedhgyCompany, at the time
of issuance may not exceed 20% of the outstanditigyy securities of the Company.

(3) The 1,624,550 shares issuable under the CongpAmended and Restated 2006 Equity Incentive Riap be issued in the
form of options, restricted stock or other stockdmhawards. The 31,000 shares issuable under thpay's Amended an
Restated Non-Employee Director Plan may currerglysbued in the form of restricted stock.
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Item 6.Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial and other datatf@ years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 20d 2008 is
derived from our financial statements. The dataikhbe read in conjunction with our financial stats and notes thereto and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations,” which arduded in this Annual

Report.

KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December31, December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Income Statement Data:
Interest and related portfolio income:
Interest and Dividends $ 33,578,97 $ 23,823,58 $ 24,638,63 $ 33,497,21 $ 46,208,97
Fees and other income 304,88: 86,05’ 215,23: 399,33 1,653,23
Dividends from affiliate asset manag 4,700,00! 1,910,001 4,500,00! — 1,350,00i!
Other Income — 2,000,001 — — —
Total interest and related portfolic
income 38,583,85 27,819,64 29,353,86. 33,896,55 49,212,21
Expenses:
Interest and amortization of debt
issuance costs 6,976,01: 4,588,48. 7,088,20. 9,276,56: 10,925,62
Compensation 3,172,81. 3,907,901 3,322,89! 3,222,60. 3,940,63
Other 4,344,61 3,490,93! 7,045,64: 3,066,72! 3,640,03.
Total operating expenses 14,493,44 11,987,32 17,456,74 15,565,89 18,506,29
Net Investment Income 24,090,41 15,832,322 11,897,11 18,330,65 30,705,91
Rgalized and unrealized gains (losses;,
investments:
Net realized loss (3,232,97) (18,476,60) (17,862,98) (15,782,12) (575,179
Net change in unrealized gains
(losses) 5,268,34 10,293,82 (8,322,81)  31,854,73 (93,414,14)
Total net gains (losses) 2,035,36! (8,182,78i) (26,185,79) 16,072,61 (93,989,32)
Net increase (decrease) in net as
resulting from operations $ 26,125,77 $ 7,649,54. $(14,288,67) $ 34,403,27 $(63,283,40)
Per Share:
Earnings per common share — basic  $ 1.0C 03: ¢ 069 $ 1.5¢ % (3.0¢
Earnings per common share — diluted $ 0.9¢ 03: $ (0.6% 156 % (3.0¢
Net investment income p
share — basic $ 0.9¢ 0.6¢ $ 0.5 0.8: $ 1.5C
Net investment income per sh—diluted $ 0.8¢ 0.6 $ 0.5% 08: % 1.5C
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.9/ 0.6¢ $ 0.6¢ 09z $ 1.44
Balance Sheet Data:
Investment assets at fair value $312,044,76  $239,791,68 $191,186,29  $409,105,62 $460,509,19
Total assets $319,260,47 $248,133,66  $279,822,68 $439,416,05 $469,156,22
Total debt outstanding $101,400,00 $ 60,000,00 $ 86,746,58 $218,050,36 $261,691,14
Stockholders' equity $207,875,65 $180,525,94 $186,925,66 $213,895,72  $196,566,01
Net asset value per common sh $ 78t % 788 % 821 $ 95¢ $ 9.0



year 26,470,40
Other Data:

Investments funde® 123,165,15

Principal collections related to investm
repayments or saléd 104,556,50

Number of portfolio investments
year end? 88

Weighted average yield of income
producing debt investmen® 7.5%

22,992,21

85,541,80

81,681,31

68

8.4%

42

22,767,13

11,245,30

223,103,17

58

8.€%

22,363,28

23,482,34

84,503,18

124

6.5%

21,771,18

109,442,64

72,345,60
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(1) Certain prior year amounts have been reclaskth conform to current year presentation.

(2) Does not include investments in time depogitsioney markets.

(3) Weighted average yield of income producing deb¢stments is calculated as the average yigidtmutstanding balances
for investments in loans, bonds, and mezzanine délet yields on CLO equities and investment inwholly-owned
portfolio managers, Katonah Debt Advisors and Tremaare excluded.
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Item Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations
TA.

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our financial statements and related naed other financial
information appearing elsewhere in this annual népln addition to historical information, the fallving discussion and other
parts of this annual report contain forward-lookingormation that involves risks and uncertainti€air actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated by suchifard-looking information due to the factors dissed under “Item 1A. Risk
Factors” and “Note About Forward-Looking Statemerappearing elsewhere in this annual report

GENERAL

We are an internally managed, non-diversified desed investment company that is regulated as a Bier the 1940
Act. We originate, structure, and invest in sesiecured term loans, mezzanine debt and selectéy sqaurities primarily in
privately-held middle market companies. We defimemiddle market as comprising companies with EBXTd $10 million to
$50 million and/or total debt of $25 million to ¥ &illion.

Our investment objective is to generate currendiime and capital appreciation from the investmeradarby our middle
market business in senior secured term loans, megzdebt and selected equity investments in plyaield middle market
companies. We also expect to receive distributadnecurring fee income and to generate capitatepation from our
investments in the asset management businesses Atet Manager Affiliates.

We intend to grow our portfolio of assets by rajsatditional capital, including through the prudesé of leverage
available to us. As a BDC, we are limited in theoamt of leverage we can incur under the 1940 Aat.afé only allowed to
borrow amounts such that our asset coverage, asedéh the 1940 Act, equals at least 200% aftehdorrowing.

We primarily invest in first and second lien teroamhs which, because of their priority in a comparodpital structure, we
expect will have lower default rates and higheesaif recovery of principal if there is a defaultiavhich we expect will create
a stable stream of interest income. While our pryniravestment focus is on making loans to, andctetbequity investments in,
privately-held middle market companies, we may aisest in other investments such as loans to tamélicly-traded
companies, high-yield bonds and distressed debtites. We may also receive warrants or optionsuia@hase common stock
in connection with our debt investments. In additiowe may also invest in debt and equity securiteged by CLO Funds
managed by our Asset Manager Affiliates or by otieset managers.

Katonah Debt Advisors, a registered investmentsatyis a wholly-owned portfolio company of the Gamy. Katonah
Debt Advisors manages collateralized loan obligafimds (“CLO Funds”) which invest in broadly syodied loans, high-yield
bonds and other credit instruments. On Februar2@92, we purchased Trimaran Advisors, a registenegstment adviser and
CLO manager similar to Katonah Debt Advisors wissets under management of approximately $1.5 mjlfar total
consideration of $13.0 million in cash and 3,600,8Bares of our common stock. Contemporaneouslytiv acquisition of
Trimaran Advisors, we acquired from Trimaran Advisequity interests in certain CLO Funds managedrbyaran Advisors
for an aggregate purchase price of $12.0 milliocash. As of December 31, 2012, Katonah Debt Adsiaad Trimaran
Advisors are our only wholly-owned portfolio compesm (collectively, “Asset Manager Affiliates”) afdve approximately
$3.6 billion of par value assets under manageniaibnah Debt Advisors and Trimaran Advisors areheaanaged
independently from us by separate management taathgwvestment committees.

Under the investment company rules and regulatomsuant to Article 6 of Regulation S-X and the thtiand Accounting
Guide for Investment Companies” issued by the AIGRAde, we are precluded from consolidating poidfobmpany
investments, including those in which we have amdimg interest, unless the portfolio companyi®ther investment
company. An exception to this general principl¢h@ AICPA Guide occurs if we own a controlled opeigacompany that
provides all or substantially all of its servicasedtly to us, or to an investment company of otdsne of the investments made
by us qualify for this exception. Therefore, ourtfaio investments, including our investmentsie tAsset Manager Affiliates,
are carried on the balance sheet at fair value avithadjustments to fair value recognized as “N&r@e in
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Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation)” in our staient of operations until the investment is exitedulting in any gain or
loss on exit being recognized as a “Net Realizeith @aoss) from Investments.”

We have elected to be treated for U.S. federalnmectax purposes as a RIC and intend to operatenaraer to maintain
our RIC status. As a RIC, we intend to distribat®tr stockholders substantially all of our netioady income and the excess
of realized net short-term capital gains over mlinet long-term capital losses, if any, for egedr. To qualify as a RIC, we
must, among other things, meet certain sourcegmfrre and asset diversification requirements. Puatgoahis election, we
generally will not have to pay corporate-level U&leral income taxes on any income that we tirdétribute to our
stockholders. Our common stock is traded on The DAS Global Select Market under the symbol “KCAPliélnet asset
value per share of our common stock at Decembe2(l2 was $7.85. On December 31, 2012, the lasttexpsale price of a
share of our common stock on The NASDAQ Global Geléarket was $9.19.

PORTFOLIO AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Our primary business is lending to and investinghiddle-market businesses through investmentsriloseecured loans,
junior secured loans, subordinated/mezzanine debstments, CLO equity investments and other edpaged investments,
which may include warrants.

Total portfolio investment activity (excluding agty in time deposit and money market investmefuas}he years ended
December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011, and Decedih@010 was as follows:

CLO Fund Equity Affiliate Asset
Debt Securities  Securities Securities Managers Total Portfolio
Fair Value at December 31, 2009 $297,356,52 $48,971,00 $ 4,713,241 $58,064,72 $ 409,105,49
2010 Activity:
Purchases/originations/draws 9,981,42 — 1,927,36! 3,780,81 15,689,60
Pay-downs/pay-offs/sales (208,820,37) — — (208,820,37)
Net accretion of discount 381,67 85,15( — — 466,82
Net realized losses (17,053,24) — (809,74) — (17,862,98)
Increase (decrease) in fair value 9,196,91. 3,974,851  (1,142,03) (20,352,53) (8,322,81)
Fair Value at December 31, 2010 91,042,92 53,031,00 4,688,83: 41,493,00 190,255,76
2011 Activity:
Purchases/originations/draws 81,815,92 — 3,218,15. (194,02) 84,840,04
Pay-downs/pay-offs/sales (56,944,76)  (1,935,00) (141,769 — (59,021,53)
Net accretion of discount 156,18( 1,398,28: — — 1,554,46.
Net realized losses (17,261,60) (1,215,00) — — (18,476,60)
Increase (decrease) in fair value 15,864,85 (2,840,96) (1,724,31) (484,97)) 10,814,59
Fair Value at December 31, 2011 114,673,50  48,438,31 6,040,89! 40,814,00 209,966,71
2012 Activity:
Purchases/originations/draws 107,417,62  24,715,50 1,815,97: 38,823,22 172,772,33
Pay-downs/pay-offs/sales (104,504,32) (2,234,91) — —  (106,739,24)
Net accretion of discount 385,59( 1,137,34. — — 1,522,93.
Net realized losses (3,232,97) — — — (3,232,97)
Increase (decrease) in fair value (3,701,53) 11,201,26 163,84 (2,395,22) 5,268,34.
Fair Value at December 31, 2012 $111,037,88 $83,257,50 $ 8,020,711 $77,242,00 $ 279,558,10
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The level of investment activity for investmentsidied and principal repayments for our investmeaitsvary substantially
from period to period depending on the number arel af investments that we invest in or divestaofd many other factors,
including the amount and competition for the defit aquity securities available to middle market panies, the level of
merger and acquisition activity for such comparied the general economic environment.

The following table shows the Company’s portfolipdecurity type at December 31, 2012 and Decembe2(BL1:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Security Type Cost Fair Value % @ Cost Fair Value % 1
Time Deposits $ 1,942,83 $ 1,942,83 1% $ 229,15: $ 229,15: —%
Money Market Accoun® 30,543,82 30,543,821 31,622,13 31,622,13 13
Senior Secured Loan 67,874,56 60,258,88 19 54,045,18  45,259,32 19
Junior Secured Loan 49,646,27. 33,486,95 11 58,936,72  47,300,17 2C
Mezzanine Investment — —_ — 10,931,42 11,588,11 5
First Lien Bond 2,928,76: 3,000,001 1 — — —
Senior Subordinated Bond 2,729,08! 2,735,88 1 9,997,89 10,125,89 4
Senior Unsecured Bond 10,798,46. 11,185,00 4 — — —
CLO Fund Securities 90,146,41 83,257,50 27 66,528,48 48,438,31 20
Equity Securities 18,375,58 8,020,71i 3 16,559,61 6,040,89! 2
Preferred 400,00( 371,16( — 400,00( 400,00 —
Asset Manager Affiliates 83,161,52 77,242,000 25 44,338,30 40,814,000 17
Total $358,547,33 $312,044,76 10(% $293,588,91 $241,818,00 H%

(1) Represents percentage of total portfolio at\falue.
(2) No restricted cash held for employee flexible speg@ccounts

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, owsinvents in income producing loans and debt sezsyréxcluding
CLO Fund securities, had a weighted average irtesigs of approximately 7.5% and 8.4%, respectively

The investment portfolio (excluding the Companyigdstment in asset manager affiliates and CLO Buatd3ecember 31,
2012 was spread across 24 different industriess@ntifferent entities with an average balance pétyeof approximately $2.4
million. As of December 31, 2012, all but five afrgportfolio companies were current on their dedstige obligations.

We may invest up to 30% of our investment portfali@pportunistic investments in high-yield bondsbt and equity
securities of CLO Funds and distressed debt otygacurities of public companies. At DecemberZ11,2, approximately
27% of our investments were foreign assets (inalgidiur investments in CLO Funds, which are typjcdtmiciled outside the
U.S. and represent approximately 27% of our padfol

At December 31, 2012, our ten largest portfolio pamies represented approximately 62% of the tatallue of our
investments. Our largest investment, Asset ManAffdiates which are our wholly-owned portfolio cqranies, represented
25% of the total fair value of our investments. lxing Asset Manager Affiliates and CLO Fund setbesi our ten largest
portfolio companies represent approximately 17%heftotal fair value of our investments.
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The industry concentrations, based on the fairevafithe Company’s investment portfolio as of Deben81, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, were as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Industry Classification Cost Fair Value % (1 Cost Fair Value % (1)
Aerospace and Defense $ 5,278,809 $ 3,874,74 1% $ 19,683,82 $ 19,439,23 8%
Asset Manager Affiliates 83,161,52 77,242,00 25 44,338,30 40,814,00 17
Automobile 4,945,69 5,011,60: 2 — — —
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 18,112,77 18,285,422 6 9,892,27. 9,796,56! 4
Broadcasting and Entertainment 1,978,84 1,990,93 1 — — —
Buildings and Real Estate 18,535,51 455,52 — 18,591,67 662,44: —
Cargo Transport — —_ - 4,374,35! 4,374,35. 2
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 2,954,77. 2,950,57 1 4,809,45! 4,614,82: 2
CLO Fund Securities 90,146,41  83,257,50 27 66,528,48  48,438,31 20
Containers, Packaging and Glass 1,949,23 1,971,89: 1 — — —
Diversified/Conglomerate Manufacturing — — — 6,905,44 7,000,00! 3
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 5,520,21 3,536,42 1 2,870,64. 372,59¢ —
Electronics 6,137,59. 6,252,38! 2 8,831,44 9,026,18! 4
Finance 4,748,76 4,891,711 2 — — —
Healthcare, Education and Childcare 15,981,82 4,618,52 1 20,956,58 19,523,822 8

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewart

and Durable Consumer Goods 10,820,46 11,613,62 4 21,683,11 20,604,85 9
Insurance 6,970,30 6,433,13! 2 4,919,52 3,753,00! 2
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,

Entertainment 2,491,00 2,053,48 1 2,290,89; 2,084,01; 1
Machinery (Non-Agriculture,

Non-Construction, Non-Electronic) 11,408,09 11,581,24 4 3,483,17. 3,891,90! 2
Mining, Steel, Iron and NoRrecious Metal 773,71¢ 264,860 — 797,09: 438,91 —
Oil and Gas 11,692,91 11,692,00 4 — — —
Personal and Non Durable Consumer

Products (Mfg. Only) 5,000,00! 3,977,10 1 5,000,00! 3,250,001 1
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous

Services 3,574,42 3,640,83! 1 2,872,501 2,827,35! 1
Personal Transportation 2,012,68! 2,005,35. 1 2,993,009 2,983,64: 1
Printing and Publishing 2,961,39! 3,231,31. 1 1,044,53 1,223,74. 1
Retail Stores 5,781,67. 5,772,76 2 1,885,08! 1,932,501 1
Telecommunications 2,952,65. 2,783,19! 1 2,986,15 2,776,95! 1
Time Deposits and Money Market

Account 32,486,65 32,486,65 10 31,851,28 31,851,28 13
Utilities 169,28( 169,95¢ — 4,000,001 137,50( —
Total $358,547,33 $312,044,76 10C% $293,588,91 $241,818,00 100.(%

(1) Calculated as a percentage of total portfdiifa@ value.

47






TABLE OF CONTENTS

CLO Fund Securities

We typically make a minority investment in the stdinated securities or preferred stock of CLO Furaised and managed
by our Asset Manager Affiliates and may selectivialest in securities issued by CLO Funds manageatier asset
management companies. As of December 31, 2012adapproximately $83 million invested in CLO Fumdurities,
including those issued by funds managed by ourtAdsmager Affiliates.

The CLO Funds managed by our Asset Manager Atianvest primarily in broadly syndicated non-irtwesnt grade
loans, high-yield bonds and other credit instruraerfitcorporate issuers. The underlying assetsdh eathe CLO Funds in
which we have an investment are generally divedifiecured or unsecured corporate debt.

Our CLO Fund investments as of December 31, 20tiZD@mtember 31, 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

CLO Fund Securities Investment % Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Subordinated
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd. Securities 22.2% $ 4,925,000 $ 3,124,92. $ 4,893,55. $ 3,042,40!
Katonah i, Ltd.(®) Preferred Shares 23.1 2,242,01. 600,000  4,476,93 1,00¢
Katonah V, Ltd® Preferred Shares 26.7 3,320,00! 1,00C 3,320,001 1,00(
Subordinated
Katonah VIl CLO Ltd Securities 16.£ 457439, 2,120,16/ 4,614,12.  2,358,70
Subordinated
Katonah VIIl CLO Ltd.(?) Securities 10. 3,450,700 2,171,990 3,450,58.  1,888,70
Katonah IX CLO Ltd? Preferred Shares 6. 2,082,98 148889 2,060,69  1,336,80
Subordinated
Katonah X CLO Ltd® Securities 332 11,93460 9,45551 11,840,29  8,645,60!
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd® Preferred Shares 10C 31,189,14 30,091,88 30,659,68 24,488,40
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd® Class B-2L Notes 10C 1,252,190 9,140,000 121261  6,675,71
Trimaran CLO IV, Ltd @ Preferred Shares 19.C 3,616,601 3,575,57. — —
Trimaran CLO V, Ltd(® Subordinate Notes  20.¢ 2,757,100  2,930,00. — —
Trimaran CLO VI, Ltd @ Income Notes 16.2 2,894,701  2,936,62 — —
Trimaran CLO VII, Ltd.(2) Income Notes 10.5 3,146,901  3,357,92 — —
Catamaran CLO 2012-1 LtéY  Subordinated Notes  24.¢ 8,982,401 8,493,001 - =
Catamaran CLO 2012-1 Lt®)  Class F Notes 42.¢ 3,777,66!  3,770,00i — —
Total $90,146,41 $83,257,50 $66,528,48 $48,438,31

(1) Represents percentage of class held.
(2) An affiliate CLO Fund managed by Asset Managiliates.
(3) As of December 31, 2012, this CLO Fund Secwiigg not providing a dividend distribution.

The table below summarizes certain attributes ofi €2LLO Fund as per their most recent trustee re@srbf December 31,

2012:
CLO Fund Securities® ’\éL(leTL?rEi}tI}eos],c N?;;Bgso‘( ,rjnudmugt‘i{egf Avg(r)i%%r? esﬁgéity All’lggeilt?c?nlfssi;: r
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd. 301 244 33 % 908,92: $ 1,121,25
Katonah llI, Ltd. 12 9 4 266,89( 355,85¢
Katonah V, Ltd. 91 60 25 530,45t 804,52t



Katonah VIII CLO Ltd
Katonah IX CLO Ltd

Katonah X CLO Ltd

Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd
Trimaran CLO 1V, Ltd.
Trimaran CLO V, Ltd.
Trimaran CLO VI, Ltd.
Trimaran CLO VII, Ltd.
Catamaran 2012-1 CLO, LteP

(1) All data from most recent trustee reports aBeéember 31, 2012

151
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(2) Data from Asset Manager Affiliates as of Decem®1, 2012
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All CLO Funds managed by Asset Manager Affiliates eurrently making quarterly dividend distributéoto us and are
paying all senior and subordinate management teeartAsset Manager Affiliates. With the exceptadrthe Katonah llI, Ltd.
CLO Fund and the Katonah V, Ltd. CLO Fund, alldhirarty managed CLO Funds held as investments akingpnquarterly
dividend distributions to us.

Asset Manager Affiliates

Our Asset Manager Affiliates are our wholly-ownes$et management companies that manage CLO Furidswvibst in
broadly syndicated loans, high yield bonds androthedit instruments. The CLO Funds managed byAsset Manager
Affiliates consist primarily of credit instrumenissued by corporations. As of December 31, 2012Asget Manager Affiliates
had approximately $3.6 billion of par value of assender management on which they earn manageeesitdnd were valued
at approximately $77 million.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The principal measure of our financial performaisctae net increase (decrease) in stockholderstyerpsulting from
operations which includes net investment incomssfl@and net realized and unrealized appreciatieprétiation). Net
investment income (loss) is the difference betwa@mincome from interest, dividends, fees, and oitheéstment income and
our operating expenses. Net realized gain (lossiivestments is the difference between the procesmisved from
dispositions of portfolio investments and their atized cost. Net change in unrealized apprecidii@preciation) on
investments is the net change in the fair valueunfinvestment portfolio.

Set forth below is a discussion of our resultspdrations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2(hd 2010.

Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of investment incomenfinterest and dividends on our investment podfald various
ancillary fees related to our investment holdings.

Interest from Investments in Debt Securitié&/e generate interest income from our investmiendebt securities which
consist primarily of senior and junior secured madur debt securities portfolio is spread acroghiphe industries and
geographic locations, and as such, we are broaglysed to market conditions and business envirotsnés a result, although
our investments are exposed to market risks, wéramusly seek to limit concentration of exposurany particular sector or
issuer.

Dividends from Investments in CLO Fund Securiti&¥e generate dividend income from our investmantke securities
of CLO Funds (typically preferred shares or submatkd securities) managed by our Asset Manageliadéfs and selective
investments in securities issued by funds managextter asset management companies. CLO Funds edbggpur Asset
Manager Affiliates invest primarily in broadly syindted non-investment grade loans, high-yield bamtsother credit
instruments of corporate issuers. The Companyngjgstshes CLO Funds managed by its Asset Managdrafdt as “CLO
Fund securities managed by affiliates.” in its fioml statements. The underlying assets in eatheo€LO Funds in which we
have an investment are generally diversified setarainsecured corporate debt. Our CLO Fund séesithiat are subordinated
securities or preferred shares (“junior securidies® subordinated to senior note holders who &flyiceceive a return on their
investment at a fixed spread relative to the LIBid&Rex. The CLO Funds are leveraged funds and aocgssxcash flow or
“excess spread” (interest earned by the underlgauyrities in the fund less payments made to séwoiod holders and less fund
expenses and management fees) is paid to the batldre CLO Fund’s subordinated securities orgurefl shares. The level
of excess spread from CLO Fund securities can padbed from the timing and level of the resettihthe benchmark interest
rate for the underlying assets (which reset abwvartimes throughout the quarter) in the CLO Fumdithe related CLO Fund
note liabilities (which reset at each quarterlytritisition date); in periods of short-term and vidathanges in the benchmark
interest rate, the levels of excess spread andhdisons to us can vary significantly. In additjdhe failure of CLO Funds in
which we invest to comply with certain financiabemants may lead to the temporary suspension erré¢bf cash
distributions to us.

For non-junior class CLO Fund securities, suchuasrovestment in the class B-2L notes of the Kato2@07-1 CLO or
Class F notes of the Catamaran 2012-1, interestrized at a fixed spread relative to the LIBOR xnde
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Dividends from Asset Manager AffiliatedVe generate dividend income from our investnieour Asset Manager
Affiliates, which are wholly-owned and manage CL@nHSs that invest primarily in broadly syndicatedh+investment grade
loans, high yield bonds and other credit instrurmésgued by corporations. As managers of CLO FumdsAsset Manager
Affiliates receive contractual and recurring mammagat fees from the CLO Funds for their managemedtaalvisory services.
In addition, our Asset Manager Affiliates may aésrn income related to net interest on assets adated for future CLO
issuances on which they have provided a first gpsganty in connection with loan warehouse arramggsifor their CLO
Funds. Our Asset Manager Affiliates generate anopatating income equal to the amount by whichr thes income exceeds
their operating expenses. The annual managementwgieh our Asset Manager Affiliates receive araagally based on a
fixed percentage of the par value of assets und@agement and are recurring in nature for the tériine CLO Fund so long
as the Asset Manager Affiliates manage the funda Assult, the annual management fees earned bysset Manager
Affiliates generally are not subject to market \@fluctuations in the underlying collateral. OursAsManager Affiliates may
receive incentive fees provided such CLO Funds laatéeved a minimum investment return to holdertheir subordinated
securities or preferred shares.

Capital Structuring Service FeesWe may earn ancillary structuring and other fedeted to the origination, investment,
disposition or liquidation of debt and investmeatsrities.

Investment income for the years ended Decembe2(®12, 2011, and 2010 was approximately $39 millg#8 million, and
$29 million, respectively. Of this amount, approziely $13 million, $9 million and $14 million, resgtively, was attributable
to interest income on our loan and bond investménisrtion of such interest income is attributatilanet interest earned on
assets accumulated for future CLO issuance on whssiet Manager Affiliates entered into a first laggeement in connection
with loan warehouse arrangements for their CLO BuRdr the years ended December 31, 2012 appradynttt8,000 of such
net income related to first loss arrangement wasegka For the year ending December 31, 2011 andrier 31, 2010, no
income from first loss arrangement was earnedttyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and appéoximately $21
million, $14 million and $10 million, respectivelgf investment income was attributable to investtaém CLO fund securities.

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, weived a $2 million cash settlement to settleditign previously
initiated by us against the lenders related toseeured credit facility which we fully repaid omdary 31, 2011. Upon receipt,
this settlement was recognized as other incomengthie three months ended March 31, 2011.

Investment income is primarily dependent on the mosition and credit quality of our investment politi. Generally, our
debt securities portfolio is expected to generadgiptable, recurring interest income in accordawitk the contractual terms of
each loan. Corporate equity securities may payideld and may increase in value for which a gady e recognized;
generally such dividend payments and gains areplestictable than interest income on our loan pbaf

Dividends from CLO Fund securities are dependertherperformance of the underlying assets in eddb Bund; interest
payments, principal amortization and prepaymentb®iunderlying loans in each CLO Fund are prinfacyors which
determine the level of income on our CLO Fund séesr The level of excess spread from CLO Fundisges can be
impacted by the timing and level of the resettihthe benchmark interest rate for the underlyingets (which reset at various
times throughout the quarter) in the CLO Fund dadrelated CLO Fund bond liabilities (which reds¢ach quarterly
distribution date); in periods of short-term andiatite changes in the benchmark interest ratelehels of excess spread and
distributions to us can vary significantly.

As of December 31, 2012 the fair value of our inment in the Asset Manager Affiliates was approxeha$77 million.
For the year ended December 31, 2012 and 201Agset Manager Affiliates had EBITDA of approximatés.9 million and
$2 million, respectively. During the year ended Braber 31, 2012 distributions from Asset Manageiliafés totaled
approximately $4.7 million. For the year ended Deber 31, 2011 distributions from Asset Manager lisffes totaled
approximately $1.9 million, a portion of which regented undistributed earnings from prior years.
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Distributions of net income from our Asset Managéfiliates are recorded as “Dividends from assehager affiliates” in
our financial statements. The Company intendsstridute to its shareholders the accumulated uritdised net income of the
Asset Manager Affiliates in the future. For purpesé calculating our distributable taxable incoraerequired quarterly
dividends, the Asset Manager Affiliates’ net incoiméurther reduced by approximately $5.5 millicgr gnnum for tax
goodwill amortization resulting from the acquisitiby us prior to our initial public offering. Asrasult, the amount of our
declared dividends, as evaluated by managemerda@prdved by our Board of Directors, is based onematuation of both
distributable income for tax purposes and GAAPimetstment income (which excludes unrealized gaimslosses).

Expenses

We are internally managed and directly incur th&t od management and operations; as a result, eue ito management
fees or other fees to an external advisor. Our rsge consist primarily of interest expense on aotihg borrowings,
compensation expense and general and administetpenses, including professional fees.

Interest and Amortization of Debt Issuance Costisterest expense is dependent on the averag&ganding balance on our
borrowings and the base index rate for the pe@ht issuance costs represent fees and other dostst incurred in
connection with the Company’s borrowings. These @msare capitalized and amortized ratably overctmractual term of
the borrowing.

Compensation ExpenseCompensation expense includes base salariessbsnstock compensation, employee benefits and
employer related payroll costs. The largest comptmef total compensation costs are base salangba@nuses; generally,
base salaries are expensed as incurred and aronuad bxpenses are estimated and accrued. Our ceatipgnarrangements
with our employees contain a significant profitishg and/or performance based bonus componenteldrer as our net
revenues increase, our compensation costs mayisdsdn addition, our compensation expenses n&yiatrease to reflect
increased investment in personnel as we grow adymts and businesses.

Professional Fees and General and Administrativedises The balance of our expenses includes profedsieas
(primarily legal, accounting, valuation and othersfpssional services), occupancy costs and geadnainistrative and other
costs.

Interest and compensation expense are generalfcteghto be our largest expenses each periodesttexpense is
dependent on the average outstanding principahbalaf our borrowings and the applicable interat for the period.
Compensation expense includes base salaries, mraigek compensation, employee benefits and eraplejated payroll
costs. The largest components of total compensatiets are base salaries and bonuses; generallyshtaries are expensed as
incurred and bonus expenses are estimated andedcsince bonuses are paid annually.

Total expenses for the years ended December 32, 2011, and 2010 were approximately $14 milliat® #illion, and
$17 million, respectively. Interest expense and ’dimettion on debt issuance costs for the periodclvincludes facility and
program fees on the unused loan balance, was a@pmtety $7 million, $5 million, and $7 million, rpsctively, on average
debt outstanding of $81 million, $54 million, anti5% million, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, at@&iproximately $3 million, $4 million, and $3 tiwh respectively,
of expenses were attributable to employment congiims including salaries, bonuses and stock-besetpensation expense.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, professieealand insurance expenses totaled approximadetyilfon. For the years
ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 201@ssiohal fees and insurance expenses totaled ap@texy $3 million,
and $6 million, respectively. For the year endedddeber 31, 2012, administrative and other costdedtapproximately $1
million. For the years ended December 31, 2011exkmber 31, 2010, administrative and other cosadeid approximately
$987,000 and $1 million, respectively. These costlude occupancy expense, technology and othereoéxpenses.
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Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains (Lajse

Net investment income and net realized gains (B)sepresents the net change in stockholders’yebafore net unrealized
appreciation or depreciation on investments. Ferydar ended December 31, 2012, net investmenmi@end realized losses
was approximately $21 million, or $0.80 per shatet investment income represents the income eamedir investments less
operating and interest expense before net reatjaat or losses and unrealized appreciation oredédion on investments. For
the year ended December 31, 2012, net investmeoiria was approximately $24 million, or $0.93 pearsh

Generally, we seek to fund our dividends from ngestment income. For the year ended December03d®, 2lividend
distributions totaled $25 million, or $0.94 per sha

Net Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation) on Invesnents

During the year ended December 31, 2012, our iméakstments had net unrealized appreciation ofapprately $5
million. During the years ended December 31, 201id Becember 31, 2010, our total investments hadmetalized
appreciation of approximately $10 million, and natealized depreciation of $8 million, respectively

Approximately $5 million of unrealized gains durittge year ended December 31, 2012 are due to wr@egains of
approximately $11 million on equity securities &IdO Fund securities in our investment portfoliodamn approximate $6
million decrease in the values of debt securitias affiliate asset managers.

Approximately $10 million of unrealized gains dugithe year ended December 31, 2011 were primauiytd unrealized
gain of approximately $16 million on debt secustie our investment portfolio, offset in part byrealized losses of
approximately $6 million unrealized losses on egsécurities, CLO Fund securities, and affiliateedsnanagers. The $8
million of unrealized losses during the year enBedember 31, 2010 were primarily due to unrealgaids of approximately
$13 million on debt securities and CLO Fund semsiin our investment portfolio, offset by an appneate unrealized loss of
$21 million on equity securities and affiliate assmnager.

Net Change in Stockholders’ Equity Resulting From erations

The net increase in stockholders’ equity resulfiogn operations for the year ended December 312 284s an
approximately $26 million, or $1.00 per share. Tieéincrease in stockholders’ equity resulting froperations for the year
ended December 31, 2011 was $8 million, or $0.3%pare, and the net decrease in stockholderstyegsulting from
operations for the year ended December 31, 201Gapproximately $14 million, or $0.63 per share.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURC ES

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committeda repay
borrowings, fund and maintain investments, payd#inds to our stockholders and other general busimessds. We recognize
the need to have funds available for operatingooisiness and to make investments. We seek to higiate liquidity at all
times to cover normal cyclical swings in fundingaability and to allow us to meet abnormal andxpeeted funding
requirements. We plan to satisfy our liquidity neélsrough normal operations with the goal of avmdiinplanned sales of
assets or emergency borrowing of funds.
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As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201laihedlue of investments and cash were as follows:

Investments at Fair Value

Security Type December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Cash $ 738,75t $ 2,555,25!
Time Deposits 1,942,83. 229,15:
Money Market Account 30,543,822 31,622,13
Senior Secured Loan 60,258,88 45,259,32
Junior Secured Loan 33,486,95 47,300,17
Mezzanine Investment — 11,588,11
First Lien Bond 3,000,001 —
Senior Subordinated Bond 2,735,88. 10,125,89
Senior Unsecured Bond 11,185,00 —
CLO Fund Securities 83,257,50 48,438,31
Equity Securities 8,020,71 6,040,89!
Preferred 371,16( 400,00(
Asset Manager Affiliates 77,242,00 40,814,00
Total $ 312,783,551 $ 244,373,26

We use borrowed funds, known as “leverage,” to makestments and to attempt to increase returositghareholders by
reducing our overall cost of capital. As a BDC, ave limited in the amount of leverage we can inowfer the 1940 Act. We
are only allowed to borrow amounts such that osefsoverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, equadéaat 200% after such
borrowing. As of December 31, 2012, we had appraxaty $101 million of outstanding borrowings and asset coverage
ratio of total assets to total borrowings was 306&tnpliant with the minimum asset coverage lev@¥% generally required
for a BDC by the 1940 Act. We may also borrow antewi up to 5% of the value of our total assetsdéonporary purposes.
The weighted average daily debt balance for thesyeaded December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approXyn$gte million and
$54 million, respectively.

In October 2012, we issued $41.4 million in aggtegaincipal amount of 7.375% senior unsecuredsdte 2019 (the
“Senior Notes”). The Senior Notes mature on Septr80, 2019, and may be redeemed in whole or ingbamny time or from
time to time at our option on or after SeptemberZ5. The Senior Notes bear interest at a rafe30%% per year payable
quarterly on March 30, June 30, September 30 amember 30 of each year, beginning December 30,.2012

In February 2012, we entered into a Note Purchageeiment with Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands &r4tCS"),
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as arrangeg Bhank of New York Mellon Trust Company, Nationals&ciation, as
collateral administrator and collateral agent, KGAP Funding, a special-purpose bankruptcy remdtelly-owned subsidiary
of ours, under which we may obtain up to $30 millio financing (the “Facility”). The scheduled maty date for the Facility
is December 20, 2014. Interest on the FacilityIBQR + 300 basis points and payable quarterly.

In March 16, 2011, we issued $60 million in aggtegaincipal amount of unsecured 8.75% converskeleior notes due
March 15, 2016 (“Convertible Senior Notes”). Thé pmceeds for the Convertible Senior Notes, follmwnderwriting
expenses, were approximately $57.7 million. Inteoasthe Convertible Senior Notes is paid semi-afigun arrears on March
15 and September 15, at a rate of 8.75%, commeis@ptember 15, 2011. The Notes mature on MarcBAH, unless
converted earlier. The Convertible Senior Notessaraor unsecured obligations of the Company.

The Convertible Senior Notes are convertible iftares of Company’s common stock. The conversiaisasubject to
customary anti-dilution adjustments, including émy cash dividends or distributions paid on shafesir common stock in
excess of a quarterly dividend of $0.17 per shauewill not be adjusted for any accrued and unjaierest. The conversion
price of the Convertible Senior Notes as of Decamdie 2012 is approximately 122.5638 shares ofcounmon stock per
$1,000 principle amount of Convertible
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Senior Notes, equivalent to a conversion priceppiraximately $8.159 per share of our common stbtlddition, if certain
corporate events occur prior to the maturity détin@ Convertible Senior Notes, the conversion vatebe increased for
converting holders.

Subject to prevailing market conditions, we intéodjrow our portfolio of assets by raising addiiboapital, including
through the prudent use of leverage available té&\as result, we may seek to enter into new agessnwith other lenders or
into other financing arrangements as market cambtpermit. From time to time, we seek to retiepurchase, or exchange
debt securities in open market purchases or by otleans dependent on market conditions, liquidibpitractual obligations,
and other matters.

If our common stock trades below our net assetevpkr share, we will generally not be able to issiditional common
stock at the market price unless our shareholgmmae such a sale and our Board of Directors me&gdain determinations.
A proposal, approved by our shareholders at oue 2012 annual meeting of stockholders, authorizes sell shares of our
common stock below the then current net asset yaushare of our common stock in one or more wigsrfor the period
ending on the earlier of (i) June 22, 2013, the yaee anniversary of our 2012 annual meeting ofedf@ders, or (ii) the date of
our 2013 annual meeting of shareholders. We woedirsimilar future approval from our shareholdernssue shares below
the then current net asset value per share anyafiteethe expiration of the current approval.

Dividends

We intend to continue to distribute quarterly desids to our stockholders. To avoid certain ex@ged imposed on RICs,
we currently intend to distribute during each cdkanyear an amount at least equal to the sum of:

e 98.0% of our ordinary net taxable income for théendar year;

«  98.2% of our capital gains, if any, in excessapital losses for the one-year period ending ool 31 of the
calendar year; and

e any net ordinary income and net capital gaingHerpreceding year that were not distributed dusinch year.

The amount of our declared dividends, as evaluayetianagement and approved by our Board of Directsbased on our
evaluation of both distributable income for taxgmses and GAAP net investment income (which exautheealized gains and
losses). Generally, we seek to fund our dividendsifGAAP current earnings, primarily from net irgstr and dividend income
generated by our investment portfolio and withotgtarn of capital or a high reliance on realizegital gains. The following
table sets forth the quarterly dividends declangddsince the most recent completed calendar ywdach represent an amount
equal to our estimated net investment income fersprecified quarter, including income distributeahrf the Asset Manager
Affiliates received by the Company, if any, plupation of any prior year undistributed amountsef investment income
distributed in subsequent years:

Declaration
Dividend Date Record Date Pay Date
2012:
Fourth quarter $ 0.2¢ 12/17/201; 12/28/201; 1/28/201:
Third quarter 0.2¢ 9/17/201. 10/10/201: 10/29/201;
Second quarter 0.2¢ 6/18/201. 716/201: 7127/201.
First quarter 0.1¢ 3/16/201. 4/6/201: 4/27/201:
Total declared for 2012 $ 0.9<
2011:
Fourth quarter $ 0.1¢ 12/12/201.  12/23/201 1/27/201:
Third quarter 0.1¢ 9/15/201. 10/10/201. 10/28/201.
Second quarter 0.17 6/13/201.: 7/8/201: 7/29/201:
First quarter 0.17 3/21/201. 4/8/201: 4/29/201.:
Total declared for 2011 $ 0.7¢
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We are a party to financial instruments with offdrece sheet risk in the normal course of businessder to meet the
needs of the Company’s investment in portfolio camips. Such instruments include commitments tonekeeedit and may
involve, in varying degrees, elements of credk ifrsexcess of amounts recognized on our balaneetsRrior to extending
such credit, we attempt to limit our credit risk dynducting extensive due diligence, obtainingatetal where necessary and
negotiating appropriate financial covenants. ABetember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we hathitted to make a
total of approximately $0 and $2 million, respeetiy of investments in various revolving senioruged loans, of which none
were funded as of December 31, 2012 and Decemb&031. As of December 31, 2012 and December 3111 ,28e company
committed to make no investments in delayed dravosaecured loans.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our contractual aalsligations and other commercial commitments a3exfember 31,
2012:

Payments Due by Period

Less than one More than 5
Contractual Obligations Total year 1-3years 3 -5years years
Operating lease obligations $ 4,353,46: $ 342,61. $1,116,97. $ 369,43. $ 2,524,45
Long-term debt obligations 101,400,00 — — 60,000,00 41,400,00
Total $105,753,46 $ 342,61 $1,116,97. $60,369,43 $ 43,924,45

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are based on the seleatidrapplication of critical accounting policiedjieh require management
to make significant estimates and assumptionsic@ridiccounting policies are those that are bottoirrant to the presentation
of our financial condition and results of operai@nd require management’s most difficult, comptesubjective judgments.
Our critical accounting policies are those applieab the basis of presentation, valuation of itwents, and certain revenue
recognition matters as discussed below.

Valuation of Portfolio Investments

The most significant estimate inherent in the pragian of our financial statements is the valuatidinvestments and the
related amounts of unrealized appreciation andedégtion of investments recorded.

Value, as defined in Section 2(a)(41) of 1940 Axf]1) the market price for those securities forolta market quotation is
readily available and (2) for all other securitiasl assets, fair value as determined in good lfgithur Board of Directors
pursuant to procedures approved by our Board afdbors. Our valuation policy is intended to provédeonsistent basis for
determining the fair value of the portfolio basedtbe nature of the security, the market for thmigty and other
considerations including the financial performaaoé enterprise value of the portfolio company. Bieeaof the inherent
uncertainty of valuation, the Board of Directorstermined values may differ significantly from thelues that would have
been used had a ready market existed for the imesds, and the differences could be material.

We are, for GAAP purposes, an investment compaulgiuthe AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide for Invesint
Companies. As a result, we reflect our investmentsur balance sheet at their estimated fair vaitle unrealized gains and
losses resulting from changes in fair value refldas a component of unrealized gains or lossesiostatements of
operations. Fair value is the amount that woulddoeived to sell the investments in an orderlydaation between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e., thtgpeixie). Additionally, we do not consolidate matgior wholly-owned and
controlled investments.

Effective January 1, 2008 we adopted Fair Value $emments and Disclosures, which among other thiegsiires
enhanced disclosures about financial instrumentiedaat fair value. See Note 4 to the financiatetnents for the additional
information about the level of market observabiligsociated with investments carried at fair value.
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We have valued our investments, in the absencbs#reable market prices, using the valuation mettogies described
below applied on a consistent basis. For some imags little market activity may exist; managen®determination of fair
value is then based on the best information availabthe circumstances, and may incorporate managgs own assumptions
and involves a significant degree of managemeuntiginent.

Our investments in CLO Fund securities are camtefdir value, which is based either on (i) thespre value of the net
expected cash inflows for interest income and jpadaepayments from underlying assets and the catlows for interest
expense, debt paydown and other fund costs foCt® Funds which are approaching or past the ertledf reinvestment
period and therefore begin to sell assets andéptiacipal repayments to pay-down CLO Fund defd, far which there
continue to be net cash distributions to the atdsse securities own, or (ii) a discounted caslwfloodel that utilizes
prepayment and loss assumptions based on histesipakience and projected performance, economiori&ache
characteristics of the underlying cash flow and parable yields for similar securities or prefersb@res to those in which the
Company has invested. We recognize unrealized ejapian or depreciation on our investments in CLné securities as
comparable yields in the market change and/or basathanges in net asset values or estimated lcagh fesulting from
changes in prepayment or loss assumptions in therlying collateral pool. As each investment in CEGnd securities ages,
the expected amount of losses and the expecteddgiafirecognition of such losses in the underlyéotiateral pool are updated
and the revised cash flows are used in determifmeadair value of the CLO Investment. We deterntmefair value of our
investments in CLO Fund securities on a securitgbgurity basis.

Our investment in our Asset Manager Affiliates dsreed at fair value, which is determined afteritgkinto consideration a
percentage of assets under management and a disdaash flow model incorporating different levefsliscount rates
depending on the hierarchy of fees earned (inctythe likelihood of realization of senior, suborati® and incentive fees) and
prospective modeled performance. Such valuatioidies an analysis of comparable asset managemmpiacies. Our
investment in our Asset Manager Affiliates is ciisd as a Level 1l investment (as described bglodwny change in value
from period to period is recognized as net changenrealized appreciation or depreciation.

Fair values of other investments for which markétgs are not observable are determined by referempublic market or
private transactions or valuations for comparabl@ganies or assets in the relevant asset classrandiistry when such
amounts are available. Generally these valuatiomslerived by multiplying a key performance meticthe investee company
or asset (e.g., EBITDA) by the relevant valuationitiple observed for comparable companies or tretitsas, adjusted by
management for differences between the investmmhttee referenced comparable. Such investmentsafsaybe valued at
cost for a period of time after an acquisitionfas best indicator of fair value. If the fair valoksuch investments cannot be
valued by reference to observable valuation meadorecomparable companies, then the primary aicalyinethod used to
estimate the fair value is a discounted cash fl@thod and/or cap rate analysis. A sensitivity asialis applied to the
estimated future cash flows using various facteetding on the investment, including assumed droates (in cash flows),
capitalization rates (for determining terminal \&dyand appropriate discount rates to determia@gerof reasonable values or
to compute projected return on investment.

We derive fair value for our illiquid loan investnts that do not have indicative fair values bagashuactive trades
primarily by using the Market Yield Approach, arldaconsider recent loan amendments or other cpiecific to the subject
asset as described above. Other significant asgumspsuch as coupon and maturity, are asset-gpaaifl are noted for each
investment in the Schedules of Investments. Ourdo#&Directors may consider other methods of viddueto determine the
fair value of investments as appropriate in conformvith GAAP.

The determination of fair value using this methodgl takes into consideration a range of factorduiting but not limited
to the price at which the investment was acquitieel nature of the investment, local market condgjdrading values on public
exchanges for comparable securities, current amig¢gied operating performance and financing traiwas subsequent to the
acquisition of the investment. This valuation melblogy involves a significant degree of managensgutigment.
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After our adoption of Fair Value Measurements amt@sures, investments measured and reportedr atfae are
classified and disclosed in one of the followingegmries:

e Level | —Unadjusted quoted prices are available in activekata for identical investments as of the reportiate. Th
type of investments included in Level | includddid equities and listed securities. As requiredraly Value
Measurements and Disclosui, the Company does not adjust the quoted pricthfege investments, even in situations
where the Company holds a large position and aceallel reasonably affect the quoted price.

e Level Il — Pricing inputs are other than quoteitgs in active markets, which are either direotlyndirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Such inputsheajuoted prices for similar assets or liab#itiguoted markets that
are not active, or other inputs that are observabt@n be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the
full character of the financial instrument, or inpthat are derived principally from, or corrobedby, observable
market information. Investments which are generaltyuded in this category include illiquid corptedoans and bonds
and less liquid, privately held or restricted eguiecurities for which some level of recent tradigjvity has been
observed.

e Level lll — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investnagctincludes situations where there is little nif amarke
activity for the investment. The inputs may be lobse the Company’s own assumptions about how maikeicipants
would price the asset or liability or may use LeNa@hputs, as adjusted, to reflect specific invesnt attributes relative
to a broader market assumption. These inputs rgaétermination of fair value may require sigrifit management
judgment or estimation. Even if observable markedador comparable performance or valuation mead@arning:
multiples, discount rates, other financial/valuatratios, etc.) are available, such investmentgereped as Level lIl if
any significant data point that is not also madetervable (private company earnings, cash flotes), is used in the
valuation methodology.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measuredhievmay fall into different levels of the fair ual hierarchy. In such cases,
an investment’s level within the fair value hietayds based on the lowest level of input that gm#icant to the fair value
measurement. Our assessment of the significanagafticular input to the fair value measuremeiritsientirety requires
judgment, and it considers factors specific toitivestment. A majority of our investments are dféess as Level Ill.

Interest Income

Interest income, adjusted for amortization of pramiand accretion of discount, is recorded on tlveuat basis to the
extent that such amounts are expected to be calle¥e generally place a loan on non-accrual staidsease recognizing
interest income on such loan or security when a twasecurity becomes 90 days or more past duena otherwise do not
expect the debtor to be able to service its deligations. Non-accrual loans remain in such statut the borrower has
demonstrated the ability and intent to pay contralchmounts due or such loans become current. Beoémber 31, 2012, five
issuers representing less than 1% of our totalstmrents at fair value were on non-accrual statsfDecember 31, 2011,
three issuers representing less than 1% of ouritatastments at fair value were on non-accrualista

Dividend Income from CLO Fund Securities

We generate dividend income from our investmenteénmost junior class of securities of CLO Furtgipi¢ally preferred
shares or subordinated securities) managed by shetManager Affiliates and selective investmemtseicurities issued by
funds managed by other asset management compamgstiie effective interest method based on ardiegbyield and
estimated cash flows as updated quarterly for abaigprepayments, re-investment, credit losseotrat items that may
impact distributions. Our CLO Fund junior classigites are subordinated to senior note holders typizally receive a return
on their investment at a fixed spread relativenltIBOR index. The CLO Funds are leveraged fumdkamy excess cash flow
or “excess spread” (interest earned by the undeglgecurities in the fund less payments made timiseate holders and less
fund expenses and management fees) is paid tawttierk of the CLO Fund'’s subordinated securitiegreferred shares. The
level of excess spread from CLO Fund securitiesbeaimpacted from the

57




TABLE OF CONTENTS

timing and level of the resetting of the benchmat&rest rate for the underlying assets (whichtrasearious times throughout
the quarter) in the CLO Fund and the related CL@dRuote liabilities (which reset at each quarteliktribution date); in
periods of short-term and volatile changes in techmark interest rate, the levels of excess s@rddlistributions to us can
vary significantly. In addition, the failure of CLBunds in which we invest to comply with certaimdincial covenants may lead
to the temporary suspension or deferral of cadhiloligions to us. We make estimated interim acaredlsuch dividend income
based on recent historical distributions and CL@d-performance and adjust such accruals on a glydbtesis to reflect actual
distributions.

For non-junior class CLO Fund securities, suchuasrovestment in the class B-2L notes of Katona®72DCLO and the
class F notes of Catamaran 2012-1, interest idaha fixed spread relative to the LIBOR index.

Dividends from Affiliate Asset Manager

We record dividend income from our Asset Managédiliafes on the declaration date, which represémtsex-dividend
date.

Payment-in-Kind Interest

We may have loans in our portfolio that contairagimpent-in-kind (“PIK”) provision. PIK interest, cquuted at the
contractual rate specified in each loan agreenreatjded to the principal balance of the loan aednmded as interest income.
To maintain our RIC status, this non-cash sourdagzfme must be paid out to stockholders in thenfof dividends, even
though the Company has not yet collected the cash.

Fee Income

Fee income includes fees, if any, for due diligersteicturing, commitment and facility fees, anddgif any, for transaction
services and management services rendered bypastfolio companies and other third parties. Commeitit and facility fees
are generally recognized as income over the liftv@funderlying loan, whereas due diligence, stinireg, transaction service
and management service fees are generally recajagzimcome when the services are rendered.

Management Compensation

We may, from time to time, issue stock optionsestricted stock under the Kohlberg Capital Corpora2006 Equity
Incentive Plan as amended (our “Equity IncentivanP)to officers and employees for services rendiéneus. We follow
Accounting Standards Codification 718, CompensatioBtock Compensation, a method by which the falue of options or
restricted stock is determined and expensed. Wa @rary Option Pricing Model (American, call apt) as its valuation
model to establish the expected value of all stymtion grants.

United States Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected and intends to contingaatify for the tax treatment applicable to RICslenSubchapter M of
the Code and, among other things, intends to ntekeeiquired distributions to its stockholders ac#fed therein. In order to
qualify as a RIC, the Company is required to tingibtribute to its stockholders at least 90% ofstient company taxable
income, as defined by the Code, for each year. Bdipg on the level of taxable income earned irxkaytsar, we may choose to
carry forward taxable income in excess of curraanydistributions into the next tax year and pamexcise tax on such
income, to the extent required.

Dividends

Dividends and distributions to common stockholdeesrecorded on the ex-dividend date. The amoun¢ foaid out as a
dividend is determined by the Board of Directorshequarter and is generally based upon the eareistjnated by
management for the period and year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 to the audited financial statementsided elsewhere in this prospectus for a descrimiarcent accounting
pronouncements.
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ltem Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk
7b.

Our business activities contain elements of matikks. We consider our principal market risks tdlbetuations in interest
rates and the valuations of our investment podfddanaging these risks is essential to our businsscordingly, we have
systems and procedures designed to identify angizmaur risks, to establish appropriate policied thresholds and to
continually monitor these risks and thresholds ®ans of administrative and information technologgtems and other policies
and processes.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the sensitivitpof current and future earnings to interest ratatility, variability of spread
relationships, the difference in re-pricing intds/between our assets and liabilities and the effet interest rates may have on
our cash flows. Changes in the general level @frett rates can affect our net interest incomegiwisi the difference between
the interest income earned on interest earningsaasd our interest expense incurred in conneetitmour interest bearing
debt and liabilities. Changes in interest ratesataa affect, among other things, our ability tqaice and originate loans and
securities and the value of our investment porfoli

Our investment income is affected by fluctuatiamsarious interest rates, including LIBOR and prirates. As of
December 31, 2012, approximately 84% of our loariaiavalue in our portfolio were at floating ratwith a spread to an
interest rate index such as LIBOR or the prime.Mate generally expect that future portfolio investrts will predominately be
floating rate investments. As of December 31, 20@&2had $101 million of borrowings outstanding ateight average fixed
rate of 8.2%.

Because we borrow money to make investments, dunwestment income is dependent upon the differdratween the
rate at which we borrow funds and the rate at whielinvest the funds borrowed. Accordingly, thesie be no assurance that a
significant change in market interest rates will have a material adverse effect on our net investrimcome. In periods of
rising or lowering interest rates, our current afsiebt would remain the same at 8.2% given thadebt is at a fixed rate. We
would expect that an increase in the base ratifudeour floating rate investment assets wouldéase our net investment
income and that a decrease in the base rate indexi€h assets would decrease our net investmearhia (in either case, such
increase/decrease may be limited by interest lapesfminimums for certain investment assets).

We have analyzed the potential impact of chang@sénest rates on interest income net of inteegpense. Assuming that
our balance sheet at December 31, 2012 were tamaroastant and no actions were taken to alteegisting interest rate
sensitivity, a hypothetical increase of a 1% chaingeterest rates would correspondingly increasteimterest income
proportionately by approximately $480,000 over a-gear period. Conversely, a hypothetical decre&sel% change in
interest rates would correspondingly decreasentetast income proportionately by approximatelyG4800 over a one-year
period.

Although management believes that this measuralisative of our sensitivity to interest rate chasgt does not adjust for
potential changes in credit quality, size and cositimn of the assets on the balance sheet and btisémess developments that
could affect a net change in assets resulting fsperations or net income. Accordingly, no assurames be given that actual
results would not materially differ from the pot@hbutcome simulated by this estimate.

We did not hold any derivative financial instrumefdr hedging purposes as of December 31, 2012.
Portfolio Valuation

We carry our investments at fair value, as deteeghin good faith by our Board of Directors pursuana valuation
methodology approved by our Board of Directorsestments for which market quotations are generaligily available are
generally valued at such market quotations. Investsfor which there is not a readily available keavalue are valued at fair
value as determined in good faith by our Board imé€ors under a valuation policy and consisteagiplied valuation process.
However, due to the inherent uncertainty of detaingj the fair value of investments that cannot lzekad to market, the fair
value of our investments may differ materially fréne values that would have been used had a readsetrexisted for such
investments. In addition, changes in the marketrenmnent and other events that may occur over the
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life of the investments may cause the value redl@ethese investments to be different than theatains that are assigned.
The types of factors that we may take into accaufdir value pricing of our investments includs,ralevant, the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, third partyuations, the portfolio company’s ability to makeypeents and its earnings and
discounted cash flow, the markets in which thefptiet company does business, comparison to pubtielgled securities, recent
sales of or offers to buy comparable companies ctinel relevant factors.

In 2012 and 2011, we engaged an independent vatuitim, to provide a third-party review of our CLf@r value model
relative to its functionality, model inputs anda@ahtions as a reasonable method to determine @b® $ecurity fair values, in
the absence of Level | or Level Il trading activitiyobservable market inputs. The independent tialuéirm concluded that
our CLO model appropriately factors in all the resagy inputs required to build a CLO equity caskffor fair value purposes
and that the inputs were being employed correctly.

Beginning with the period ending June 30, 2011,Gbenpany has engaged an independent valuatiortdiprnovide third
party valuation consulting services to the Compaioard of Directors. Each quarter, the independaluiation firm will
perform third party valuations on the Company’seisivnents on illiquid securities such that theyravéewed at least once
during a trailing 12 month period. These third parluation estimates were considered as one aklbgant data inputs in the
Company’s determination of fair value. The Boarddrfectors intends to continue to engage an indégernvaluation firm in
the future to provide certain valuation services|uding the review of certain portfolio assetspag of the quarterly and
annual year-end valuation process.

Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Our financial statements are annexed to this AnReglort beginning on page F-1.

Item Controls and Procedures
9A.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

The Company’s management, under the supervisiomw@hdhe participation of various members of masragnt,
including its Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) antsiChief Financial Officer (“*CFO”), has evaluatée teffectiveness of its
disclosure controls and procedures (as definediie R3a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) of the Exchangg astof the end of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatan, the Company’s CEO and CFO have concludatkiie Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effectivef #se end of the period covered by this report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting.

General. The Company’s management is responsible for ksitéy and maintaining adequate internal contk@ro
financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15{f)he Exchange Act. The Company’s internal contngdr financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance regatdingliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles.

Scope of Management’'s Report on Internal Contra@r@inancial Reporting. The Company'’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andcedures that:

* Pertain to the maintenance of records that inaeable detail accurately and fairly reflect trngactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactiemreenrded as necessary to permit preparatiomafdial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that the Company’s receipts and experaditare being
made only in accordance with authorizations of@eepany’s management and directors; and

« Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventtitmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiosg wr disposition of
the Company’s assets that could have a materittedih the Company’s financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutiufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the éegfreompliance with the policies or procedures mietgriorate.

Conclusion. Management, including the Company’s CEO and GiSessed the effectiveness of the Company'’s iriterna
control over financial reporting as of December3&112. In making this assessment, management heediteria set forth by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@lwvay Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Ingegd Framework.
Based on management’s assessment, managementdaahaubject to the limitations described underSeepe of

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FimariReporting” above, that the Company maintainéelctive internal
control over financial reporting as of December23112.

Attestation Report of the Independent RegisterecoRtiAccounting Firm.

The Company’s independent registered public ac@ogifitm has audited and issued a report on the f@zmy's internal
control over financial reporting, which appearstem 15 of this report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportm.

There have been no changes in our internal coowel financing reporting that occurred during therth fiscal quarter of
2012 that have materially affected, or are readgrildely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting

Item Other Information
9B.

None.

61




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART Il

Item Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

10.

The information required by this item will be coinied in the Proxy Statement under the headingspd¥al 1: Election of
Directors,” “Control Persons and Principal Stockiess” and “Corporate Governance Principles anddbarenformation”, to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio or prior to April 30, 2013, and is incorpoxiteerein by reference.

We have adopted a Sarbanes-Oxley Code of Ethitsipipies to directors and officers of the Compangl a Sarbanes-
Oxley Code of Ethics that applies to directorsiceifs and employees of the Company. This codehi¢sts published on our
website atvww.kcapfinancial.comWe intend to disclose any future amendmentsrtayaivers from, this code of ethics within

four business days of the waiver or amendment tir@uwebsite posting.

Item Executive Compensatio
11.

The information required by this item will be coinied in the Proxy Statement under the headingspé¥al 1: Election of
Directors,” “Executive Compensation,” “Compensati@ommittee Interlocks and Insider Participationdd@ompensation
Committee Report”, to be filed with the Securittasl Exchange Commission on or prior to April 30120and is incorporated
herein by reference.
ltem Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

12.

The information required by this item will be coinied in the Proxy Statement under the headings ¢ixee
Compensation” and “Control Persons and Principati8tolders”, to be filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on

or prior to April 30, 2013, and is incorporated diarby reference.
Iltem Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abatector Independence

13.
The information required by this item will be coimtad in the Proxy Statement under the headingsriSaetions with
Related Persons” and “Proposal 1: Election of Doext, to be filed with the Securities and Excha@yenmission on or prior

to April 30, 2013, and is incorporated herein bfgrence.
Iltem Principal Accountant Fees and Servict
14.

The information required by this item will be coimiad in the Proxy Statement under the heading “&salp2: Ratification
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firta"be filed with the Securities and Exchange Corsinison or prior to

April 30, 2013, and is incorporated herein by refere.
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PART IV

Iltem Exhibits and Financial Statement Scheduli
15.

(a) Documents filed as part of this repo

1. For alist of the consolidated financial informatimcluded herein, see Index to the Consolidatedrgial Statements «
page F-1.

2. For alist of the other financial statements famancial statement schedules included herein|rsdex to Other Financial
Statements and Financial Statement Schedules ean$dg

3. For a list of other exhibits included hereirg §&xhibit List on page BE51.

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulatic-K. Reference is made to the Exhibit List filed gsaa of this report
beginning on page B1. Each of such exhibits is incorporated by refeecmerein.

(c). Other financial statements and financial statensmttedules. Reference is made to the Index to Other FinarBtaiements
and Financial Statement Schedules on pade. &ach of such documents is incorporated by reterderein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the usidgeed, thereunto duly authorized.

KCAP Financial, Inc.
Date: March 18, 2013 By /s/ DayL W. PEARSON

Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in theatipa and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s DAYL W. PEARSON President and Chief Executive Officer (principal March 18, 2013
executive officer) and Member of the Board of Dices

DayL W. PEARSON

/sl EDWARD U. GILPIN Chief Financial Officer, Secretary and Treasurer March 18, 2013
(principal financial and accounting officer)

EpwArD U. GILPIN

/sl CHRIsTOPHERLACOVARA  Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

CHRISTOPHER LACOVARA
/sl GARY CADEMARTORI Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

GARY CADEMARTORI
/s/ C. MICHAEL JAacOBI Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

C. MICHAEL JAcCOBI
/s/ ALBERT G. RASTINO Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

ALBERT G. PASTINO
/s/ C. TURNEY STEVENS, R.  Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

C. TURNEY STEVENS, JR.
/s Jay R. BLoom Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

Jay R. BLoom
/s/ DEAN C. KEHLER Member of the Board of Directors March 18, 2013

DeaN C. KEHLER
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
KCAP Financial, Inc. (formerly, Kohlberg Capital Corporation)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheelsding the schedule of investments, of KCAP Finalnénc. (a Delaware
corporation) and subsidiaries (collectively, thet@pany”) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, andelated statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash ftoveaéh of the three years in the period ended bbee31, 2012 and financial
highlights for each of the five years in the peraaled December 31, 2012. These financial statesnaeatthe responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility exjagress an opinion on these financial statemersiscoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenadldit to obtain reasonable assurance about whbe#hénancial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit inckueeamining, on a test basis, evidence suppoti@gimounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includssessing the accounting principles used andfisigmii estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fishistatement presentation. Our procedures indwdafirmation of
investments owned as of December 31, 2012 and 28é&Xbelieve that our audits provide a reasonakdeslfar our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and finahisighlights referred to above present fairlyalhmaterial respects, the
financial position of KCAP Financial, Inc. and sigiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, andethdts of their
operations, changes in their net assets, anddhsir flows for each of the three years in the pegioded December 31, 2012 in
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
Company and subsidiaries’ internal control oveafficial reporting as of December 31, 2012, baseatimria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission
(COSO0), and our report dated March 18, 2013 expckan unqualified opinion.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Board of Directors and Shareholders ofKCAP Findnti&. (formerly, Kohlberg Capital Corporation)

We have audited the internal control over finangglorting of KCAP Financial, Inc. (a Delaware amiq@tion) and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”) as of December 31120based on criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and fterassessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigdoeting, included in the accompanying Managemeréport on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiif to express an opinion on the Company’s intezaatrol over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&@/nited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatildit to obtain reasonable assurance about wieffieetive internal
control over financial reporting was maintainedcallhmaterial respects. Our audit included obtairangunderstanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assegdime risk that a material weakness exists, testimyevaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control basedhe assessed risk, and performing such otheeguves as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablessmssuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepagstt of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intecoatrol over financial reporting includes thos#ligies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@sonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasenaggurance that transactions are recorded assaecés permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengrdtepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance withasiztiitions of management and directors of the cawypand (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opalition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on tlanéial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures mheieriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fin&l reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishedemal Control — Integrated Framewoitsued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
financial statements of the Company as of andHeryear ended December 31, 2012, and our reped didarch 18, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstetements.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS

As of
As of December 31,
December 31, 201 2011
ASSETS
Investments at fair value:
Time deposits (cost: 2012 — $1,942,834; 2011 — #1529 $ 1,94283 3 229,15:
Money market account
(cost: 2012 — $30,543,824; 2011 — $31,622,134) 30,543,82 31,622,13
Debt securities
(cost: 2012 — $134,377,151; 2011 — $134,311,238) 111,037,88 114,673,50
CLO Fund securities managed by non-affiliates
(cost: 2012 — $10,487,023; 2011 — $9,370,482) 3,725,92. 3,110,36'
CLO Fund securities managed by affiliates
(cost: 2012 — $79,659,387; 2011 — $57,158,000) 79,531,58 45,327,95
Equity securities
(cost: 2012 — $18,375,588; 2011 — $16,559,610) 8,020,71 6,040,89!
Asset manager affiliates
(cost: 2012 — $83,161,529; 2011 — $44,338,301) 77,242,00 40,814,00
Total Investments at Fair Value

(cost: 2012 — $358,547,336; 2011 — $293,588,917) 312,044,76 241,818,00
Cash 738,75t 2,555,25!
Interest receivable 697,34¢ 522,57¢
Accounts receivable 2,210,86! 859,15¢
Due from affiliates — 3,517
Other assets 3,568,73! 2,375,14
Total Assets $319,260,47 $248,133,66
LIABILITIES
Convertible senior notes 60,000,00 60,000,00
Senior notes 41,400,00 —
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,581,43 3,527,68:
Dividend payable 7,403,38: 4,080,03
Total Liabilities $111,384,81 $ 67,607,71
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 100,00@;6hmon

shares authorized; 26,470,408 and 22,992,211 consimmes

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 anendssr 31,

2011, respectively $ 26438. $ 226,64
Capital in excess of par value 310,566,50 284,571,46
Accumulated undistributed net investment income 103,48: 821,90
Accumulated net realized losses (56,035,37) (52,802,40)
Net unrealized depreciation on investme (47,023,33) (52,291,67)

Total Stockholders' Equity $207,875,65  $180,525,94




NET ASSET VALUE PER COMMON SHARI $

7.8¢

$

7.88

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended December 31,

Investment Income:
Interest from investments in debt securities

Interest from cash and time deposits

Dividends from investments in CLO fund securities

managed by non-affiliates

Dividends from investments in CLO fund securities

managed by affiliates
Dividends from asset manager affiliates
Capital structuring service fees
Other Income
Total investment income
Expenses:
Interest and amortization of debt issuance costs
Compensation
Professional fees
Insurance
Administrative and other
Total expenses
Net Investment Income before Income Tax Expense
Net Investment Income

Realized And Unrealized Gains (Losses) On
Investments:

Net realized loss from investment transactions

Net change in unrealized appreciation
(depreciation) on:

Debt securities

Equity securities

CLO fund securities managed by affiliates
CLO fund securities managed by non-affiliates
Asset manager affiliates investments

Total net unrealized gain (loss) from investment
transactions

Net realized and unrealized appreciation (depnecig

on investments

Net Increase (Decrease) In Stockholders’ Equity
Resulting From Operations

Net Increase (Decrease) in Stockholders' Equity
Resulting from Operations per Common Share:

2012 2011 2010
$12,504,56 $ 9,438,49. $ 14,409,06
5,741 21,93¢ 21,53
1,861,26. 1,949,36 1,837,02
19,207,40 12,413,79 8,371,00
4,700,001 1,910,00! 4,500,001
304,88; 86,05’ 215,23
— 2,000,001 —
38,583,85 27,819,64 29,353,86
6,976,01 4,588,48; 7,088,20;
3,172,81. 3,907,901 3,322,89!
2,453,94! 2,010,25: 5,411,49'
546,98 493,30t 419,94
1,343,67 987,38 1,214,20
14,493,44 11,987,32 17,456,74
24,090,41 15,832,32 11,897,11
24,090,41 15,832,32 11,897,11
(3,232,97)  (18,476,60)  (17,862,98)
(3,701,53)  15,864,85 9,196,91;
163,84 (1,724,31) (1,142,03)
8,316,27' (4,420,19) 3,079,97.
2,884,98; 1,058,46. 894,87
(2,395,22) (484,97)  (20,352,53)
5,268,34 10,293,82 (8,322,81)
2,035,36/ (8,182,78)  (26,185,79)
$26,12577 $ 7,649,54.  $(14,288,677




Diluted:
Net Investment Income Per Common Share:

Basic:

Diluted:

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding — Basic

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding — Diluted

$

0.9t

0.9:
0.8¢

26,011,51

33,379,59

$

$

22,868,64

22,880,67

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Operations:

Net investment incom

Net realized loss from investment transacti

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on investm

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting fro
operations

Stockholder distributions:
Dividends to stockholders

Net decrease in net assets resulting from stockhold
distributions

Capital share transactions:
Issuance of common stock for:
Interest in affiliate company
Dividend reinvestment plan
Vesting of restricted stock
Stock based compensation

Net increase in net assets resulting from capliiates
transactions

Net assets at beginning of peri

Net assets at end of period (including accumul
undistributed net investment income of $103,484,
$821,904, and $818,664 in 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively.

Net asset value per common sh

Common shares outstanding at end of period

Year Ended December 31,

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2012 2011 2010
$ 24,000,41 $ 15832,32 $ 11,897,11
(3,232,97)  (18,476,60)  (17,862,98)
5,268,34 10,293,82 (8,322,81)
26,125,77 7,649,54. (14,288,67)
(24,808,83)  (15,829,08)  (15,222,21)
(24,808,83)  (15,829,08)  (15,222,21)
25,560,00 — —
556,88 1,006,20! 1,621,07:
971 961 647
(85,08:) 772,65( 919,11
26,032,77 1,779,811 2,540,83;
180,525,94  186,925,66  213,895,72
$207,875,65  $180,525,94  $186,925,66
7.8t 785 $ 8.21
26,470,40 22,992,21 22,767,13
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KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in stockholdergiity resulting
from operations $ 26,125,77 $ 7,649,54. $ (14,288,67)
Adjustments to reconcile net increase (decrease) in
stockholders’ equity resulting from operations & 1
cash provided by (used in) operations:
Net realized losses on investment transactions 3,232,97! 18,476,60 17,862,98
Net change in unrealized (appreciation) depregiat
on investments (5,268,34) (10,293,82) 8,322,81
Net accretion of discount on securities and loans (1,522,939 (48,910 (466,820
Amortization of debt issuance cost 604,80¢ 398,50! 595,61
Payment-in-kind interest income (581,35) (469,329 (820,267)
Stock based compensation expense (85,087 772,65( 919,11:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Purchases of investments (148,344,65) (115,782,53) (15,799,75)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investmen  107,817,55 67,194,14 204,092,34
(Increase) Decrease in interest receivable (A74,770) 25,21¢ 1,261,911
Increase in accounts receivable (1,351,71) (8,13 —
Decrease in other assets (311,92) (72,137) (286,477
(Increase) Decrease in due from affiliates 3,517 (3,51%) 44,27
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and acc
expenses (946,25() 1,189,91! (1,570,99)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activii  (20,802,38) (30,971,80) 199,866,06
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of stock — — 647
Dividends paid in cash (20,927,64) (14,554,55) (14,200,70)
Proceeds from issuance of debt 30,000,00 — —
Cash paid on repayment of debt (30,000,00) (86,746,58)  (131,303,78)
Senior Notes Offering Costs (1,486,47i) — —
Convertible notes offering costs — (2,370,45) —
Issuance of Convertible Senior Notes — 60,000,00 —
Issuance of Senior Notes 41,400,00 — —
(Increase) Decrease in restricted cash — 67,023,17 (48,327,14)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activit 18,985,87 23,351,58 (193,830,98)
CHANGE IN CASH (1,816,50) (7,620,22) 6,035,08
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,555,25! 10,175,48 4,140,40
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 738,75¢ $ 2,555,25' $ 10,175,48




Interest paid during the period $ 6,374,13. $ 2,745,96
Non-cash dividends paid during the period under th

dividend reinvestment plan $ 557,85 $ 1,007,16
Issuance of common stock in connection with
acquisition of asset manager affiliates $ 25,560,00 $ =

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$

$

7,195,18

1,621,07.
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Debt Securities Portfolio
Portfolio Company/

KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, 2012

Investment

Principal Business Interest Rate(l)/Maturity Principal Cost value @
Advanced Lighting Technologies, I
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consume  First Lien Bond — Bond
Products 10.5% Cash, Due 6/19 $ 3,000,000 $ 2,928,76: $  3,000,00
Alaska Communications Systems
Holdings, Inc.10) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loa
Telecommunications 5.5% Cash, Due 10/16 2,940,001 2,952,65! 2,783,19
Allison Transmission, Inc. Senior Secured Loan — Term B-2
Automobile Loan 3.7% Cash, Due 8/17 1,980,00! 1,969,31: 1,995,67:
Aramark Corporatioft®) Senior Secured Loan — LC-3
Diversified/Conglomerate Service Facility 3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 61,707 61,57¢ 61,91(
Senior Secured Loan — U.S. Term
Aramark Corporatiof'?) Loan
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 938,29: 936,34 941,39(
Asurion, LLC (fka Asurion Corporation)  Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
(10) (First Lien)
Insurance 5.5% Cash, Due 5/18 2,000,001 2,021,501 2,023,13
Senior Secured Loan — Tranche C
Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC Term Loan
Personal Transportation 4.3% Cash, Due 3/19 1,985,00 2,012,68! 2,005,35:
. Junior Secured Loan +oan (Secon
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Inc
(10) Lien)
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 1.2% Cash, 7.0% PIK, Due 8/15 1,405,47. 1,225,48: 47,43¢
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Inc  Senjor Secured Loan Ferm Loan E
(10)
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 6.5% Cash, 1.0% PIK, Due 8/14 1,439,16 1,405,98 773,55:
Senior Secured Loan Ferm C Loat
Berry Plastics Holding Corporation
Containers, Packaging and Glass 2.2% Cash, Due 4/15 1,979,00: 1,949,23 1,971,89
Burger King Corporation Senior Secured Loan — Tranche E
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Term Loan (2012)
Services 3.8% Cash, Due 9/19 1,645,87! 1,641,89 1,657,29
Caribe Media Inc. (fka Caribe Informati
Investments Incorporateéi® Senior Secured Loan — Loan
Printing and Publishing 10.0% Cash, Due 11/14 621,07: 621,07 613,37:
Senior Secured Loan — 2017 Tern
Catalina Marketing Corporatidh®) Loan
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 5.7% Cash, Due 9/17 1,704,21: 1,672,22 1,711,14
Senior Secured Loan — Tranche E
Chrysler Group LLGO Term Loan
Automobile 6.0% Cash, Due 5/17 1,979,89: 1,979,89 2,024,72.
CoActive Technologies LLC (fka
CoActive Technologies, Inc(§) (10)
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Junior Secured Loan — Term Loar
Non-Construction, (Second Lien)
Non-Electronic) 2.3% Cash, 4.8% PIK, Due 1/15 2,063,00 1,987,35: 1,299,69!
Senior Secured Loan — Initial
Del Monte Foods Comparﬂro) Term Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.5% Cash, Due 3/18 949,12: 950,90! 952,23

Del Monte Foods Compary®)

Senior Secured Loan — Initial
Term Loan



elnstruction Corporatiof?)- (10)
Healthcare, Education and Childcare

ELO Touch Solutions, Iné19)
Electronics

First American Payment Systems, L)

Finance

Junior Secured Loan — Term Loar
(Second Lien)
11.5% Cash, Due 7/14

Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
(First Lien)
8.0% Cash, Due 6/18

10,000,00 10,000,00

1,990,00! 1,915,45:
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loar
(Second Lien 2012)

10.8% Cash, Due 4/19

3,000,00¢ 2,941,92

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Portfolio Company/

Investment

Principal Business Interest Rate(l)/Maturity Principal Cost value @
Senior Secured Loan — 2018
First Data Corporatioft®) Dollar Term Loan
Finance 4.2% Cash, Due 3/18 $ 2,000,000 $ 1,806,84 $  1,906,71
Fram Group Holdings Inc./Prestone Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Holdings Inc.(10) (First Lien)
Automobile 6.5% Cash, Due 7/17 989,97! 996,48 991,21.
Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. Senior Subordinated Bond — Bonc
Electronics 10.1% Cash, Due 12/16 1,036,00! 1,038,08 1,064,491
Senior Secured Loan — Initial
Getty Images, Ind19) Term Loan (New)
Printing and Publishing 4.8% Cash, Due 10/19 2,000,001 1,980,55! 2,005,25!
) . Senior Secured Loan — First Lien
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Ind®): 10) Tranche A Credit-Linked Deposit
Buildings and Real Estaté) 7.8% Cash, Due 6/11 1,257,14: 1,224,10 38,50¢
) . 8) (10 Senior Secured Loan — First Lien
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, |n(£ ), (10) Tranche B Term Loan
Buildings and Real Estat®) 7.8% Cash, Due 6/11 2,694,85 2,624,02: 82,54:
Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Ind8): (10) (Second Lien)
Buildings and Real Estaf® 11.8% Cash, Due 6/12 3,000,001 2,715,99 30,01t
Gymboree Corporation., THEY) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Retail Stores 5.0% Cash, Due 2/18 1,421,10! 1,355,90 1,312,741
HMSC COrpOratiOn (aka Swett and Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Crawford)9) (Second Lien)
Insurance 5.7% Cash, Due 10/14 5,000,001 4,948,80 4,410,00i
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loar
Hunter Defense Technologies, 169 (Second Lien)
Aerospace and Defense 7.0% Cash, Due 2/15 4,074,07. 4,027,93 3,829,63!
lasis Healthcare LLEO) Senior Unsecured Bond — Bond
Healthcare, Education and Childcare  8.4% Cash, Due 5/19 3,000,001 2,877,72 2,865,001
International Architectural
Products, Inc{8)- 10)
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious  Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Metals 12.0% Cash, Due 5/15 507,43: 480,86! 263,86:
Jones Stephens Cofp?)
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consume  Senior Secured Loan — Term Loai
Products 7.0% Cash, Due 9/15 4,280,14 4,280,14 4,280,14
KIK Custom Products Iné1®) Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Personal and Non Durable Consume¢  (Second Lien)
Products (Mfg. Only) 5.3% Cash, Due 12/14 5,000,001 5,000,00! 3,977,101
LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLES)- (10) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Buildings and Real Estaf® (First Lien)7.5% Cash, Due 1/10 3,345,75! 3,345,75! 303,46(
Legacy Cabinets, In&®)
Home and Office Furnishings,
Housewares, and Durable Consume  Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Products 1.0% Cash, 6.3% PIK, Due 5/14 524,57: 463,38l 447,04
Lord & Taylor Holdings LLC
(LT Propco LLC)10) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loal
Retail Stores 5.8% Cash, Due 1/19 430,95! 439,87 436,00:
Merisant Compan{!® Senior Secured Loan — Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 7.5% Cash, Due 1/14 4,547,083 4,538,54 4,547,03
Michael Foods Group, Inc. (f/k/a Senior Secured Loan — Term B
M-Foods Holdings, Inc§? Facility
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.3% Cash, Due 2/18 1,825,62 1,828,58! 1,838,93
Neiman Marcus Group Inc., TI(10) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loau
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 5/18 2,000,001 1,985,89. 2,005,80!

Pegasus Solutions, &9

Senior Subordinated Bond —
Senior Subordinated Second Lien



enertainmen 13.U% FIK, bue 4/1 1,091,UuV 1,091,0U

Perseus Holding Corft®
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Picture Preferred Stock — Preferred Stock

Entertainment 14.0% PIK, Due 4/14 400,00( 400,00(
PetCo Animal Supplies, In€O) Senior Secured Loan — New Loan
Retail Stores 4.5% Cash, Due 11/17 2,000,001 2,000,00t

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Portfolio Company/

Investment

Principal Business Interest Rate (M) /Maturity Principal Cost value @
Senior Secured Loan — Extended
Pinnacle Foods Finance LL&Y Initial Term Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 3.7% Cash, Due 10/16 $ 293,01: $ 293,01: $ 295,02!
Senior Secured Loan — Extended
Pinnacle Foods Finance LL&Y Initial Term Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 3.7% Cash, Due 10/16 1,989,97! 1,988,65! 2,003,63
Senior Secured Loan — Synthetic
TPF Generation Holdings, LLEY) LC Deposit (First Lien)
Utilities 2.3% Cash, Due 12/13 169,53. 169,28( 169,95¢
TriZetto Group, Inc. (TZ Merger Sub,
Inc.) (10) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loar
Electronics 4.8% Cash, Due 5/18 1,959,86! 1,951,08: 1,948,01:
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loar
TRSO |, Inc.20) (Second Lien)
Oil and Gas 11.0% Cash, Due 12/17 10,400,00 10,192,91 10,192,00
Senior Secured Loan — Term Loat
TUI University, LLC(10) (First Lien)
Healthcare, Education and Childcare 7.3% Cash,, Due 10/14 2,051,44; 2,024,47 1,751,52
TWCC Holding Corp{1®) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loar
Broadcasting and Entertainment 4.3% Cash, Due 2/17 1,966,35! 1,978,84 1,990,93
Senior Secured Loan Ferm B Loar
Univar Inc.(19)
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 5.0% Cash, Due 6/17 2,954,77. 2,954,77. 2,950,57
US Foods, Inc. (aka U.S. Foodservice,
Inc.) @0 Senior Secured Loan — Extended
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Term Loan
Services 5.8% Cash, Due 3/17 1,978,28. 1,932,52. 1,983,53
Senior Secured Loan — Term Loar
Vertafore, Inc{(10) (First Lien)
Electronics 5.3% Cash, Due 7/16 1,237,38 1,232,97 1,250,27!
Junior Secured Loan —
Wholesome Sweeteners, |50 Subordinated Note (Second Lien)
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 14.0% Cash, Due 10/17 6,648,591 6,605,85 6,715,08:
WireCo WorldGroup Inc{t®
Machinery (Non-Agriculture,
Non-Construction, Senior Unsecured Bond — Bond
Non-Electronic) 11.8% Cash, Due 5/17 8,000,001 7,920,73: 8,320,001
Total Investment in Debt Securities
(53% of net asset value at fair value $136,283,87 $134,377,15 $ 111,037,88

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Equity Securities Portfolio

Portfolio Company/Principal Business

Percentage

Investment Interest/Shares

Cost

value @

Aerostructures Holdings L.F): (10)
Aerospace and Defense

Aerostructures Holdings L.§): (10)

Aerospace and Defense
Bankruptcy Management

Solutions, Inc(®): (10)

Diversified/Conglomerate Service
Bankruptcy Management

Solutions, Inc(®: (10)

Diversified/Conglomerate Service
Coastal Concrete Holding I,

LLC (6). (10)

Buildings and Real Estaf®

elnstruction Acquisition, LLGS): (10)

Healthcare, Education and Childcare

FP WRCA Coinvestment
Fund VII, Ltd.®: ).
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-
Construction, Non-Electronic)

International Architectural
Products, Inc{®: (10)

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious Metal

Legacy Cabinets, Iné®): (10)

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares

and Durable Consumer Products

Perseus Holding Corf): (10)

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,

Entertainment

Plumbing Holdings Corporatidf): (10)

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares

and Durable Consumer Products

Plumbing Holdings Corporatidf)- (10)

Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares

and Durable Consumer Products

Caribe Media Inc.
(fka Caribe Information
Investments Incorporateéf): (10)
Printing and Publishing

TRSO I, Inc.(6): (10)
Oil and Gas

Total Investment in Equity Securities
(4% of net asset value at fair value)

Partnership Interests 1.2%

Series A Preferred Intere 1.2%

Common Stock 1.2%

Warrants 0.1%

Class A Units 10.€%

Membership Units 1.1%

Class A Shares 1,50(¢

Common Stock 2.5%

Equity 4.(%

Common Stock 0.2%

Common Stock 7.£%

Preferred Stock 9.C%

Common Stock 1.2%

Common Stock 5.4%

$ 1,000,001

250,96:

218,59:

8,625,62!

1,079,61

1,500,00t

292,85!

115,58(

400,00(

3,032,591

359,76!

1,500,001

1,00(

44,11:

1,00(¢

1,00(

1,00¢

1,961,55!

1,00C

1,00(

10,93(

644,93

3,240,491

612,69:

1,500,001

$ 18,375,58

$

8,020,71i

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CLO Fund Securities

CLO Equity Investments

Percentage
Portfolio Company Investment Interest Cost value @
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd® Subordinated Securities 22.2% $ 4,925,000 $ 3,124,92.
Katonah Ill, Ltd.(®: (11) Preferred Shares 23.1% 2,242,01. 600,00(
Katonah V, Ltd 3. (1) Preferred Shares 26.7% 3,320,001 1,00(
Katonah VIl CLO Ltd.®): (7 Subordinated Securities 16.2% 4,574,39.  2,120,16
Katonah VIII CLO Ltd®): () Subordinated Securities 10.%% 3,450,700  2,171,99
Katonah IX CLO Ltd®): (1) Preferred Shares 6.5% 2,082,98 1,488,809
Katonah X CLO Ltd®: (V) Subordinated Securities 33.7%  11,934,60  9,455,51
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd®): () Preferred Shares 100.(%  31,189,14 30,091,88
Trimaran CLO IV, Ltd®): () Preferred Shares 19.(% 3,616,601 3,575,57.
Trimaran CLO V, Ltd®: (") Subordinate Notes 20.£% 2,757,100  2,930,00.
Trimaran CLO VI, Ltd®): () Income Notes 16.2% 2,894,701  2,936,62
Trimaran CLO VII, Ltd.®: (@ Income Notes 10.5% 3,146,900  3,357,92.
Catamaran CLO 2012-1 Lt#®): () Subordinated Notes 24.%% 8,982,401  8,493,00!
Total Investment in CLO Equity
Securities $85,116,55 $70,347,50
CLO Rated-Note Investment
Percentage
Portfolio Company Investment Interest Cost value @
Class B-2L Notes Par Value «
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd®): (7 $10,500,000 5.32%, Due 4/2;  100.(% $ 1,252,19. $ 9,140,00!
Catamaran CLO 2012-1 Class F Notes Par Value of
Ltd. ®. () $4,500,000 6.8%, Due 12/23 42.%% 3,777,66.  3,770,00i
Total Investment in CLO Rated-
Note $ 5,029,85! $12,910,00
Total Investment in CLO Fund
Securities (40% of net asset
value at fair value) $90,146,41 $83,257,50
Asset Manager Affiliates
Percentage
Portfolio Company/Principal Business Investment Interest Cost Value @
Asset Management
Asset Manager Affiliate§9) Company 100.% $83,161,52 $77,242,00
Total Investment in Asset Managel
Affiliates (37% of net asset value
at fair value) $83,161,52 $77,242,00

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Time Deposits and Money Market Account
Time Deposit and Money Market

Accounts Investment Yield Par/Cost Value @
JP Morgan Asset Accouft®) Time Deposit 0.0% $ 1,942,83 $ 1,942,83.
JP Morgan Business Money

Market Account?): (10) Money Market Account 0.15% 195,85¢ 195,85¢
US Bank Money Market Accou

(10) Money Market Account 0.4(% 30,347,96  30,347,96
Total Investment in Time Deposit and Money Market Accounts

(16% of net asset value at fair value) $ 32,486,65 $ 32,486,65
Total Investments®) (150% of net asset value at fair value) $358,547,33 $312,044,76

(1) A majority of the variable rate loans to thenGany’s portfolio companies bear interest at a ttzié may be determined by
reference to either LIBOR or an alternate Base Raimmonly based on the Federal Funds Rate orrieeRate), which
typically resets semi-annually, quarterly, or mdyitiror each such loan, the Company has providedvisighted average
annual stated interest rate in effect at DecembgeP@12.

(2) Reflects the fair market value of all investiseas of December 31, 2012, as determined by tihep@oy’s Board of
Directors.

(3) Non-U.S. company or principal place of business oetsi U.S.

(4) Buildings and real estate relate to real esiateership, builders, managers and developersxeiddes mortgage debt
investments and mortgage lenders or originators.

(5) The aggregate cost of investments for fede@me tax purposes is approximately $359 millidme Aggregate gross
unrealized appreciation is approximately $11 millithe aggregate gross unrealized depreciatioppgoaimately $58
million, and the net unrealized depreciation isragpnately $47 million.

(6) Non-income producing.

(7) An affiliate CLO Fund managed by an Asset Maaiffiliate (as such term is defined in the ndieshe financial
statements).

(8) Loan or debt security is on non-accrual stan therefore is considered non-income producing.

(9) Money market account holding restricted casth security deposits for employee flexible spendind payroll related
accounts.

(10)Qualified asset for purposes of section 55(a) efltivestment Company Act of 1940.
(11)As of December 31, 2012, this CLO Fund Security matsproviding a dividend distribution.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Debt Securities Portfolio
Portfolio Company/

KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2011

Principal Business Investment Interest Rate() /Maturity Principal Cost Value @
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
(12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Senior Secured Loan — Revolving
Housewares, and Durable Consum  Loan
Products 0.5% Cash, Due 6/13 $ — — —
Advanced Lighting Technologies, Inc.
(12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Junior Secured Loan — Second Lier
Housewares, and Durable Consum  Term Loan Note
Products 6.3% Cash, Due 6/14 5,000,001 4,997,62. 4,965,00!
Alaska Communications Systems
Holdings, Inc(1?) Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Telecommunications 5.5% Cash, Due 10/16 2,970,001 2,986,15. 2,776,95
Senior Secured Loan Extended Terr
Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC Loan
Personal Transportation 5.8% Cash, Due 4/14 2,974,33 2,993,09: 2,983,64
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Ir  junior Secured Loan — Loan
12) (Second Lien)
Diversified/Conglomerate Service 1.4% Cash, 7.0% PIK, Due 8/15 1,291,44 1,217,43 39,82:
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, Ir
(12)
Diversified/Conglomerate Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Service 6.5% Cash, 1.0% PIK, Due 8/14 1,442,47: 1,434,61 331,77
Junior Secured Loan — Advance
Bicent Power LLC12) (Second Lien)
Utilities 4.6% Cash, Due 12/14 4,000,001 4,000,001 137,50(
Burger King Corporatioft?) Senior Secured Loan — Tranche B
Personal, Food and Miscellaneous Term Loan
Services 4.5% Cash, Due 10/16 2,872,500 2,872,501 2,827,35
Caribe Media Inc. (fka Caribe
Information Investments
Incorporatedf!? Senior Secured Loan — Loan
Printing and Publishing 10.0% Cash, Due 11/14 684,77: 684,77: 684,77:
CoActive Technologies LLC (fka
CoActive Technologies, Inc{}? Junior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non- (Second Lien)
Construction, Non-Electronic) 7.3% Cash, Due 1/15 2,000,001 1,983,17. 1,552,201
Senior Secured Loan — Initial Term
Del Monte Foods Comparﬂrz) Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.5% Cash, Due 3/18 2,985,001 2,991,68 2,843,21:
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loan
elnstruction Corporatioft?) (Second Lien)
Healthcare, Education and Childcar  11.5% Cash, Due 7/14 10,000,00 10,000,00 9,489,001
Freescale Semiconductor, Inc. Senior Subordinated Bond —
Electronics 10.3% Cash, Due 12/16 3,000,001 3,007,00 3,135,001
) . 8) (12 Senior Secured Loan — First Lien
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Ind®)- (2) Tranche A Credit-Linked Deposit
Buildings and Real Estat®) 7.8% Cash, Due 6/11 1,257,14. 1,224,10 91,14
. . Senior Secured Loan — First Lien
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Ind8) (12) e B Tamm Leam
Buildings and Real Estaf® 7.8% Cash, Due 6/11 2,694,85 2,624,02 195,37
. . 8) (12 Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Ginn LA Conduit Lender, Ind8) (12) (Second Lien)
Buildings and Real Estaf® 11.8% Cash, Due 6/12 3,000,001 2,715,99 15,00(



Crawford)\+</ (Second Lien

Insurance 5.8% Cash, Due 10/14 5,000,001 4,919,52;
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Hunter Defense Technologies, 152 (Second Lien)
Aerospace and Defense 7.3% Cash, Due 2/15 5,000,001 4,916,87.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Portfolio Company/

Principal Business Investment Interest Rate® /Maturity Principal Cost value @
Hunter Fan Comparni}?
Home and Office Furnishings, Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Housewares, and Durable Consum  (Second Lien)
Products 7.0% Cash, Due 10/14 $ 3,000,000 $ 3,000,000 $ 2,724,30
International Architectural
Products, Inc{®: (12) Senior Secured Loan —
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Preciot ~ Term Loan
Metals 12.0% Cash, 3.3% PIK, Due 5/15 530,80¢ 504,24( 437,91
Jones Stephens Cofp?)
Home and Office Furnishings, Senior Secured Loan —
Housewares, and Durable Consum  Term Loan
Products 7.0% Cash, Due 9/15 4,889,91: 4,889,91. 4,889,91.
Kaseman Holdings and Sallyport Mezzanine Investment —
Holdings(? Mezzanine Notes
Aerospace and Defense 14.5% Cash, Due 6/17 11,250,59 10,931,42 11,588,11
KIK Custom Products Iné12) Junior Secured Loan — Loan
Personal and Non Durable Consun  (Second Lien)
Products (Mfg. Only) 5.3% Cash, Due 12/14 5,000,001 5,000,00! 3,250,001
12 Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan
LBREP/L-Suncal Master | LLES): (12) (First Lien)
Buildings and Real Estat®) 7.5% Cash, Due 1/10 3,401,92 3,401,92 359,92:
Legacy Cabinets, In&2)
Home and Office Furnishings, Senior Secured Loan —
Housewares, and Durable Consum  Term Loan
Products 1.0% Cash, 6.3% PIK, Due 5/14 492,94 463,38( 253,81
Merisant Compan§!2) Senior Secured Loan — Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 7.5% Cash, Due 1/14 5,049,29: 5,030,58. 5,043,23:
Junior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Metropolitan Health Networks, Inc. (Second Lien)
Healthcare, Education and Childca  13.5% Cash, Due 10/17 5,000,001 4,903,92! 5,000,001
Michael Foods Group, Inc. (f/k/a Senior Secured Loan —
M-Foods Holdings, Inc.§*?) Term B Facility
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.3% Cash, Due 2/18 1,925,76 1,870,00 1,910,12
Senior Secured Loan —
Neiman Marcus Group Inc., TI12) Term Loan
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 5/18 2,000,001 1,885,08! 1,932,501
Senior Subordinated Bond —
Pegasus Solutions, Ind2 Senior Subordinated Second Lien Pl
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictur ~ Notes,
Entertainment 13.0% PIK, Due 4/14 1,490,89: 1,490,89 1,490,89
Perseus Holding Corft2)
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictur  Preferred Stock — Preferred Stock,
Entertainment 14.0% PIK 400,00( 400,00( 400,00(
Potters Holdings, I, L.A12 Junior Secured Loan — Term B Loat
Diversified/Conglomerate (Second Lien)
Manufacturing 10.3% Cash, Due 11/17 7,000,001 6,905,44 7,000,001
Trinseo Materials Operating S.C.A. (fk  Senior Secured Loan — Term
Styron S.A.R.Lf3) Loan
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 6.0% Cash, Due 8/17 1,989,95! 1,824,53 1,728,77
TriZetto Group, Inc. (TZ Merger Sub,
Inc.) @2 Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan
Electronics 4.8% Cash, Due 5/18 1,979,75 1,898,411 1,950,55.
Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan
TUI University, LLC(12) (First Lien)
Healthcare, Education and Childca  3.5% Cash, Due 10/14 3,040,24; 2,978,38. 2,626,16
Twin-Star International, Ind12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Senior Subordinated Bond — Senior
Housewares, and Durable Consum  Subordinated Note
Products 13.0% Cash, Due 4/14 5,500,001 5,500,001 5,500,001

Univar Inc.(12)

Senior Secured Loan —
Term B Loan



Vantiv, LLC (fka Fifth Third Processin(

Solutions, LLC)12)
Electronics

Vertafore, Inc{(2)
Electronics

Senior Secured Loan —
Term B-1 Loan (First Lien)

4.5% Cash, Due 11/16 1,989,97! 1,992,29:
Senior Secured Loan — Term Loan

(First Lien)

5.3% Cash, Due 7/16 1,989,95! 1,933,72.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Portfolio Company/

Principal Business Investment Interest Rate(® /Maturity Principal Cost value @
Junior Secured Loan — Term
Walker Group Holdings LLE2) Loan B
Cargo Transport 13.3% Cash, Due 12/13 $ 416,73 $ 416,737 $ 416,73
Junior Secured Loan — Term
Walker Group Holdings LLEL2) Loan B
Cargo Transport 13.3% Cash, Due 12/13 3,957,61 3,957,61 3,957,61
Senior Secured Loan — Term
Warner Chilcott Company, LLC B-2 Loan
Healthcare, Education and Childcarc ~ 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 454,85: 455,92: 449,45(
Senior Secured Loan — Term
Warner Chilcott Corporation B-1 Loan
Healthcare, Education and Childcart 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 909,70: 911,84: 898,90(
Senior Secured Loan — Term
WC Luxco S.A.R.L. (Warner Chilcotﬁf) B-3 Loan
Healthcare, Education and Childcart 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 625,42: 626,89: 617,99:
Senior Secured Loan — Tranche E
Wesco Aircraft Hardware Corp. Term Loan
Aerospace and Defense 4.3% Cash, Due 4/17 2,590,24. 2,584,56! 2,599,15.
Total Investment in Debt Securities
(55% of net asset value at fair value $136,034,03 $134,311,23 $ 114,673,50
Equity Securities Portfolio
Percentage
Portfolio Company/Principal Business Investment Interest/Shares Cost value @
Aerostructures Holdings L.£8)- 12)
Aerospace and Defense Partnership Interests 1.2% $ 1,000,000 $ 1,00¢
Aerostructures Holdings L.§)- 12)
Aerospace and Defense Series A Preferred Intere 1.2% 250,96: 250,96:
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, 1/: 12)
Diversified/Conglomerate Service Common Stock 1.2% 218,59: 1,00¢
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, f2: (12)
Diversified/Conglomerate Service Warrants 0.1% — —
Caribe Media Inc. (fka Caribe Information
Investments Incorporatetf): (12) Common Stock 1.2% 359, 76! 538,96
Coastal Concrete Holding II, LLE): 12)
Buildings and Real Estaf& Class A Units 10.6% 8,625,62! 1,00(
elnstruction Acquisition, LLGS): (12)
Healthcare, Education and Childcare Membership Units 1.1% 1,079,61 442,31
FP WRCA Coinvestment Fund VI, Lt&): (©)
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Non-Construction
Non-Electronic) Class A Shares 1,50C 1,500,00t 2,339,701
International Architectural Products, 148 (12)
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious Metals Common Stock 2.5% 292,85: 1,00(
Legacy Cabinets, Iné®: (12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, ar
Durable Consumer Products Equity 4.C% 115,58( 1,00(
Perseus Holding Corff): (12)
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures,
Entertainment Common Stock 0.2% 400,00( 193,12(
Plumbing Holdings Corporatidf) (12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, ar
Durable Consumer Products Common Stock 7.8% — —
Plumbing Holdings Corporatidf)- (12)
Home and Office Furnishings, Housewares, ar
Durable Consumer Products Preferred Stock 9.C% 2,716,61 2,270,82.
Total Investment in Equity Securities
(3% of net asset value at fair value) $16,559,61 $ 6,040,89:



See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CLO Fund Securities

CLO Equity Investments

Percentage

Portfolio Company Investment Interest Cost Value @
Subordinated
Grant Grove CLO, Ltd®): (10) Securities 22.2% $ 4,893,55 $ 3,042,401
Katonah Ill, Ltd.(®)- (10) Preferred Shares 23.1% 4,476,93 1,00(
Katonah V, Ltd (- (10). (11) Preferred Shares 26.7% 3,320,001 1,00(
Subordinated
Katonah VII CLO Ltd.®- (7). (10) Securities 16.4% 4,614,12: 2,358,70
Subordinated
Katonah VIl CLO Ltd(®): (7). (10) Securities 10.5% 3,450,58: 1,888,70!
Katonah IX CLO Ltd®: (7). (10) Preferred Shares 6.5% 2,060,69 1,336,80!
Subordinated
Katonah X CLO Ltd®: (7). (10) Securities 33.5%  11,840,29 8,645,60!
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd®) (7). (10) Preferred Shares 100.(%  30,659,68  24,488,40
Total Investment in CLO Equity
Securities $65,315,87 $ 41,762,60
CLO Rated-Note Investment
Percentage
Portfolio Company Investment Interest Cost Value @
Class B-2L Notes Pa
Value of $10,500,00C
Katonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd®) (7). (10) 5.42%, Due 4/22 100.% $ 1,212,61. $ 6,675,701
Total Investment in CLO Rated-Note $1,212,61. $ 6,675,71
Total Investment in CLO Fund
Securities (23% of net asset value at
fair value) $66,528,48 $48,438,31
Asset Manager Affiliates
Percentage
Portfolio Company/Principal Business Investment Interest Cost Value @
Asset Manager Affiliates (Katonah Debt
Advisors and Trimaran Advisors) Asset Management Compar 100.(%  $44,338,30 $ 40,814,00
Total Investment in Asset Manager
Affiliates(20% of net asset value at fair
value) $44,338,30 $ 40,814,00
Time Deposits and Money Market Account
Time Deposits and Money Market Account Investment Yield Par/Cost value @
JP Morgan Asset Accoufit?) Time Deposit 0.01% $ 229,15. $ 229,15:
JP Morgan Business Money Market Money Market
Account(®): (12) Account 0.15% 164,57 164,57
Money Market
US Bank Money Market Accouft? Account 0.4(%  31,457,56 31,457,56
Total Investment in Time Deposit and Money
Market Accounts (15% of net asset value at fa
value) $ 31,851,28 $ 31,851,28

Total Investments®



(1) A majority of the variable rate loans to thengany’s portfolio companies bear interest at a ttzié may be determined by
reference to either LIBOR or an alternate Base Raimmonly based on the Federal Funds Rate orrieeRate), which
typically resets semi-annually, quarterly, or mdyitiror each such loan, the Company has provideavisighted average
annual stated interest rate in effect at DecembgeP@11.

(2) Reflects the fair market value of all existingestments as of December 31, 2011, as deternbiynéioe Company Board o
Directors.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(3) Non-U.S. company or principal place of business oetsig U.S.

(4) Buildings and real estate relate to real estateership, builders, managers and developersxiddes mortgage debt
investments and mortgage lenders or originatorofA3ecember 31, 2011, the Company had no expdsurertgage
securities (residential mortgage bonds, commens@tgage backed securities, or related asset badadities), compani
providing mortgage lending or emerging markets stments either directly or through the Companyl&siments in CLO
funds.

(5) The aggregate cost of investments for fede@me tax purposes is approximately $292 millidme &ggregate gross
unrealized appreciation is approximately $8 millitre aggregate gross unrealized depreciationpggoamately $60
million, and the net unrealized depreciation isragpnately $52 million.

(6) Non-income producing.

(7) An affiliate CLO Fund managed by Katonah Deblv&sors L.L.C. or its affiliate.

(8) Loan or debt security is on non-accrual stan therefore is considered non-income producing.
(9) Money market account holding restricted castefoployee flexible spending and payroll accounts.

(10)These securities were acquired in a transactianitha exempt from the registration requirementhefSecurities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuaiule 144A thereunder. These securities may @desly in
transactions that are exempt from the registragguirements of the Securities Act, normally toldjieal institutional
buyers.

(11)As of December 31, 2011, this CLO Fund securitiesamot providing a dividend distribution.
(12)Qualified asset for purposes of section 55(a) eflitvestment Company Act of 1940.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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KCAP FINANCIAL, INC.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
($ per share)
For the Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Per Share Data:
Net asset value, at beginning of per $ 78  $ 821 $ 9.5€ $ 9.0: $ 14.3¢
Net investment incomé) 0.9¢ 0.7¢ 0.5¢ 0.8¢ 1.5¢
Net realized lossdd) (0.12) (0.81) (0.79) 0.79) (0.09)
Net change in unrealized
appreciation/depreciation on
investments?) 0.11 0.37 (0.5 1.1¢ (6.80)
Net income 0.92 0.2¢ (0.80 1.31 (5.39)
Net decrease in net assets resulting f
distributions
From net investment income (0.97) (0.69) (0.52) (0.89) (1.49)
In excess of net investment income (0.09) — 0.19) (0.0¢) (0.09)
Net decrease in net assets resulting fi
distributions (0.99 (0.69) (0.6€) (0.92) (1.49)
Net increase in net assets relatin
stock-based transactions
Issuance of common stock (not including
dividend reinvestment plan) — — — — 1.2¢
Issuance of common stock under divider
reinvestment plan 0.0z 0.04 0.07 0.1C 0.12
Stock based compensation expense — 0.0¢ 0.04 0.04 0.04
Net increase in net assets relating to
stock-based transactions 0.0z 0.07 0.11 0.14 1.42
Net asset value, end of peri $ 78t % 788 $ 8.21 $ 95¢ $ 9.0¢
Total net asset value retufd 11.%% 4.(% (7.1)% 16.(% (27.2%
Ratio/Supplemental Data:
Per share market value at beginning of
period 6.31 6.97 4.5¢ $ 364 % 12.0C
Per share market value at end of period 9.1¢ 6.31 6.97 $ 456 $ 3.64
Total market returf®) 60.5% 0.4% 67.6% 50.5% (57.9%
Shares outstanding at end of period 26,470,40 22,992,21 22,767,13 22,363,28 21,771,18
Net assets at end of peri $207,875,65  $180,525,94  $186,925,66 $213,895,72 $196,566,01
Portfolio turnover rate 39.2% 24.5% 3.4% 3. 2% 14.4%
Average debt outstanding $ 80,758,74 $ 53,974,09 $154,952,07 $236,184,70  $248,300,44
Average debt outstanding per share $ 308 3 23 % 6.81 $ 105¢ $ 11.41
Asset coverage ratio 305% 401% 315% 19&% 175%
Ratio of net investment income to average |
assets 11.% 8.1% 5.8% 8. 7% 12.(%
Ratio of total expenses to average
net assets 7.2% 6.C% 8.5% 7.4% 7.2%
Ratio of interest expense to average
net assets 3.4% 2.5% 3.4% 4.4% 4.2%
Ratio of non-interest expenses to average
net assets 3.7% 3.7% 5.% 3.C% 3.C%



(1) Based on weighted average number of commorestartstanding for the period.

(2) Total net asset value return (not annualizgdlgs the change in the net asset value per skardhe beginning of period
net asset value per share plus dividends, divigatidbeginning net asset value per share.

(3) Total market return equals the change in thilirngnmarket price over the beginning of period @gier share plus dividends,
divided by the beginning price.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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KCAP Financial, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION

KCAP Financial, Inc. ("KCAP” or the “Company”) imdnternally managed, non-diversified closed-eneggtment
company that is regulated as a business developroemany (“BDC”) under the Investment Company Afc1®40. The
Company originates, structures, and invests inosesgicured term loans, mezzanine debt and seleqtéty securities primarily
in privately-held middle market companies. The Campdefines the middle market as comprising congzawith earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortingtiEBITDA”), of $10 million to $50 million and/ototal debt of $25 million
to $150 million. The Company was formed as a Detavlianited liability company on August 8, 2006 apdior to the issuance
of shares of the Company’s common stock in itsaihfiublic offering (“IPO”), converted to a corpdian incorporated in
Delaware on December 11, 2006. Prior to its IP@,Gbmpany did not have material operations. The gamy's IPO of
14,462,000 shares of common stock raised net pdsaefeapproximately $200 million. Prior to the IP¢ Company issued
3,484,333 shares to affiliates of Kohlberg & Cal,.LC., a leading middle market private equity firimexchange for the
contribution to the Company of their ownership ietgs in Katonah Debt Advisors, L.L.C., and relaédiates controlled by
the Company (collectively, “Katonah Debt Advisorsai)d in securities issued by collateralized loaiigation funds (“CLO
Funds”) managed by Katonah Debt Advisors and twemasset managers.

On February 29, 2012, the Company purchased Trimadaisors, L.L.C. (“Trimaran Advisors”), a CLO mager similar
to Katonah Debt Advisors with assets under manageofepproximately $1.5 billion, for total considéon of $13.0 million
in cash and 3,600,000 shares of the Company’s constozk. Contemporaneously with the acquisitioiaran Advisors,
the Company acquired from Trimaran Advisors equntgrests in certain CLO Funds managed by Trim&drisors for an
aggregate purchase price of $12.0 million in céshof December 31, 2012, Katonah Debt Advisors Bmtharan Advisors are
the Company'’s only wholly-owned portfolio companiesliectively, “Asset Manager Affiliates”) and hevapproximately $3.6
billion of par value assets under management. Adseiager Affiliates are registered under the Invesit Advisers Act of
1940 and are managed independently from the Compasgparate management teams and investment caeasit

The Company’s investment objective is to generateeat income and capital appreciation from investta made in senior
secured term loans, mezzanine debt and selectéty ewestments in privately-held middle market qmmies. The Company
also expects to continue to receive distribution®ourring fee income and to generate capital egption from its investment
in the asset management business of the Asset MpAdfiiates. The Asset Manager Affiliates managieO Funds which
invest in broadly syndicated loans, high-yield b®add other credit instruments.

While the Company’s primary investment focus isweiking loans to, and selected equity investmentgrinately-held
middle market companies, the Company may also timasther investments such as loans to largerigiyliraded companies,
high-yield bonds and distressed debt securities. Jbmpany may also receive warrants or optionsitohfase common stock
in connection with its debt investments. In additithe Company may also invest in debt and eqeitysties issued by the
CLO Funds managed by our Asset Manager Affiliatelsyoother asset managers.

The Company has elected to be treated as a reduatestment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter Mhaf Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) Liatifg as a RIC, the Company must, among otheigdiimeet certain
source-of-income and asset diversification requingts. As a RIC, the Company generally will not heovpay corporate-level
taxes on any income that it distributes in a tinmagnner to its stockholders.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd on the accrual basis of accounting in contgrwith accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica (“GAAP”).
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KCAP Financial, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continued)

The financial statements reflect all adjustmentshimormal and recurring which, in the opinion cimagement, are
necessary for the fair presentation of the Compargsults of operations and financial conditiontfa periods presented.
Furthermore, the preparation of the financial stegiets requires management to make significant agtgrand assumptions
including the fair value of investments that do have a readily available market value. Actual itsszould differ from those
estimates, and the differences could be material.

In accordance with Article 6 of Regulation S-X untiee Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Btesi Act”), and the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tlkeH&nge Act”), the Company does not consolidat&f@ar company
investments, including those in which it has a odghihg interest e.g., the Asset Manager Affiliatébe Asset Manager
Affiliates are subject to Accounting Standards @iodtion Topic 810, “Consolidation” and althouglet@ompany cannot
consolidate portfolio company investments, thiglgace impacts the required disclosures relatinbadsset Manager
Affiliates, as it requires the Asset Manager Aéfilis to consolidate their managed CLO Funds. Asuatrof the consolidation
of these CLO Funds into the Asset Manager Affisathe Asset Manager Affiliates qualify as a “sfgraint subsidiary” and, as
a result, the Company is required to include addél financial information regarding the Asset MgerAffiliates in its filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissi&EC"). The additional financial information regargithe Asset Manager
Affiliates do not directly impact the financial ap¢ions or results of the Company.

In addition, in accordance with Rules 3-09, Rulé84g) and 1-02(bb) of Regulation S-X promulgatedhsy SEC,
additional financial information with respect toeoof the CLO Funds in which the Company has ansitment, Katonah 2007-I
CLO Ltd. (“*Katonah 2007-1 CLO"), is required to beluded in the Company’s SEC filings.

The additional financial information regarding theset Manager Affiliates and Katonah 2007-1 CLO iettiately follow
the Company’s financial statements.

Investments

Investment transactions are recorded on the ajyidiceade date. Realized gains or losses are dietedrasing the specific
identification method.

Valuation of Portfolio InvestmentsThe Company’s Board of Directors is ultimatehdasolely responsible for making a
good faith determination of the fair value of polith investments on a quarterly basis. Debt andtegecurities for which
market quotations are readily available are gelyevalued at such market quotations. Debt and gaeturities that are not
publicly traded or whose market price is not readilailable are valued by the Board of Directorsdobhon detailed analyses
prepared by management, the Valuation CommittébeoBoard of Directors, and, in certain circumsemchird parties with
valuation expertise. Valuations are conducted bgagament on 100% of the investment portfolio atethe of each quarter.
The Company follows the provisions of ASC Fair \Measurements and Disclosure&&ir Value Measurements and
Disclosures’). This standard defines fair value, establishémmework for measuring fair value, and expandsldsures about
assets and liabilities measured at fair vakat Value Measurements and Disclosudegines “fair value” as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to tearssliability in an orderly transaction betweeanket participants at the
measurement date. Subsequent to the adoptiBaio¥alue Measurements and Disclosuréke FASB has issued various staff
positions clarifying the initial standard as notedow.

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance thaifieldiand required new disclosures about fair vaheasurements. The
clarifications and requirement to disclose the am®and reasons for significant transfers betwemrell and Level Il, as well
as significant transfers in and out of Level llitbé fair value hierarchy, were adopted by the Camypn the first quarter of
2010. Note 4 below reflects the amended disclomgairements. The new guidance also required tir@hpses, sales,
issuances and settlements be
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KCAP Financial, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continued)

presented gross in the Level Ill reconciliation #mat requirement was effective for fiscal yeargibring after December 15,
2010 and for interim periods within those years.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuregquires the disclosure in interim and annual pisriof the inputs and valuation
technigues used to measure fair value and a discustchanges in valuation techniques and relatpdts, if any, during the
period.

In 2012 and 2011, the Company engaged an indepewndkration firm to provide a third-party review ofir CLO fair
value model relative to its functionality, modepirts and calculations as a reasonable method ¢ondiee CLO fair values, in
the absence of Level 1 or Level 2 trading activitypbservable market inputs. The independent vialudirm concluded that
the Company’s CLO model appropriately factors Irtte# necessary inputs required to build a CLO tgaqeash flow model for
fair value purposes and that the inputs were bempgloyed correctly.

The Company has engaged an independent valuationidiprovide third party valuation consulting sees to the
Company’s Board of Directors. Each quarter, thepehdent valuation firm will perform third partylvations on the
Company’s investments on illiquid securities sutdt they are reviewed at least once during angili2 month period. Third
party valuations were performed on approximatelyd@%hvestments at fair value excluding our invesins in the Asset
Manager Affiliates and CLO Fund Securities as of@®uber 31, 2012. These third party valuation esémevere considered as
one of the relevant data inputs in the Companyterdg@nation of fair value. The Board of Directonsends to continue to
engage an independent valuation firm in the futanerovide certain valuation services, including teview of certain portfolio
assets, as part of the quarterly and annual yehx&nation process.

The Board of Directors may consider other methddatuation than those set forth above to deterrttieefair value of
Level lll investments as appropriate in conformitiyh GAAP. Due to the inherent uncertainty of detaring the fair value of
investments that do not have a readily availableketavalue, the fair value of the Company’s investits may differ materially
from the values that would have been used haddy mearket existed for such investments. Furtherh smvestments may be
generally subject to legal and other restrictionsasale or otherwise be less liquid than publicged securities. In addition,
changes in the market environment and other eveaysoccur over the life of the investments that rayse the value realized
on such investments to be different from the culyeassigned valuations.

The Company’s valuation methodology and procedaress follows:

1) Each portfolio company or investment is cro§enenced to an independent pricing service to deter if a current
market quote is available. The nature and quafiguch quote is reviewed to determine reliabilibg aelevance of the
guote. Factors considered in this determinatioludewhether the quote is from a transaction arlisoker quote, the
date and aging of such quote, whether the tramsaitiarmdength, whether it is of a liquidation or distreds®ture an
certain other factors judged to be relevant by rgameent within the framework of Fair Value Measurataeand
Disclosures.

2) If an investment does not have a market quatatioeither a broad market exchange or from arpexéent pricing
service, the investment is initially valued by thempany’s investment professionals responsibl¢i®mportfolio
investment in conjunction with the portfolio managmt team.

3) Preliminary valuation conclusions are discusaedidocumented by management.

4) Debt securities, equity securities, CLO Fundusigies and the Asset Manager Affiliates will bdested for review by an
independent valuation firm, which is engaged byGlenpany’s Board of Directors. Such independeniatidn firm
reviews management’s preliminary valuations andesakeir own independent valuation assessment.
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5) The Valuation Committee of the Board of Direstoeviews the portfolio valuations, as well asitiput and report of
such independent valuation firm, as applicable.

6) Upon approval of the investment valuations ke/\Maluation Committee of the Board of Directorg #udit Committee
of the Board of Directors reviews the results farlusion in the Company’s quarterly and annualrfaial statements, as
applicable.

7) The Board of Directors discusses the valuationsdateérmines in good faith that the fair valuesadteinvestment in tt
portfolio is reasonable based upon any applicatlependent pricing service, input of managemetitnates from
independent valuation firms (if any) and the recandations of the Valuation Committee of the BodrBioectors.

The majority of the Company'’s investment portfaiacomposed of debt and equity securities with umigontract terms
and conditions and/or complexity that requires laatgon of each individual investment that considewltiple levels of market
and asset specific inputs, including historical fov@casted financial and operational performarfdbeindividual investment,
projected cash flows, market multiples, comparafdeket transactions, the priority of the securitynpared with those of other
securities for such issuers, credit risk, interatts, and independent valuations and reviews.

Debt Securities To the extent that the Company’s investmenteachange traded and are priced or have suffipiecg
indications from normal course trading at or arothmvaluation date (financial reporting date),bspdcing will determine fair
value. Pricing service marks from third party prgiservices may be used as an indication of fdireyalepending on the
volume and reliability of the marks, sufficient aresonable correlation of bid and ask quotes, modt importantly, the level
of actual trading activity. Further, the Companyg baen unable to identify directly comparable miitkdices or other market
guidance that correlate directly to the types s&stments the Company owns. As a result, for mioiss assets, the Company
determines fair value using alternative method@sgising available market data, as adjusted, kectehe types of assets the
Company owns, their structure, qualitative and itratributes and other asset specific charactesist

The Company derives fair value for its illiquid @stments that do not have indicative fair valuesaipon active trades
primarily by using a present value technique thstalints the estimated contractual cash flowshfeninderlying assets with
discount rates imputed by broad market indicesdlzpreads and yields for comparable issuers rel&tithe subject assets (the
“Market Yield Approach”) and also considers recieain amendments or other activity specific to thigject asset. Discount
rates applied to estimated contractual cash flewvauf underlying asset vary by specific investmigmh,istry, priority and
nature of the debt security (such as the seniorigecurity interest of the debt security) andaagessed relative to two indices,
a leveraged loan index and a high-yield bond indéxe valuation date. The Company has identifiede two indices as
benchmarks for broad market information relateiistétoan and debt securities. Because the Compasybt identified any
market index that directly correlates to the load debt securities held by the Company and thezafees the two benchmark
indices, these market indices may require sigmfiealjustment to better correlate such market fdaiténe calculation of fair
value of the investment under the Market Yield Aggwh. Such adjustments require judgment and maydberial to the
calculation of fair value. Further adjustmentshe tliscount rate may be applied to reflect othaketaonditions or the
perceived credit risk of the borrower. When broaatket indices are used as part of the valuatiomauetiogy, their use is
subject to adjustment for many factors, includimignity, collateral used as security, structuref@enance and other
quantitative and qualitative attributes of the afgéng valued. The resulting present value deteaition is then weighted along
with any quotes from observable transactions anBdrfpricing quotes. If such quotes are indicatiffactual transactions with
reasonable trading volume at or near the valuataia that are not liquidation or distressed sadgatively more reliance will
be put on such quotes to determine fair valueudhgquotes are not indicative of market transastmmare insufficient as to
volume, reliability, consistency or other relevéattors, such quotes will be compared with otheanfalue
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indications and given relatively less weight basedheir relevancy. Other significant assumpti@ugh as coupon and
maturity, are asset-specific and are noted for @agkstment in the Schedules of Investments.

Equity Securities The Company’s equity securities in portfolio quamies for which there is no liquid public market a
carried at fair value based on the enterprise valdke portfolio company, which is determined gsWarious factors, including
EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depresiatind amortization) and cash flows from operatless capital
expenditures and other pertinent factors, sucle@nt offers to purchase a portfolio company’s sges or other liquidation
events. The determined fair values are generadlyodinted to account for restrictions on resaleraimdrity ownership
positions. The values of the Company’s equity séesrin public companies for which market quotati@re readily available
are based upon the closing public market pricetheibalance sheet date. Securities that carryicegstrictions on sale are
typically valued at a discount from the public metrikalue of the security.

The significant inputs used to determine the falue of equity securities include prices, earniig3,TDA and cash flows
after capital expenditures for similar peer complasand the investment entity itself. Equity sé®g are classified as Level
I, as described in Note 4 below, when therenstied activity or less transparency around inpathée valuation given the lack
of information related to such equity investmergktin nonpublic companies. Significant assumptiolnserved for
comparable companies are applied to relevant finhdata for the specific investment. Such assuomgtisuch as model
discount rates or price/earnings multiples, varyheyspecific investment, equity position and induand incorporate
adjustments for risk premiums, liquidity and comypapecific attributes. Such adjustments requirginent and may be
material to the calculation of fair value.

Asset Manager Affiliatelhe Company’s investments in its wholly-owned assa@hagement companies, the Asset Manager
Affiliates, are carried at fair value, which is dehined after taking into consideration a percem@igassets under management
and a discounted cash flow model incorporatingedéfit levels of discount rates depending on theattby of fees earned
(including the likelihood of realization of seni@ybordinate and incentive fees) and prospectivéeted performance. Such
valuation includes an analysis of comparable assgtagement companies. The Asset Manager Affiliatelassified as a Level
Il investment (as described below). Any changeatue from period to period is recognized as nange in unrealized
appreciation or depreciation.

CLO Fund SecuritiesThe Company typically makes a minority investmeanthie most junior class of securities of CLO
Funds raised and managed by the Asset Manageratdiland may selectively invest in securitiesagdoy funds managed by
other asset management companies (collectively “Eu@d securities”). The Company’s CLO Fund se@sitelate
exclusively to credit instruments issued by corgiors.

The Company’s investments in CLO Fund securitiescarried at fair value, which is based eitheripthé present value of
the net expected cash inflows for interest incom@incipal repayments from underlying assetsaasth outflows for interest
expense, debt paydown and other fund costs foCt® Funds that are approaching or past the enldedf teinvestment period
and therefore are selling assets and/or usingipahepayments to pay down CLO Fund debt (or éiyjin to do so shortly),
and for which there continue to be net cash distidins to the class of securities owned by the Gomgpor (ii) a discounted
cash flow model for more recent CLO Funds thatagl prepayment and loss assumptions based omitaestexperience and
projected performance, economic factors, the clariatics of the underlying cash flow and compagapélds for similar
securities or preferred shares to those in whiehdbmpany has invested or (iii) indicative pricesvided by the underwriters
or brokers who arrange CLO Funds. The Company rézeg unrealized appreciation or depreciation elGbmpany’s
investments in CLO Fund securities as comparalglelyiin the market change and/or based on changext asset values or
estimated cash flows resulting from changes ingyegent or loss assumptions in the underlying calddtpool. As each
investment in CLO Fund securities ages, the expgeameount of losses and the expected timing of neitiog of such losses in
the underlying collateral pool are updated and¢vised cash flows are used in
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determining the fair value of the CLO Fund investindhe Company determines the fair value of itegtments in CLO Fund
securities on an individual security-by-securitgisa

Due to the individual attributes of each CLO Furdwsity, they are classified as a Level Il investrunless specific
trading activity can be identified at or near tladuation date. When available, observable marKetnmation will be identified,
evaluated and weighted accordingly in the appleatif such data to the present value models anddhie determination.
Significant assumptions to the present value catmns include default rates, recovery rates, pneygat rates,
investment/reinvestment rates and spreads anddbeutht rate by which to value the resulting unded cash flows. Such
assumptions can vary significantly, depending orketadata sources which often vary in depth andllefanalysis,
understanding of the CLO market, detailed or brdaatacterization of the CLO market and the appboadf such data to an
appropriate framework for analysis. The applicatbulata points are based on the specific attribateeach individual CLO
Fund security’s underlying assets, historic, cureend prospective performance, vintage, and othantitative and qualitative
factors that would be evaluated by market partitiparhe Company evaluates the source of markatfdateliability as an
indicative market input, consistency amongst otheuts and results and also the context in whiaih slata is presented.

For bond rated tranches of CLO Fund securitiess@tabove the junior class) without transactiorsufaport a fair value for
the specific CLO Fund and tranche, fair value isdobon discounting estimated bond payments atrdumarket yields, which
may reflect the adjusted yield on the leveraged iadex for similarly rated tranches, as well a@sgs for similar tranches for
other CLO Funds and also other factors such asatige prices provided by underwriters or brokehovarrange CLO Funds,
and the default and recovery rates of underlyirsgtsin the CLO Fund, as may be applicable. Suatehrassumptions may
vary and incorporate adjustments for risk premiamd CLO Fund specific attributes. Such adjustmesysire judgment and
may be material to the calculation of fair value.

Cash. The Company places its cash with financial tnstins and, at times, cash held in checking acsoomay exceed the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured limit

Time Deposit and Money Market AccountsTime deposit primarily represents investmentsash held in a demand
deposit account. Money market accounts primarilyesent short term interest-bearing deposit acsanntuding an account
that contains restricted cash held for employeealfle spending accounts.

Interest Income. Interest income, including the amortization oémium and accretion of discount, is recorded @n th
accrual basis to the extent that such amountsx@ected to be collected. The Company generallygslacloan or security on
non-accrual status and ceases recognizing caskshtacome on such loan or security when a loaeourity becomes 90 days
or more past due or if the Company otherwise do¢expect the debtor to be able to service its dbligations. Non-accrual
loans remain in such status until the borrowerdeamonstrated the ability and intent to pay contraichkmounts due or such
loans become current. As of December 31, 2012,ifisieers representing less than 1% of total investsat fair value were
considered in default.

Dividends from Asset Manager Affiliates.The Company records dividend income from its Adé&nager Affiliates on the
declaration date, which represents the ex-dividtatd.

Dividend Income from CLO Fund Securities The Company generates dividend income fromitestments in the most
junior class of securities of CLO Funds (typicalheferred shares or subordinated securities) managéhe Asset Manager
Affiliates and selective investments in securitesied by funds managed by other asset manageorapaoies. The
Company’s CLO Fund junior class securities are miibhated to senior bond holders who typically reee fixed rate of return
on their investment. The CLO Funds are leveragaddwand any excess cash flow or “excess spreatditést earned by the
underlying securities in the fund less paymentsertadsenior bond holders and less fund expensemandgement fees) is
paid to the holders of the CLO Fund's subordinateclrities or preferred shares. The
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Company makes estimated interim accruals of sudbetid income based on recent historical distrdngiand CLO Fund
performance and adjusts such accruals on a quab@sls to reflect actual distributions.

For non-junior class CLO Fund securities, sucthasdompany’s investment in the Class B-2L NotethefKatonah 2007-
CLO, interest is earned at a fixed spread reldtivihe LIBOR index.

Capital Structuring Service Fees The Company may earn ancillary structuring atmeiofees related to the origination,
investment, disposition or liquidation of debt andestment securities. Generally, the Company eeipitalize loan origination
fees, then amortize these fees into interest inamvee the term of the loan using the effectiveriesérate method, recognizes
prepayment and liquidation fees upon receipt angtegtructuring fees as earned, which generalbuos when an investment
transaction closes.

Debt Issuance Costs Debt issuance costs represent fees and otheat diwsts incurred in connection with the Company’s
borrowings. These amounts are capitalized and &@edrtatably over the contractual term of the bwing. During March
2011, the Company issued $60 million of ConvertiBdmior Notes (the “Convertible Senior Notes”) amlrred debt issuance
costs of approximately $2.4 million which are beargortized over a five-year period. During Octob@t2, the Company
issued $41.4 million of 7.375% Senior Notes due2@he “Senior Notes”) and incurred debt issuarastscof approximately
$1.5 million, which are being amortized over a seyear period. At December 31, 2012, there wasnamortized debt
issuance cost of approximately $3.0 million inclddie other assets in the accompanying balance .sheetrtization expense
for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 p@eximately $605,000 and $376,000, respectivediy, ia included in
interest and amortization of debt issuance costh@iBtatement of Operations.

Expenses The Company is internally managed and expensss,cas incurred, with regard to the running ©bjperations.
Primary operating expenses include employee salarid benefits, the costs of identifying, evalugtimegotiating, closing,
monitoring and servicing the Company’s investmentd related overhead charges and expenses, ingltatital expense, and
any interest expense incurred in connection witlidwangs. The Company and the Asset Manager Afélasshare office space
and certain other operating expenses. The Compasgiitered into an Overhead Allocation Agreemettt thie Asset Manager
Affiliates which provides for the sharing of suctpenses based on an equal sharing of office lezste and the ratable usage
of other shared resources.

Dividends. Dividends and distributions to common stockhoddare recorded on the ex-dividend date. The antouve
paid out as a dividend is determined by the Boafdiectors each quarter and is generally basedh tipe distributable taxable
income estimated by management for the period aad y

The Company has adopted a dividend reinvestmentthh provides for reinvestment of its distribasoon behalf of its
stockholders, unless a stockholder “opts out” efftlan to receive cash in lieu of having their cdisfidends automatically
reinvested in additional shares of the Companytaroon stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB Accounting StadddJpdate (*“ASU”) 2011-04, Fair Value Measurem@mpic
820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Mearsent and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAPIatainal
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The amenit®ién this ASU generally represent clarificatiafisSTopic 820, but also
include some instances where a particular prin@plequirement for measuring fair value or distiginformation about fair
value measurements has changed. This ASU resudtsrimon principles and requirements for measusngvilue and for
disclosing information about fair value measurera@miaccordance with U.S. GAAP and IFRS. The ameamdsnin this ASU
were to be applied prospectively and are effealiweéng interim and annual periods beginning aftec&nber 15, 2011. The
adoption of this ASU did not have a material impatthe Company’s operating results, financial fp@sior cash flows.
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The following information sets forth the computatiof basic and diluted net increase (decreasdpakkolders’ equity per
share for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20112010:

For the Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Net increase (decrease) in net assets from opes: $26,125,77 $ 7,649,54.  $(14,288,67)
Net decrease in net assets allocated to unvestee

awards (236,579 (102,096 —
Add: Interest on Senior Convertible Notes 5,250,001 — —
Add: Amortization of Capitalized Costs on Senior

Convertible Notes 457,47! — —
Net increase (decrease) in net assets availalolentonon

stockholders 31,596,67 7,547,44: (14,288,67)
Weighted average number of common shares outs@gnd

for basic shares computation 26,011,51 22,868,64 22,598,18
Effect of dilutive securities — stock options 14,24¢ 12,02¢ —
Effect of dilutive Senior Convertible Notes 7,353,82! — —
Weighted average number of common and common st

equivalent shares outstanding for diluted shares

computation 33,379,59 22,880,67 22,598,18
Net increase (decrease) in net assets per basiman

shares:
Net increase in net assets from operat 1.0C 0.3¢ (0.63)
Net increase in net assets per diluted shi
Net increase in net assets from operat 0.9t 0.3: (0.63)

Share-based awards that contain nonforfeitablasighdividends or dividend equivalents, whethed jpa unpaid, are
participating securities and included in the corapiah of both basic and diluted earnings per sHarants of restricted stock
awards to our employees and directors are consigedicipating securities when there are earnindise period and the
earnings per share calculations include outstangimvgsted restricted stock awards in the basichteijaverage shares
outstanding calculation.

There were 60,000 options to purchase shares ainoonstock for the year ended December 31, 2012tHeoyear ended
December 31, 2012, options to purchase 14,248 slohmmmon stock were included in the computatibdiluted earnings
per share. For the year ended December 31, 20fiansyo purchase 12,026 shares of common stock imeluded in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

The Company’s Convertible Senior Notes are includetie computation of the diluted net increasdesrease in net assets
resulting from operations per share in accordante ASC 261-10-45-40-b by application of the “ifrocerted method.” Under
the if-converted method, interest charges applectibthe convertible debt for the period are adddtie reported net increase
or decrease in net assets resulting from operatindshe full amount of shares (pro-rata if nostartding for the full period)
that would be issued are added to weighted avdrasgje shares. Convertible debt is considered aotisck only when its
interest per share upon conversion exceeds the bekincrease or decrease in net assets resfrtiimgoperations per share.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the effatteofonvertible debt is dilutive.

The if-converted method of computing the dilutifieets on convertible debt assumes a conversion gvibe contracted
conversion price exceeds the market value of theesh The current conversion price of the convers8knior is approximately
122.5638 shares of our common stock per $1,00@ipahamount of the Convertible Senior Notes, eglgmt to a conversion



price of approximately $8.159 per share of our camm
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stock. Upon conversion, the Company would issuduth@mount of common stock upon conversion arilgé¢he full amount
of debt outstanding.

On February 14, 2013, the Company completed a poffiering of 5,232,500 shares of common stockciwhincluded the
underwriters’ full exercise of their option to phese up to 682,500 shares of common stock, ate pfi$9.75 per share,
raising approximately $51.0 million in gross prodgeln conjunction with this offering, the Compaaigo sold 200,000 shares
of common stock to a member of its Board of Direst®ean C. Kehler, at a price of $9.31125 pereshaising approximately
$1.9 million in gross proceeds. The change in taler of common shares outstanding at Decemb&(P, as if this
acquisition had closed prior to year end would énarease of 5,432,500 common shares to a totalamding share amount of
31,902,908.

4. INVESTMENTS

The Company invests in senior secured loans andana® debt and, to a lesser extent, equity cagiitaliddle market
companies in a variety of industries. The Compagryegally targets companies that generate posiéish tows because the
Company looks to cash flows as the primary souscaédrvicing debt. However, the Company may iniresther companies if
it is presented with attractive opportunities.

The following table shows the Company’s portfolipdecurity type at December 31, 2012 and Decembe?(®L1:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Security Type Cost Fair Value % () Cost Fair Value % @
Time Deposit $ 194283 $ 1,942,83 1% $ 229,15. $ 229,15: —%
Money Market Accour 30,543,822 30,543,82 15 31,622,13 31,622,13 18
Senior Secured Loan 67,874,56 60,258,88 29 54,045,18 45,259,32 25
Junior Secured Loan 49,646,27 33,486,95 17 58,936,72 47,300,17 26
Mezzanine Investmen — — — 10,931,42 11,588,11 6
First Lien Bond 2,928,76: 3,000,001 1 — — —
Senior Subordinated

Bond 2,729,08 2,735,88 1 9,997,89 10,125,89 6
Senior Unsecured Bol 10,798,46 11,185,00 5 — — —
CLO Fund Securities 90,146,41 83,257,50 40 66,528,48 48,438,31 27
Equity Securities 18,375,58 8,020,711 4 16,559,61 6,040,89! 3
Preferred 400,00( 371,16( — 400,00( 400,00( —
Asset Manager

Affiliates 83,161,52 77,242,00 37 44,338,30 40,814,00 23
Total $358,547,33 $312,044,76 15(% $293,588,91 $241,818,00 134%

(1) Calculated as a percentage of net asset value.
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The industry concentrations, based on the fairevalithe Company’s investment portfolio as of Deben81, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, were as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Industry Classification Cost Fair Value % (M Cost Fair Value % (@)
Aerospace and Defense $ 5,278,891 $ 3,874,74. 2% $ 19,683,82 $ 19,439,23 1C%

Asset Management Compar

@ 83,161,52 77,242,00 37 44,338,30 40,814,00 23
Automobile 4,945,69! 5,011,60: 2 — — —
Beverage, Food and Tobacc 18,112,77 18,285,42 9 9,892,27. 9,796,56! 5
Broadcasting and

Entertainment 1,978,84 1,990,931 1 — — —
Buildings and Real Estate 18,535,51 455,52: — 18,591,67 662,44: —
Cargo Transport — — — 4,374,35! 4,374,35. 2
Chemicals, Plastics and

Rubber 2,954,77. 2,950,57 1 4,809,45! 4,614,82 3
CLO Fund Securities 90,146,41 83,257,50 40 66,528,48 48,438,31 27
Containers, Packaging and

Glass 1,949,23 1,971,89: 1 — — —
Diversified/Conglomerate

Manufacturing — — — 6,905,44 7,000,00! 4
Diversified/Conglomerate

Service 5,520,21 3,536,42! 2 2,870,64, 372,59¢ —
Electronics 6,137,59. 6,252,38! 3 8,831,441 9,026,18! 5
Finance 4,748,76 4,891,711 2 — — —

Healthcare, Education and
Childcare 15,981,82 4,618,52. 2 20,956,58 19,523,82. 11

Home and Office Furnishing
Housewares, and Durable
Consumer Products 10,820,46 11,613,62 5 21,683,11 20,604,85 11

Insurance 6,970,30 6,433,13 3 4,919,52. 3,753,001 2

Leisure, Amusement, Motior
Pictures, Entertainment 2,491,00 2,053,48. 1 2,290,89; 2,084,01; 1

Machinery (Non-Agriculture,
Non-Construction, Non-

Electronic) 11,408,09 11,581,24 6 3,483,17. 3,891,901 2
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-

Precious Metals 773,71 264,86 — 797,09: 438,911 —
Oil and Gas 11,692,91 11,692,00 6 — — —

Personal and Non Durable
Consumer Products (Mfg.

Only) 5,000,00! 3,977,10! 2 5,000,00! 3,250,00! 2
Personal, Food and

Miscellaneous Services 3,574,42 3,640,83! 2 2,872,501 2,827,35! 2
Personal Transportation 2,012,68! 2,005, 35. 1 2,993,009: 2,983,64: 2

Printing and Publishing 2,961,39! 3,231,31. 2 1,044,53 1,223,74 1



Telecommunications 2,952,65. 2,783,19! 1 2,986,15. 2,776,95I 2
Time Deposit and Money

Market Accounts 32,486,65 32,486,65 16 31,851,28 31,851,28 18
Utilities 169,28( 169,95t — 4,000,00t 137,50( —
Total $ 358,547,33 $ 312,044,76 15(% $ 293,588,91 $ 241,818,00 134%

(1) Calculated as a percentage of net asset value.

(2) Represents the Asset Manager Affiliates.

F-29




TABLE OF CONTENTS

KCAP Financial, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4. INVESTMENTS - (continued)

The Company may invest up to 30% of the investrperifolio in opportunistic investments in high-yddbonds, debt and
equity securities of CLO Funds, and distressed debtjuity securities of public companies. The Campexpects that these
public companies generally will have debt thatas4investment grade. The Company also may invesélrt of middle market
companies located outside of the United States.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, appasely 27% and 21% of the Company’s investment&i@eign
assets (including the Company’s investments in Gudds, which are typically domiciled outside th&land represented
approximately 27% and 19% of its portfolio on suleltes), respectively.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, thep@owis ten largest portfolio companies represeapgaoximately
62% and 62%, respectively, of the total fair vadfiéts investments. The Company’s largest investitbie Asset Manager
Affiliates which are its wholly-owned asset manaag#iliates, represented 25% and 17% of the t@@l\falue of the
Company’s investments at December 31, 2012 andrbleee31, 2011, respectively. Excluding the Assendiger Affiliates
and CLO Fund securities, the Company’s ten largesfolio companies represented approximately 1##h26% of the total
fair value of the Company’s investments at Decen3ie2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Investment in CLO Fund Securities

The Company typically makes a minority investmenthie most junior class of securities of CLO Fu(tgpically preferred
shares or subordinated securities) managed by dketManager Affiliates and may selectively invastecurities issued by
funds managed by other asset management compBnédéstred shares or subordinated securities idsy€l O Funds are
entitled to recurring dividend distributions whighnerally equal the net remaining cash flow ofghgments made by the
underlying CLO Fund’s securities less contractlments to senior bond holders and CLO Fund exge@eO Funds
managed by the Asset Manager Affiliates (“CLO fusetturities managed by affiliates”) invest primaiilybroadly syndicated
non-investment grade loans, high-yield bonds ahdratredit instruments of corporate issuers. Ttéetying assets in each of
the CLO Funds in which the Company has an investiar@ngenerally diversified secured or unsecuregdarate debt. The
CLO Funds are leveraged funds and any excess leagloff “excess spread” (interest earned by the tyitg securities in the
fund less payments made to senior bond holderd, éapenses and management fees) is paid to therkalfithe CLO Fund'’s
subordinated securities or preferred shares.

The subordinated securities and preferred shareiges are considered equity positions in the Gluhds and, as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Contrahapproximately $83 million and $48 millionspectively, of such
CLO equity investments at fair value. The cost $asithe Company’s investment in CLO Fund equitiusities as of
December 31, 2012 was approximately $90 million aggregate unrealized depreciation on the CLO Bewdrities totaled
approximately $7 million. The cost basis of the @amy’s investment in CLO Fund equity securitie®fBecember 31, 2011,
was approximately $67 million and aggregate urnzedlidepreciation on the CLO Fund securities totafgatoximately $18
million.

In December, 2012 the Company purchased $4.5 miflar value of the class F Notes and $8.9 millianyalue of the
Subordinated Notes of Catamaran 2012-1 CLO (“Catam2012-1") managed by Trimaran Advisors. The Canypourchased
the class F and subordinate notes for 84% and XidQbe par value, respectively.

All CLO Funds managed by the Asset Manager Affiigaaire currently making quarterly dividend disttids to the
Company and are paying all senior and subordinateagement fees to the Asset Manager
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Affiliates. With the exception of the Katonah ILitd. CLO Fund and the Katonah V, Ltd. CLO Fund,thitd-party managed
CLO Funds held as investments are making quartirigend distributions to the Company.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows the provisions ehir Value Measurements and Disclosureghich among other matters, requires
enhanced disclosures about investments that arsureshand reported at fair value. This standarihedefair value and
establishes a hierarchal disclosure framework whitdritizes and ranks the level of market pricsetvability used in
measuring investments at fair value and expandasodisgres about assets and liabilities measureairatdlue Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosur@sfines “fair value” as the price that would beeiged to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. This fairevekfinition focuses on an
exit price in the principal, or most advantageowskat, and prioritizes, within a measurement aof ¥aiue, the use of market-
based inputs (which may be weighted or adjusteddiievance, reliability and specific attributesatale to the subject
investment) over entity-specific inputs. Marketggrobservability is affected by a number of facgtorsluding the type of
investment and the characteristics specific tdrilestment. Investments with readily available\aectjuoted prices or for which
fair value can be measured from actively quotedgsrgenerally will have a higher degree of markieepbservability and a
lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fhilev&ubsequent to the adoptiorFair Value Measurements and
Disclosures the FASB has issued various staff positions fyfieng the initial standard (see Note 2. “Signifit@ccounting
Policies — Investments”).

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuestablishes the following three-level hierarchysdshupon the transparency of
inputs to the fair value measurement of an asskdhility as of the measurement date:

Level | — Unadjusted quoted prices are availabladtive markets for identical investments as ofrdporting date. The
type of investments included in Level | includedi equities and listed securities. As requiredraly Value Measurements
and Disclosures the Company does not adjust the quoted pricéhse investments, even in situations where thep@aasn
holds a large position and a sale could reasoraffeygt the quoted price.

Level Il — Pricing inputs are other than quotedes in active markets, which are either directlyndirectly
observable as of the reporting date. Such inpugsbeajuoted prices for similar assets or liab#itiguoted markets that are
not active, or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufustantially the full
character of the financial instrument, or inputstthre derived principally from, or corroborated blgservable market
information. Investments which are generally inedadn this category include illiquid debt secustend less liquid,
privately held or restricted equity securitiesddrich some level of recent trading activity hasrbebserved.

Level lll — Pricing inputs are unobservable for theestment and includes situations where theligtles, if any, market
activity for the investment. The inputs may be loage the Company’s own assumptions about how madsicipants
would price the asset or liability or may use LeNéhputs, as adjusted, to reflect specific invesnt attributes relative to a
broader market assumption. These inputs into ttermiénation of fair value may require significananagement judgment
or estimation. Even if observable market data tanparable performance or valuation measures (eggmiultiples,
discount rates, other financial/valuation ratids,)eare available, such investments are groupéaeal Ill if any significant
data point that is not also market observable geicompany earnings, cash flows, etc.) is usdkivaluation
methodology.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measuredhievmay fall into different levels of the fair ual hierarchy. In such cases,
an investment’s level within the fair value hietayds based on the lowest level of input that gm#icant to the fair value
measurement. The Company’s assessment of theisagrié of a
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particular input to the fair value measurementsrentirety requires judgment, and the Companyidens factors specific to
the investment. Substantially all of the Comparigigestments are classified as Level lll. The Conypaweluates the source of
inputs, including any markets in which its invesiitseare trading, in determining fair value. Inpiltat are backed by actual
transactions, those that are highly correlateti¢cspecific investment being valued and those ddrikom reliable or
knowledgeable sources will tend to have a higheghting in determining fair value. Ongoing revieimgthe Company’s
investment analysts, Chief Investment Officer, \atilon Committee and independent valuation firmeii§aged) are based on
an assessment of each underlying investment, literdlend prospective operating and financial perémce, consideration of
financing and sale transactions with third parteegected cash flows and market-based informaimaiyding comparable
transactions, performance factors, and other invexst or industry specific market data, among otaetors.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofdatments by the abo¥air Value Measurements and Disclosufais
value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 20120wember 31, 2011, respectively:

As of December, 31 2012

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
Time deposit and money market acco  $ — $ 32,486,65 $ — $ 32,486,65
Debt securities — 59,172,47 51,865,40 111,037,88
CLO fund securities — — 83,257,50 83,257,50
Equity securities — — 8,020,711 8,020,711
Asset manager affiliates — — 77,242,00 77,242,000
Total — 91,659,13 220,385,62 312,044,76

As of December, 31 2011

Level | Level Il Level Il Total
Time deposit and money market acco $ — $ 3185128 % — $ 31,851,28
Debt securities — 31,578,83 83,094,67 114,673,50
CLO fund securities — — 48,438,31 48,438,31
Equity securities — — 6,040,89! 6,040,89!
Asset manager affiliates — — 40,814,00 40,814,00
Total — 63,430,11 178,387,88 241,818,00

As a BDC, it is required that the Company inveghgrily in the debt and equity of non-public comjganfor which there is
little, if any, market-observable information. Asesult, a significant portion of the Company’séstments at any given time
will most likely be deemed Level Il investmenthéflCompany believes that investments classifidceasl 1l for Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosuresve a further hierarchal framework which priogszand ranks such valuations based on the
degree of independent and observable inputs, dldjgadf data and models and the level of judgmemjuired to adjust
comparable data. The hierarchy of such methoddagyie presented in the above table and discussmd lmedescending rank.

Investment values derived by a third party pricéegvice are generally deemed to be Level Il val&es those that have
observable trades, we consider them to be Level Il.

The Company derives fair value for its illiquid @stments that do not have indicative fair valueseaipon active trades
primarily by using the Market Yield Approach and@konsiders recent loan amendments or other tycspecific to the
subject asset. Discount rates applied to estimaiattactual cash flows for an underlying asset vgrgpecific investment,
industry, priority and nature of the debt secuiych as the
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seniority or security interest of the debt sec)rétyd are assessed relative to two indices, adgeerloan index and a high-yield
bond index, at the valuation date. The Companyideattified these two indices as benchmarks for ¢hroarket information
related to its loan and debt investments. Becdws€ompany has not identified any market index divatctly correlates to the
loan and debt investments held by the Company lzer@fiore uses the two benchmark indices, theseaniadices may require
significant adjustment to better correlate suchketadata for the calculation of fair value of theestment under the Market
Yield Approach. Such adjustments require judgmentraay be material to the calculation of fair valbarther adjustments to
the discount rate may be applied to reflect otharket conditions or the perceived credit risk & Borrower. When broad
market indices are used as part of the valuatiaimodelogy, their use is subject to adjustment fangnfactors, including
priority, collateral used as security, structurerfprmance and other quantitative and qualitatttibates of the asset being
valued. The resulting present value determinasahén weighted along with any quotes from obsdevitbnsactions and
broker/pricing quotes. If such quotes are indicativ actual transactions with reasonable tradirignae at or near the valuation
date that are not liquidation or distressed sadatively more reliance will be put on such qudtesetermine fair value. If
such quotes are not indicative of market transastar are insufficient as to volume, reliabilitpnsistency or other relevant
factors, such quotes will be compared with othenfalue indications and given relatively less wdiased on their relevancy.
The appropriateness of specific valuation methadistachniques may change as market conditions aithble data change.

In 2012 and 2011, the Company engaged an indepewvaleation firm, to provide a third-party reviewaur CLO fair
value model relative to its functionality, modepiris and calculations as a reasonable method ¢ondiee CLO fair values, in
the absence of Level | or Level |l trading activitiyobservable market inputs. The independent tialuéirm concluded that
the Company’s CLO model appropriately factors Irtted necessary inputs required to build a CLO tgaqeash flow for fair
value purposes and that the inputs were being gragloorrectly.

The Company has engaged an independent valuatioridiprovide third party valuation consulting sees to the
Company’s Board of Directors. Each quarter, thepehdent valuation firm will perform third partylvations on the
Company’s investments on illiquid securities sutdt they are reviewed at least once during anili2 month period. These
third party valuation estimates were consideredresof the relevant data inputs in the Companyterd@nation of fair value.
The Board of Directors intends to continue to ermgag independent valuation firm in the future tovide certain valuation
services, including the review of certain portfadissets, as part of the quarterly and annual yehx-guation process.

Values derived for debt and equity securities ugialglic/private company comparables generallyagilinarket-observable
data from such comparables and specific, non-palnlicnon-observable financial measures (such asgaror cash flows) for
the private, underlying company/issuer. Such noseolable company/issuer data is typically provided monthly basis, is
certified as correct by the management of the cowfsuer and/or audited by an independent acaogifiim on an annual
basis. Since such private company/issuer datatiputiicly available it is not deemed market-obsdate data and, as a result,
such investment values are grouped as Level IHtass

Values derived for the Asset Manager Affiliatesngspublic/private company comparables generallizatmarket-
observable data from such comparables and speuificpublic and non-observable financial measwsesh as assets under
management, historical and prospective earningghtoAsset Manager Affiliates. The Company recagsithat comparable
asset managers may not be fully comparable to fsetManager Affiliates and typically identifiesaage of performance
measures and/or adjustments within the comparaigalation with which to determine value. Since angh ranges and
adjustments are entity specific they are not carsidl market-observable data and thus require a LUégeouping. llliquid
investments that have values derived through theotidiscounted cash flow models and residual priser value models are
grouped as Level lll assets.
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The changes in investments measured at fair valueltiich the Company has used unobservable inputstermine fair
value are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

CLO Fund Equity Asset Manager
Debt Securities Securities Securities Affiliates Total

Balance, December 31, 2011 $83,094,67 $48,438,31 $ 6,040,89' $40,814,00 $178,387,88
Transfers out of Level IV) (5,611,52) — — — (5,611,52)
Transfers into Level 11f2) 5,978,69 — — — 7,601,12.
Net accretion of discoul 96,27¢ 1,137,34. — — 1,240,01!
Purchases 24,076,06.  24,715,50 1,815,971 13,263,22 63,870,76
Sales (34,476,30) (2,234,91) — —  (36,711,22)
Total realized gain included

in earnings 467,32( — — — 467,32(
Total unrealized gain (loss) include:

in earnings (21,759,79) 11,201,26 163,84: (2,395,22) (14,418,74)
Issuance of Common Stock — — — 25,560,00 25,560,00

Balance, December 31, 2012 $51,865,40 $83,257,50 $ 8,020,71 $77,242,00 $220,385,62

Changes in unrealized gains (losse:
included in earnings related to
investments still held at
reporting date $ (8,246,69) 11,908,90 163,84. (2,880,20) 945,85:

(1) Transfers out of Level Ill represent a transfe$5,611,522 relating to debt securities for vahicicing inputs, other than
their quoted prices in active markets were obsdevab of Dec 31, 2012.

(2) Transfers into Level Ill represent a transfe$9,978,696 relating to debt securities for whickeing inputs, other than their
quoted prices in active markets were unobservabtd Bec 31, 2012.

Year Ended December 31, 2011

CLO Fund Equity Asset Manager
Debt Securities Securities Securities Affiliates Total

Balance, December 31, 2010 $91,042,92 $53,031,00 $4,688,83. $41,493,00 $190,255,76
Transfers out of Level 11(! (1,233,53) — — — —
Net accretion of discoul 146,18: 79,60¢ — — 235,78
Purchases 49,156,79 — 3,218,15. (194,02  84,840,04
Sales (61,555,44) (1,935,00i) (141,769 —  (59,021,53)
Total realized gain (loss) included i

earnings 5,537,74  (2,737,29) (1,724,31) (484,97)) (8,369,65)

Balance, December 31, 2011 $83,094,67 $48,438,31 $6,040,89' $40,814,00 $178,387,88

Changes in unrealized gains (losse
included in earnings related to



(1) There were no transfers in for 2011.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s Level llitfadio investments were valued by a third partycjimg service for
which the prices are not adjusted and for whicluis@re observable or can be corroborated by oliskervnarket data for
substantially the full character of the financiatrument, or
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inputs that are derived principally from, or coroosited by, observable market information. Thevaiue of the Company’s
Level Il portfolio investments was $91,659,134 &®ecember 31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s Level llitfmlio investments had the following valuation ketues and
significant inputs:

Type Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Debt Securities $6,156,734 Enterprise Value Average EBITDA 3.7x - 8.8x
Multiple
Weighted Avg Cost 10.7% - 12.0%
of Capital
$44,819,32 Income Approach Market Yield 4.5% - 21.8%
$12,598,44: Market Quote Third Party Bid 1.00 - 100.4
Equity Securities $8,020,716 Enterprise Value Average EBITDA 3.9x - 7.1x
Multiple
Weighted Avg Cost 9.6% - 14.8%
of Capital

CLO Fund Securities  $83,257,50° Discounted Cash Flo 7.5% - 14%

1.00% - 2%

Discount Rate
Probability of Default

Asset Manager Affiliat $77,242,00(

Discounted Cash

Loss Severity
Recovery Rate
Prepayment Rate

Discount Rate

30% - 40%

60% - 70%
25%

1.7% - 13.25%

Flow (weighted
average 8.85%

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s debt secsiiitidude the
comparable yields of similar investments in simitadustries, effective discount rates, average EB{Tnultiples, and
weighted average cost of capital. Significant iases or decreases in such comparable yields wesidt in a significantly
lower or higher fair value measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevaiue measurement of the Company’s equity seéesrinclude the
EBITDA multiple of similar investments in similandustries and the weighted average cost of cafitghificant increases or
decreases in such inputs would result in a sigaifily lower or higher fair value measurement.

Significant unobservable inputs used in the faluganeasurement of the Company’s CLO Fund secsiiitiddude default
rates, recovery rates, prepayment rates, and spegatithe discount rate by which to value the tieguunderlying cash flows.
Such assumptions can vary significantly, dependimgnarket data sources which often vary in depthlavel of analysis,
understanding of the CLO market, detailed or brdaatacterization of the CLO market and the appboadf such data to an
appropriate framework for analysis. The applicatbata points are based on the specific attribateeach individual CLO
Fund security’s underlying assets, historic, cureend prospective performance, vintage, and othantitative and qualitative
factors that would be evaluated by market partitiparhe Company evaluates the source of markatfdateliability as an
indicative market input, consistency amongst otheuts and results and also the context in whiaih slata is presented.
Significant increases or decreases in probabifigedault and loss severity inputs in isolation Webresult in a significantly
lower or higher fair value measurement. In generghange in the assumption of the probabilityefadit is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the assumption ulgdhe loss severity in an event of default. $igant increases or decreases
in the discount rate in isolation would result isignificantly lower or higher fair value measureme
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The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Asset Manager Affilisgahe discount rate
used to present value prospective cash flows. Bobise revenues are generally based on a fixedeptage of the par value of
CLO Fund assets under management and are recurniragure for the term of the CLO Fund so longhesAsset Manager
Affiliates manage the fund. As a result, the anmiahagement fees earned by the Asset Manageraiédfiliare not subject to
market value fluctuations in the underlying coltateThe discounted cash flow model incorporatéeint levels of discount
rates depending on the hierarchy of fees earnetiimg the likelihood of realization of senior gudinate and incentive fees)
and prospective modeled performance. Significazreiases or decreases in such discount rate wautt ne a significantly
lower or higher fair value measurement.

5. ASSET MANAGERS AFFILIATES
Wholly-Owned Asset Managers

The Asset Manager Affiliates are wholly-owned politi companies. The Asset Manager Affiliates man@g® Funds
primarily for third party investors that investtinoadly syndicated loans, high yield bonds androthedit instruments issued by
corporations. At December 31, 2012, the Asset Manaffiliates had approximately $3.6 billion of paalue of assets under
management, and the Company’s 100% equity inteiresiie Asset Manager Affiliates were valued atragpnately $77
million.

As a manager of the CLO Funds, the Asset Manag@iafés receive contractual and recurring managerfees and may
receive a one-time structuring fee from the CLOd&Jfor their management and advisory services.afimelal fees which the
Asset Manager Affiliates receive are generally dase a fixed percentage of assets under managdatgyr value and not
subject to changes in market value), and the Adsstager Affiliates generate annual operating incewpgal to the amount by
which their fee income exceeds their operating agps. The annual management fees the Asset MaAfiiljates receive
have two components-a senior management fee ambadénated management fee. Currently, all CLO Bundnaged by the
Asset Manager Affiliates are paying both their semind subordinated management fees on a currsist ba

The revenue that the Asset Manager Affiliates gateethrough the fees they receive for managing €u@ds and after
paying the expenses associated with their opemtinoluding compensation of their employees, magistributed to the
Company. Any distributions of the Asset Managerilisffes’ net income are recorded as dividends feffiiate asset
managers, and are recorded as declared (whereateiadate represents ex-dividend date) by the®dsanager Affiliates as
income on our statement of operations. For the geded December 31, 2012, the Asset Manager Aé#limade distributions
of $4.7 million to the Company. The declared fougtharter dividend of approximately $1.8 million the Asset Manager
Affiliates was recorded as a dividend receivablefd3ecember 31, 2012.

As with all other investments, the Asset Managsdiliafes’ fair value is determined quarterly. Thalwation is primarily
based on an analysis of both a percentage ofdkséts under management and the Asset Manageat&§ilestimated
operating income. Any change in value from permg@ériod is recognized as unrealized gain or IBes. Note 2, “Significant
Accounting Policies” and Note 4, “Investments” farther information relating to the Company’s vdlaa methodology. For
the year ended December 31, 2012 the Asset Mawndfijigates had a decrease in unrealized appreaiatioapproximately $2.4
million.

As a separately regarded entity for tax purpodesAsset Manager Affiliates are taxed at normapomate rates. For tax
purposes, any distributions of taxable net incoar@ed by the Asset Manager Affiliates to the Conypanuld generally need
to be distributed to the Company’s shareholdersie@aly, such distributions of the Asset Manageiiliates’ income to the
Company’s shareholders will be considered as qedldividends for tax purposes. The Asset Manad#liates’ taxable net
income will differ from GAAP net income becausedefferred tax timing adjustments and permanentd@stments. Deferred
tax
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timing adjustments may include differences forraeognition and timing of depreciation, bonusesrtployees and stock
option expense. Permanent differences may incldflssements, limitations or disallowances for meald entertainment
expenses, penalties, tax goodwill amortization metdoperating loss carryforward.

Goodwill amortization for tax purposes was creatpdn the purchase of 100% of the equity interest&aitonah Debt
Advisors prior to the Company’s IPO in exchangedioares of the Company’s stock valued at $33 milldthough this
transaction was a stock transaction rather thaasaat purchase and thus no goodwill was recogfizeg8AAP purposes, such
exchange was considered an asset purchase undienS3#l (a) of the Code. At the time of the transkatonah Debt
Advisors had equity of approximately $1 million uéitng in tax goodwill of approximately $32 milliowhich will be amortized
for tax purposes on a straight-line basis overddry, which accounts for an annual difference batw@AAP income and
taxable income by approximately $2 million per yeaer such period.

Additional goodwill amortization for tax purposessvcreated upon the purchase of 100% of the enpiéisests in Trimaran
Advisors by its sole member, Commodore Holdingk,C., in exchange for shares of the KCAP Finansiatbck valued at
$25.5 million and cash of $13.0 million. The tractéan was considered an asset purchase under 88&ida) of the Code and
resulted in tax goodwill of approximately $22.8 lioih which will be amortized for tax purposes osteaight-line basis over 15
years, which accounts for an annual difference eetWGAAP income and taxable income by approxima&l$ million per
year over such period.

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, there no intercompany balances with our affiliates.
Related Party Transactions

On November 20, 2012, the Company entered intmaiseredit agreement (the “Senior Credit Faciljtwith Trimaran
Advisors, pursuant to which Trimaran Advisors mayrbw from time to time up to $20 million from ti@mpany in order to
provide the capital necessary to support one oerabirimaran Advisors’ warehouse lines and/or virgkcapital in
connection with Trimaran Advisors’ warehouse atidg. The Senior Credit Facility expires on Novemb@ 2017 and bears
interest at an annual rate of 9.0%. The Companésaae debt obligation relating to the Senior GrEdtility was $20 million.
As of December 27, 2012, the Senior Credit Facilias terminated and there were no borrowings audstg.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Companognized interest income of $185,000 relatededsnior Credit
Facility.

6. BORROWINGS
The Company’s debt obligations consist of the feilm:

As of As of
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Convertible Senior Notes, due March 15, 2016 $ 60,000,000 $ 60,000,00
Senior Notes, due September 30, 2019 $ 41,400,00 $ —

Secured Credit Facility
At December 31, 2010, the Company had a secureiit ¢zeility with an outstanding balance of $86,7382.

On January 31, 2011, the Company repaid in fulloihestanding balance under this facility, resultimghe lenders’ release
to the Company of approximately $73 million of eddiral previously securing the facility and theayment of a $2 million
cash settlement to the Company.
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Convertible Senior Notes

On March 16, 2011, the Company issued $55 millibaggregate principal amount of unsecured 8.75%extible senior
notes due 2016 (“Convertible Senior Notes”). On &he23, 2011, pursuant to an over-allotment optiea,Company issued an
additional $5 million of such Convertible Seniortd® for a total of $60 million in aggregate priredipmount. The net proceeds
for the Convertible Senior Notes, following undeitimg expenses, were approximately $ 57.7 millioieerest on the
Convertible Senior Notes is paid semi-annuallyrie@ars on March 15 and September 15, at a rate/6%8 commencing
September 15, 2011. The Notes mature on March @nless converted earlier. The Convertible Sevates are senior
unsecured obligations of the Company.

The Convertible Senior Notes are convertible iftares of Company’s common stock. As of Decembe2B12 the
conversion rate was 122.5638 shares of common sirc®1,000 principal amount of Convertible SeNotes, which is
equivalent to a conversion price of approximateéyl$9 per share of common stock. The conversianisatubject to
adjustment upon certain events.

Upon conversion, unless a holder converts aftecard date for an interest payment but prior tocthreesponding interest
payment date, the holder will receive a separagh payment with respect to the Convertible Seniatebl surrendered for
conversion representing accrued and unpaid integebtt not including the conversion date. Anytspayment will be made
on the settlement date applicable to the relevamtersion on the Convertible Senior Notes.

No holder of Convertible Senior Notes will be detitto receive shares of the Company’s common gipok conversion to
the extent (but only to the extent) that such moebuld cause such converting holder to beconrectly or indirectly, a
beneficial owner (within the meaning of Sectiond)3gf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thesrand regulations
promulgated thereunder) of more than 5.0% of ttaeeshof the Company’s common stock outstandingat ime. The 5.0%
limitation shall no longer apply following the effiéve date of any fundamental change. The Compatyet issue any shares
in connection with the conversion or redemptiorthaf Convertible Senior Notes which would equalxareed 20% of the
shares outstanding at the time of the transacti@tcordance with NASDAQ rules. At December 31,2@he Company was
in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

Subject to certain exceptions, holders may requsr repurchase, for cash, all or part of thein@otible Senior Notes
upon a fundamental change at a price equal to 18fG#e principal amount of the Convertible Seniat®s being repurchased
plus any accrued and unpaid interest up to, butidiay, the fundamental change repurchase dagddition, in the case of
certain fundamental changes and without duplicatifoime foregoing amount, the Company will also paiders an amount in
cash (or, in certain circumstances, shares of tmagany’s common stock) equal to the present valdleeoremaining interest
payments on such notes through, and includingmtirity date.

In connection with the issuance of the Convertibémior Notes, the Company incurred approximately #llion of debt
offering costs which are being amortized over grentof the facility on an effective yield methochish approximately $1.6
million remains to be amortized.

The Convertible Senior Notes have been analyzedrfgifeatures that would require its accountingedifurcated. There
are no features that require accounting to be ¢afed, and as a result, they are recorded asikityiah their contractual
amounts.

For the period from January 1, 2012 to DecembeRB312, the Company recorded approximately $7.0anilbf interest
costs and amortization of financing costs as isteggpense.

Fair Value of Convertible Senior NotesThe Company carries the Convertible Senior Nateost. The Convertible Senior
Notes were issued in a private placement and ikere active trading of these notes. The
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fair value of the Company’s outstanding ConvertiB@nior Notes was approximately $69.7 million at&maber 31, 2012. The
fair value was determined based on the averagadafative bid and offer pricing for the Convertit8enior Notes.

Senior Notes

On October 10, 2012, the Company issued $41.4amilh aggregate principal amount of unsecured B@%&nior Notes
due 2019. The net proceeds for the Senior Not#syimg underwriting expenses, were approximateB9$ million. Interest
on the Senior Notes is paid quarterly in arrearManch 30, June 30, September 30 and Decembet 80ate of 7.375%,
commencing December 30, 2012. The Notes maturespteber, 30, 2019. The Senior Notes are seni@cunsd obligations
of the Company. In addition, due to the asset @yetest applicable to us as a BDC and a covehanive agreed to in
connection with the issuance of the Senior Notesawe limited in our ability to make distributioimscertain circumstances. At
December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliantealli of its debt covenants.

In connection with the issuance of the Senior Ndtess Company incurred approximately $1.5 millidrdebt offering costs
which are being amortized over the term of thelitgan an effective yield method, of which appnmétely $1.45 million
remains to be amortized.

Fair Value of Senior Notes The fair value of the Company’s outstanding 8ehiotes was approximately $41 million at
December 31, 2012. The fair value was determineédan the average of indicative bid and offeripgidor the Senior Notes.

The Facility

On February 24, 2012, the Company entered intota Rorchase Agreement with Credit Suisse AG, Cayislands
Branch, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, asrages, The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company tiNaal Association,
as collateral administrator and collateral agemd, RCAP Funding, a special-purpose bankruptcy remdtolly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“KCAP Funding”), unddrigh the Company may obtain up to $30 million imafncing (the
“Facility”). The scheduled maturity date for thechitly is December 20, 2014. Interest on the Faci LIBOR + 300 basis
points and payable quarterly.

Advances under the Facility are used by the Compainyarily to make additional investments. The kgcis secured by
loans that it currently owns and a security inteieshe Company’s right to receive certain managetiees. The Company’s
borrowings under the Facility are effectuated tigftoi CAP Funding.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no amount$anding under the Facility and the Company waoimmiance with
all of its debt covenants. Beginning February 21,2 the average amount outstanding in 2012 uheeFacility was
approximately $14.8 million.

In connection with the Facility, the Company inadrapproximately $444,000 of debt origination cegtich are being
amortized over the term of the Facility on a sth&iline basis of which approximately $323,000 remsab be amortized.

7. DISTRIBUTABLE TAX INCOME

Effective December 11, 2006, the Company electdibtyeated as a RIC under the Code and adoptedeniber 31
calendar year end. As a RIC, the Company is ngestito federal income tax on the portion of itsatale income and gains
distributed currently to its stockholders as adtvid. The Company’s quarterly dividends, if ang, @etermined by the Board
of Directors. The Company anticipates distributiideast 90% of its taxable income and gains, withe Subchapter M rules,
and thus the Company anticipates that it will mour any federal or state income tax at the RI@lleAs a RIC, the Company
is also subject to a federal excise tax based stnilulitive requirements of its taxable income arakendar year basis (e.g.,
calendar year 2012). Depending on the level oflixancome earned in a tax year, the Company magshto carry
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forward taxable income in excess of current yesirithutions into the next tax year and pay a 4%sextax on such income, to
the extent required. The Company anticipates tirdejribution of its taxable income within the taes, and the Company
anticipates that it will not incur a US federal mectax for the calendar year 2012.

The following reconciles net decrease in sharehsldguity resulting from operations to taxablednee for the year ended
December 31, 2012:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Net increase (decrease) in stockholders' equityltieg from

operations $26,125,77 $ 7,649,54
Net change in unrealized (appreciation) depreaidtiom

investments (5,268,33)) (10,814,59)
Excess capital losses over capital gains 3,232,97! 18,476,60
Income not on GAAP books currently taxable 81,36¢ 85,60¢
Income not currently taxable (69,539 (89,799
Expenses not currently deductible (628,32 (120,240
Expenses not on GAAP books currently deductible — (3,979
Taxable income before deductions for distributions $23,473,91 $ 15,183,15
Taxable income before deductions for distributipas weighted

average shares for the period $ 09C $ 0.6¢

Taxable income differs from net increase (decresssfockholders’ equity resulting from operatigmsnarily due to: (1)
unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investsieas investment gains and losses are not inclindickable income until
they are realized; (2) amortization of discouniGirO Fund Securities; (3) amortization of organiaasl costs; (4) non-
deductible expenses; (5) stock compensation expglasés not currently deductible for tax purpog4é3;excess of capital
losses over capital gains; and (7) recognitiomtdrest income on certain loans.

Distributions which exceed tax distributable incoftex net investment income and realized gairenyf) are reported as
distributions of paid-in capitali(e., return of capital). The tax character of disttibos paid during the years ended December
31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Distributions paid from
Ordinary income $ 23,473,91 $15,890,80 $ 12,405,14
23,473,91 15,890,80 12,405,14
(Under distribution) Return of Capital 1,334,911 (114,46) 2,817,06

$ 24,808,83 $15,776,33 $ 15,222,21

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the componerasafmulated earnings on a tax basis were as fellow
Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011

Distributable ordinary income $ 1,563,560 $ 947,06¢
Capital loss carryforward 53,734,39 (50,501,41)
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At December 31, 2012, the Company had a net cdp#ialcarryforward of $54 million to offset net @apgains, to the
extent provided by federal tax law. The capitasloarryforward will begin to expire in the tax yegnding December 31, 2015.

The Company adopted Financial Accounting StandBodsd ASC Topic 740 Accounting for Uncertainty imcome Taxes
(“ASC 740”) as of January 1, 2007. ASC 740 providaglance for how uncertain tax positions shoulddo®gnized,
measured, presented, and disclosed in the finasteitgments. ASC 740 requires the evaluation optsitions taken or
expected to be taken in the course of preparin@trapany’s tax returns to determine whether theptesitions are “more-
likely-than-not” of being sustained by the applieatax authority. The Company recognizes the taelies of uncertain tax
positions only where the position is “more likelhyah not” to be sustained assuming examinationopughorities.
Management has analyzed the Company’s tax posijtmtshas concluded that no liability for unrecagditax benefits should
be recorded related to uncertain tax positionsriaiereturns filed for open tax years (the last¢hiiscal years) or expected to
be taken in the Company’s current year tax rettihe Company identifies its major tax jurisdictiasU.S. Federal and New
York State, and the Company is not aware of anytesitions for which it is reasonably possible titat total amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits will change materiallyhie@ next 12 months. The adoption of ASC 740 didhawe an effect on the
financial position or results of operations of G@mpany as there was no liability for unrecognitgedbenefits and no change
to the beginning capital of the Company. Managefaal#terminations regarding ASC 740 may be suligeotview and
adjustment at a later date based upon factorsdimgybut not limited to, an ongoing analysis of kaws, regulations and
interpretations thereof.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentswaiff-balance sheet risk in the normal course &ffess in order to meet
the needs of the Company’s investment in portfotimpanies. Such instruments include commitmengxtend credit and may
involve, in varying degrees, elements of credk iisexcess of amounts recognized on the Compdrafance sheet. Prior to
extending such credit, the Company attempts td lisicredit risk by conducting extensive due dilige, obtaining collateral
where necessary and negotiating appropriate fiahnovenants. As of December 31, 2012 and DeceBihet011, we had
committed to make a total of approximately $0 aBdr#llion, respectively, of investments in variaesolving senior secured
loans, of which none were funded as of DecembeB312 and December 31, 2011. As of December 312 28d December
31, 2011, the company committed to make no investsrnia delayed draw senior secured loans.

9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and Dezreddh 2011, the Company issued 76,208 and 14ER7i&s,
respectively, of common stock under its divideridvestment plan. For the year ended December 32,28e Company
issued 34,757 shares of restricted stock, 232,ié8:s were forfeited, and 97,071 shares were ctad/és common stock
during the year due to vesting. The total numbeshafres issued and outstanding as of Decembe032,Was 26,470,408, and
the total number of shares issued and outstanding Becember 31, 2011 was 22,992,211.

10. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

During 2006 and as amended in 2008, the Compaabpledted an equity incentive plan (the “Plan”) aeserved 2,000,000
shares of common stock for issuance under the Plapurpose of the Plan is to provide officers prabspective employees of
the Company with additional incentives and aliga ititerests of its employees with those of its shalders. Options granted
under the Plan are exercisable at a price equbktéair market value (market closing price) of #eres on the day the option
is granted. Restricted stock granted under the iBlgranted at a price equal to the fair market@dmarket closing price) of
the shares on the day such restricted stock idegtan
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Stock Options

During the year ended December 31, 2010, 20,000repper year were granted to non-employee dire@sipartial annual
compensation for their services as director. Ed¢hese annual options grants have a vesting pégaghich 50% of such
options vest on the grant date and 50% vest ofiri@rant date anniversary. The exercise pricéhese grants and other
characteristics of these grants are as follows:

Weighted Average

Exercise Exercise Risk Free Volatility Grant Date Fair
Options granted for the year ended: Price Period (years) Rate Rate Value per Share
December 31, 2010 $ 4.8: 10 3.1% 5% $ 1.4¢€

On June 10, 2011, the Company'’s shareholders apgitne Amended and Restated Non-Employee Diretaor. P
Accordingly, the annual grant of 20,000 optionsitm-employee directors has been discontinued gidasd with an annual
grant of 4,000 shares of restricted stock as pamiaual compensation for the services of the nopleyee directors.

Information with respect to options granted, exexdiand forfeited under the Plan for the periodidanl, 2010 through
December 31, 2012 is as follows:

Weighted Average
Weighted Average Contractual Aggregate
Exercise Price per Remaining Term Intrinsic
Shares Share (years) value ()
Options outstanding at
January 1, 2011 60,000 $ 7.24
Granted — % —
Exercised — % —
Forfeited — % —
Options outstanding at December 31,
2011 60,000 $ 7.24
Granted — % —
Exercised — % —
Forfeited — % —
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 60,00( $ 7.24 6.5 $ 172,40
Total vested at December 31, 2012 60,000 $ 7.24 6.t

(1) Represents the difference between the markee o shares of the Company upon exercise of fiiemms at December 31,
2012 and the cost for the option holders to exerttie options.

The Company uses a Binary Option Pricing Model (Ao@, call option) to establish the expected valfiall stock option
grants. For the year ended December 31, 2012, dh@&ny recognized no non-cash compensation expelated to stock
options. For the year ended December 31, 2011Cdmepany recognized non-cash compensation expelased¢o stock
options of approximately $8,000. For the year eridedember 31, 2010, the Company recognized nonamspensation
expense related to stock options of approximat2ly, 0. At December 31, 2012, the Company had mairéng
compensation cost related to unvested stock-bagadia.

Restricted Stock

On June 13, 2008, the Company’s shareholders apgittve Plan, as amended and the Board of Direapgmoved the
grant of awards of 100,250 shares of restricteckstio certain executive officers of the Company.@gtober 7, 2011 and July



22, 2010, the Board of Directors approved the gofuain additional 86,805 and 103,519 shares oficgsd stock,
respectively, to a certain executive officer of the
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Company. Such awards of restricted stock will &ssto 50% of the shares on the third anniversatiefrant date and the
remaining 50% of the shares on the fourth annivgrsbthe grant date.

On June 13, 2008, the Company’s Board of Direcotlorized the Company to allow employees who agreancel
options that they hold to receive shares of the gm's common stock to receive 1 share of restristeck for every 5 options
so cancelled. The shares of restricted stock redddy employees through any such transaction wit annually generally over
the remaining vesting schedule as was applicabfeetecancelled options. Subsequently, employeeafirfgppbptions to purchase
1,295,000 shares individually entered into agreasiencancel such options and to receive 259,0a€eslof restricted stock.
As of December 31, 2012, 97,071 of such shares wested and converted to common shares. The ramga?32,768 shares
have been forfeited.

On June 10, 2011, the Company’s shareholders apgrite Amended and Restated Non-Employee Diretaor, Bnd the
Board of Directors approved the grant of award4,000 shares of restricted stock to the non-emplalpectors of the
Company as partial annual compensation for thewiees as director. Such awards of restricted staikvest as to 50% of the
shares on the grant date and the remaining 50#%edshtares on the first anniversary of the grarg.dat

During the year ended December 31, 2012, 97,07Eslud restricted stock vested. As of DecembeRB12, after giving
effect to these option cancellations and restristedk awards, there were options to purchase 8Gbares of common stock
outstanding and there were 32,257 shares of restratock outstanding. Information with respeatestricted stock granted,
exercised and forfeited under the Plan for thegoedanuary 1, 2011 through December 31, 201 2fisllasys:

Weighted Average
Non-Vested Exercise Price per
Restricted Shares Share

Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2010 336,32 $ 8.01
Granted 90,80¢ $ 9.11
Vested (96,12 $ 11.1¢€
Forfeited (3,669 % 9.67
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 327,33¢ $ 6.4¢€
Granted 34,751 $ 6.6€
Vested (97,07) $ 9.0¢
Exercised — —
Forfeited (232,769 % 5.37
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 32,257 $ 6.6¢
Total non-vested shares at December 31, 2012 m $ 6.6¢

For the year ended December 31, 2012, non-casharwapon expense related to restricted stock warimnately
$437,000; of this amount approximately $416,000 &gsensed at the Company and approximately $21/@80a reimbursable
expense allocated to Katonah Debt Advisors. Foy#as ended December 31, 2011, non-cash compemsatiense related to
restricted stock was approximately $766,000; of #mount approximately $677,000 was expensed &dhgany and
approximately $89,000 was a reimbursable expemsesstd to Katonah Debt Advisors. For the year dridecember 31, 2010
non-cash compensation expense related to reststtel was approximately $894,000; of this amoyptraximately $654,000
was expensed at the Company and approximately @2d0vas a reimbursable expense allocated to Katbeah Advisors.

F-43




TABLE OF CONTENTS

KCAP Financial, Inc.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
10. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN — (continued)

Dividends are paid on all outstanding shares dfiotsd stock, whether or not vested. In genetayss of unvested
restricted stock are forfeited upon the recipieteisnination of employment. At December 31, 20h2, Company had
approximately $113,000 of total unrecognized consp&ian cost related to nonvested share-based avildrdscost is expected
to be recognized over a weighted average peri@years.

11. OTHER EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Company adopted a 401(k) plan (“401K Plan"¢eifze January 1, 2007. The 401K Plan is openl tulatime
employees. The Plan permits an employee to dgfertéon of their total annual compensation up ® liiternal Revenue
Service annual maximum based on age and eligibilig Company makes contributions to the 401K Bfaup to 2% of the
$250,000 maximum eligible compensation, which fullast at the time of contribution. For the yeardezhDecember 31, 2012
and 2011, the Company made contributions to th&4®an of approximately $34,000 and $23,000, respely.

The Company has also adopted a deferred compemgddio (“Profit-Sharing Plan”) effective January2007. Employees
are eligible for the Profit-Sharing Plan providédttithey are employed and working with the Compfanwat least 100 days
during the year and remain employed as of thedagtof the year. Employees do not make contribstiorthe Profit-Sharing
Plan. On behalf of the employee, the Company magribaite to the Profit-Sharing Plan 1) up to 8.0P&albcompensation up to
the Internal Revenue Service annual maximum ang2p 5.7% excess contributions on any incrementadunts above the
social security wage base limitation and up tolthernal Revenue Service annual maximum. Employess100% in the
Profit-Sharing Plan after five years of servicer #fe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011,dimp&hy made
contributions of approximately $139,000 and $130,&0the Profit-Sharing Plan, respectively.

12. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)

Q1 2012 Q2 2012 Q32012 Q4 2012
Total interest and related portfolio income $ 7,401,541 $ 9,481,60. $10,353,93 $ 11,346,78
Net investment incom $ 3,639,281 $ 6,003,820 $ 7,133,090 $ 7,314,21
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting
operations $ 576,65t $ 1,617,45 $ 9,368,390 $ 14,563,27
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting
operations per share — basic $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.5¢
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting
operations per share — diluted $ 0.0z $ 0.0¢ $ 03¢ $ 0.5t
Net investment income per shi— basic $ 0.1t $ 0.2: % 0271 $ 0.2¢
Net investment income per sh— diluted $ 0.1t $ 02 % 027 $ 0.2¢
Q12011 Q2 2011 Q32011 Q4 2011
Total interest and related portfolio income $ 7,321,52! $ 6,051,55. $7,298,18 $ 7,148,37
Net investment incom $ 4,982,46° $ 2,658,24! $4,085,70! $ 4,105,90!
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resl
from operations $9,604,63 $ 873,82¢ $(1,485,25) $(1,343,66)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resl
from operations per share — basic and dilu $ 04: $ 0.0¢ % 0.0 $ (0.06)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets resl

from operations per share — diluted $ 04: $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0 $ (0.0¢)
Net investment income per sh— basic $ 02z $ 01z $ 0.1 % 0.1¢
Net investment income per sh— diluted $ 02z $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢ % 0.1¢
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13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 14, 2013, the Company completed a poffiering of 5,232,500 shares of common stockciwhincluded the
underwriters’ full exercise of their option to phese up to 682,500 shares of common stock, ate pfi$9.75 per share,
raising approximately $51.0 million in gross prodgeln conjunction with this offering, the Compaaigo sold 200,000 shares
of common stock to a member of its Board of Direst®@ean C. Kehler, at a price of $9.31125 pereshaising approximately
$1.9 million in gross proceeds.

On February 26, 2013, the Company entered intmigiseredit agreement (the “Trimaran Credit Fagi)itwith Trimaran
Advisors, pursuant to which Trimaran Advisors mayrbw from time to time up to $20 million from ti@mpany in order to
provide capital necessary to support one or mofgiafaran Advisors’ warehouse lines of credit amaforking capital in
connection with Trimaran Advisors’ warehouse atitdg. The Trimaran Credit Facility expires on Now®n20, 2017 and
bears interest at an annual rate of 9.0%. At Ma&;H013, $20,000,000 was outstanding under thedren Credit Facility.
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IMPORTANT NOTE

In accordance with certain SEC rules, KCAP Findntig. (the “Company”) is providing additional mrimation regarding
the following three portfolio companies: KatonahbDAdvisers, L.L.C., Trimaran Advisors, L.L.C. ak@tonah 2007-1 CLO
Ltd. The Company owns 100% of the equity intere@stach of these entities. However, pursuant to 8H#€3, the Company
does not consolidate portfolio company investmeantduding those in which it has a controlling irgst. As a result, the
additional financial information regarding theséitsgs does not directly impact the Company'’s ficiahposition, results of
operations or cash flows.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Shareholders of
KCAP Financial, Inc. (formerly, Kohlberg Capital Corporation)

We have audited the accompanying combined finastétments of Asset Manager Affiliates, which casgthe combined
balance sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 20d themnelated combined statements of operatiorm)gds in member’s
equity, and cash flows for each of the year yaathé period ended December 31, 2012, and theacelattes to the financial
statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statenents

Management is responsible for the preparation aimgfesentation of these combined financial statesiin accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetééhBtates of America; this includes the desigplémentation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to theppration and fair presentation of combined finalngtiatements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraudroor.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesmbined financial statements based on our aMiigsconducted our audits
in accordance with auditing standards generallgpiad in the United States of America. Those stalsdequire that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the combined financial statemeetfree from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiaevidence about the amounts and disclosurtgicombined financial
statements. The procedures selected depend ondfters judgment, including the assessment ofribles of material
misstatement of the combined financial statemavtiether due to fraud or error. In making those asg&essments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the AssehMyer Affiliates’ preparation and fair presentatadrihe combined financial
statements in order to design audit proceduresatigsappropriate in the circumstances, but nothfepurpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Asset Manadéliagtes’ internal control. Accordingly, we expreso such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenésscounting policies used and the reasonablesfesgnificant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evalubgmyyerall presentation of the combined finansiatements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the combined financial statemerfenmred to above present fairly, in all materialprects, the financial position
of Asset Manager Affiliates as of December 31, 284& 2011, and the results of their operationstheid cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended Decembe2@IL2 in accordance with accounting principles galheaccepted in the
United States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS

As of
December 31, 2011

As of
December 31, 2012

ASSETS

Investments of CLO Funds at fair value $3,255,805,44
Cash 5,999,90:
Restricted cash of CLO Funds 533,222,26
Accrued interest receivable 10,221,24
Receivable for open trades 4,242 93
Deferred tax asset 1,108,44:
Intangible assets 35,608,30
Other assets 1,089,24.

$ 1,768,088,97
6,364,93!
71,888,14
8,065,58!

383,34

722,44(

Total assets $3,847,297,78

$ 1,855,513,43

LIABILITIES

CLO Fund liabilities at fair value $3,459,529,71

Accrued interest expense 11,886,20
Payable for open trades 224,409,79
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,090,26.

$ 1,727,560,76
7,676,89
15,454,62
2,749,89

Total liabilities $3,698,915,97

$ 1,753,442,18

MEMBER'S EQUITY

Member's contributions $ 51,75492 $ 12,933,25
Accumulated earnings (deficit) (8,244,10) (6,707,27))
Total Asset Manager Affiliates equity 43,510,81 6,225,98;
Appropriated retained earnings of Consolidated

Variable Interest Entities 104,870,99 95,845,26
Total member's equity 148,381,81 102,071,25

Total liabilities and member's equity $3,847,297,78

$ 1,855,513,43

See accompanying notes to combined financial sextésn
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Income

ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended December 31,

Interest income — investments of CLO Funds

Interest income — cash and time deposits

Management fees

Fee income
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Interest expense of CLO Fund liabilities

Compensation

Insurance

Professional fees
Administrative and other

Trustee fees

Total expenses

Net realized and unrealized Ic

Net income (loss) before tax

Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrollingenests it

consolidated Variable Interest Entities

Net income (loss) attributable to As:

Manager Affiliates

2012 2011 2010
$128,287,57 $68,772,35 $ 63,504,93
95,54¢ 72,37: 81,29
— 448,79( 1,376,10
5,268,64 3,769,88! 2,318,08:
75,30: 7,231 24,24
$133,727,06 $73,070,63 $ 67,304,66
$113,547,09 $55,650,28 $ 36,043,19
7,491,01 5,399,45 6,557,73!
526,34 469,08 403,17
10,134,95 990,30° 2,262,78
4,680,28. 1,429,83 1,609,35:
896,49 540,68: 545,32
$137,276,19  $64,479.64 $ 47,42156
$(92,034,32) $(41,726,39) $ (29,488,31)
$(95,583,44) $(33,135,40) $ (9,605,21)
$ (350,950 $ (221,31) $ 873,90

$(95,232,49)

$(98,395,67)

$(32,914,08)

$(33,665,29)

$ (10,479,11)

$ (11,002,22)

$ 3,163,17

$ 751,21

$ 523,10:

See accompanying notes to combined financial sextésn
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBER'S EQUITY

Appropriated

Retained Earnings

(Deficit) of

Member's Accumulated Variable Interest Total Member's
Contributions Earnings (Deficit) Entities Equity

Total at December 31, 2009

(unaudited) $ 8,348,43°  $(1,571,58% $ — $ 6,776,84i
Adoption of guidance now encompas

in ASC Topic 810 — — 140,512,78 140,512,78
January 1, 2010, as adjusted $ 8,348,43  $(1,571,58) $140,512,78  $147,289,63
Net income — 523,10: — 523,10:
Contributions 3,764,21: — — 3,764,21!
Distributions — (4,500,001 — (4,500,00i)
Net loss classified to appropriat

retained earnings — — (11,002,22) (11,002,22)
Total at December 31, 2010 $12,112,65  $(5,548,487 $129,510,56 $136,074,73
Net income (loss — 751,21: — 751,21:
Distributions (34,64() (1,910,001 — (1,944,64)
Contributions 855,24: — — 855,24
Net loss classified to appropriat

retained earnings — — (33,665,29) (33,665,29)
Total at December 31, 2011 $12,933,25  $(6,707,276 $ 95,845,26  $102,071,25
Adoption of guidance now encompas

in ASC Topic 810 — — 107,421,39 107,421,39
Net income (loss — 3,163,17. — 3,163,17
Distributions — (4,700,001 — (4,700,00i)
Contributions 38,821,66 — — 38,821,66
Net loss classified to appropriat

retained earnings — — (98,395,67) (98,395,67)
Total at December 31, 2012 $51,754,92  $(8,244,102 $104,870,99  $148,381,81

See accompanying notes to combined financial sextésn
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Asset Affiliate
Managers
CLO Restricted
Cash

Asset Affiliate
Managers
Cash

Asset Affiliate
Managers CLO
Restricted Cash

Asset Affiliate  Asset Affiliate  Asset Affiliate
Managers Managers CLO  Managers
Cash Restricted Cash Cash

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income attributable 1
Asset Manager

Affiliates $ 3,163,17.

Net loss attributable t
Variable Interest
Entities —

Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash
provided by operating
activities:

Net change in deferred ti

assets $ (725,100

Net realized and unrealizt
loss —

Amortization of intangible

assets 2,951,64:

Changes in operating assets
and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in accrt
management fees

receivable $ (997,589

Decrease (increase) in accri
interest
receivable 8

Decrease (increase) in othel

assets (647,78%)

Increase (decrease) in
accounts payable and

accrued expenses 328,89(

Increase (decrease) in accrt
interest expense —

(98,395,67)

92,034,32

997,58:¢

(2,155,66)

280,98:

11,47¢

4,209,311

$ 751,21

(565,93

1,808,521

$ 190,82¢

(13

78,19(

444,25;

— $ 523,10:

(33,665,29) —

= 620,64¢

39,917,87 —

7,69¢ $ 3,849,96:

(96,87) 3

(131,13)  283,24°

(29,28

1,445,87. —

(369,841

(11,002,22)

29,488,31

(3,878,14)

(2,348,13)

9,03¢

(31,48

2,503,20:

Net cash provided by (used

operating activities 4,073,30.

(3,017,66) $ 2,707,05.

7,448,85. $ 4,907,111

14,740,57

Investing activities:

Aquisition of Trimaran
Advisors L.L.C. $13,000,00

Change in Investments:

Purchase of investments —

Proceeds from sale and
redemption of

(962,709,46)

(836,925,08) —

(646,646,27)

investments — 1,136,048,11 250,00( 781,798,80 — 649,978,10
Decrease in receivable for

open trades — (4,242,93) — — — 1,855,001
Increase (decrease) in paya

for open trades — 208,955,16 — (16,781,19) — 13,508,28




investing activities $13,000,00 378,050,87 $ 250,00( (71,907,48) $ — 18,695,11

See accompanying notes to combined financial sttesn
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Financing Activities:

Payment for acquisition of
Trimaran Advisors L.L.C.

Member's contributions
Member's distributions
Dividends paid in cash
Repayments of Debt

Net cash provided by (used
financing activities

CHANGE IN CASH

CASH, BEGINNING OF
YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR
Supplemental Information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for taxes

Year Ended December 31,

2012

2011

2010

Asset Affiliate

Managers Asset Affiliate
CLO Asset Affiliate  Asset Affiliate  Asset Affiliate Managers
Asset Affiliate Restricted Managers Managers CLO Managers CLO Restricted
Managers Cast Cash Cash Restricted Cast Cash Cash
$(13,000,00) — $ — — % — —
261,66: — 855,24 — 3,764,21: —
— — (34,64() — — —
(4,700,00i) — (1,910,00i) — (4,500,00i) —
— 86,300,91 — (1,200,00i) — (9,821,73)
$(17,438,33) 86,300,91 $(1,089,39) (1,200,00) $ (735,78) (9,821,73)
$ (365,03) 461,334,12 $ 1,867,65 (65,658,62) $ 4,171,33 23,613,95
$ 6,364,93 71,888,14 $ 4,497,28, 137,546,77 $ 325,94¢ 113,932,82
$ 5,999,90; 533,222,26 $ 6,364,93 71,888,14 $ 4,497,28. 137,546,77
$ 109,337,78 $ 54,204,440 $ 33,539,99
$ 470,00( $  40,50( $ 477,90:

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and &incing activities:

In conjunction with the acquisition of Trimaran Asglers, KCAP Financial, Inc. issued 3.6 million stgof its common

stock, as follows:

Fair value of assets acquired

Cash paid for equity interests

Common stock issued

$ 38,600,00
(13,000,00)
$ 25,600,00

See accompanying notes to combined financial sttesn
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. ORGANIZATION

Katonah Debt Advisors, L.L.C. (“Katonah Debt Advis9, a registered investment adviser, is a whollyaed portfolio
company of KCAP Financial, Inc. (“KCAP Financiafthe Company”), which is an internally managed, tliversified closed-
end publicly traded investment company that is legd as a business development company (“BDC"guttte Investment
Company Act of 1940. Katonah Debt Advisors managdisiteralized loan obligation funds (“CLO Fundsihich invest in
broadly syndicated loans, high-yield bonds and rothedit instruments. On February 29, 2012, KCARaFtial purchased
Trimaran Advisors, L.L.C. (“Trimaran Advisors”),ragistered investment adviser and CLO manager aindlKatonah Debt
Advisors with assets under management of approrim&tL.5 billion, for total consideration of $13xllion in cash and
3,600,000 shares of KCAP Financial's common st@datemporaneously with the acquisition of Trimafatvisors, KCAP
Financial acquired from Trimaran Advisors equitteiests in certain CLO Funds managed by Trimararisbds for an
aggregate purchase price of $12.0 million in cAshof December 31, 2012, Katonah Debt Advisors Bmgharan Advisors are
KCAP Financial's only wholly-owned portfolio compias (collectively, the “Asset Manager Affiliatesihd have
approximately $3.6 billion of par value assets undanagement. Katonah Debt Advisors and Trimaravigdds are each
managed independently from KCAP Financial by sdparanagement teams and investment committeesA3set Manager
Affiliates provide investment management service€IEO Funds, making day-to-day investment decisgmreerning the
assets of the CLO Funds. The Asset Manager Affiato not have any investment interests in the Eu@s they manage;
however, KCAP Financial holds investments in aiparbf the bonds issued by the CLO Funds managdatéfsset Manager
Affiliates. The combined financial statements of thsset Manager Affiliates consist of Katonah D&bvisors, L.L.C., and
affiliates for the period January 1, 2010 througit®mber 31, 2012 and Trimaran Advisors, L.L.C., affilates for the period
February 29, 2012 through December 31, 2012.

The ten CLO funds managed by the Asset Managelidé&s are considered to be variable interestiest{tVIES”) for
which the Asset Manager Affiliates are the primaeneficiary and, as a result, are required to Insalaated into the financial
statements of the Asset Manager Affiliates as dised in Note 3-CLO Funds. The ten CLO funds comsdito be VIEs are as
follows: KATONAH VII CLO LTD.; KATONAH VIII CLO LTD .; KATONAH IX CLO LTD.; KATONAH X CLO LTD.;
KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.; TRIMARAN CLO IV LTD.; TRIMARAN CLO V LTD.; TRIMARAN CLO VI LTD;
TRIMARAN CLO VII LTD.; and CATAMARAN CLO 2012-1 LTD

On January 2, 2008, the Katonah Debt Advisors @latfacquired substantially all of the assets ofttSc@ove Capital
Management LLC (“Scott’s Cove”), an asset manageused on an event-driven credit long short investrstrategy. On
February 28, 2011, Katonah Debt Advisors soldntsriest in Scott’s Cove to a third-party buyer colted by a former Scott’s
Cove employee for a purchase price of $25,000. thatdilly the buyer entered into a Services Agreemaursuant to which
the buyer paid to Katonah Debt Advisors $225,00G:&tain transitional services to be provided latdfah Debt Advisors
and agreed to pay an additional amount of $75,008ach of the first and second anniversaries oflibsing date.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and Combination

In the opinion of management, the combined findratetements reflect all adjustments, consistingaymal recurring
accruals, which are necessary for the fair pretientaf the financial condition and results of ogigwns for the periods
presented. All significant intercompany transactidmalances, revenues and expenses are elimiradedcombination.
Furthermore, the preparation of the financial stegiets requires management to make significant agtgrand assumptions
including the fair value of investments that do have a readily available market value. Actual itsszould differ from those
estimates, and the differences could be material.

The combined financial statements have been preparccordance with U.S. GAAP (“Accounting Prirlep Generally
Accepted in the United State”) and include theriitial statements of Asset Manager
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

Affiliates and any VIEs required to be consolidatddset Manager Affiliates provides investment nggmaent services to CLO
Funds, making day-to-day investment decisions amiitg the assets of the CLO Funds. All of the CLuihés are considered
to be VIEs.

Although Asset Manager Affiliates has no ownershtgrests in the CLO Funds it manages, Asset Manaffidiates
follows the provisions of Accounting Standards Giediion (ASC) Topic 810, “Consolidation,” when aemting for VIES as
further detailed below. Pursuant to ASC 810-10, 4/I&r entities in which the risks and rewards ohewship are not directly
linked to voting interests, for which Asset Managdiliates is the primary beneficiary are consaelidd.

For CLO Funds, if Asset Manager Affiliates are dedrto have the power to direct the activities ef @LO that most
significantly impact the CLO’s economic performanand the obligation to absorb losses/right toikeckenefits (management
fees and potential incentive fees) from the CLQ taauld potentially be significant to the CLO, th&sset Manager Affiliates
are deemed to be the CLO’s primary beneficiary amedrequired to consolidate the CLO.

All of the investments held and notes issued by Gu@ds considered to be VIEs are presented atdhie in Asset
Manager Affiliates’ Combined Balance Sheet andrageincome and expense of consolidated CLO Furedprasented in
Asset Manager Affiliates’ Combined Statement of @giens. The Asset Manager Affiliates reviews fastincluding the
rights of the equity holders and obligations ofigghiolders to absorb losses or receive expecteiduel returns to determine if
the investment product is a VIE. The Asset Mandg#liates are required to consolidate a VIE wheeyt are deemed to be the
primary beneficiary, which is evaluated continuguss facts and circumstances change.

Investments of CLO Funds at Fair Value.Investment transactions are recorded on thecgipé trade date. Realized
gains or losses are determined using the spedé#ittification method. Investments held by the CL@d5 are stated at fair
value. ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements andl®@sces (“ASC 820-10"), requires among other thjmtisclosures about
assets and liabilities that are measured and eghattfair value.

Hierarchy of Fair Value Inputs. The provisions of ASC 820-10 establish a hieratbiat prioritizes inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value and reqaimpanies to disclose the fair value of their finahimstruments according to
the fair value hierarchy (i.e., Level 1, 2 and flits, as defined). The fair value hierarchy giveshighest priority to quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identasgets or liabilities and the lowest priority ttobservable inputs.
Additionally, companies are required to provideitiddal disclosure regarding instruments in the ¢le% category (which have
inputs to the valuation techniques that are unefadde and require significant management judgmentjiding a
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balarsmgsarately for each major category of assetsiahtlities.

Assets and liabilities measured and reported avédue are classified and disclosed in one ofdliewing categories:
Level 1 Inputs:
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenital assets or liabilities at the reporting date

e Level 1 assets may include listed mutual fundsl(iding those accounted for under the equity nektifaccounting as
these mutual funds are investment companies, that publicly available Net Asset Values which ic@cdance with
U.S. GAAP are calculated under fair value measanekare equal to the earnings of such funds), E9drsties and
certain derivatives.

Level 2 Inputs:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesotive markets; quoted prices for identical or famassets or liabilities that are
not active; quotes from pricing services or brokéswhich the Asset Manager Affiliates
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

can determine that orderly transactions took pi&idbe quoted price or that the inputs used to@mat the price were
observable; and inputs other than quoted pricdsatieaobservable, such as models or other valuatiEthodologies.

* Level 2 assets in this category may include debtrities, bank loans, short-term floating ratees@nd asset-backed
securities, restricted public securities valued discount, as well as over the counter derivativesuding interest and
inflation rate swaps and foreign currency exchac@racts that have inputs to the valuations teaegally can be
corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 Inputs:

Unobservable inputs for the valuation of the aesdiability, which may include non-binding brokguotes. Level 3 assets
include investments for which there is little, fyg market activity. These inputs require significenanagement judgment or
estimation.

« Level 3 assets in this category may include gareerd limited partnership interests in privateiggfunds, funds of
private equity funds, real estate funds, hedgeduadd funds of hedge funds, direct private eqgnirgstments held
within consolidated funds, bank loans, bonds issie@LO Funds and certain held for sale real ests@osal assets.

< Level 3 liabilities included in this category lnde borrowings of consolidated collateralized |lo@tigations valued
based upon non-binding broker quotes or discourast flow model based on a discount margin caliculat

Significance of Inputs:

The Asset Manager Affiliates’ assessment of thaiigance of a particular input to the fair valueasurement in its entirety
requires judgment and considers factors speciftbédinancial instrument.

Valuation of Portfolio InvestmentsDebt and equity securities for which market ations are readily available are
generally valued at such market quotations. Debteguity securities that are not publicly tradedvbose market price is not
readily available are valued based on detailedyapalprepared by management, and, in certain cataunes, may utilize third
parties with valuation expertise. The Asset Manaféliates follow the provisions of ASC 820-10. iEhstandard defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring faline, and expands disclosures about assets aildiéiatmeasured at fair
value. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuresésfifair value” as the price that would be recdite sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transactiostlveen market participants at the measurement Satesequent to the adoption
of ASC 820-10, the FASB has issued various stadftpms clarifying the initial standard as notediobe

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance thaifiekeand requires new disclosures about fair vat@asurements. The
clarifications and requirement to disclose the am®and reasons for significant transfers betwemrel1 and Level 2, as well
as significant transfers in and out of Level 3k fair value hierarchy, were adopted by Katonahtalvisors in 2010, and
Trimaran Advisors upon acquisition in 2012.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurequires the disclosure of the inputs and valuatehniques used to measure fair
value and a discussion of changes in valuatiomigales and related inputs, if any, during the pkrio

The Asset Manager Affiliates’ valuation methodolagyd procedures for investments held by the Furelgenerally as
follows:

For Debt Securities:

1. For any asset which is also held by KCAP Finalnmin the applicable date, the KCAP Financial ¥aiue mark as of
such applicable date is used.
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

2. Fair value for all assets which a Fund has cdtethio purchase but yet to settle will be the mmesént mark produced
by Markit (or other third party pricing service, msy be available). If the asset has not receive@@ik from Markit, the
purchase price is deemed to be the fair value.

3. For performing loan and bond assets, the fdireves determined in accordance with the followgngcedure. First, if the
asset was marked by Markit (or other third parfgipg service, as may be available) within one rhaftapplicable
date, then the most recent Markit mark will beféievalue. Next, if the most recent Markit markaiged beyond one
month but less than one year, then the fair valillde the lower of the most recent Markit mark ahd average price
on the applicable rating bucket on the CSFB Loalexproduced on the date closest to the applicdike Lastly, if the
asset has not received a Markit mark within theyear, the fair value will be produced by hairmgt(in percentage
terms) the mark on the applicable rating buckehefCSFB Loan Index produced on the date closdbetapplicable
date by said CSFB Loan Index value.

4. For loan and bond assets in payment defaulfaihgalue is determined in accordance with thWing procedure.
First, if the asset was marked by Markit (or otthérd party pricing service, as may be availablé@hin one month of
applicable date, then the most recent Markit matkb& the fair value. Next, if the most recent Miamark is aged
beyond one month but less than one year, therathedlue will be the lower of most recent Markiark and the avera
price on the Distressed/Defaulted bucket of the EBistressed Loan Index produced on the date ctosbe applicabl
date. Lastly, if the asset has not received a Mankrk within the last year, the fair value will deemed to be zero.

For Equity Securities:

1. For equity assets the fair value is determimeacicordance with the following procedure. Firsthé asset is a publicly-
traded equity, the fair value will be based upandtosing price per share as of the applicable. dggt, if the asset was
marked by Markit (or other third party pricing s, as may be available) within one month of theliaable date, then
the Fair value will be based on the most recentkiarice per share. Lastly, if the asset was meséntly marked by
Markit is aged beyond one month, or has never beemked by Markit, the fair value will be deemedtozero.

For CLO Fund Securities:

1. For any asset which is also held by KCAP Finalnmn the applicable date, the KCAP Financial Vaiue mark as of
such applicable date is used.

2. Fair value for all assets which a Fund has cdtethio purchase but yet to settle will be deenodoktthe purchase price.

3. For performing assets, a Present Value is d@tedrin accordance with the following procedurestithe Asset
Manager Affiliates amalgamate Discount Margin (Dd&ta from the most recent reports published byxih® Researc
and Secondary Trading desks of sell side brokdedealrhe DM data is averaged across each origatialg bucket of
the CLO capital structure. For each asset, futash ¢lows are produced based upon the three mdBi tate as of the
applicable date and the contractually mandatedaspeach asset is required to pay in a no-loss soefthe present
value of the future cash flows is then calculatgdising a discount rate equal to the applicable fDMhe asset’s
original rating bucket plus the three month LIB@eras of the applicable date.

4. Next, the Asset Manager Affiliates inquire with thel-side institution from which they purchased eadeao provide
indicative pricing as if the applicable date. The f/alue is determined by an equal weight averddbe Present Value
determined from the cash flow model and the indieat
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ASSET MANAGER AFFILIATES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

price provided by the sell side broker dealer faghich the asset was purchased. In the event there indicative price
produced by a sell side broker dealer, then the\Faue will be the Present Value determined fréwa ¢ash flow mode

5. If the bond is a non-performing bond, it will becessary to use a more detailed cash flow m8deh a model may be
one that is commercially available (e.g. Intexpoe that is a spreadshdrtsed CLO cash flow model which has bee
up to replicate the deal in question is used witkcific prepayment, default, and severity inputa@sropriate to the
bond in question.

Debt Securities. Most of the CLO Funds’ investment portfolio isxgposed of broadly syndicated debt securities fdckwvh
an independent pricing service quote is availabtethe extent that the investments are exchandedrand are priced or have
sufficient price indications from normal coursedireg at or around the valuation date (financiabrépg date), such pricing
will determine fair value. Pricing service marksrfr third party pricing services may be used asditation of fair value,
depending on the volume and reliability of the nsadufficient and reasonable correlation of bid aski quotes, and, most
importantly, the level of actual trading activity.

CLO Fund Securities. The CLO Funds managed by the Asset Manager ai§i may selectively invest in securities issued
by funds managed by other asset management corsp&oiebond rated tranches of CLO Funds (thoseatiwjunior class)
without transactions to support a fair value far ipecific CLO Fund and tranche, fair value is Hasediscounting estimated
bond payments at current market yields, which neflgct the adjusted yield on the leveraged loaexfdr similarly rated
tranches, as well as prices for similar tranchesfioer CLO Funds and also other factors suchasdéfault and recovery rates
of underlying assets in the CLO Fund, as may béicgipe. Such model assumptions may vary and irmate adjustments for
risk premiums and CLO Fund specific attributes.lSadjustments require judgment and may be materihle calculation of
fair value.

Equity Securities. From time to time, the CLO Funds may receive ggecurities that are received in exchange with a
default or restructuring of Collateral Obligations.

Cash. The Asset Manager Affiliates define cash as dehtleposits. The Asset Manager Affiliates placerthash with
financial institutions and, at times, cash helthiese accounts may exceed the Federal DepositimsaiCorporation insured
limit.

Restricted Cash of CLO Funds.Restricted cash consists of cash held for reinvest, quarterly interest and principal
distributions (if any) to holders of CLO Fund liitiés, and payment of CLO Fund expenses.

CLO Fund Liabilities at Fair Value. The Asset Manager Affiliates have no debt; howdlre CLO Funds they manage
and that are consolidated herein, have issued aatgdinrated bonds to finance their operationst Bglresented at fair value.

Interest Income. Interest income is recorded on the accrual lmasisterest-bearing assets. The CLO Funds gengiialbe
a loan or security on non-accrual status and cessgnizing cash interest income on such loan aurétg when a loan or
security becomes 90 days or more past due or iAtiset Manager Affiliates otherwise do not expletdebtor to be able to
service its debt obligations. Non-accrual loansesented 0.20% and 0.23% of Investments of CLO &andair value as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, resplyctiiee aggregate unpaid principal value of loaastplue as of
December 31, 2012 was approximately $42.7 milliod the difference between fair value and the unpaitipal balance was
approximately $36.2 million. The aggregate unpaidgipal value of loans past due as of DecembefB11 was
approximately $28.0 million and the difference betw fair value and the unpaid principal balance apgsoximately $24.1
million.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (continued)

Management Fees.As a manager of CLO Funds, the Asset Managelidt#s receive contractual and recurring
management fees and may receive a one-time stingfige from the CLO Funds for their managementashdsory services.
The annual fees which the Asset Manager Affiliagzive are generally based on a fixed percenthgssets under
management (at par value and not subject to changearket value), and the Asset Manager Affilisgeserate annual
operating income equal to the amount by which tfegirincome exceeds their operating expenses. Aineahmanagement fees
the Asset Manager Affiliates receive has two congmis — a senior management fee and a subordinardgament fee.

Incentive Fees. As a manager of CLO Funds, the Asset Manageti#ts may receive an incentive fee upon exceeding
specified relative and/or absolute investment rethresholds. Such fees are recorded upon completithe measurement
period which varies by CLO Fund. If incentive fege paid upon reaching such investment return libids, they are not
subject to claw-back provisions.

Dividends to Member. Dividends to the Asset Manager Affiliates’ solemrber are recognized on the ex-dividend date.
Generally, dividends are declared and paid on aepyabasis.

Expenses. The Asset Manager Affiliates are internally mag@é@nd expense costs, as incurred, with regafetaunning
of their operations. Primary operating expensekideemployee salaries and benefits, the costdentifying, evaluating,
monitoring and servicing the CLO Fund investmenemayged by the Asset Manager Affiliates, and relatesthead charges
and expenses, including rental expense. The Asaatler Affiliates’ share office space and certéirenoperating expenses.
Katonah Debt Advisors has entered into an Overldladation Agreement with its sole member, KCAP &igial. Trimaran
Advisors has entered into such an allocation agee¢mith Katonah Debt Advisors. The Agreements fmevor the sharing of
such expenses based on an equal sharing of aéfise Icosts and the ratable usage of other sha@aces. The aggregate net
payments of such expenses under the Overhead Atlacagreement are settled quarterly. Katonah Dehbtisors accounts for
its operating leases, which may include escalationsccordance with ASC 840-10, Leases, and exgsethe lease payments
associated with operating leases evenly durindeidige term (including rent-free periods), beginringhe commencement of
the lease term.

Interest Expenses. The Asset Manager Affiliates have no debt; howekie CLO Funds they manage and that are
consolidated herein have issued rated and unratedsito finance their operations. Interest on Clu@dHiabilities is
calculated by the third party trustee of the CLMidau Interest is accrued and generally paid qugrter

Trustee Fees. Each CLO Fund has a third party trustee thdtesctistodian for all investments of the CLO Funus a
receives and disburses all cash in accordancettubtee and custodial agreements. Trustee feearued and paid quarterly
by the CLO Funds.

Income Taxes. Asset Manager Affiliates account for income taneder the asset and liability method prescribe 8¢
740-10, Income Taxes (“ASC 740-10"). Deferred ineotax assets and liabilities are recognized fofuh&e tax consequences
attributable to temporary differences between tharfcial statement carrying amounts of existingtssand liabilities and their
respective tax bases using currently enacted tas ma effect for the year in which the differenees expected to reverse. The
effect of a change in tax rates on deferred inctara@ssets and liabilities is recognized in incamie period that includes the
enactment date.

Management periodically assesses the recoverabilitg deferred income tax assets based upon tegbéiture earnings,
taxable income in prior carryback years, futurewtgithility of the asset, changes in applicableltaxs and other factors. If
management determines that it is not more likednthot that the deferred tax asset will be fullyoreerable in the future, a
valuation allowance will be established for thdetiénce between the asset balance and the amquette to be recoverable
in the future. This allowance will result in a charto income tax expense on the combined staterokéimsome. Asset
Manager Affiliates records its income taxes recei@and payable based upon its estimated incomiéataility.
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ASC 740-10 clarifies the accounting for uncertaintyncome taxes recognized in a company’s findrstetements by
prescribing a threshold for measurement and retiogrin the financial statements of an asset duilligt resulting from a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in an inctameeturn. ASC 740-10 also provides guidanceeneabgnition,
classification, interest and penalties, accouningterim periods, disclosure and transition.

Accounting Policies Adopted in the Year Ended Dedem31, 2012
New Consolidation Guidance for Variable Interestiftes

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@¢‘FASB”) issued ASU 2009-17, which amendeddbasolidation
guidance for VIEs. The amendments include: (1)eliraination of the exemption from consolidation fpralifying special
purpose entities, (2) a new approach for deterrgittie primary beneficiary of a VIE, which requitest the primary
beneficiary have both (i) the power to control thest significant activities of the VIE and (ii) leétr the obligation to absorb
losses or the right to receive benefits that p@d#ntcould be significant to the VIE, and (3) trexjuirement to continually
reassess the primary beneficiary of a VIE.

On January 1, 2010, upon the adoption of the ab&sset Manager Affiliates determined it was thenaiy beneficiary of
all ten of the CLO Funds it manages as it has twveep to direct the activities of the CLO Funds timaist significantly impact
the CLO Funds’ economic performance, and the otiigao absorb losses/right to receive benefitgi{amform of senior and
subordinate management fees as well as the pdten&arn an incentive fee) from the CLO Funds ttmatld potentially be
significant to the CLO Funds. As a result, thes@®©dtunds are consolidated into the combined findistgements of Katonah
Debt Advisors.

Fair Value Option

Upon consolidation of the CLO Funds, the assetdiabdities of the consolidated CLOs were measuwaethir value, as the
determination of carrying amounts was not practeEabhe Asset Manager Affiliates have elected #ievalue option under
ASC Topic 825-10-25 to measure the assets anditiediof all consolidated CLOs at fair value sulpsent to the date of initial
adoption of this additional guidance to mitigate@mting mismatches between the carrying valubefissets and liabilities
and to achieve operational simplifications.

The cumulative effect adjustment upon adoptioraatidry 1, 2010 resulted in an appropriation ofinethearnings of
$140.5 million.

Improved Disclosures Regarding Fair Value Measuneisie

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Statslélipdate No. 2010-06air Value Measurements and Improving
Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements (Topig)82vhich provides for improving disclosures about falue
measurements, primarily significant transfers id ant of Levels 1 and 2, and activity in Level 8 faalue measurements. The
new disclosures and clarifications of existing tisares are effective for the interim and annupbréng periods beginning
after December 15, 2009, while the disclosures ath@upurchases, sales, issuances, and settlemehésroll forward activity
in Level 3 fair value measurements are effectiveifral years beginning after December 15, 20iDfanthe interim periods
within those fiscal years. Except for certain dethi_evel Il disclosures, which are effective facal years beginning after
December 15, 2010 and interim periods within thgsars, the new guidance became effective for Adsetager Affiliates in
2011. The adoption of this disclosure-only guidadicenot have a material impact on Asset Managéfidtes’ financial
results.

In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB Accounting StadddJpdate (“ASU”) 2011-04, Fair Value Measurem@mpic
820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Mezrmignt and Disclosure Requirements in GAAP and |IFR®
amendments in this ASU generally represent clatifins of Topic
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820, but also include some instances where a péatiprinciple or requirement for measuring faitueaor disclosing
information about fair value measurements has abdnghis ASU results in common principles and regaients for
measuring fair value and for disclosing informataiout fair value measurements in accordance witARsand IFRS. The
amendments in this ASU are to be applied prospelgtand are effective during interim and annualqzix beginning after
December 15, 2011. Management currently believagstitte adoption of this ASU will not have a matkinaact on the
Company’s financial position, operating resultash flows.

3. CLO FUNDS

A CLO Fund generally refers to a special purpodeole that owns a portfolio of investments and éssuarious tranches of
debt and subordinated note securities to finanegtinichase of those investments. Investments psedhay the CLO Funds are
governed by extensive investment guidelines, irinyidmits on exposure to any single industry auisr and limits on the
ratings of the CLO Fund’s assets. The CLO Fundsageah by the Asset Manager Affiliates have a definedstment period
during which they are allowed to make investmentemvest capital as it becomes available.

The Asset Manager Affiliates manage ten CLO Fundsarily for third party investors that invest indadly syndicated
loans, high yield bonds and other credit instruraésgued by corporations. At December 31, 2012Adset Manager Affiliates
had approximately $3.6 billion of par value of assender management. At December 31, 2011, KatDedh Advisors had
approximately $1.9 billion of par value of asseatsler management in five CLO Funds.

CLO Funds typically issue multiple tranches of dabd subordinated note securities with varyinghgtiand levels of
subordination to finance the purchase of their dgaey investments. Interest and principal payménéet of designated CLO
Fund expenses) from the CLO Fund are paid to esstled security in accordance with an agreed ugoritprof payments,
commonly referred to as the “waterfall.” The mashier notes, generally rated AAA/Aaa, commonly esgnt the majority of
the total liabilities of the CLO Fund. AAA/Aaa natare issued at a specified spread over LIBOR anahaily have the first
claim on the earnings on the CLO Fund’s investmafies payment of certain fees and expenses. Leulsordinated
“mezzanine” tranches of rated notes generally matirgs ranging from AA/Aa to BB/Ba and are usuddlyued at a specified
spread over LIBOR with higher spreads paid on thedhes with lower ratings. Each tranche is typjaaly entitled to a share
of the earnings on the CLO Fund’s investmentséfréuired interest and principal payments have besde on the more
senior tranches in the waterfall. The most junianthe can take the form of either subordinatedsot preferred shares. The
subordinated notes or preferred shares generalhotlbave a stated coupon but are entitled to waesichsh flows from the
CLO Fund’s investments after all of the other tfasof notes and certain other fees and expensemmt.

The CLO Funds are primarily financed via capitattributed by equity and debt holders. The Asset &g@n Affiliates’ risk
with respect to each investment in the CLO Fundy thanage is limited to any uncollected manageifieest (as the Asset
Manager Affiliates have no investment in the CLOW@sithey have no exposure or benefits in the owiecf the CLO Funds
bonds). Therefore, the gains or losses of the CuE have not had a significant impact on the Agksetager Affiliates’
financial position, results of operations or cdsfvé. The Asset Manager Affiliates have no righttte benefits from, nor do
they bear the risks associated with, these invegsnbeyond the management fees generated fro@Li@eFunds. If the Asset
Manager Affiliates were to liquidate, these investis would not be available to any general cresliddithe Asset Manager
Affiliates. Additionally, the collateral assets@fnsolidated CLO Funds are held solely to satiséydbligations of the CLO
Funds, and the investors in the consolidated CLaEUnave no recourse to the general credit of seeManager Affiliates
for the notes issued by the CLO Funds.

CLO Funds are investment vehicles created for ¢heeurpose of issuing collateralized loan instrataghat offer investors
the opportunity for returns that vary with the riskel of their investment. The notes
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issued by the CLO Funds are backed by diversif@idteral asset portfolios consisting primarilylons or structured debt.
For managing the collateral for the CLO Fund egtitthe Asset Manager Affiliates earn investmemagament fees,
including subordinated management fees, as welbasngent incentive fees. The Asset Manager Affds have no investment
in the CLO Funds they manage. However, its solessttdder, KCAP Financial, has invested in certdithe CLO Funds,
generally taking a portion of the unrated, juniobardinated position (generally subordinated t@pthterests in the entities
and entitle KCAP Financial and other subordinataddhe investors to receive the residual cash fldvesiy, from the entities).

Upon adoption of guidance encompassed in ASC Tai; the Asset Manager Affiliates determined thaytwere the
primary beneficiary of these CLO Funds, as theyelthe power to direct the activities of the CLO #@sithat most significantly
impact the CLO Funds’ economic performance, andthigation to absorb losses/right to receive bigméih the form of
senior and subordinate management fees as wélegmtential to earn an incentive fee) from the Gudds that could
potentially be significant to the CLO Funds. Thanary beneficiary assessment includes an analysieaights of the Asset
Manager Affiliates in their capacity as investmergnager. In certain CLOs, the Asset Manager Afékarole as investment
manager provides that the Asset Manager Affilia@stractually have the power, as defined in ASCi@ 840, to direct the
activities of the CLO Funds that most significarittypact the CLO Funds’ economic performance, sigchnanaging the
collateral portfolio and its credit risk. Additiolhg the primary beneficiary assessment includearzalysis of the Asset
Manager Affiliates’ rights to receive benefits astaligations to absorb losses associated with itsagament/incentive fees.

As a manager of the CLO Funds, the Asset Managi@iafés receive contractual and recurring managerfees and may
receive a one-time structuring fee from the CLOdaufor their management and advisory services.ahimeial fees which the
Asset Manager Affiliates receive are generally base a fixed percentage of assets under managdatgrdar value and not
subject to changes in market value), and the Adsetager Affiliates generate annual operating inceangal to the amount by
which their fee income exceeds their operating Bgps. The annual management fees the Asset Mahfijates receive
have two components — a senior management fee anblaadinated management fee.

Fair value of consolidated CLO Funds

The investments held by consolidated CLO Fundpanearily invested in senior secured bank loanpi¢slly syndicated
by banks), bonds, and equity securities. Bank inaestments, which comprise the majority of corgatiéd CLO Fund
portfolio collateral, are senior secured corpolasms from a variety of industries, including bot timited to the aerospace and
defense, broadcasting, technology, utilities, hbakkproducts, healthcare, oil and gas, and finamestries. Bank loan
investments mature at various dates between 20d.2@22, pay interest at Libor or Euribor plus aesgr of up to 8.5%, and
typically range in credit rating categories fromBBown to unrated. At December 31, 2012, the unpaidprincipal balance
exceeded the fair value of the senior secured ks and bonds by approximately $142 million. Libss 0.2% of the
collateral assets are in default as of Decembe@12. CLO Fund investments are valued based @e griotations provided
by an independent third-party pricing source whaoh indicative of traded prices and/or dealer pagetations. In the event
that a third-party pricing source is unable to @&m investment, other relevant factors, data mfedmation are considered,
including: i) information relating to the market fithe investment, including price quotations fod arading in the investment
and interest in similar investments and the magketronment and investor attitudes towards thestment and interests in
similar investments; ii) the characteristics of dmddamental analytical data relating to the invesit, including the cost, size,
current interest rate, period until next interede reset, maturity and base lending rate, thestamd conditions of the loan and
any related agreements, and the position of theiloéhe issuer’s debt structure; iii) the nat@a@equacy and value of the
senior secured corporate loan’s collateral, inclgdhe CLO’s rights, remedies and interests wisipeet to the collateral; iv)
the creditworthiness of the borrower, based onvatuation of its financial condition, financial gaents and information
about the business, cash flows, capital structndefature prospects; v) the reputation and findremadition of the
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agent and any intermediate participants in theoses@icured corporate loan; and vi) general econamicmarket conditions
affecting the fair value of the senior secured ocage loan.

CLO Fund liabilities issued by consolidated CLO #simave stated maturity dates between 2017 and Z023CLO Fund
liabilities are issued in various tranches witHfetiént risk profiles and ratings. The interestsatse generally variable rates
based on Libor or Euribor plus a pre-defined spreduch varies from 0.225% for the more senior ttees to 6.25% for the
more subordinated tranches. At December 31, 20&2utstanding balance on the CLO Fund liabilisssied by consolidated
CLO Funds exceeds their fair value by approxima®@g3 million. The investors in the CLO Fund lidi®ls have no recourse
to the general credit of the Asset Manager AffdatCLO Fund liabilities are recorded at fair valiseng an income approach,
driven by cash flows expected to be received frioengortfolio collateral assets. Fair value is deiaed using current
information, notably market yields and projectedttiows of collateral assets based on forecastéalitt and recovery rates
that a market participant would use in determinthigcurrent fair value of the liabilities, takingé account the overall credit
quality of the issuers and the Asset Manager Ai#s’ past experience in managing similar secsritarket yields, default
rates and recovery rates used in the Asset Mar(jkates’ estimate of fair value vary based or thature of the investments
in the underlying collateral pools. In periods isfrrg market yields, default rates and lower delbrery rates, the fair value,
and therefore the carrying value, of the liabiitteay be adversely affected. Once the undiscowsasil flows of the collateral
assets have been determined, the Asset Managdiai&Hiapply appropriate discount rates that a etgslrticipant would use,
to determine the discounted cash flow valuatiothefnotes.

The carrying value of investments held and CLO Hiadallities issued by CLO Funds is also their feafue. The following
table presents the fair value hierarchy levelweéstments held and CLO Fund liabilities issuedheyCLO Funds, which are
measured at fair value as of December 31, 201Dacember 31, 2011:

December 31, 2012

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(% in millions) Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Investments of CLO Funds $ 3,255.¢ — 3 —  $ 3,255.¢
Liabilities:
CLO Fund Liabilities 3,459.! — — 3,459.!
December 31, 2011
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(% in millions) Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Investments of CLO Funds $ 1,768.. $ — % 1,562 $ 205.¢
Liabilities:
CLO Fund Liabilities 1,727.¢ — — 1,727.¢
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The following table shows a reconciliation of tregimning and ending fair value measurements foeL8wassets using
significant unobservable inputs:

For the year ended December

31,

($ in millions) 2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 205¢ $ 116:f
Transfers into Level 3 1,562. 13.C
Transfers from Level 3 0 (7.0
Purchase of Trimaran investments 1,386.¢ 0
Purchase of investments 1,032.! 104.¢
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments (1,034.) (12.¢)
Realized and unrealized gains/(losses), net 102.t (9.2
Ending balance 3,255.¢ 205.¢
Changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciatiociyded in earnings

related to investments still held at reporting date $ 73E % 4.C

Transfers into Level 3 represent transfers relainigvestments for which pricing inputs were urelsble as of December
31, 2012.

As of December 31, 2012, the Asset Manager Afékat.evel 3 portfolio investments had the followiguation
techniques and significant inputs:

Type Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Debt Securities $ 352,332,63 Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 5.4% - 21.8%
$2,798,983,90 Market Quote EBITDA Multiples (x) 3.7x - 8.8x
Weighted Average Cos
of Capital (%) 10.7% -12.0%
Third-Party BidAsk Mid
1.0-116
Equity Securities Average EBITDA
$ 495,75. Market Comparable Multiple (x) 3.7x - 7.1x
Weighted Avg Cost
of Capital (%) 9.6% - 14.8%
$ 8,162,98 Market Quote Third-Party Bid 1.5-2175
CLO Fund Securities Discounted Cash
$ 95,830,16 Flow Discount Rate 1.6% - 7.52%

The following table shows a reconciliation of thegimning and ending fair value measurements foelL8\viabilities using
significant unobservable inputs:

For the year ended December
31,

($ in millions) 2012 2011
Beginning balance $1,727.¢ $ 1,717
Purchase of Trimaran CLO Fund Liabilities 1,374.: 0




Prepayments, amortization, net (252.2) (1.2
Unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) 194.¢ 11.4
Ending balance 3,459.! 1,727.¢

Changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciatiociyded in earnings
related to liabilities still held at reporting date $ 194¢ $ 11.4
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As of December 31, 2012, the Asset Manager Afékat evel 3 liabilities had the following valuatidechnique and
significant inputs:

Asset Type Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
CLO Fund Liabilities $3,459,529,71 Discounted Cash Flow Discount Rate 1.6% 2%.5

Transfers between levels, if any, are recognizéddeabeginning of the quarter in which the trarsfezcur. ASC 820-10
specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques basedhether the inputs to those valuation techricare observable or
unobservable. In accordance with ASC 820-10, tirgags are summarized in the three broad leveksdibelow.

* Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices tivaenarkets for identical assets or liabilitieattthe Asset Manager
Affiliates have the ability to access.

* Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices inketa that are not active or for which all sigriit inputs are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that arebgeovable and significant to the overall fair vafneasurement.

The Asset Manager Affiliates have no debt; howekerCLO Funds they manage and that are consolidiesiesin, have
issued rated and unrated bonds to finance thenatipas. Debt is presented at fair value with tlifedence between principal
and fair value recorded as unrealized gain/loss.@dr amount of CLO Fund liabilities is approxintate3.7 billion and $2
billion respectively for both the years ended Deben81, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

The Asset Manager Affiliates have determined thiihough the junior tranches have certain charisties of equity, they
should be accounted for and disclosed as debteitstiCombined Balance Sheet, as the subordinatéthaome notes have a
stated maturity indicating a date for which theg arandatorily redeemable. The preference sharedsrelassified as debt, as
they are mandatorily redeemable upon liquidatioteonination of the CLO.

The Asset Manager Affiliates’ risk with respecth@ CLO Funds is limited to any uncollected managetfees. The Asset
Manager Affiliates have no right to the benefiteny, nor do they bear the risks associated withCih® Funds, beyond the
management fees generated by the CLO Funds. Kshet Manager Affiliates were to liquidate, the CEGnds would not be
available to the general creditors of the Asset &fgen Affiliates. Additionally, the Investments tiet CLO Funds are held
solely to satisfy the obligations of the CLO Funalsd the investors in the consolidated CLO Funde Im@ recourse to the
general credit of the Asset Manager Affiliatesttoe CO Fund liabilities.

On December 20, 2012, Trimaran Advisors closed aai@aran CLO 2012-1 (“Catamaran”), a $415 milliofiateralized
loan obligation fund of leveraged loans and higéld/bonds. Trimaran is the collateral manager faa@aran and KCAP
Financial, Inc. invested approximately $12.5 millio tranches of subordinated notes issued by Gatamin connection with
the transaction. Catamaran is considered to beiab@ interest entity for which Trimaran Advisassthe primary beneficiary
and therefore is consolidated by Trimaran Advisorg is included into the combined financial statetsef the Asset Manager
Affiliates. The combined 2012 results of operatiassociated with the acquisition of Catamaranuificlg the consolidated
CLO Funds managed by Trimaran Advisors, followihg tlate of acquisition includes revenues of $3XB68@l net loss before
tax of $7.1 million.

4. UNCONSOLIDATED VIEs

Katonah Debt Advisors deems the funds managed bif’'S€ove (“Scott’s Cove Funds”) to be VIEs foriaih Katonah
Debt Advisors is not the primary beneficiary andglthe Scott's Cove Funds are not
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consolidated into the financial statements of KatoBebt Advisors. A primary beneficiary is one thbsorbs a majority of the
entity’s expected losses, receives a majority efahtity’s residual returns or both. Katonah Defivigors has no obligation to
absorb any of the entity’s expected losses. IntinidiKatonah Debt Advisors does not receive thgonity of the entity’s
expected residual returns. As a result, Katonah Bdbisors does not consolidate the Scott’'s CovedsuKatonah Debt
Advisors’ maximum exposure to loss as a resultinvolvement in the Scott's Cove Funds is limitediny uncollected
management fees due from the funds it manageseéé¢mber 31, 2010 Katonah Debt Advisors had a $670@&stment
interest in the Scott’'s Cove Funds and no investimd@rest in the Scott's Cove Funds at DecembefB11 due to the sale of
Scott’s Cove Funds on February 28, 2011, as disduss Note 1.

5. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On February 29, 2012, KCAP Financial, Inc. (the i@@any”) and Commodore Holdings, L.L.C., a newlyrfied, wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Commodore”), aegliall of the outstanding equity interests inmfaran Advisors, L.L.C.
(“Trimaran”) for $13.0 million in cash and 3,600@8hares of the Company’s common stock, par valu@l$per share, which
were valued at the opening price on the closing déathe acquisition. Contemporaneously with thguésition, the Company
acquired the equity interests in four collateralit@an obligation funds (“CLOs”) sponsored by Triawa, at fair value, for
$12.0 million in cash. The aggregate purchase pve $50.6 million, of which $2.5 million in cashda2,150,000 common
shares of the Company were placed in escrow wétBt#mk of New York Mellon. These amounts will remad escrow for up
to 18 months and will be used to pay for any claimBabilities that arise during that period whislere previously indemnified
by the seller. No claims are anticipated and tlreesthese amounts were accounted for as a pdreafansideration transferred.

In accordance with the purchase agreement, Comraadas deemed the acquirer of Trimaran and accodotede
acquisition as a business combination. The assqtgrad (no liabilities were assumed) by Commodbreugh this acquisition
were “pushed-down” to Trimaran. The purchase pailbzcation included the fair value of the identifia intangible assets
acquired, which consist of four CLO management emts$, of approximately $15.7 million, resultinggaodwill of $22.8
million. The CLO management contracts will be anzed over the lives of the contracts (3 — 5 yearhe goodwill will be
subject to an annual impairment test. The goodefitesents expected synergies from combining tkeeatipns of Katonah
Debt Advisors and Trimaran Advisors. Both are Cl$3et managers and registered under the Investnuitadks Act of 1940.

Trimaran, a taxable entity (corporation), has reined the acquisition of as an asset acquisitiomaio purposes. The book
and tax basis of the intangible assets and goodvélidentical; accordingly, Trimaran has not pded for any deferred taxes at
the closing date of the acquisition. The tax babite intangible assets and goodwill will be arized over 15 years, which
will give rise to deferred taxes.

Trimaran will continue operating as a stand-alomityeand serve as collateral manager under thetfie CLO management
contracts. Katonah Debt Advisors LLC (“KDA”) is 8% owned asset manager subsidiary of the Comd¥.and
Trimaran are both under common control of the Camg@nd have similar business characteristics; thexr@eport on a
combined basis for financial reporting purposes.

The combined 2012 results of operations associgitihdthe acquisition of Trimaran Advisors, includithe consolidated
CLO Funds managed by Trimaran Advisors, for thenemth period following the date of acquisitionlumbes revenues of $57
million and net loss before tax of $45.7 million.

6. INCOME TAXES

As separately regarded entities for tax purpo$esAsset Manager Affiliates are taxed at normapouate rates. The CLO
Funds are not taxed.
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For tax purposes, the Asset Manager Affiliate’satalg net income will differ from GAAP net incomedaeise of deferred
tax timing adjustments and permanent tax adjustsn®uwferred tax timing adjustments may includeedéhces for the
recognition and timing of depreciation, bonusesrtployees and stock option expense. Permanentatiffes may include
adjustments, limitations or disallowances for meald entertainment expenses, penalties, tax gooaiwartization.

Goodwill amortization for tax purposes was creatpdn the purchase of 100% of the equity interest&aitonah Debt
Advisors by its sole member, KCAP Financial, inlexcge for shares of the KCAP Financial's stock edlat $33 million.
Although this transaction was a stock transactathar than an asset purchase and thus no goodaglt@cognized for GAAP
purposes, such exchange was considered an asskapeiunder Section 351(a) of the Code. At the tiftiee transfer,
Katonah Debt Advisors had equity of approximatelyndillion resulting in tax goodwill of approximage$32 million which
will be amortized for tax purposes on a straighélbasis over 15 years, which accounts for an dwifference between GAAP
income and taxable income by approximately $2 ariliper year over such period.

As discussed in Note 5, additional goodwill amatii@n for tax purposes was created upon the puecb&Erimaran
Advisors by its sole member. The transaction wassiciered an asset purchase under Section 351ifa¢ €fode and resulted in
tax goodwill of approximately $22.8 million whichilhbe amortized for tax purposes on a straighélrasis over 15 years,
which accounts for an annual difference between BA#come and taxable income by approximately $ilkomper year
over such period.

Any distributions of taxable net income earnedty Asset Manager Affiliates to KCAP Financial wogleherally need to
be distributed to the KCAP Financial’'s sharehold&snerally, such distributions of Asset Managéiliafe income to the
KCAP Financial's shareholders will be consideredjaalified dividends for tax purposes.

The components of income tax expense (benefitth®years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 286 && dollows:

For the year ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Current income tax expense:

Federal $ 433,820 $ 84,82 $ 290,62:

State & local (59,679 259,79 (39,719
Total net current income tax expense $ 374,14¢ $344,61¢ $ 250,90:
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):

Federal $ 11,14: $(350,45) $ (39,63

State & local (736,24 (215,47 662,63
Total net deferred income tax expense (benefit) $(725,099) $(565,93) $ 662,99¢

Total income tax expense (benefit) $(350,95() $(221,31) $ 873,90:

The Asset Manager Affiliate’s effective income tate was 0.4%, 0.7% and -9.1% for tax years 20021 2nd 2010,
respectively. The difference between the Compargpsrted provision for income taxes and the U.8effal statutory rate of
35% is primarily due to tax goodwill amortizationdathe CLO funds having no tax consequences.

Deferred income taxes are provided for the effeEtemporary differences between the tax basisiasset or liability and
its reported amount in the consolidated finandialesnents. These temporary differences resulixiabia or deductible amounts
in future years.
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The components of deferred income tax assets ahilities are shown below:

For the year ended December 31,

2012 2011

Deferred income tax assets:

Net operating loss and tax credit carryforward $3,690,34. $3,912,08!

Restricted stock 45,52¢ 327,88t

Intangible depreciation/amortization 268,05¢ —

Other 61,72: 21,49(

Less: Valuation allowance (2,957,20) (3,878,10)
Total deferred tax assets $1,108,44i $ 383,34¢
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Fixed asset and intangible depreciation/amortiratio $ —  $ —
Total deferred tax liabilities $ — 3 =

Net deferred tax assets $1,108,44i $ 383,34

The ultimate realization of deferred income taxetss dependent upon the generation of futurébtexiacome during the
periods in which the temporary differences becoedudtible. If it is not more likely than not thatrse portion or all of the
gross deferred income tax assets will be realimddture years, a valuation allowance is recorded.

At December 31, 2012 the Asset Manager Affiliatad federal and state net loss carryovers of $8ltomand $7.0 million
available to offset future taxable income. At Debem31, 2011, federal and state net loss carryavers $8.7 million and $8.3
million, respectively. The net loss carryovers espn the years 2028 to 2032. At December 31, 20&Zederal and state net
operating loss carryovers made up approximatel§ 8#llion and $0.8 million of the deferred tax assspectively. At the
present time, the Asset Manager Affiliates belitha it is more likely than not that a portion bétdeferred tax assets related to
the federal net operating loss carryovers will mrecognized. Accordingly, the Asset Manager #sfids have provided a
valuation allowance against such carryovers iratheunt of approximately $3.0 million.

Asset Manager Affiliates adopted Financial AccongtStandards Board ASC Topic 740 Accounting foréftainty in
Income Taxes (“ASC 740”) as of January 1, 2009. A4G provides guidance for how uncertain tax posgishould be
recognized, measured, presented, and discloséd ifimancial statements. ASC 740 requires the etialu of tax positions
taken or expected to be taken in the course ofgieg the tax returns to determine whether theptasitions are “more-likely-
than-not” of being sustained by the applicableaathority. Tax positions not deemed to meet theestigely-than-not
threshold are recorded as a tax benefit or expertbe current year. The adoption of ASC 740 dithrave an effect on the
financial position or results of operations of th&set Manager Affiliates as there was no liabildy unrecognized tax benefits
and no change to the beginning of capital of theeA#anager Affiliates.

Management's determinations regarding ASC 740 neagubject to review and adjustment at a later ldased upon factors
including, but not limited to, an ongoing analysidax laws, regulations and interpretations therétth a few exceptions,
Asset Manager Affiliates are no longer subject t8.Uederal, state and local tax examinations katahorities for years prior
to 2009.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Asset Manager Affiliates have no direct comreitts and contingencies; however, the CLO Funds bavenitments
to fund approximately $86,000 and $326,000 of itmesits as of December 31, 2012 and
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7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - (continued)

December 2011, respectively. Rent expense was dpmately $379,000, $295,459 and $341,441 for tteeyyended December
31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The following table summarizes our long-term debt.

Weighted
Current Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Maturity
Consolidated Variable Interest Entities Debt: Carrying Value Borrowing Rate (In years)
CLO Debt™® $3,459,529,71 1.07% 7.1

{}

(1) Long-term debt of the VIEs is recorded at faitue. This includes the fair value of the suboatid notes issued by the
VIEs. However, the subordinated notes do not hastated interest rate and are therefore excluaen fhe calculation of
the weighted average borrowing rate. The par vafike VIEs debt (excluding subordinated notes) $&4 billion and
$1.8 billion as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, eetpely.

The following table summarizes our minimum futueade payments as of December 31, 2012:
Contractual Obligations 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 More than 5 years

Operating lease obligations  $342,61: $369,64: $377,89¢ $369,43. $369,43: $ 2,524,45

8. MEMBER'’S EQUITY

The member interest of Asset Manager Affiliateked solely by KCAP Financial. KCAP Financial owt{30% of Katonah
Debt Advisors and 100% of Commodore Holdings, whidtolly owns Trimaran Advisors.

9. OTHER EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Asset Manager Affiliates adopted a 401(k) plan ¢K@Plan”) effective January 1, 2007 that it shawxéh its sole
shareholder, KCAP Financial. The 401K Plan is ofeeall full time employees. The Plan permits an Eyge to defer a
portion of their total annual compensation up ® ltiternal Revenue Service annual maximum basedjerand eligibility.
Katonah Debt Advisors and Trimaran Advisors maketitoutions to the 401K Plan of up to 2.67% of #mployee’s first
74.9% of maximum eligible compensation, which fullgst at the time of contribution. For the yeareh®ecember 31, 2012,
Asset Manager Affiliates made contributions to 404K Plan of approximately $54,000. For the yeateehDecember 31,
2011, Katonah Debt Advisors made contributiondh401K Plan of approximately $41,000.

The Asset Manager Affiliates also adopted a defecampensation plan (“Profit-Sharing Plan”) effgetdanuary 1, 2007.
Employees are eligible for the Profit-Sharing Rtaovided that they are employed and working with Asset Manager
Affiliates for at least 100 days during the yead a@main employed as of the last day of the yeauplByees do not make
contributions to the Profit-Sharing Plan. On belodithe employee, Asset Manager Affiliates may dbate to the Profit-
Sharing Plan 1) up to 8.0% of all compensationaughé Internal Revenue Service annual maximum augh 20 5.7% excess
contributions on any incremental amounts abovestiogal security wage base limitation and up tolthernal Revenue Service
annual maximum. Employees vest 100% in the Prdfartg Plan after five years of service. For tharyended December 31,
2012, The Asset Manager Affiliates made contritngiof approximately $302,000 to the Profit-Shaiftgn.

Certain employees of Asset Manager Affiliates megeive restricted stock grants in the stock of Abtanager Affiliates’
sole member, KCAP Financial. For the years endezébder 31, 2012, December 31, 2011, and Decembh@030, non-cash
compensation expense of approximately $20,000088%nd
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9. OTHER EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION - (continued)

$240,000 respectively, was expensed at Asset Marjkates related to an allocated reimbursabtpense for a grant of
restricted stock of KCAP Financial.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

On November 20, 2012, Trimaran Advisors entered éngenior credit agreement with KCAP Financiatspant to which
Trimaran Advisors may borrow from time to time w20 million from the KCAP Financial in order teopide the capital
necessary to support one or more of Trimaran Adsisgarehouse lines and/or working capital in cartioe with Trimaran
Advisors’ warehouse activities. The Senior Creditikity expires on November 20, 2017 and beargésteat an annual rate of
9.0%. Trimaran Advisers incurred interest experfsgl85,000 related to this transaction for the yeraded December 31, 2012.
No amounts were outstanding under the Senior CFrediility at December 31, 2012.

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated the possibility of sulms#gvents existing in the Asset Manager Affiliatasnbined financial
statements through March 18, 2013, the date tladial statements were avaliable to be issued. §fanant has determined
that there are no material events that would regtisclosure in the Asset Manager Affiliates’ ficai statements other than
listed below.

On February 26, 2013, Trimaran Advisors entered insenior credit agreement with KCAP Financiatspant to which
Trimaran Advisors may borrow from time to time w20 million from the KCAP Financial in order teopide the capital
necessary to support one or more of Trimaran Adsisgarehouse lines and/or working capital in cartioe with Trimaran
Advisors’ warehouse activities. This senior créddility expires on November 20, 2017 and bearsregt at an annual rate of
9.0%. At March 15, 2013, there was $20 million tartsling under the senior credit facility.
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Board of Directors and Shareholders of
KCAP Financial, Inc. (formerly, Kohlberg Capital Corporation)

We have audited the accompanying financial statésmarKatonah 2007-1 CLO Ltd., which comprise th&sment of net
assets, including the schedule of investmentsf Becember 31, 2012, and the related statememiparfations, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the year then endedhenelated notes to the financial statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial statenents

Management is responsible for the preparation aimgfesentation of these financial statementsaoadance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica; this includes the design, implementat@and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation aridgeesentation of financial statements that aee from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢éhi@sancial statements based on our audits. Weuwsttaed our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedeiptthe United States of America. Those standamaisire that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuranoetathether the financial statements are free fincaerial misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidibevidence about the amounts and disclosurtiifinancial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditorggrjadt, including the assessment of the risks oéristmisstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or etromaking those risk assessments, the auditsiders internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair préggon of the financial statements in order toiglegudit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for tippse of expressing an opinion on the effectiveinéshe entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.audit also includes evaluating the appropriateésccounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accmuestimates made by management, as well as eivajubé overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,financial position of Katonah
2007-1 CLO Ltd. as of December 31, 2012, and tiselte of its operations and its cash flows forybar then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

As of
December 31, 201
ASSETS
Investment at fair value:
Debt securities 291,720,61
Equity securities 2,361,131
CLO equity securities 16,321,02
Total investments at fair value 310,402,77
Cash 13,018,61
Accrued interest receivable 737,62
Total assets 324,159,01
LIABILITIES
CLO Debt at fair value 310,470,31
Accrued interest expense 2,198,99.
Payable for open trades 2,970,001
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 179,18t
Due to affiliates 5,66%
Total liabilities 315,824,16
NET ASSETS
Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Income
Interest income from investments
Interest income from cash and time deposits
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Interest expense
Management fees
Trustee fees
Professional fees
Administrative and other
Total expenses
Net realized gain on investmel
Net change in unrealized gain on investm
Change in unrealized loss on debt

Decrease in net assets resulting from operations

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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For the
Year Ended
December 31, 2012

$ 12,899,20
3,19¢

504,94

$ 13,407,33

11,701,09
809,54
88,961
168,11
99,11(

$ 12,866,82
1,868,32:
14,496,07
(29,457,36)
$ (12,552,45)
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KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Assets
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 20,887,30
Decrease in net assets resulting from operations (12,552,45)

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 8,334,85:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Decrease in net assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash puided by operating activities:

Net change in realized gain on investments
Net change in unrealized gain on investments
Change in unrealized loss on debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accrued interest receivable
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in payable for open trades
Increase in accrued interest expense
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments
Net cash provided by operating activities
CHANGE IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH, END OF YEAR
Supplemental Information:
Interest Paid

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Year Ended

December 31, 2012

$ (12,552,45)

(1,868,32)
(14,496,07)
29,457,36

8,67¢

(10,99
(1,870,44))
340,17
(101,848,97)
103,177,49

$  336,44¢
336,44
12,682,16

$ 13,018,61

$ 11,360,92
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KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2012

Debt Securities Portfolio

Investment Interest Rate

Portfolio Company/Principal Business @ /Maturity Principal Cost Value
Acosta, Inc. Term D Loan —
Grocery 5.0% Cash, Due 3/18 $ 97851t $ 97851t $ 989,37
AdvancePierre Foods, Inc. Term Loan (First Lien) —
Beverage, Food and Tobacco
5.8% Cash, Due 7/17 500,00 496,25( 506,25(
Advantage Sales & Marketing Inc. Term Loan (First Lien) —
Grocery
5.3% Cash, Due 12/17 980,00 984,33t 988,94
AES Corporation, The Initial Term Loan —
Utilities 4.3% Cash, Due 6/18 1,536,42 1,536,42! 1,555,63.
Alaska Communications Systems
Holdings, Inc. Term Loan —
Telecommunications 5.5% Cash, Due 10/16 1,960,00! 1,969,90! 1,855,46.
Allison Transmission, Inc. Term B-2 Loan —
Automobile 3.7% Cash, Due 8/17 984,12. 950,57. 991,91
Allison Transmission, Inc. Term B-3 Loan —
Automobile 4.3% Cash, Due 8/19 2,488,76. 2,468,13 2,513,25;
Alpha Topco Limited (Formula One
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Facility B2 (USD) —
Pictures, Entertainment 6.0% Cash, Due 4/19 3,473,79 3,446,33. 3,529,46.
Altegrity, Inc (f.k.a.
US Investigations Services, Inc.) Term Loan —
Diversified/Conglomerate Servict 3.0% Cash, Due 2/15 718,34: 718,34: 668,95
Aptalis Pharma, Inc. (fka Axcan
Intermediate Holdings Inc.)
Healthcare, Education and Term B-2 Loan —
Childcare 5.5% Cash, Due 2/17 496,25( 486,25( 499,56(
Aramark Corporation LC-2 Facility —
Diversified/Conglomerate Servict  3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 163,00 151,18¢ 163,54!
Aramark Corporation U.S. Term B Loan
Diversified/Conglomerate Servici (Extending) —
3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 2,478,63 2,298,93 2,486,81.
Aramark Corporation U.S. Term C Loan —
Diversified/Conglomerate Servict  3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 272,85( 270,42( 273,75(
Aramark Corporation LC-3 Facility —
Diversified/Conglomerate Servici  3.5% Cash, Due 7/16 21,98( 21,78t 22,05:
Armored AutoGroup Inc. (fka Viking
Acquisition Inc.)
Personal and Non Durable New Term Loar—
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 6.0% Cash, Due 11/16 490,00( 491,85¢ 475,60
Ascena Retail Group, Inc. Tranche B Term Loan —
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 6/18 930,83: 920,83: 940,14
Ashland Inc. Term B Loan —
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 3.8% Cash, Due 8/18 736,96« 734,47 746,03t



Corporation)
Insurance

Audatex North America, Inc.
(CSG US Buyco and ABZ Buyco
Automobile

Aurora Diagnostics, LLC
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

5.5% Cash, Due 5/18 1,000,00! 1,005,00!
Extended Domestic

Tranche C Term Loan —

3.3% Cash, Due 5/17 1,458,05. 1,439,64.
Tranche B Term Loan —

6.3% Cash, Due 5/16 455,55t 455,76

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Investment Interest Rate

Portfolio Company/Principal Business @ /Mmaturity Principal Cost Value
AVG Technologies N.V. Term Loan —
Electronics 7.5% Cash, Due 3/16 $ 429,20 $ 409,20 $ 430,27
Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC Tranche C Term Loan —
Personal Transportation 4.3% Cash, Due 3/19 1,588,62 1,580,10: 1,604,900
B&G Foods, Inc. Tranche B Term Loan
Beverage, Food and Tobacco (2012) —
4.0% Cash, Due 11/18 2,970,00! 2,970,00! 2,989,49
Berry Plastics Holding Corporation Term C Loan —
Containers, Packaging and Glas 2.2% Cash, Due 4/15 2,890,82i 2,735,11 2,880,44.
Biomet, Inc.
Healthcare, Education and Dollar Term B-1 Loan —
Childcare 4.0% Cash, Due 7/17 2,909,01! 2,867,13 2,930,83
Bresnan Broadband Holdings, LLC Term B Loan —
Broadcasting and Entertainment 4.5% Cash, Due 12/17 490,00( 493,31¢ 493,36
Brickman Group Holdings, Inc. Tranche B-1 Term
Diversified/Conglomerate Servict Loan —
5.5% Cash, Due 10/16 957,57: 971,43: 973,13:
Burger King Corporation Tranche B Term Loan
Personal, Food and Miscellaneo (2012) —
Services 3.8% Cash, Due 9/19 3,690,75! 3,681,501 3,716,36
Burlington Coat Factory Warehous
Corporation Term B-1 Loan —
Retail Stores 5.5% Cash, Due 2/17 2,826,25! 2,796,501 2,854,51.
BWay Holding Company Initial Term Loan —
Containers, Packaging and Glas 4.5% Cash, Due 8/17 1,000,001 995,00( 1,009,62!
Calpine Corporation Term Loan —
Utilities 4.5% Cash, Due 4/18 982,50( 982,50( 993,83t
Calpine Corporation Term Loan (6/2011) —
Utilities 4.5% Cash, Due 4/18 2,955,001 2,932,61 2,989,10
Capital Automotive L.P. Tranche B Term Loan —
Finance 5.3% Cash, Due 3/17 1,770,02 1,751,09 1,791,41
Capsugel Holdings US, Inc. Initial Term Loan
Healthcare, Education and (New) —
Childcare 4.8% Cash, Due 8/18 901,30( 896,31 912,85(
Caribe Media Inc. (fka Caribe
Information Investments
Incorporated) Loan —
Printing and Publishing 10.0% Cash, Due 11/14 342,08¢ 342,08¢ 337,84
CB Richard Ellis Services, In&) Incremental Tranche D
Buildings and Real Estaf® Term Loan —
3.7% Cash, Due 9/19 3,940,00! 3,920,101 3,950,26.
Cedar Fair, L.P.
Leisure, Amusement, Motion U.S. Term-1 Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 4.0% Cash, Due 12/17 943,92t 955,18! 954,64
Celanese US Holdings LLC Dollar Term C Loan
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber (Extended) —
3.1% Cash, Due 10/16 1,290,14. 1,303,69. 1,304,81
Cequel Communications, LLC Term Loan —
Broadcasting and Entertainment 4.0% Cash, Due 2/19 1,985,001 1,965,001 1,998,19

Charter Communications



Broadcasting and Entertainme

Charter Communications
Operating, LLC
Broadcasting and Entertainment

Chrysler Group LLC
Automobile

3.5% Cash, Due 9/1 1,520,24 1,446,37!
Term D Loan —

4.0% Cash, Due 5/19 992,50( 987,50(
Tranche B Term Loan —

6.0% Cash, Due 5/17 2,959,93 2,748,14.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Investment Interest Rate

Portfolio Company/Principal Business @ /Maturity Principal Cost Value
CHS/Community Health

Systems, Inc.

Healthcare, Education and Extended Term Loan —

Childcare 3.8% Cash, Due 1/17 $ 4,510,81 $ 4,435,891 $ 4,543,22!
Cinemark USA, Inc.

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Term Loan —

Pictures, Entertainment 3.2% Cash, Due 12/19 1,000,00t 995,00( 1,002,29!
Consolidated Communications, Inc Incremental Term 3

Telecommunications Loan —

5.3% Cash, Due 12/18 1,000,00! 990,00( 1,001,25!

Covanta Energy Corporation Term Loan —

Ecological 4.0% Cash, Due 3/19 992,50( 987,50( 1,006,15:
Crown Castle Operating Compaﬁi/ Tranche B Term Loan —

Buildings and Real Estat&) 4.0% Cash, Due 1/19 2,977,48 2,962,48 2,998,93.
CSC Holdings, LLC (fka CSC Incremental B-3 Extende

Holdings Inc. (Cablevision)) Term Loan —

Broadcasting and Entertainment 3.4% Cash, Due 3/16 2,884,94: 2,892,23 2,902,97
David's Bridal, Inc. Initial Term Loan —

Retalil Stores 5.0% Cash, Due 10/19 500,00( 495,00( 501,98

DaVita HealthCare Partners Inc.
(fka DaVita Inc.)

Healthcare, Education and Tranche B Term Loan —
Childcare 4.5% Cash, Due 10/16 1,960,00! 1,981,19 1,976,63.
Dean Foods Company 2017 Tranche B Term

Beverage, Food and Tobacco Loan
(extending) —

5.5% Cash, Due 4/17 4,767,36! 4,669,54 4,768,86
Del Monte Foods Company Initial Term Loan —
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.5% Cash, Due 3/18 2,876,27 2,880,00! 2,885,71.
Dex Media West LLC New Term Loar—
Printing and Publishing 7.0% Cash, Due 10/14 1,132,33. 1,013,07. 848,11!¢

DineEquity, Inc.
Personal, Food and Miscellaneol Term B-1 Loan —

Services 4.3% Cash, Due 10/17 294,52: 294,52 297,44¢
Dole Food Company, Inc. Tranche B-2 Term
Farming and Agriculture Loan —
5.0% Cash, Due 7/18 344,75( 342,13t 345,71
Dollar General Corporation Tranche B-1 Term
Retail Stores Loan —
3.0% Cash, Due 7/14 3,987,93! 3,998,72. 4,019,47
Drumm Investors LLC (aka Golden
Living)
Healthcare, Education and Term Loan —
Childcare 5.0% Cash, Due 5/18 4,430,80 4,386,03 4,168,63

Dunkin' Brands, Inc.
Personal, Food and Miscellaneor Term B-2 Loan —

Services 4.0% Cash, Due 11/17 2,188,48 2,188,48 2,209,12.
Education Management LLC Tranche C-2 Term

Healthcare, Education and Loan —

Childcare 4.3% Cash, Due 6/16 1,566,10. 1,536,411 1,282,24!

Epicor Software Corporation



Electronics 5.0% Cash, Due 5/1 1,970,00! 1,950,10!

Equipower Resources Holdings, LL Term B Advance

Utilities (First Lien) —
5.5% Cash, Due 12/18 1,468,72' 1,446,22'

Essential Power, LLC Term Loan —
Utilities 5.5% Cash, Due 8/19 962,10: 947,10:.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Portfolio Company/Principal Business

Investment Interest Rate
@ Maturity

Principal

Cost

Value

Federal-Mogul Corporation
Automobile

Federal-Mogul Corporation
Automobile

Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc.
Electronics

Fidelity National Information
Services, Inc.
Electronics

First Data Corporation
Finance

First Data Corporation
Finance

Freescale Semiconductor, Inc.
Electronics

Fresenius SE
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Fresenius SE
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Genpact Limited

Diversified/Conglomerate Servici

Gentiva Health Services, Inc.
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Getty Images, Inc.
Printing and Publishing

Graceway Pharmaceuticals, LI&

Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Grifols Inc.
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Hamilton Lane Advisors, L.L.C.
Finance

Harlan Laboratories, Inc. (fka Harle

Sprague Dawley, Inc.)
Healthcare, Education and
Childcare

Harland Clarke Holdings Corp.
(fka Clarke American Corp.)
Printing and Publishing

HCA Inc.
Healthcare, Education and

Tranche B Term Loan —
2.1% Cash, Due 12/14

Tranche C Term Loan —
2.1% Cash, Due 12/15

Term Loan A-2
(Extended) —
2.5% Cash, Due 7/14

Term A-3 Loan —
2.2% Cash, Due 3/17

Non Extending -1 Term
Loan —
3.0% Cash, Due 9/14

Non Extending |-2 Term
Loan —
3.0% Cash, Due 9/14

Tranche B-1 Term
Loan —
4.5% Cash, Due 12/16

Tranche D1 Dollar Term
Loan —
3.5% Cash, Due 9/14

Tranche D2 Term Loan -

3.5% Cash, Due 9/14

Term Loan —
4.3% Cash, Due 8/19

Term B1 Term Loan —
6.5% Cash, Due 8/16

Initial Term Loan
(New) —
4.8% Cash, Due 10/19

Term B Loan (First
Lien) —
7.0% Cash, Due 5/12

New U.S. Tranche B Ter
Loan —
4.5% Cash, Due 6/17

Loan —
6.5% Cash, Due 2/18

Term Loan —
3.8% Cash, Due 7/14

Tranche B-2 Term
Loan —
5.5% Cash, Due 6/17

Tranche B-3 Term
Loan —

421,54!

860,98(

2,887,501

38,80°

77,80¢

2,990,22

613,23.

350,29:

498,75l

3,424,641

3,000,001

85,26¢

982,12

962,50(

3,308,17.

970,88

412,49:

877,01t

2,812,501

-25,53¢

-51,147

2,982,74

619,20!

353,70t

496,25

3,424,641

2,970,001

25,18

972,17:

952,50(

2,947,38.

839,49:

$ 1,364,220 $ 1,334,920 $ 1,260,20

389,40:

863,67!

2,890,79.

38,86¢

77,92

2,933,61

615,27

351,46.

503,42¢

3,383,55!

3,007,87

98,90¢

992,82

969,71

3,000,09:

902,91t



HCR ManorCare, Inc. (fka HCR
Healthcare, LLC)

Healthcare, Education and Initial Term Loan —

Childcare 5.0% Cash, Due 4/18 491,25( 486,28t
Health Management Associates, In

Healthcare, Education and Term B Loan —

Childcare 4.5% Cash, Due 11/18 2,475,001 2,450,001

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Investment Interest Rate

Portfolio Company/Principal Business @ /Mmaturity Principal Cost Value
Hertz Corporation, The Tranche B Term Loan —
Personal Transportation 3.8% Cash, Due 3/18 $ 982500 $ 977,53t $ 987,00
Hertz Corporation, The Tranche B-1 Term
Personal Transportation Loan —
3.8% Cash, Due 3/18 2,000,001 1,990,001 2,009,58
Hillman Group, Inc., The
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Term Loan —
Non-Construction, Noflectronic) 5.0% Cash, Due 5/17 975,01! 979,78 981,92:
HMSC Corporation (aka Swett and Term Loan (First Lien) —
Crawford)
Insurance 2.5% Cash, Due 4/14 942,50( 809,15( 914,22!
Huntsman International LLC Extended Term B Loan -
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber
2.8% Cash, Due 4/17 2,290,20. 2,162,05: 2,297,000
Huntsman International LLC Series 2 Extended Term
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber Dollar Loan —
3.0% Cash, Due 4/17 848,53t 836,10t 851,05t
Infor (US), Inc. ((fka Lawson Tranche B-2 Term
Software Inc.) Loan —
Electronics 5.3% Cash, Due 4/18 2,742,50: 2,761,88 2,772,61
International Architectural
Products, Inc® Term Loan —
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- 8.8% Cash, 3.3% PIK,
Precious Metals Due 5/15 166,93! 160,05- 86,80¢
J. Crew Group, Inc. Loan —
Retail Stores 4.5% Cash, Due 3/18 1,970,001 1,970,001 1,980,59'
Jarden Corporation
Personal and Non Durable Tranche B Term Loan —
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 3.2% Cash, Due 3/18 1,965,03 1,980,89 1,979,00:
JBS USA, LLC Initial Term Loan —
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.3% Cash, Due 5/18 985,00( 980,02! 985,00(
JMC Steel Group, Inc.
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- Term Loan —
Precious Metals 4.8% Cash, Due 4/17 1,484,90 1,477,40 1,500,221
Key Safety Systems, Inc. Term Loan (First Lien) —
Automobile
2.5% Cash, Due 3/14 1,821,12. 1,781,13 1,806,55!
KIK Custom Products Inc. Canadian Term Loan
Personal and Non Durable (First Lien) —
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 2.6% Cash, Due 6/14 138,65¢ 118,80 130,33
KIK Custom Products Inc. U.S. Term Loan
Personal and Non Durable (First Lien) —
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 2.6% Cash, Due 6/14 808,84 693,04« 760,31:
Kronos Incorporated Initial Term Loan
Diversified/Conglomerate Servict (First Lien) —
5.5% Cash, Due 10/19 1,000,001 995,00( 1,013,28!
Kronos Worldwide, Inc. Initial Term Loan —
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 5.8% Cash, Due 6/18 1,462,501 1,440,001 1,480,78
La Paloma Generating
Company, LLC Loan (First-Lien) —

Utilities 7.0% Cash, Due 8/17 1,970,001 1,870,501 1,967,53



Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamii  (Extending)—
2.8% Cash, Due 11/16 2,685,93 2,590,01!

Las Vegas Sands, LLC Delayed Draw | Term
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamin( Loan
(Extending) —
2.8% Cash, Due 11/16 605,87 583,56!

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Live Nation Entertainment, Inc.
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Term B Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 4.5% Cash, Due 11/16 486,25t $ 487,07. $ 492,33
Longview Power, LLC 2017 Term Loan —
Utilities 7.3% Cash, Due 10/17 864,58 763,88( 627,53!
Lord & Taylor Holdings LLC
(LT Propco LLC) Term Loan —
Retail Stores 5.8% Cash, Due 1/19 330,61 320,61 334,49:
LPL Holdings, Inc. Initial Tranche B Term
Finance Loan —
4.0% Cash, Due 3/19 1,985,00! 1,975,00! 2,007,33
Mackinaw Power Holdings, LLC Loan —
Utilities 1.8% Cash, Due 6/15 1,619,04 1,560,00! 1,612,971
MCC lowa LLC (Mediacom Tranche D-1 Term
Broadband Group) Loan —
Broadcasting and Entertainment 2.0% Cash, Due 1/15 971,57¢ 933,93 968,34
McJunkin Red Man Corporation
Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Term Loan —
Non-Construction, Noilectronic) 6.3% Cash, Due 11/19 997,50( 987,50( 1,004,98
MetroPCS Wireless, Inc. Tranche B-3 Term
Telecommunications Loan —
4.0% Cash, Due 3/18 1,960,05: 1,950,15: 1,968,11.
Michael Foods Group, Inc. (flk/a M
Foods Holdings, Inc.) Term B Facility —
Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.3% Cash, Due 2/18 351,45: 357,17( 354,01!
Michaels Stores, Inc. B-2 Term Loan —
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 7/16 979,12¢ 981,27: 989,60:
Michaels Stores, Inc. B-3 Term Loan —
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 7/16 1,653,32 1,611,78 1,671,00
MMH Media Holdings Inc. (fka
MMH Partners, L.P.§® Loan —
Printing and Publishing 4.5% PIK, Due 7/14 233,541 474 —
Munder Capital Management Incremental Term Loan -
Finance
6.0% Cash, Due 3/15 160,78: 159,13 160,78
National CineMedia, LLC
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Term Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 3.5% Cash, Due 11/19 1,000,00! 992,50( 1,002,50!
NBTY, INC.
Personal and Non Durable Term B-1 Loan —
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 4.3% Cash, Due 10/17 430,71 430,71 435,69:
Neiman Marcus Group Inc., Tl Term Loan —
Retail Stores 4.8% Cash, Due 5/18 3,000,001 2,992,501 3,008,701
Novelis, Inc.
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- Term Loan —
Precious Metals 4.0% Cash, Due 3/17 1,478,73. 1,491,71. 1,495,18;
NRG Energy, Inc Term Loan —
Utilities 4.0% Cash, Due 7/18 985,00 982,51 997,25:!

Nuveen Investments, In
Finance

Extended First-Lien Tern
Loan —



Nuveen Investments, In Additional Extended
Finance First-Lien Term Loan —
5.8% Cash, Due 5/17 831,56: 796,39:

OSI Restaurant Partners, LLC
Personal, Food and Miscellaneor Term Loan —
Services 4.8% Cash, Due 10/19 1,500,00! 1,485,00!

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Oxbow Carbon LLC/Oxbow

Calcining LLC Tranche B-1 Term

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- Loan —

Precious Metals 3.7% Cash, Due 5/16 522,17 $ 52554! $ 523,28:
Pantry, Inc., The Term Loan —

Grocery 5.8% Cash, Due 8/19 2,992,501 2,962,501 3,037,38
Party City Holdings Inc. Term Loan —

Retail Stores 5.8% Cash, Due 7/19 498,75( 493,75( 505,21t
Penn National Gaming, Inc. Term B Facility —

Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamin( 3.8% Cash, Due 7/18 1,196,97: 1,196,97 1,202,49
PetCo Animal Supplies, Inc. New Loan—

Retail Stores 4.5% Cash, Due 11/17 3,449,79i 3,449,79 3,481,222
Petroleum GEO-Services ASA/PG!

Finance, Inc. Term Loan —

Oil and Gas 2.0% Cash, Due 6/15 1,568,44. 1,548,83! 1,578,44.
Pharmaceutical Product

Development, Inc. (Jaguar

Holdings, LLC)

Healthcare, Education and Term Loan —

Childcare 6.3% Cash, Due 12/18 1,485,001 1,462,501 1,511,25!
Pinnacle Foods Finance LLC Extended Initial Term

Beverage, Food and Tobacco Loan —

3.7% Cash, Due 10/16 4,808,41 4,721,901 4,841,42

Plains Exploration & Production

Company 7-Year Term Loan —

Oil and Gas 4.0% Cash, Due 11/19 750,00( 746,25( 754,22:
PQ Corporation (fka Niagara

Acquisition, Inc.) Term Loan B —

Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 5.3% Cash, Due 5/17 2,000,001 1,985,001 2,014,03
Progressive Waste Solutions Ltd.  Term B Loan —

Ecological 3.5% Cash, Due 10/19 750,00( 746,25( 756,56.
QCE, LLC (Quiznos)

Personal, Food and Miscellaneor Term Loan —

Services 9.0% Cash, Due 1/17 804,57: 713,22: 634,00
R.H. Donnelley Inc. Loan —

Printing and Publishing 9.0% Cash, Due 10/14 551,08: 426,76: 379,69!
Regal Cinemas Corporation

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Term Loan —

Pictures, Entertainment 3.2% Cash, Due 8/17 490,00( 490,00( 493,15
Reynolds Group Holdings Inc. U.S. Term Loan —

Containers, Packaging and Glas 4.8% Cash, Due 9/18 2,149,611 2,149,611 2,177,56:
RGIS Services, LLC Extended Initial Term

Diversified/Conglomerate Servict Loan —

4.6% Cash, Due 10/16 2,027,20: 1,953,68 2,042,40:

Roundy's Supermarkets, Inc. Tranche B Term Loan —

Grocery 5.8% Cash, Due 2/19 2,977,501 2,932,501 2,808,63
Rovi Solutions Corporation/ Rovi

Guides, Inc. Tranche B-2 Loan —

Electronics 4.0% Cash, Due 3/19 496,25( 493,75( 495,94(

RPI Finance Trust

6.75 Year Term



3.5% Cash, Due 5/1 1,963,21. 1,953,26: 1,982,43.

Sabre Inc. Non-Extended Initial Terr
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 2.2% Cash, Due 9/14 558,50: 364,43: 559,23t

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SBA Senior Finance Il LLC Term Loan —
Telecommunications 3.8% Cash, Due 6/18 $ 985000 $ 98251 $ 991,26
SBA Senior Finance Il LLC Incremental Tranche B
Telecommunications Term Loan —
3.8% Cash, Due 9/19 250,00( 249,37" 251,53t
Seaworld Parks & Entertainment, |
(f/k/a SW Acquisitions
Co., Inc.)
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Term B Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 4.0% Cash, Due 8/17 962,59¢ 950,10¢ 971,34¢
Select Medical Corporation
Healthcare, Education and Tranche B Term Loan —
Childcare 5.5% Cash, Due 6/18 4,925,00 4,875,25! 4,958,24.
Seminole Tribe of Florida Term B-1 Delay Draw
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamin( Loan —
1.8% Cash, Due 3/14 445,02 435,64( 446,96
Seminole Tribe of Florida Term B-2 Delay Draw
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamin( Loan —
1.8% Cash, Due 3/14 1,607,28 1,573,43! 1,614,31
Seminole Tribe of Florida Term B-3 Delay Draw
Hotels, Motels, Inns, and Gamin( Loan —
1.8% Cash, Due 3/14 582,99t 566,12t 585,54
Sensata Technology BV/Sensata
Technology Finance
Company, LLC Term Loan —
Electronics 3.8% Cash, Due 5/18 1,970,001 1,955,07! 1,983,54.
Serena Software, Inc. 2016 Term Loan
Electronics (Extended) —
4.2% Cash, Due 3/16 2,000,001 1,992,501 2,010,001
Sinclair Television Group, Inc. New Tranche B Terr
Broadcasting and Entertainment Loan —
4.0% Cash, Due 10/16 989,59: 979,59: 997,01:
Six Flags Theme Parks, Inc.
Leisure, Amusement, Motion Tranche B Term Loan —
Pictures, Entertainment 4.0% Cash, Due 12/18 1,692,401 1,713,03 1,702,52
Solvest, Ltd. (Dole) Tranche C-2 Term
Farming and Agriculture Loan —
5.0% Cash, Due 7/18 616,92. 612,07: 618,65t
Sorenson Communications, Inc. Tranche C Term Loan —
Electronics 6.0% Cash, Due 8/13 4,246,701 4,051,841 4,179,68
Spirit Aerosystems, Inc. (fka
Mid-Western Aircraft Systems,In
and Onex Wind Finance LP.) Term B Loan —
Aerospace and Defense 3.8% Cash, Due 4/19 2,481,25! 2,468,75! 2,501,411
SRAM, LLC Term Loan (First Lien) —
Leisure, Amusement, Motion
Pictures, Entertainment 4.8% Cash, Due 6/18 885,86¢ 880,99t 888,08

SS&C Technologies, Inc., /Sunshir Funded Term B-1 Loan -
Acquisition I, Inc.
Electronics 5.0% Cash, Due 6/19 827,27t 818,21 840,20:

SS&C Technologies, Inc., /Sunshir
Funded Term B-2 Loan -



Electronics 5.0% Cash, Due 6/1 85,58( 84,64:

Sun Products Corporation., The

(fka Huish Detergents Inc.) Tranche B Term Loan
Personal and Non Durable (First Lien) —
Consumer Products (Mfg. Only) 2.2% Cash, Due 4/14 2,390,20: 2,291,31

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SunCoke Energy, Inc.
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- Tranche B Term Loan —
Precious Metals 4.0% Cash, Due 7/18 246,86( $ 241,88( $ 247,48!
SunGard Data Systems Inc
(Solar Capital Corp.) Tranche C Term Loan —
Electronics 4.0% Cash, Due 2/17 2,720,98; 2,662,53. 2,740,511
Telesat Canada U.S. Term B Loan —
Telecommunications 4.3% Cash, Due 3/19 995,00( 990,00 1,004,70
TPF Generation Holdings, LLC Synthetic LC Deposit
Utilities (First Lien) —
2.3% Cash, Due 12/13 193,22 184,74t 193,70t
TransDigm Inc. Tranche B-1 Term
Aerospace and Defense Loan —
4.0% Cash, Due 2/17 1,964,92! 1,964,92! 1,979,21
Trinseo Materials Operating S.C.A.
(fka Styron S.A.R.L) Term Loan —
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 8.0% Cash, Due 8/17 1,756,66 1,589,63 1,717,411
Tronox Pigments (Netherlands) B. Closing Date Term
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber Loan —
4.3% Cash, Due 2/18 1,563,57 1,538,03 1,582,14
Tronox Pigments (Netherlands) B. Delayed Draw Term
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber Loan —
4.3% Cash, Due 2/18 426,42! 419,46« 431,49!
Tube City IMS Corporation
Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- Term Loan —
Precious Metals 5.8% Cash, Due 3/19 3,970,000 3,930,00: 4,018,39.
TW Telecom Holdings Inc.
(fka Time Warner Telecom
Holdings Inc.) Term Loan B-2 —
Telecommunications 3.5% Cash, Due 12/16 2,426,57. 2,433,72. 2,444,26.
TWCC Holding Corp. Term Loan —
Broadcasting and Entertainment 4.3% Cash, Due 2/17 3,325,06. 3,325,06. 3,366,62.
United Air Lines, Inc. Tranche B Loan —
Personal Transportation 2.3% Cash, Due 2/14 2,445,03: 2,435,721 2,447,58
Univar Inc. Term B Loan —
Chemicals, Plastics and Rubber 5.0% Cash, Due 6/17 3,190,10: 3,197,16 3,185,57.
Universal Health Services, Inc. Tranche B Term Loan
Healthcare, Education and 2011 —
Childcare 3.8% Cash, Due 11/16 466,18t 480,58: 469,88(
Univision Communications Inc. Extended First-Lien Tern
Broadcasting and Entertainment Loan —
4.5% Cash, Due 3/17 3,331,95! 3,248,601 3,283,54.
Valleycrest Companies LLC Tranche A Extended Ter
(VCC Holdco Il Inc.)
Diversified/Conglomerate Servici Loan —
8.0% Cash, Due 10/16 1,797,22 1,760,62! 1,792,72
Vantiv, LLC (fka Fifth Third
Processing Solutions, LLC) Tranche B Term Loan —
Electronics 3.8% Cash, Due 3/19 992,50( 987,50( 994,36
Vertafore, Inc. Term Loan (First Lien) —
Electronics 980,00 980,00 990,22:



Walter Energy, Inc. (f/k/a Walter
Industries, Inc.)

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non- B Term Loan —

Precious Metals 5.8% Cash, Due 4/18 2,499,44 2,480,12
Warner Chilcott Company, LLC

Healthcare, Education and Term B-2 Loan —

Childcare 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 191,35: 191,35:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Warner Chilcott Corporation

Healthcare, Education and Term B-1 Loan —

Childcare 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 $ 382,70t $ 382,70t $ 386,73
Warner Chilcott Corporation Additional Term B-1

Healthcare, Education and Loan —

Childcare 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 145,34 145,34 146,87(
WC Luxco S.A.R.L.

(Warner Chilcott)

Healthcare, Education and Term B-3 Loan —

Childcare 4.3% Cash, Due 3/18 263,11( 263,11( 265,87¢
Weight Watchers International, Inc. Term F Loan —

Beverage, Food and Tobacco 4.0% Cash, Due 3/19 992,50( 982,50( 1,001,571
Wendy's International, Inc

Personal, Food and Miscellaneor Term Loan —

Services 4.8% Cash, Due 5/19 1,995,00! 1,975,00! 2,019,93i
WESCO Distribution, Inc.

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Tranche B-1 Loan —

Non-Construction, Noilectronic) 4.5% Cash, Due 12/19 1,000,001 990,00( 1,007,08!
West Corporation Term B-4 Loan —

Diversified/Conglomerate Servict 5.5% Cash, Due 7/16 1,529,67 1,537,16 1,554,85!
West Corporation Term B-5 Loan —

Diversified/Conglomerate Servict 5.5% Cash, Due 7/16 537,65: 541,60! 546,50:
WireCo WorldGroup Inc.

Machinery (Non-Agriculture, Term Loan —

Non-Construction, Nofelectronic) 6.0% Cash, Due 2/17 1,995,00! 1,975,00! 2,039,88:!
WMG Acquisitions Corp.

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Initial Term Loan —

Pictures, Entertainment 5.3% Cash, Due 11/18 500,00 495,00( 507,03
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. Tranche B Term Loan —

Textiles and Leather

4.0% Cash, Due 7/19 694,68 687,18 701,20(

Yankee Candle Company, Inc., The Initial Term Loan —

Retail Stores 5.3% Cash, Due 4/19 3,610,34! 3,570,34! 3,653,79!

Total Investment in Debt Securities

$292,826,73 $287,576,75 $291,720,61

Equity Securities Portfolio

Portfolio Company/Principal Business Equity Investment Shares Cost Value
MMH Media Holdings Inc.

(fka MMH Partners, L.P.§

Healthcare, Education and Childcare Common Stock 512 $ — % —
International Architectural Products, Ir®.

Mining, Steel, Iron and Non-Precious Metals Common Stock 822 — 32¢
Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Inc® Class A

Leisure, Amusement, Motion Pictures, Common

Entertainment Stock 53,06¢ — 2,023,25I
Caribe Media Inc. (fka Caribe Information

Investments Incorporatet?)

Printing and Publishing Common Stock 877 — 337,55:
Total Investment in Equity Securities $ — $ 2,361,13



See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Portfolio Company CLO Investment Principal Cost Value
APID 2007-5A() Floating — 04/2021 -

CLO Equity D-03761XAG5 $ 1,000,000 $ 655,26 $  805,88:
HLCNL 2007-2AM Floating — 04/2021 -

CLO Equity D-40537AAA3 3,000,001 1,973,01. 2,443,46!
MACCL 2007-1A® Floating — 07/2023 -

CLO Equity B1L-55265AAL5 2,000,001 1,374,00. 1,590,68
MDPK 2007-4A®) Floating — 03/2021 -

CLO Equity D-55817UAF7 2,000,001 1,329,84; 1,666,35.
NAVIG 2007-2A (D Floating — 04/2021 -

CLO Equity D-63937HADO 3,000,001 2,062,99: 2,464,191
TRAL 2007-1AM Floating — 04/2022 -

CLO Equity C-89288BAG6 3,000,001 2,023,95 2,396,29
TRAL 2007-1AM Floating — 04/2022 -

CLO Equity D-89288AAA1 1,000,001 666,85 830,52:
ROSED I-A®) Floating — 07/2021 -

CLO Equity B-77732WAE2 2,000,001 1,553,52! 1,807,73
GALXY 2006-6X (1) Floating — 06/2018 -

CLO Equity B-USG25803AC46 1,500,001 1,241,00: 1,398,26!
GOLDK 2007-2A() Floating — 04/2019 -

CLO Equity B-381096AB2 1,000,001 812,17 917,62
Total Investment in CLO Equity

Securities $ 19,500,000 $ 13,692,63 $ 16,321,02
Total Investments $312,326,73 $301,269,38 $310,402,77

(1) Investment in a Collateralized Loan Obligatiumd.
(2) Equity investment in common stock.
(3) Loan on non-accrual status.

(4) Buildings and real estate relate to real esiateership, builders, managers and developersxeiddes mortgage debt
investments and mortgage lenders or originators.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION

Katonah 2007-1 CLO LTD. (the “Fund”) is an exemptaanpany incorporated in November 15, 2006 wittitéoh liability
under the laws of the Cayman Islands for the sotpgse of investing in broadly syndicated loanghhyjield bonds and other
credit instruments. The Fund is what is commonlgwn as a collateralized loan obligation fund (“CEGnd").

A CLO Fund generally refers to a special purpodeole that owns a portfolio of investments and éssuarious tranches of
debt and subordinated note securities to finanegtinchase of those investments. Investments psedhay a CLO Fund are
governed by extensive investment guidelines, irinlyidmits on exposure to any single industry auisr and limits on the
ratings of the CLO Fund'’s assets. A CLO Fund hdsfaed investment period during which it is allalite make investments
or reinvest capital as it becomes available.

A CLO Fund typically issues multiple tranches obtland subordinated note securities with varyiniongs and levels of
subordination to finance the purchase of their dgaey investments. Interest and principal payménts of designated CLO
Fund expenses) from the CLO Fund are paid to esstled security in accordance with an agreed ugornitprof payments,
commonly referred to as the “waterfall.” The mashier notes, generally rated AAA/Aaa, commonly ess@nt the majority of
the total liabilities of the CLO Fund. AAA/Aaa natare issued at a specified spread over LIBOR anually have the first
claim on the earnings on the CLO Fund’s investmafits payment of certain fees and expenses. Leulsordinated
“mezzanine” tranches of rated notes generally atirgs ranging from AA/Aa to BB/Ba and are usuddiyued at a specified
spread over LIBOR with higher spreads paid on theches with lower ratings. Each tranche is typjaahly entitled to a share
of the earnings on the CLO Fund’s investmentsafréquired interest and principal payments have besgde on the more
senior tranches in the waterfall. The most junianthe can take the form of either subordinatedsot preferred shares. The
subordinated notes or preferred shares generalhotibave a stated coupon but are entitled to wasichsh flows from the
CLO Fund’s investments after all of the other tlasof notes and certain other fees and expensemt.

On January 23, 2008, the Fund issued $323.9 mitiforotes or debt securities, consisting of thes€la-1L Floating Rate
Notes, the Class A-2L Floating Rate Notes, the ChaSL Floating Rate Notes, the Class B-1L Floaae Notes, the Class
B-2L Floating Rate Notes (the “Class B-2L Notesifldhe preferred shares. The notes were issuedgqnirto an indenture,
dated January 23, 2008 (the “Indenture”), with IB8nk National Association servicing as the truskegeunder. KCAP
Financial, Inc. (“KCAP Financial”) owns all of th@eferred shares and Class B-2L Notes of Katon&f2CLO LTD. The
Fund’s defined investment period ends on April2214. Following the defined investment period, pexts from principal
payments in the investment portfolio of the Fundt e used to pay down its outstanding notes,iaatith Class A notes.

Pursuant to a collateral management agreementGtilateral Management Agreement”), Katonah Debvi&drs, L.L.C.
(the “Manager”), which is a wholly-owned portfollmmpany of KCAP Financial, provides investment nggmaent services to
the Fund, and makes day-to-day investment decisionserning the assets of the Fund. The Managepaisorms certain
administrative services on behalf of the Fund underCollateral Management Agreement. The Managamregistered
investment adviser under the Investment AdviseitsoAd940.

S-41




TABLE OF CONTENTS

KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Fund have beerapeelnin accordance with U.S. generally acceptedwating principles
(“U.S. GAAP"). In the opinion of the Manager's maganent, the financial statements of the Fund reflb@adjustments,
consisting of normal recurring accruals, which eeessary for the fair presentation of the findrenadition and results of
operations for the periods presented. Furtherntbespreparation of the financial statements reguinanagement to make
significant estimates and assumptions includingdirevalue of investments that do not have a fgadiailable market value.
Actual results could differ from those estimates] ¢he differences could be material.

All of the investments held and notes issued byFined are presented at fair value on the Fundte®ient of Net Assets.

Fair Value Option. The fund has elected the fair value option uki®€ Topic 825-10-25 to measure its assets and
liabilities and to achieve operational simplificati

Investments of the Fund at Fair Valuénvestment transactions are recorded on thacaihé trade date. Realized gains or
losses are determined using the specific identiiopanethod. Investments held by the Fund are dtatéair value. ASC 820-
10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“A3@B0"), requires among other things, disclosutesihassets and
liabilities that are measured and reported atalive.

Hierarchy of Fair Value Inputs The provisions of ASC 820-10 establish a hidraithat prioritizes inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value and reqaimganies to disclose the fair value of their finahinstruments according to
the fair value hierarchy (i.e., Level 1, 2 and Buts, as defined). The fair value hierarchy giveshighest priority to quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identassdets or liabilities and the lowest priority tmbservable inputs.
Additionally, companies are required to provideitiddal disclosure regarding instruments in the éle¥ category (which have
inputs to the valuation techniques that are unofadde and require significant management judgmémt)uding a
reconciliation of the beginning and ending balarssgsarately for each major category of assetsiahiiities.

Assets and liabilities measured and reported avédile are classified and disclosed in one ofdllewing categories:

Level 1 Inputs:
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenital assets or liabilities at the reporting date

e Level 1 assets may include listed mutual fundsl{iding those accounted for under the equity nmettifaccounting
as these mutual funds are investment companigshdira publicly available net asset values whichdeordance
with GAAP are calculated under fair value measares$ are equal to the earnings of such funds), E9drsties and
certain derivatives.

Level 2 Inputs:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilitiesative markets; quoted prices for identical or famassets or liabilities
that are not active; quotes from pricing servicebrokers, for which the Manager can determine dhderly
transactions took place at the quoted price orttl@inputs used to arrive at the price were olzd#ey and inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable, such aslmodother valuation methodologies.

» Level 2 assets in this category may include debtirrities, bank loans, short-term floating rateee@nd asset-
backed securities, restricted public securitiesedlat a discount, as well as over the countevalires, including
interest and inflation rate swaps and foreign aoyeexchange contracts that have inputs to theatials that
generally can be corroborated by observable maiktat
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Level 3 Inputs:

Unobservable inputs for the valuation of the assdiibility, which may include non-binding brokeuotes. Level 3
assets include investments for which there iliiflany, market activity. These inputs requignficant management
judgment or estimation.

» Level 3 assets in this category may include gareerd limited partnership interests in privateiggiunds, funds of
private equity funds, real estate funds, hedgeduadd funds of hedge funds, direct private equitgstments held
within consolidated funds, bank loans, bonds issne@LO Funds and certain held for sale real estisgosal
assets.

» Level 3 liabilities included in this category Inde borrowings of consolidated collateralized loffigations valued
based upon non-binding broker quotes or discoucast flow model based on a discount margin calicuat

Significance of Inputs:

The Manager's assessment of the significance afticplar input to the fair value measurement $reittirety requires
judgment and considers factors specific to thenfiel instrument.

Valuation of Portfolio InvestmentsDebt and equity securities for which market ations are readily available are
generally valued at such market quotations. Debteguity securities that are not publicly tradedvbose market price is not
readily available are valued based on detailedyapalprepared by management, and, in certain catanes, may utilize third
parties with valuation expertise. The Manager feidhe provisions of ASC 820-10 with respect tgparang the Fund’s
financial statements. This standard defines fdinejeestablishes a framework for measuring faineahnd expands disclosures
about assets and liabilities measured at fair va#l&C 820-10 defines “fair value” as the price thatuld be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orddrgnsaction between market participants at thesorement date. Subsequent to
the adoption of ASC 820-10, the FASB has issuetbuarstaff positions clarifying the initial standaas noted below.

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance thaifiekmand requires new disclosures about fair vat@asurements. The
clarifications and requirement to disclose the am®and reasons for significant transfers betwemrel1 and Level 2, as well
as significant transfers in and out of Level 3tdf fair value hierarchy, were adopted by the Fun2ii10.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurequires the disclosure of the inputs and valuatgehniques used to measure fair
value and a discussion of changes in valuatiomigales and related inputs, if any, during the pkrio

The Manager's valuation methodology and procedfmemvestments held by the Fund are generallyols\s:

Debt Securities:

1. For any asset which is also held by KCAP Finalnmn the applicable date, the KCAP Financial Vaiue mark as of
such applicable date is used.

2. Fair value for all assets which a Fund has cdtethio purchase but yet to settle will be the mmesént mark produced
by Markit (or other third party pricing service, msy be available). If the asset has not receive@ik from Markit, the
purchase price is deemed to be the fair value.

3. For performing loan and bond assets, the fdireves determined in accordance with the followgngcedure. First, if the
asset was marked by Markit (or other third parfgipg service, as may be available) within one rhaftapplicable
date, then the most recent Markit mark will beféievalue. Next, if the most recent Markit markaiged beyond one
month but less than one year, then
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the fair value will be the lower of the most reckftarkit mark and the average price on the appleaaling bucket on
the CSFB Loan Index produced on the date closdbetapplicable date. Lastly, if the asset hagem¢ived a Markit
mark within the last year, the fair value will beoduced by haircutting (in percentage terms) thekroa the applicable
rating bucket of the CSFB Loan Index produced endate closest to the applicable date by said QB Index
value.

For loan and bond assets in payment defaulfaihgalue is determined in accordance with thefaing procedure.
First, if the asset was marked by Markit (or ottherd party pricing service, as may be availabl@hin one month of
applicable date, then the most recent Markit maitkb& the fair value. Next, if the most recent Miamark is aged
beyond one month but less than one year, therathedlue will be the lower of most recent Markiark and the avera
price on the Distressed/Defaulted bucket of the EBistressed Loan Index produced on the date ctosée applicabl
date. Lastly, if the asset has not received a Mankik within the last year, the fair value will deemed to be zero.

For Equity Securities:

1.

For equity assets the fair value is determimeacicordance with the following procedure. Firsthé asset is a publicly-
traded equity, the fair value will be based upandlosing price per share as of the applicable. déggt, if the asset was
marked by Markit (or other third party pricing s, as may be available) within one month of theliaable date, then
the Fair value will be based on the most recentkiarice per share. Lastly, if the asset was meséntly marked by
Markit is aged beyond one month, or has never beemked by Markit, the fair value will be deemedtozero.

CLO Equity Securities:

1.

For any asset which is also held by KCAP Finalnmn the applicable date, the KCAP Financial Vaiue mark as of
such applicable date is used.

Fair value for all assets which a Fund has cdtedhto purchase but yet to settle will be deenodaktthe purchase price.

For performing assets, a Present Value is datedrin accordance with the following procedurestithe Manager
amalgamates Discount Margin (DM) data from the mesént reports published by the CLO Research acdriglary
Trading desks of sell side broker dealers. The thds averaged across each original rating buafkibie CLO capital
structure. For each asset, future cash flows arduymed based upon the three month LIBO rate dsedcdpplicable date
and the contractually mandated spread each agsefused to pay in a no-loss scenario. The presgioe of the future
cash flows is then calculated by using a discoat& equal to the applicable DM for the assetiginal rating bucket pli
the three month LIBO rate as of the applicable .date

Next, the Manager inquires with the -side institution from which it purchased each &ss® provide indicative pricing
as if the applicable date. The fair value is deteeth by an equal weight average of the Presente/éétermined from
the cash flow model and the indicative price predidby the sell side broker dealer from which theetwas purchased.
In the event there is no indicative price produbgé sell side broker dealer, then the Fair Valilebs the Present
Value determined from the cash flow model.

If the bond is a non-performing bond, it will becessary to use a more detailed cash flow m8deh a model may be
one that is commercially available (e.g. Intexpoe that is a spreadshdxtsed CLO cash flow model which has bee
up to replicate the deal in question is used witkcific prepayment, default, and severity inputasropriate to the
bond in question.
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Debt Securities. Most of the Fund’s investment portfolio is compd®f broadly syndicated debt securities for wiznh
independent pricing service quote is availabletieoextent that the investments are exchange tragdre priced or have
sufficient price indications from normal coursedireg at or around the valuation date (financiabrépg date), such pricing
will determine fair value. Pricing service marksrfr third party pricing services may be used asditation of fair value,
depending on the volume and reliability of the nsadufficient and reasonable correlation of bid asklquotes, and, most
importantly, the level of actual trading activity.

CLO Fund Securities.The Fund may selectively invest in securitiesiéssby CLO Funds managed by other asset
management companies. For bond rated tranches ©fRLinds (those above the junior class) withoutstaations to support a
fair value for the specific CLO Fund and tranclzdy; Yalue is based on discounting estimated bogdhpats at current market
yields, which may reflect the adjusted yield on ldaeraged loan index for similarly rated tranctasyvell as prices for similar
tranches for other CLO Funds and also other fastioch as the default and recovery rates of unagylgssets in the CLO Fund,
as may be applicable. Such model assumptions mayava incorporate adjustments for risk premiun @hO Fund specific
attributes. Such adjustments require judgment aag lme material to the calculation of fair value.

Cash. Cash is defined as demand deposits. The Fuml$ fitelcash with financial institutions and, atésncash held in
checking accounts may exceed the Federal Depasitdnce Corporation insured limit.

Debt at Fair Value The Fund has issued rated and unrated bondésatuck its operations. Debt is presented at fdireva

Equity Securities. From time to time, the Fund may receive equitusi¢ies that are received in exchange with a detau
restructuring of Collateral Obligations.

Interest Income Interest income is recorded on the accrual lsisterest-bearing assets. The Fund generalbepla
loan or security on non-accrual status and ceas®gnizing cash interest income on such loan arrggevhen a loan or
security becomes 90 days or more past due or ifdgenotherwise does not expect the debtor to leetaldervice its debt
obligations. Non-accrual loans represented 0.06%wastments at fair value as of December 31, 20h2.aggregate unpaid
principal value of loans past due as of DecembeRB12 was approximately $486,000 and the diffezcbetween fair value
and the unpaid principal balance was approximé&i8g0,000.

Management Fees The Fund is externally managed by the Managesyaunt to the Collateral Management Agreement. As
compensation for the performance of its obligationder the Collateral Management Agreement, theddanis entitled to
receive from the Fund a senior collateral managerfieen(the “Senior Collateral Management Fee”ulaosdinated collateral
management fee (the “Subordinated Collateral Mamag¢ Fee”) and an incentive collateral manageman(the “Incentive
Collateral Management Fee”). The Senior Collatbtahagement Fee is payable in arrears quarterlygsuto availability of
funds and to the satisfaction of payment obligation the debt obligations of the Fund (the “Prjooit Payments”) in an
amount equal to 0.10% per annum of the aggregateipal amount of the Fund’s investments. The Sdimated Collateral
Management Fee is payable in arrears quarterlyjegsuto availability of funds and to the Prioritf Bayments) in an amount
equal to 0.15% per annum of the aggregate prinaipalunt of the Fund’s investments. The IncentivibaBaral Management
Fee equals 20% of the amount of interest and grathgiayments remaining available for distributioritte holders of the
Fund’s preferred shares under the Priority of Paysat which the Incentive Collateral Managemer i@y be paid.

Interest Expenses The Fund has issued rated and unrated bondsatuck its operations. Interest on debt is caledlaty
the third party trustee of the Fund. Interest iraed and generally paid quarterly.

S-45




TABLE OF CONTENTS

KATONAH 2007-1 CLO LTD.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continued)

Trustee Fees The Fund has a third party trustee that is tistatlian for all investments of the Fund and rezeand
disburses all cash in accordance to the trusteeastddial agreements. Trustee fees are accruedaaadjuarterly by the Fund.

Income Taxes.The Fund is not subject to net income taxatiothéUnited States or the Cayman Islands. Accotgimp
provision for income taxes has been made in therapanying financial statements.

Accounting Policies Adopted in the Year Ended Deceber 31, 2012
Improved Disclosures Regarding Fair Value Measunetsie

In May 2011, the FASB issued FASB Accounting StadddJpdate (“ASU”) 2011-04, Fair Value Measurem@rupic
820): Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Meament and Disclosure Requirements in GAAP and IFR®
amendments in this ASU generally represent clatificms of Topic 820, but also include some instanvkeere a particular
principle or requirement for measuring fair valuadisclosing information about fair value measurataéias changed. This
ASU results in common principles and requiremeatsrieasuring fair value and for disclosing inforimatabout fair value
measurements in accordance with GAAP and IFRS aifmendments in this ASU are to be applied prospelgtand are
effective during interim and annual periods begigrafter December 15, 2011. Management currentigyes that the
adoption of this ASU will not have a material impaa the Fund’s net assets, operating resultssir taws.

3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Investments

The investments held by the Fund are primarily §tee in senior secured bank loans (typically syatéid by banks), bonds,
and equity securities. Bank loan investments, whimimprise the majority of the Fund’s portfolio, aenior secured corporate
loans from a variety of industries, including bot fimited to the aerospace and defense, broadgaséchnology, utilities,
household products, healthcare, oil and gas, ahdie industries. The investments mature at vadates between 2013 and
2023, pay interest at Libor or Prime plus a sp@fagp to 8.5%, and typically range in credit ratcagegories from BBB down
to unrated. At December 31, 2012, less than 0.06ftedFund’s assets are in default as of Decembg?P@12. The Fund’s
investments are valued based on price quotatiangdad by an independent third-party pricing sowtéch are indicative of
traded prices and/or dealer price quotations. énetrent that a third-party pricing source is unablprice an investment, other
relevant factors, data and information are considieincluding: i) information relating to the matKer the investment,
including price quotations for and trading in theeéstment and interest in similar investments &edwarket environment and
investor attitudes towards the investment and éstisrin similar investments; ii) the charactersst€ and fundamental
analytical data relating to the investment, inahgdihe cost, size, current interest rate, peridd next interest rate reset,
maturity and base lending rate, the terms and tiondiof the loan and any related agreements, tngdsition of the loan in
the issuer’s debt structure; iii) the nature, adeguand value of the senior secured corporate $ozoilateral, including the
CLO’s rights, remedies and interests with respethé collateral; iv) the creditworthiness of trerrower, based on an
evaluation of its financial condition, financiahgtments and information about the business, ¢awis fcapital structure and
future prospects; v) the reputation and finanabaddition of the agent and any intermediate pargiotp in the senior secured
corporate loan; and vi) general economic and mardeditions affecting the fair value of the serdecured corporate loan.

Debt

The debt issued by the Fund has a stated matwieyaf April 23, 2022. The Fund’s debt was issuedarious tranches
with different risk profiles and ratings. The irgst rates are variable rates based on Libor pjus-aefined spread, which
varies from 0.85% for the more senior tranches%ofér the more subordinated tranches. The debedsby the Fund is
recorded at fair value using an income approadhedr
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by cash flows expected to be received from thefglartcollateral assets. Fair value is determinshg current information,
notably market yields and projected cash flowsaiateral assets based on forecasted default aodeey rates that a market
participant would use in determining the curreitvalue of the liabilities, taking into accounttlverall credit quality of the
issuers and the Manager’s past experience in magaghnilar securities. Market yields, default raaesl recovery rates used in
the Manager’s estimate of fair value vary basethemature of the investments in the underlyindatetal pools. In periods of
rising market yields, default rates and lower delobvery rates, the fair value, and therefore #reying value, of the liabilities
may be adversely affected. Once the undiscountgld ft@wvs of the collateral assets have been deteuhithe Manager applies
appropriate discount rates that a market parti¢ipamuld use to determine the discounted cash flalwation of the notes.

The carrying value of investments held and dehisidsy the Fund is also their fair value. The follg table presents the
fair value hierarchy levels of investments held dett issued by the Fund, which are measuredratdhie as of December 31,
2012:

December 31, 2012

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(% in millions) Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Investments — — 310,402,77
Liabilities:
Debt — — 310,470,31

The following table shows a reconciliation of tregimning and ending fair value measurements foeL8wassets using
significant unobservable inputs:

For the
year ended
December 31, 201

Beginning balance $ 295,366,90
Transfers to Level 3 —
Transfers from Level 3 —
Purchase of investments 99,934,36
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investments (101,592,89)
Net realized gains/(losse 1,868,32
Net Change in unrealized gains/(loss 14,496,07
Ending balance 310,402,77
Changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciatiociyted in earnings related to

investments still held at reporting date $ 12,041,72
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As of December 31, 2012, the Manager’s Level 3fpliotinvestments had the following valuation teiues and
significant inputs:

Type Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
Debt Securities Market 5.4% -
$ 37,976,40 Comparables Market Yield (%) 21.8 %
$253,744,20 3.7x -
EBITDA Multiples (x) 8.8x
Weighte(
Average
Cost
of
Capital 10.7%-
Market Quote (%) 12.0 %
Third-Party Bid-Ask
Mid 45-116
Equity Securities Market Average EBITDA 3.7x -
$ 337,88( Comparables Multiple (x) 7.1x
Weighted Avg Cost 9.6% -
of Capital (%) 14.8 %
$ 2,023,25 Market Quoti Third-Party Bic 38.125
CLO Fund Securitie Discounted Cash 2.36% -
$ 16,321,02 Flow Discount Rate 752 %

The following table shows a reconciliation of tregimning and ending fair value measurements foelL8\viabilities using
significant unobservable inputs:

For the
year ended
December 31, 201
Beginning balance $ 281,012,95
Prepayments, amortization, net —
Unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) 29,457,36
Ending balance 310,470,31
Changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciatiociyted in earnings related to
liabilities still held at reporting date $ 29,457,36
As of December 31, 2012, the Manager’s Level 3litads had the following valuation technique andrsficant inputs:
Asset Type Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range of Inputs
CLO Debt $310,470,318  Discounted Cash Flow scbunt Rate 1.6% - 7.52%

Transfers between levels, if any, are recognizaldeabeginning of the quarter in which the trarsfescur. ASC 820-10
specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques basedhether the inputs to those valuation techrécure observable or
unobservable. In accordance with ASC 820-10, thgaéts are summarized in the three broad levelsdibelow.

« Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted priceacitive markets for identical assets or liabilitileat the Fund has the
ability to access.

« Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted pricemamkets that are not active or for which all sigmift inputs are
observable, either directly or indirectly.



« Level 3— Valuations based on inputs that argbgervable and significant to the overall fair vatneasurement.

The Fund’s debt is presented at fair value withdifierence between principal and fair value reeords unrealized
gain/loss. The par amount of the Fund’s debt is@pmately $324 million as of December 31, 2012.
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The Manager has determined that, although the juraoches have certain characteristics of eqtligy should be
accounted for and disclosed as debt on the FuridterSent of Net Assets, as the preferred shares datated maturity
indicating a date for which they are mandatorilgaemable. The preference shares are also clasagfiddbt, as they are
mandatorily redeemable upon liquidation or termorabf the Fund.

4. INCOME TAXES

Under the current laws, the Fund is not subjectetitincome taxation in the United States or then@ayIslands.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has bewde in the accompanying financial statements.

Pursuant to ASC Topic 748ccounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxdhe Fund adopted the provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) relating to @anting for uncertainty in income taxes which dlas the accounting for
income taxes by prescribing the minimum recognitfmeshold a tax position must meet before beieggrized in the
financial statements and applies to all open tayas of the effective date. As of December 3122there was no impact to
the financial statements as a result of the Fuadi®unting for uncertainty in income taxes. Thed-daes not have any
unrecognized tax benefits or liabilities for theayended December 31, 2012. Also, the Fund recegiiiterest and, if
applicable, penalties for any uncertain tax pos#tias a component of income tax expense. No stter@enalty expense was
recorded by the Fund for the year ended Decemhet(BP.

5. CLO DEBT

On January 23, 2008, the Fund issued $323.9 mitifarotes or debt securities, consisting of thes€a-1L Floating Rate
Notes, the Class A-2L Floating Rate Notes, the ChaSL Floating Rate Notes, the Class B-1L Floafae Notes, the Class
B-2L Floating Rate Notes and the preferred shdres.notes were issued pursuant to the Indenture.

The table below sets forth certain informationdach outstanding class of debt securities issuesbipnt to the Indenture.

Principal Amount Interest
Title of Debt Security Amount Outstanding Rate Maturity Fair Value
Class A-1L Floating Rate LIBOR +
Notes $227,000,00 $227,000,00 0.85 %  April 23, 202: $220,534,15
Class A-2L Floating Rate LIBOR +
Notes $ 26,000,00 $ 26,000,00 150 % April 23,2022 $ 24,938,86
Class A-3L Floating Rate LIBOR +
Notes $ 18,000,00 $ 18,000,00 200 % April 23,202: $ 16,274,90
Class B-1L Floating Rate LIBOR +
Notes $ 11,000,00 $ 11,000,00 3.00 % April23,202: $ 9,490,51.
Class B-2L Floating Rate LIBOR +
Notes $ 10,500,00 $ 10,500,00 500 %  April 23,202: $ 9,140,00
Preferred Shares $ 31,411,73 $ 31,411,73 N/A April 23, 2022 $ 30,091,88
Total Debt $323,911,73 $323,911,73 $310,470,31

Under certain conditions, the secured notes skaledeemable in whole but not in part by the Fumdrmy payment date at
the written direction of, or with the written coms@f, a majority of the preferred shares. KCAPdricial, Inc. Owns 100% of
the Preferred Shares. At December 31, 2012, thebiiim compliance with all of its debt covenants.
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The Fund has no commitments to fund investments Becember 31, 2012.

7. CAPITALIZATION

The authorized share capital of the Fund is $32,260sisting of 250 ordinary shares of $1.00 pduejeeach of which are
issued and fully paid, and 32,000,000 preferredesh&81,411,736 of which are issued and fully péfee ordinary shares that
have been issued are held by Maples Finance Lijratéidensed trust company incorporated in the CGayislands, as the
trustee pursuant to the terms of a charitable.tittg preferred shares that have been issued tyuting are owned by KCAP
Financial. The preferred shares are classifieceas id the Fund’s financial statements, as theyrardatorily redeemable upon
liquidation or termination of the Fund.

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Manager has evaluated events or transactiahfdve occurred since December 31, 2012 througbhviEB, 2013 the
date the financial statements were available frdace. The Manager has determined that thereoaraterial events that
would require the disclosure in the financial steeats.
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Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated February 29, Bpland among Kohlberg Capital
Corporation (the “Company”), Commodore Holdingd,.C., Trimaran Advisors, L.L.C., HBK
Caravelle, L.L.C., Trimaran Fund Management, L.L.Jay R. Bloom, and Dean C. Kehl&.

2.2 Escrow Agreement, dated February 29. 2012, by emahg Commodore Holdings, L.L.C.,
Trimaran Fund Management, L.L.C., HBK Caravelld,.C. and The Bank of New York Mellon,
escrow agent?)

3.1 Form of Certificate of Incorporation of the Compal®

3.2 Form of Bylaws of the Company, as amended artdtegteffective February 29, 2019.

4.1 Specimen certificate of the Company’s commonlstpar value $0.01 per shaf®.

4.2 Form of Dividend Reinvestment PI&p!.

4.4(a) Form of Base Indenture between the Company andRaSk National Association relating to the
7.375% Senior Notes Due 201%)

4.4(b) Form of First Supplemental Indenture between thea@my and U.S. Bank National Association
relating to the 7.375% Senior Notes Due 269D

4.5 Form of Note relating to the 7.375% Seniotd$ Due 2019 (included as part of Exhibit 4.4)

4.6 Indenture dated as of March 16, 2011, by and betiee Company and U.S. Bank National
Association, as truste)

4.7 Form of 8.75% Convertible Senior Notes D0&&(included as part of Exhibit 4.6).

10.1  Form of the Amended and Restated 2006 Equitynitiee Plan () *

10.2  Form of Company Non-Qualified Stock Option Cértite.®) *

10.3 Form of Custodian Agreement by and among Kohlbexgit@l Corporation and U.S. Bank National
Association, relating to the 8.75% Convertible $emNotes Due 2016

105 Form of Overhead Allocation Agreement between tbenfany and Katonah Debt Advisors, L.L
@)

10.6 Form of Employment Agreement between the CompantyDayl W. Pearsof® *

10.7  Form of Employment Agreement between the CompantyEdward U. Gilpin21)*

10.8 Form of Employment Agreement between the CompantyR. Jon Corles&0)

10.13  Form of Employment Agreement between Katonah Delisors and Daniel P. Gilligaft® *

10.14  Form of Indemnification Agreement for OfficersdaBirectors of the Compan{}?

10.20  Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director B8,

10.21  Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februaryd@@2, »y and among the Company, Cri
Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, Credit Suissarffies (USA) LLC, as arranger, The Bank of
New York Mellon Trust Company, National Associati@s collateral administrator and collate
agent, and KCAP Funding?

10.22  Collateral Administration Agreement, dated as direary 24, 2012, by and among the Company,
KCAP Funding, Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Bnamhe Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, National Association, as collateral adstiator and collateral agef#t®)

10.23  Employment Agreement, dated February 29, 2012 nblyaanong, Jay R. Bloom and Trimaran
Advisors, L.L.C., and, solely as to the last thseatences of Section 1(a) and Section 2(d), the
Company (16)*

10.24 Employment Agreement, dated February 29, 291@hd among, Dean C. Kehler and Trimaran

Advisors, L.L.C., and, solely as to the last thseatences of Section 1(a) and Section 2(d), the
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23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independesgi&ered Public Accounting Firm.**
23.2 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independestified Public Accountant.**
23.3 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP, Independestified Public Accountant.**

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant talR 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002.**

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant tolR 13a-14 of the Securities Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanesy@dt of 2002.**
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated March 18, 201B,re$pect to the financial statements and interoatrol over financial
reporting, included in the Annual Report of KCARm&icial, Inc. (formerly, Kohlberg Capital Corpoaat) on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2012. We hereby cottstre incorporation by reference of said reporthe Registration

Statements of KCAP Financial, Inc. on Forms S-8(No. 333-175838, effective July 28, 2011; an@é Nb. 333-151995,
effective June 27, 2008).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013




Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We have issued our report dated March 18, 2018, regpect to the combined financial statementssseAManager Affiliates,
included in the Annual Report of KCAP Financialg lifformerly, Kohlberg Capital Corporation) on Fot®+K for the year
ended December 31, 2012. We hereby consent toitbepioration by reference of said report in theiRegfion Statements of

KCAP Financial, Inc. on Forms S-8 (File No. 333-&838, effective July 28, 2011; and File No. 333-1%8,%ffective June 27,
2008).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013




Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We have issued our report dated March 18, 2018, re#pect to the financial statements of Katon@vA0CLO Ltd., included
in the Annual Report of KCAP Financial, Inc. (forrtye Kohlberg Capital Corporation) on Form 10-K the year ended
December 31, 2012. We hereby consent to the incatipa by reference of said report in the RegigiraStatements of KCAP
Financial, Inc. on Form S-8 (File No. 333-175838aive July 28, 2011; and File No. 333-15199%¢etive June 27, 2008).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 18, 2013




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES ECHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

I, Dayl W. Pearson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKKCAP Financial, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvweeits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, ssaf operations and cash flows of the registesmnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedotss designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiplaring, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegiig’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th:
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s anditand the audit committee of the registrant’srBad Directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 18, 2013 By: /s/DAyL W. PEARSON

Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES ECHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS AMENDED

I, Edward U. Gilpin, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16tKKCAP Financial, Inc.(the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eonditate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvweeits made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, ssaf operations and cash flows of the registesmnof, and for, the
periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over firiaheeporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)15¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedotss designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materiarinéion relating to the registrant, including itmeolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financiplaring, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disesantrols and procedures, as of the end of thiegeovered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegiig’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during th:
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evaituat internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s anditand the audit committee of the registrant’srBad Directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the registrant’s ability to record, processnmarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: March 18, 2013 By: /s/ EbwARD U. GILPIN

Edward U. Gilpin
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepdKKGAP Financial, Inc.(the “Company”) on Form 10fér the year
ended December 31, 2012 (the “Report”), I, DaylR&arson, President and Chief Executive Officehef@ompany, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursu&#d6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934, ¢
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajpphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: March 18, 2013 By: /s/DaAvyL W. PEARSON

Dayl W. Pearson
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the accompanying Quarterly RepbiKCAP Financial, Inc.(the “Company”) on Form-KkOfor the year
ended December 31, 2012 (the “Report”), I, Edwardipin, Chief Financial Officer of the Companyertfy, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of tHeaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934, ¢
amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fajpphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: March 18, 2013 By: /s/ EbwARrD U. GILPIN

Edward U. Gilpin
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




